EEEEE REEERDFRS

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG.CORP.LTD

INTERIM REPORT

Stock Code: 601668.SH




©

— CORPORATE MISSION ———

Expanding a happy
living environment

o B

>

—— CORPORATE VISION ———

To be a world-leading investment
—— and construction enterprise with ——
Chinese characteristics




| CONTENTS

1 IMPORTANT NOTES

2 SECTIONII DEFINITIONS

3 SECTIONII COMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

6 SECTIONIIT MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

39 SECTIONIV CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

42 SECTIONV ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

48 SECTION VI IMPORTANT MATTERS

67 SECTION VII CHANGES IN ORDINARY SHARES AND
SHAREHOLDERS

74 SECTION VIII INFORMATION RELATED TO PREFERENCE SHARES

75 SECTIONIX INFORMATION ON BONDS

86 SECTION X FINANCIAL REPORT



CHINA SECURITIES REGULATORY COMMISSION
SHANGHAI STOCK EXCHANGE

The Company prepared its 2021 Interim Report in accordance with relevant regulations and guidelines
set forth by the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the Shanghai Stock Exchange, including
the Standards for the Contents and Formats of Information Disclosure by Companies Offering
Securities to the Public No. 3 — Contents and Formats of Semi-Annual Reports, the Shanghai Stock
Exchange Listing Rules and other relevant regulations and guidelines. This is a free translation into
English of a report issued in China and is provided solely for the convenience of English-speaking
readers. This report should be read in conjunction with, and is construed in accordance with, China
law and professional auditing standards applicable in China. Should there be any inconsistency
between the Chinese version and the English version, the Chinese version shall prevail. Investors
can access the Company’'s 2021 Interim Report on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(www.sse.com.cn).

Financial statements signed and sealed by the Company’s legal representative (Chairman), person-in-charge of the
accounting affairs (chief financial officer) and person-in-charge of the accounting department (head of the accounting
Index of department)

Sockents  The original review report with the seal of the accounting firm and signatures and seals of the certfied public
. . accountants
LTS o= o7 1o o

The originals of all Company documents and manuscripts of announcements publicly disclosed in newspapers
designated by the China Securities Regulatory Commission during the Reporting Period
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IMPORTANT NOTES

The Company’s Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and its directors, supervisors and officers guarantee
that the Interim Report contains true, accurate and complete information and no false representations, misleading
statements or material omissions, or otherwise they will accept several and joint legal responsibility.

This Interim Report was passed at the third meeting of the third session of the Board of the Company, at which all
the Directors of the Company had attended.

This Interim Report is unaudited. Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership) has reviewed the 2021
interim financial report of the Company and issued a review report.

Zhou Naixiang, Head of the Company (Chairman); Wang Yunlin, Head of Accounting (Chief Financial Officer); and
Xie Song, Head of the Accounting Office (Chief Accounting Officer) guarantee that the financial report set out in the
Interim Report is true, accurate and complete.

Profit distribution plan or the conversion plan of reserves to share capital for the Reporting Period considered by
the Board of Directors

N/A
Risk statement with respect to forward-looking statements
\ Applicable [ N/A

This Interim Report contains certain forward-looking statements made on subjective assumptions and judgments on future
policies and economic trends, which may differ from the actual results or trends due to a range of variables.

The forward-looking statements regarding future plans, development strategies, etc. contained in this Interim Report do not
constitute a material commitment by the Company to investors, and investors are advised to exercise attention.

Whether there is any non-operating misappropriation of funds of the Company by the controlling shareholder and
its related parties

No

Whether the Company has provided any guarantee in favor of external parties in violation of the prescribed
decision-making procedures

No

Whether more than half of the Directors are unable to guarantee the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of
the Interim Report disclosed by the Company

No
Warning on major risks
During the Reporting Period, the Company is not exposed to major risks.

The Company has described possible related risks in detail in this Interim Report. Please refer to the relevant information
set out in “(I) Potential risks” of “VI. Other Disclosures” under Section Il “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS”.

Miscellaneous
\ Applicable [ N/A

In addition to the reviewed financial data, the business data used in this Interim Report comes from the management of the
Company.
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DEFINITIONS

In this Interim Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following words shall have the following meanings:

Definitions of common words

China Construction First Group Corporation
to Eighth Engineering Division

China Construction Harbour and Channel
Engineering Bureau

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited (FEZEANRNDE
FRAE])

China Construction First Group Corporation Limited to China Construction
Eighth Engineering Division Corp. Ltd. (FEZER—B(ER)ERABEE+RE
BARNIRRBRAR)

CSCEC Xinjiang Construction & Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. (FEHiEE
T(ERE)BRAR)

China State Construction Engineering Corporation International Operations
(FERAERFLZAT)

The real estate development brand and business owned by China Overseas
Land & Investment Ltd. (FEEIMNERERAF]) (00688.HK), a subsidiary of

The real estate brand and business other than “China Overseas” that
CSCEC is engaged in

China Construction Engineering Design Group Corporation Limited (B
BiGHEABRAT)

China State Construction International Holdings Limited (FEE A EfrER
BRAE]) (03311.HK)

China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited (FEBIN=FERFIGRAT)
(00081.HK)

China State Construction Development Holdings Limited (FFERHA IV ER
BIRAF]) (00830.HK)

China West Construction Group Co., Ltd. (FEFE I Z IR D ER L F)
(002302.S2)

China Construction Fangcheng Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd.
(FEFERALEEATRAT)

China Construction Science and Industry Corporation Ltd. (FER TE£HH
BR/AE]) (formerly known as China Construction Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (2
ENEERAT))

China Construction Science & Technology Group Co., Ltd. (PRI EHH
BRAE]) (formerly known as China Construction Science & Technology Co.,
Ltd. (FERFEERAT))

China Construction Communications Engineering Group Co., Ltd. (R
BREERIRAR)

China Construction Harbour and Channel Engineering Bureau Group Co.,

Ltd. (PEEFBERBRAF)

Articles of Association of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited
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SECTION I COMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

. Information of the Company
G EP Eﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁ&’&a ...........................................................................
e cmme
Eng“Shname ChlnaStateConstructlonEnglneerlngCorporatlonL|m|ted ......................
Eng"smbbrewanon csore T
Legalrepresematwe ZhOUNaIXIang ........................................................................................

CSC Fortune International Center, Building 3, Courtyard 5,
Anding Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

CSC Fortune International Center, Building 3, Courtyard 5,
Anding Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

Postal code of the office address 100029

Websne Wwwcsceccom ......................................................................................
Ema,| ,r@csceccom .........................................................................................
|n dex for Cha n ges du,—,ng . th e Re pon | ng . pe,—, Od . / ..............................................................................................................

Name of newspaper designated by the China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News, Securities Times
Company for information disclosure and Securities Daily

CSCEC Board Office
CSC Fortune International Center, Building 3, Courtyard 5, Anding
Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

V. Overview of Stocks

Type Stock exchange Abbreviation Stock code Original ticker
A share Shanghai Stock Exchange CSCEC 601668 N/A
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VL.

VIL.

Other Relevant Information

\ Applicable [ N/A

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General

Name Partnership)
Accounting firm engaged by the Level 16, Ernst & Young Tower, Oriental Plaza, No. 1
Company (domestic) Office address East Chang An Avenue, Dongcheng District, Beijing,
PRC

Key Accounting Data and Financial Indicators of the Company

h Key accounting data

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Reporting Period

Key accounting data (January to June)

Same period YoY Change YoY (%)

Revenue 936,715,963 728,187,767 28.6
Profit before income tax 51,725,913 43,774,877 18.2
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the 05,642,823 19,839,785 292
Company
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company after deducting non-recurring profit 24,538,379 18,583,408 32.0
or loss

As at the end of

As at the end of

the Reportlng last year Change YoY (%)
Period
Net assets attributable to shareholders of the 316,131,639 300,421,431 5.9
Company
Total assets 2,351,232,414 2,192,173,839 7.3

(I Key financial indicators

Reporting Period

Key financial indicators (January to June)

Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.62 0.47 31.9
Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.61 0.46 32.6
Basic EPS (F_%MB/shgre) after deducting 0.58 043 34.9
non-recurring profit or loss
Weighted average return on net assets (%) 8.13 6.98 Increase of 1.'15
percentage points
Weighted average return on net assets after Increase of 1.24
. ) . 7.77 6.53 .
deducting non-recurring profit or loss (%) percentage points

Net assets per share attributable to ordinary
shareholders (RMB/share)

Explanation on the key accounting data and financial indicators of the Company
\/ Applicable [ N/A

® When calculating earnings per share, the restricted shares that have not yet met the unlocking conditions and
become invalid are deducted from the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued by the Company.

@ According to relevant accounting requirements, when calculating earnings per share, the dividends or interests of
other equity instruments such as preference shares and perpetual bonds and restricted shares shall be excluded
from the net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company.



VIIL.

X.

SECTION II' COMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS 5
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

® The net assets per share attributable to ordinary shareholders are the net assets attributable to shareholders of the
parent company deducting other equity instruments, and then divided the balance by the total number of issued
shares as at the end of the Reporting Period.

For details, please refer to Note X| “Share-based payment”, Note V. 65 “Earnings per share” to the financial statements
under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT”, and SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PROVIDED BY MANAGEMENT 2 “Return
on net assets and earnings per share” and other relevant information.

Differences between Accounting Data under Domestic and Foreign Accounting Standards
[J Applicable +/ N/A

U)) Differences of net profit and net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company in the
financial report disclosed in accordance with the International Accounting Standards and
Chinese Accounting Standards

(] Applicable v N/A
(Iy  Differences of net profit and net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company in the

financial report disclosed in accordance with both foreign accounting standards and Chinese
accounting standards

(] Applicable v N/A

(1 Explanation on differences between domestic and foreign accounting standards
[J Applicable +/ N/A
Statement of Non-Recurring Profit or Loss

\ Applicable [ N/A

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

R Note
Non-recurring items Amount (it applicable)
Gains from disposal of non-current assets 137,876 /

Government grants recognized in profit or loss (other than government grants
which are closely related to the Company’s normal business operations, comply Included in non-
with national policies and can be enjoyed continuously based on a fixed amount operating income
or a fixed quantity)

In addition to the normal operation of the Company’s effective hedging business,
gains/(losses) arising from changes in fair value of financial assets held-for-
trading, derivative financial assets, financial liabilities held-for-trading and
derivative financial liabilities and investment income from disposal of financial
assets held-for trading, derivative financial assets, financial liabilities held-for-
trading, derivative financial liabilities and other debt investments

Reversal of the provision on receivables and contract assets for impairment on an
individual basis

Miscellaneous

[J Applicable +/ N/A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

l. Explanation on the Company’s Principal Business, Business Model and Industry Information
during the Reporting Period

(1

Principal business and business model

As an investment and development conglomerate bestowed with the longest history of specialized and market-
oriented operation and the most developed level of integration in the PRC and the largest scale in the world,
CSCEC is a market leader in housing construction engineering, infrastructure construction and investment, real
estate development and investment, prospecting and design, etc. CSCEC ranked 13th in Fortune Global 500
(2021) and among top 3 on the list of Fortune China 500 for nine consecutive years, and continued to top the list
of the 2020 Top 250 Global Contractors published by Engineering News-Record (ENR). CSCEC has been rated
as Grade A by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission (SASAC) of the State Council
for 16 times. The leading global rating agencies, i.e., S&P Global Ratings, Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch
Ratings affirmed CSCEC's ratings as A/A2/A (respectively) with “Stable” outlook, the highest credit ratings among
the global industry peers.

CSCEC stands as one of the most competitive investment companies in China, specializing in real estate
development, financing and investment for construction projects and integrated urban construction. Featuring
a “four in one” business model integrating planning and design, investment and development, infrastructure
construction and housing construction engineering, it provides a turnkey solution covering all aspects, processes,
elements for urban development projects, with a priority given to the synergy between internal resource integration
and business development.

Tapping into more than 100 countries and regions, CSCEC, as the largest engineering contractor in the world,
specializes in a broad range of business covering all aspects related to urban development and each stage
throughout construction projects. The Company is well equipped with the capabilities of comprehensive design,
construction and land development, and is well positioned to compete relying on its complete industry chain of
construction products ranging from research and development (R&D) on technology of products, prospecting
and design, real estate development, construction contracting, equipment manufacturing and asset operation to
property management. Among most super-high-rise buildings with a height of 300 meters or above in China, those
technically sophisticated and structurally complicated are all built by CSCEC.

Among the 10 model enterprises selected by SASAC for the “World-class Enterprises Campaign”, CSCEC is the
only company engaged in a “perfectly competitive market”. Adhering to the guiding philosophy of “implementing
the new development concepts and adhering to high-quality development”, the Company made concrete efforts to
advance the restructuring, transformation and upgrading. The Company took the strategic goals of “one creation
and five aspects of strength”' as the guide for its development under the “14th Five-Year Plan”, and upheld the
concepts of marketization, high-quality development, reform and innovation, green development, people-oriented
development, development conforming to greater security and international development. By fully benchmarking
world-class leaders in the industry, and as motivated by our determination of building up a globally competitive
top-class enterprise, and on the basis of facilitating the reform of state-owned enterprises, the Company
accelerated “166” strategic initiatives? and was committed to becoming a leading global conglomerate with strong
value creativity, innovation leadership, brand influence, international competitiveness and cultural soft power.

Building on the achievement of building a moderately prosperous society in all respects and achieving the first
centenary goal, the “14th Five-Year Plan” period is the first five years of China’s new journey toward fully building
a modern socialist country and marching toward the second centenary goal. Facing the complicated international
situation and formidable tasks for advancing domestic reform and development and ensuring stability, CSCEC
strengthened prospective thinking, global planning, and strategic layout to ensure the preparation of “the 14th
Five-year Plan” with high standards and high quality. During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, the Company
will deeply participate in building a new development paradigm with domestic circulation as the mainstay and
domestic and international circulations reinforcing each other, strive to promote the modernization of its corporate
governance system and governance capacity, and fully display the “six aspects of strength” as a state-owned
enterprise. It will always practice its corporate mission of “Expanding a Happy Living Environment”, strengthen its
digital, intelligent, industrial and greening construction capacities, accelerate the development of requirements for
original technology source and modern industry chain length, and make a good start for fully building a modern
socialist country, thereby continuing its enhancement and optimization.

! “One creation” refers to the goal of establishing CSCEC as a world-class company with strong global competitiveness. “Five aspects of
strength” refer to strong value creativity, strong innovation leadership, strong brand influence, strong international competitiveness and
strong cultural soft power.

“166” strategic initiatives refer to “One Improvement, Six Commitments and Six Specialization” strategic initiatives. Specifically, One

Improvement means further improving political stance. Six Commitments means commitment to high-quality development, commitment to
innovation-driven development, commitment to serving national strategies, commitment to deepening reform of state-owned enterprises,
commitment to accelerating transformation and upgrading, and commitment to incorporation of Party leadership into corporate governance.
Six Specialization means the special acts of deepening inspection and rectification, enhancing scientific and technological innovation,
disposing of inefficient and ineffective assets, improving basic management, promoting information building-up and strictly enforcing safety
production.
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Positioned as a competitive player in the entire construction industry chain, we are
committed to providing domestic and foreign clients with one-stop services from
design, construction to implementation of major high, big, professional, cutting-
edge, difficult and special construction projects. To this end, we implemented
a series of measures, including tapping our potential, strictly controlling over
construction quality and costs, and improving client satisfaction. Meanwhile, we
adhered to a marketing strategy oriented toward “high-end markets, high-end
customers, high-end projects” and an operation strategy prioritizing “low-cost
competition, high-quality management”. We have constructed a large number of
extremely challenging landmark projects ranging from skyscrapers, large public
. buildings, high-tech clean plants, hotels, hospitals to schools in the civilian,
HOUSIng public and industrial construction sectors, representing the highest standard in
construction the field of housing construction in China, which established CSCEC as a leader
engineering in the Chinese and global housing construction markets. As a trendsetter in the
industry, the Company seeks to continuously enhance the standards of ecological
civilization and green and low-carbon development through actively exploring
and implementing the coordinated development of green construction, intelligent
construction and construction industrialization, and create an excellent living
environment for the public, reinforcing people’s sense of gain, spiritual well-being
and security.

CSCEC earnestly implemented the major decisions and deployments of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China (CPC) and the State Council,
fulfilled its responsibilities as a state-owned enterprise based on major national
strategic planning and deployment, actively practiced regional coordinated
development strategies, and deeply participated in the investment and
construction projects in the key areas of the country, including the coordinated
development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, the development of the Yangtze
River Economic Belt, the development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area (GBA), the integrated development of the Yangtze River Delta,
and the ecological conservation and high-quality development of the Yellow River
Basin. Placing equal emphasis on construction and investment operations, we
completed a large number of high-profile domestic and international infrastructure
projects ranging from urban rail transits, high-speed railways, extra-large bridges,
expressways, municipal roads, urban utility tunnels, ports and waterways,

electricity, mining, metallurgy, petrochemical, airports to nuclear power plants,
leveraging our advantages in technology, management and talent. In addition,
the Company has rapidly grown to be a leading Chinese infrastructure financier

and investor in reliance upon its solid financial strengths. Recognized as one of
the most trusted investors for BT (Build-Transfer), BOT (Build-Operate-Transfer) i
Infrastructure and PPP (Public-Private Partnership) projects, we invested in numerous key
construction hanonal and rgglonal projects, with Iong-term strgteglc _partnersmps in resp_ect of :

: infrastructure investment and construction established in a number of provinces, !

and investment autonomous regions, and municipalities directly under the central government and i
in dozens of major cities. Furthermore, we also have infrastructure construction
presence in dozens of countries and regions in North America, Central America, i
Hong Kong SAR, Macao SAR, Southeast Asia, North Africa, Central and West
Africa, South Africa, Middle East, Central Asia and other parts of the world. As ,
an important driver for economic growth and effective implementation of national
strategies, the infrastructure industry bolsters areas of weakness at the grassroots i
level to foster the public’s well-being, and serves as the main vehicle for driving
development along the “Belt and Road Initiative” (BRI) and for strengthening i
interconnection between China and other BRI countries. As a strong supporter
of national strategies and serving the needs of people’s livelihood, CSCEC i
will continue to broaden its infrastructure business and actively participate
in new infrastructure business with the aim of improving people’s livelihood, 1
bolstering areas of weakness to promote the public’s well-being, and setting the
development direction for emerging industries.
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H China Overseas and CSC Land are the two real estate brands owned by CSCEC. Specifically,
China Overseas encompasses all real estate business of COHL, and has always ranked among the
! most valuable property brands in China, with strong business presence in dozens of economically
| dynamic cities in the GBA, the Yangtze River Delta, the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region and national
i strategic development areas. Boasting a well-established and balanced nationwide strategic
business network, China Overseas is committed to becoming an outstanding international real
! estate development and operation group in the future. China Overseas takes “transformation and
| upgrading” as the major guideline, accelerating the formation of a layout that focuses on housing
, development, with quality commercial property development and operations as well as education,
f healthcare and other emerging business playing an important supportive and complementary role.
! CSC Land is the brand used by the real estate business of the Company’s divisions and design
| institutes, focusing on the middle-end real estate development in first- and second-tier cities, as
i well as the localized operation of real estate projects in third- and fourth-tier cities. CSCEC has
stepped up internal resources integration and coordinated business development to achieve Real estate

! vertical integration of a wide variety of operations ranging from investment, property development, development

E design and construction to property operation and services. Leveraging extraordinary construction and investment
' technology, advanced real estate development philosophy and first-class property service quality,
' it has established a sophisticated investment operation and risk management system in the real
! estate business area, and formed a unique competitive advantage in the industry chain, thereby
] becoming an important business segment for improving profitability of all divisions and design
institutes. Meanwhile, the Company has actively innovated products and business models and
' focused on the public’s housing needs, and has been closely involved in the New Urbanization
H campaign to continue to make life more joyful for the people and build a more beautiful China.

As an important part of the Company’s efforts to build whole-industry-chain advantages,
prospecting and design mainly aims to improve the Company’'s brand influence,
cultivate high-end talents, enhance technological innovation and provide solid support
for the Company’s conducting of general contracting business. The prospecting and
design business arm of CSCEC mainly consists of seven top-rated major prospecting
and design service providers, with business covering architectural design, urban
planning, engineering survey, public utility design, etc. The Company has established
itself as a market leader in such fields as super-high-rise buildings, airports, hotels,

sports facilities, exhibition venues and ancient architecture. We currently have over Prospecting
20,000 high-end technical professionals specializing in construction engineering and dd .
design, public utility engineering and design, engineering survey and geotechnical an e3|gn

engineering, ranking high in the industry by the number of top level professionals.
The Company has made outstanding contributions to the sector in terms of design
originality, technology innovation and industry standards development.

CSCEC is one of the earliest companies that conducted international engineering
contracting business in China, and has always upheld the operating philosophy of
“going global”. After continuous overseas market development and operation over
the decades, the Company has established strong business presence in global
markets, with foreign engineering contracting business covering housing construction,
manufacturing, energy, transportation, water conservancy, industry, petrochemical,
hazardous substance treatment, telecommunications and sewage/waste treatment
projects, while exploring and successfully completing overseas real estate projects.
In terms of project operation, apart from the traditional general contracting model, the
Company actively explored other project operating models, such as financing and
investment channels to give an impetus to such project business models as general
contracting, DB (Design-Build), EPC (Engineering-Procurement-Construct), BOT and /“
PPP. Meanwhile, attempt has been made in respect of capital operations such as cross- eme
border mergers and acquisitions to enhance the quality and efficiency of overseas
business development. Despite a grave and complex international environment,
ongoing downward trend in the industry, and wide-spread and far-reaching pandemic, Overseas
the Company will still adhere to an internationalized development direction, and insist operations
on quality and efficiency priority instead of pursuing scale only. It will coordinate
opening-up and security, seize the development opportunities arising from the BRI
and make good use of the resources in both international and domestic markets to
continuously deepen and fully tap into core markets. Meanwhile, the Company will
innovate and improve business models, systems and mechanisms, embracing a
new period of “high-quality development overseas” featuring “adherence, extensive
cultivation, exploration and innovation”, striving to have greater say and stronger
influence in the global industry, and building itself into an outstanding representative of
“Chinese Construction” in the global market.
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(1) Overview of the industry

The construction industry is an important pillar industry of
the national economy, which has a close relationship with
the development of the entire national economy and the
improvement of people’s livelihood. In recent years, China’s
construction industry has continued to develop rapidly, with its
scale expanding, and the construction capacity improving. In
the first half of 2021, China’s construction sector saw a slower
profit growth amid a continual increase in market concentration.
Sticking to the proactive fiscal policy on an ongoing basis,
China has actively expanded effective investments, increased
investment in strategic emerging industries, stepped up the
industrialization, digitalization and smart operation upgrading
of the construction industry, with a view to cultivating “Chinese
Construction” brands with global competitiveness. We have
also witnessed a shift of focus in innovation and application
of technologies toward BIM, Industrial Internet, 5G, artificial
intelligence, Internet of Things (loT), big data, cloud computing,
robots and building machines, etc. Meanwhile, adhering to the
“green development” strategy, the government has worked
out a scientific and sound urbanization plan focusing on
improving the ecological environment, eco-friendly planning,
design and construction standards, and is fully committed to
building smart cities to promote harmony between people and
nature, leveraging digitalized construction, IT and other new
technologies.

The property construction market has great potential for
growth. According to the national urbanization plan, China’s
urban population will grow to nearly one billion by 2030,
implying a total demand for residential properties of 80-90
billion square meters (including housing properties and public
buildings). A considerable gap between supply and demand
indicates the promising prospect of the property construction
market. Specifically, the government has pushed forward
new urbanization initiatives such as the transformation of old
urban residential blocs and communities, as well as medical
and healthcare, cultural and entertainment, sports and fitness
facilities, and facilities for people’s livelihood, opening up new
opportunities for construction companies. The government has
also vigorously promoted prefabricated building development
at the policy level and the proportion of newly started
prefabricated buildings has increased year by year, which
will continue to inject tremendous growth momentum into the
construction market. As the BRI deepened and gained traction
on the international stage, a growing number of countries have
joined the global development initiative, leading to continuous
growth of our prospective overseas markets. CSCEC has a
proven track record of effective branding, management and
technology development in the upscale property construction
market, and continued to maintain its leading position in
the field. Meanwhile, benchmarked against the leading
international standards, CSCEC has actively implemented
“prefabrication + internet + loT” technological innovation and
construction practices, aiming to develop investment, industry
and technology platforms that promote eco-friendliness,
intelligent buildings and construction industrialization within the
CSCEC system.

Focusing infrastructure investment on key areas. In 2020,
the central government has made important deployment for
the construction of urban agglomerations and central cities. In
terms of improving the carrying capacity of the central cities,
the priorities were to bolster areas of weakness of people’s
livelihood projects, construct public service projects, build
human settlements, and develop new districts and large
industrial towns in first- and second-tier cities. In terms of
connection network improvement within urban agglomerations,
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the priorities were to build the intercity rail transit network in the
Yangtze River Delta, the GBA, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region
and other regions, and to bolster areas of weakness such
as railways, motorways, water transportation, airports, water
conservancy, energy, agricultural and rural development,
ecological and environmental protection, and construction
of urban parking facilities and cold chain logistics facilities in
urban and rural areas. Specifically, rail transport, underground
space, eco-environment protection and telecommunication
facility are expected to be the fastest growing segments,
and the total volume of road and railway projects will remain
at a high level. Along with the commercialization of the 5G
technology in the future, the focus of infrastructure investment
will shift toward the new-generation infrastructure such as Al,
the Industrial Internet and IoT.

The real estate sector is transiting to a stock-based model.
In 2020, adhering to the regulatory policy that “houses are for
living in, not for speculation”, the central government continued
to implement measures specifically based on local conditions,
adopted multiple strategies, and stepped up efforts to establish
a multi-supplier and multichannel housing system that places
equal emphasis on rental housing and properties for sale. The
goal is to meet the housing needs of all Chinese residents,
while shifting the public’s perception of housing properties
toward their intrinsic function — houses are for people to live
in. Stringent regulatory policies were maintained, and as the
government introduced policies such as the “three red lines”
for real estate companies, the incremental market tends to
stabilize, and the real estate industry will gradually shift from
an incremental model to a stock model. Urban renewal is
an inevitable product of the stock era, which contains huge
space and opportunities. Besides, China’s urban renewal
focuses more on refinement and micro-renewal, and the
transformation of old communities has become a hot spot. The
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development (MOHURD)
estimates that the overall investment of transformation of
old communities exceeds RMB4 trillion. At present, local
authorities have successively issued three-year action plans
for the transformation of old communities, and the MOHURD
has launched pilot projects in 15 cities including Xiamen and
Guangzhou. The most prominent feature of the transformation
is “renovation”, which promotes the development of the market
for decoration and public supporting facilities construction.

Prospecting and design business gradually enters the
mature stage. Currently, the economy operates in a stable
environment with changes. Due to the combined effects of
China-US trade frictions, domestic economic restructuring
and development transformation, the prospecting and design
industry is witnessing dynamic, complex, vague and blending
changes in an environment where the industry sees continued
growth and intensified competition challenges, development
driven by market demands and by endogenous reforms of
enterprises, and deepened evolution of competitive landscape
and accelerated innovation of business models of enterprises.
After the PRC economic development enters the new
normal, the prospecting and design industry, which is highly
dependent on fixed asset investment, will be greatly affected.
After over a decade of rapid growth, the industry has started
to develop at a slower pace in a market that is experiencing
profound changes. The prospecting and design industry is
a wisdom-intensive productive service sector, as well as the
soul and guide of engineering construction. The continual
reform of economic structure leads to a shift in industry hot
spots; and the continual deepening of marketization gives rise
to differentiated development of enterprises in the industry.
Enterprises in the industry continue to integrate to further
enhance corporate and technological strengths.
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Il Analysis of the Core Competitiveness during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable [ N/A

During the Reporting Period, there were no significant changes in the core competitiveness of the Company. The core
competitiveness mainly includes the following:

Market-oriented operating mechanism

As a market economy player, CSCEC will always adhere to the market-oriented operating mechanism, to respect,
abide by, adapt to and take advantage of market rules, and gradually enhance its ability to operate in compliance
with market rules. Faced with the cut-throat market competition, CSCEC will take innovative approaches to tap
into and continuously meet the real and potential needs of clients, and continuously retain and attract clients with
high-quality products and value-added services. The Company will always adhere to the concept focused on
performance, pursuing excellent performance by clearly defining objectives, scientifically designing processes
and strengthening efficient operations. The Company has always pursued growth supported by profitability. With
the efficient utilization and operation of resources, the Company will improve efficiency in turnover of assets, and
achieve higher return on assets than the industry average while vigorously promoting economies of scale, and
continue to gain higher market share through steady growth. We always pay close attention to cash flows and
take all measures to ensure net operating cash inflow to pursue the sustainable and healthy development of the
Company.

Innovation is the eternal focus for enterprises. As uncertainties in the market economy are becoming common,
CSCEC will break the market equilibrium with creativity, actively capture profit opportunities, seek to reorganize
production elements, continuously enhance quality of products and services, and open up new markets, new
business and new client base to make full use of changes to explore innovation, thereby enhancing the Company’s
market competitiveness. As an economic organization, the Company will always be committed to pursuing
economic performance, while believing that an enterprise that truly stands up to market trends and has an ever-
growing foundation must be a model for practicing social responsibility. CSCEC will uphold the concept of green
development, be dedicated to building quality projects for the society, actively fulfill social responsibilities, and
boost the happiness of people.

Direction of globalization

Adhering to the international business philosophy, solidly promoting the high-quality development of overseas
business, and focusing on the integration of domestic and foreign resources, the Company is committed to
becoming a multinational company that allocates resources globally and operates efficiently. Despite the continued
shock of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company further enhanced its brand influence and global competitiveness
by leveraging on advantages of the whole industry chain and global resource allocation capabilities. The Company
has adopted a localized operating approach, meaning that in countries where the Company operates, it endeavors
to meet such countries’ development needs, deeply taps into their markets and plays an important role in their
urban development. Through localized operation and by establishing a community of interests with local partners,
we achieved sustainable development in the host country. The Company insisted on market-oriented competition,
improved its internationalization level through competition with world-class enterprises and win-win cooperation,
and broadened its global thinking with a view to laying a solid foundation for the Company to participate in global
competition and cooperation at a higher level and to a deeper extent.
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Relevant and diversified and vertically integrated expansion

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

Producing or offering products or services that continue to secure, serve and satisfy clients is an important
guarantee for the long-term development of the Company. In terms of selecting products (or services), CSCEC
has moved toward a path of diversification based on its existing technological and market advantages. The
Company will continue to maintain its traditional advantages in prospecting and design, housing construction and
real estate development, while actively expanding horizontally in other fields such as infrastructure investment and
construction business.

CSCEC is committed to the vertically integrated expansion of investment, design, construction, operation and
services, and strives to establish a unique market position in the domain of its business, creating competitive
advantages that are difficult for its competitors to follow suit.

Competitive strategy featuring high quality, low cost and differentiation

Providing products and services with high quality and at low cost to the public has always been the goal of
CSCEC. High quality comes from the Company’s technological, human resources and organizational advantages;
while low cost stems from the Company’s integrated business model, benefits of scale as well as economies of
speed. As an outstanding SOE representative in a perfectly competitive industry, CSCEC has always taken “making
appropriate and correct decisions and doing right things” as the basic direction of the Company’s production,
operation and career development. Focusing on implementing the marketing strategy of “high-end markets, high-
end customers, high-end projects”, the Company continues to carry out “differentiation oriented” market operations
and competition. Through implementing the “differentiation” strategy, subsidiaries within the Company focus on
their respective market segments, their corresponding professions (specialization), or their corresponding regions
(regionalization), to develop their own “core products, unique services” to reduce internal disorderly competition
and strengthen the overall advantage of external competitiveness.

A management and control model with balanced authorization and centralization

Showing respect to the development history of CSCEC, a competitive group management and control model
is explored and formed on the basis of the Group Company formed by multi-legal carriers. The Company’s
headquarters is positioned as one that exercises strategic management and control, fulfilling the responsibilities
and duties of “leadership, service and supervision”, and insists on the liberalization and management of the
second-level subsidiaries. The second-level subsidiaries operate under the authorization of the Company and
enjoy the corresponding authorities based on the extent of the responsibility. For labor-intensive and mature
business, we increase the authorization and expand market contact to speed up market response and improve
service quality. For capital-intensive and less mature business, we focus on resources to bring impact to target
market segments, and actively seek rapid breakthroughs in target markets on the basis of effective avoidance of
risks. Aiming at different market segments, we adopt different strategies for market competition and corresponding
management and control models.
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Results-oriented and accountability-based management system

Various management efforts of the Company have always been committed to the realization of the Company’s
mission, vision and goals. The fundamental purpose of management is to improve the efficiency of our work,
while making our employees more fulfilling and the Company more prosperous in the future. By way of the
organic integration of the management actions in the various functional areas of the Company, a vital, scientific,
reasonable, concise and efficient system is formed, which is believed to play an effective role in avoiding taking
isolated and disorderly actions and making excuses, and achieving the unification of responsibilities and rights.
We firmly believe that managers are defined by their responsibilities. In order to improve the quality of products
and services, the Company is committed to achieving the standardization of management, technology and work.
With the help of information technologies and through the “integration” of standardization and informatization, work
efficiency is improved, and “bottom line management” is implemented to enhance product quality and reduce
operating costs.

(VIl) “People-centered” human resource management

The Company firmly believes that human resource is one of the core strengths of the Company. For CSCEC, one
of the aspects that can best reflect its competitive advantage is that it has a large group of talents loyal to the
Company, dedicated to their careers, having faith in that the interests of the team are higher than those of the
individuals, having a good knowledge of technology and management and good at marketing with merits as self-
discipline, self-motivation and self-betterment.

The Company will always follow the basic human resources management concept of “retaining talents with career
development opportunities, emotional connection and rewards” and “caring for individuals”, and will embed this
concept into the human resources management policies of the Company. By enabling occupational planning,
education training and performance assessment for all the employees, the Company intends to establish a salary
incentive mechanism that combines individual value creation and personal capabilities to share the solid results of
the development of the Company, while strengthening its attraction to talents and ensuring the development space
of talents, so as to better provide strong talent support for the development of the Company.

The Company will always adhere to the employment principle of “having both ability and morality while deeming
virtue as a priority”. The Company does not pursue perfect talents, but instead follows the concept of “employing

people with strengths”. The Company will adhere to “performance management”’, “evaluating talents based on
performance” through the “horse racing mechanism”.

(VIIl) Promote development under the strategy of “integration of industry and finance”

Under the ever-changing external environment and in response to the diversified needs of its principal business,
the Company gives full play to the role of industrial finance, tapping the potential of its internal financial service
institutions and providing financial services for the development of its principal business through internal credit,
credit financing, bond financing, equity financing, effective use of assets and other means, thus forming an
industry-financing integration mode with the characteristics of CSCEC. Leveraging on internal professional financial
platforms such as CSC Finance and China Construction Capital, and in line with the characteristics of the industry
in which the Company is engaged, the Company has carried out domestic and overseas capital pooling, loan
pooling, structured financing, accounts receivable factoring, asset securitization, supply chain financing, finance
leasing, insurance pooling and other business, thus providing timely, differentiated financial services which are
irreplaceable by social finance and playing an active role in driving the development of the principal business,
broadening financing channels, reducing financing costs, making effective use of stock assets, increasing
operating cash inflow and realizing capital reduction and efficiency gains. At the same time, the Company strictly
implements relevant national policies, strengthens daily management, strictly controls financial risks, and stops its
capital moving from the real economy to the virtual economy and arbitrage of idle funds.
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Core competitiveness driven by innovation in science and technology
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The Company believes that science and technology are the primary productive force, which is a critical pull
for the growth and expansion of the Company. Despite being a player in a traditional industry, our continuous
efforts in innovation in science and technology have brought changes in our production and organization
models, ensuring our leadership in technology and providing support for economies of scale and speed to
form solid competitiveness in key aspects. The Company focused on the list of key and core technologies and
steadily promoted the 10 national key R&D projects, involving green building, intelligent construction, building
industrialization, energy conservation and environmental protection, basic engineering software and other fields.

During the “13th Five-Year Plan” period, the Company accelerated the construction of an open and collaborative
technological innovation system, further stimulated the innovation drive, intensified efforts to make breakthroughs in
key and core technologies, and created strong industrial technology advantages. In terms of deepening the reform
of the science and technology system, the Company improved the system of scientific research management,
results management, and incentives for R&D talents by granting scientific research personnel the power to make
decisions on technical routes, expanding the power of undertaking units to adjust the scientific research budget,
increasing incentives for R&D talents, and mobilizing the enthusiasm for innovation.

In terms of strengthening technical leadership, through continuous innovation, the Company has been engaged
in diverse business fields such as super-high-rise construction equipment and technology, large-span building
construction technology and techniques, intelligent manufacturing of steel structures, high-performance concrete
new materials, new-generation nuclear power plant construction technology, architectural design with new Tang
style and airport architectural design, which formed strong scientific and technological strength and provided
powerful impetus for the development of the Company’s housing construction, infrastructure, overseas and new
businesses.

In terms of reinforcing the building of the science and technology system, investment in science and technology
has continued to increase. The innovation platform layout has taken shape, consisting of 109 high-tech enterprises,
5 national enterprise technology centers (including sub-centers), 59 provincial and ministerial enterprise
technology centers, 5 provincial and ministerial engineering research centers, 23 engineering technology research
centers, 3 provincial and ministerial key laboratories and engineering laboratories, and a total of 31 provincial and
ministerial innovation platforms. We have built 10 postdoctoral workstations and 16 other science and technology
innovation platforms, forming an innovation development mechanism led by independent innovation and combining
industry, academia, research and application.

Corporate culture in mind and action

CSCEC is an enterprise with a glorious history. We are innovating in the course of inheritance. In the process
of fulfilling the mission and realizing the vision, the core values of “quality assurance, value creation” and the
entrepreneurial spirit of “integrity, innovation, transcendence, and win-win” will be integrated into the rules and
management behaviors and become part of the soft power of the Company.

Resources can be exhausted, only culture lasts. Adhering to its creed which is formed against the backdrop of
the market economy, and combining the trend of the times, the Company has seen a constant integration with its
subsidiaries in culture development, which provides ongoing internal support for the Company’s ever-growing
business.
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Brand, Creditability and Honors

Based on CSCEC’s good performance in brand building and operation development, the brand reputation and industry
influence of the Company has been further strengthened during the Reporting Period.

Brand value hit a new record high. CSCEC ranked 13th in the Fortune Global 500 (2021), up by five places over last
year, and 3rd on the Fortune China 500 (2021) list. The Company ranked first in the UK Brand Finance “2021 Global Brand
Value Top 500", topped the list of the Top 250 Global Contractors published by Engineering News-Record (ENR) for the
sixth consecutive year, and was among the top 10 international contractors in the list of Top 250 International Contractors
for the fourth consecutive year. The Company topped the industry in the “2020 State-owned Enterprises Brand Building
Benchmarking” organized by SASAC of the State Council; and in the value evaluation of Chinese brands organized by
China Council for Brand Development, the Company ranked first in the construction industry with a brand strength of
943.00 and a brand value of RMB169.576 billion.

Leading the global industry in terms of creditability. The leading global rating agencies, i.e. S&P Global Ratings,
Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch Ratings affirmed CSCEC's ratings as A/A2/A with a “Stable” outlook. CSCEC maintains
the industry’s highest credit ratings for the seventh consecutive year.

Further achievements in honors and awards. During the Reporting Period, 41 projects of the Company won the Luban
Prize, of which 9 projects won the China Construction Engineering Luban Prize (Overseas Projects), and 73 projects were
awarded the International Safety Awards in 2021 by the British Safety Council, with 5 Distinction Awards, 29 Merit Awards
and 39 Pass Awards. The Hong Kong Children’s Hospital project designed and constructed by CSCI won the Quality
Excellence Award, being the highest award in the Hong Kong construction industry, as well as the Quality Building Award (in
the Hong Kong Non-Residential Category).



SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Discussion and Analysis of Business Operation

In the first half of the year, the Company comprehensively implemented the decisions and deployments of the CPC Central
Committee and the State Council, adhered to the general guideline of making progress while maintaining stability, firmly
implemented new development philosophy, and effectively coped with the profound changes in external environment,
aiming at the strategic goals of “one creation and five aspects of strength” and promoting the implementation of “166”
strategic initiatives. As such, the Company’s production and operation maintained a good momentum of making progress
in stability and rapid improvement in efficiency, continuing to maintain its position as the world’s largest investment and

construction conglomerate in the world. In general, the Company demonstrated the following operational characteristics:
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Steady progress in operating performance with rapid efficiency improvement. During the Reporting
Period, the value of the Company’s newly signed contracts increased by 21.0% year-on-year to RMB1.83
trillion. It achieved a revenue of RMB936.7 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 28.6%, and net
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company of RMB25.6 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
29.2%. The basic earnings per share (EPS) was RMBO0.62, representing a year-on-year increase of 31.9%; and
net assets per share attributable to ordinary shareholders was RMB7.30, representing a year-on-year increase
of 14.4%. With the Company’s continuous “deleveraging” efforts, the asset-liability ratio at the end of the
period decreased by 1.5 percentage points year-on-year to 74.4%. The weighted average return on net assets
(WARA) was 8.13%, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.15 percentage points. The total asset turnover
ratio was 0.82 time/year (annualized), representing a year-on-year increase of 0.13 time. Net operating cash
flows decreased by a net outflow of RMB20.9 billion on a year-on-year basis, representing the best level as
compared to the same period of the recent five years.
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Firmly assuming the responsibility of supporting macro-level strategic development. Bearing in mind the
national interests and being committed to its fundamental mission, the Company found the correct development
positioning at the macro-level, actively served the national strategies, shouldered its responsibilities, and
promoted transformation and upgrading and high-quality development. During the Reporting Period, the
Company gave full play to its advantages in whole industry chain layout, operating and pooling resources
mainly in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, the Yangtze River Economic Belt, the GBA and other city clusters and
metropolitan areas in these national strategic areas to further satisfy demands in these high-end markets.
Meanwhile, the Company increased efforts on the cooperation with central state-owned enterprises and
local governments, continued to ensure marketing and project performance management, and continuously
cultivated new market growth points. During the Reporting Period, the combined value of the Company’s newly
signed contracts in the above areas amounted to RMB1,207.1 billion, accounting for 66.1% of the value of the
Company’s newly signed contracts. In particular, the value of the newly signed contracts in the Yangtze River
Economic Belt amounted to RMB714.5 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 30.8%; and that in the
GBA amounted to RMB344.3 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 52.8%.
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Solid advancement of and leadership in reform of state-owned enterprises. The Company insisted on
in-depth integration of corporate high-quality development and reform actions, and systematically promoted
more than 100 reform tasks, such as modern enterprise system with Chinese characteristics, tenure system
and contractual management. The Company smoothly completed the reelection of the Board of Directors,
improved the institution settings and functions of special committees under the Board of Directors, and
strengthened the duty performance of independent directors in terms of working mechanism. The Company
further strengthened the construction of the board of directors by subsidiaries, and selected a batch of
excellent professionals and talents to serve as external directors of such subsidiaries; implemented tenure
system and contractual management for over 1,800 operation management personnel from over 60% of
subsidiaries, and carried out professional manager system reform for 64 subsidiaries. China Construction
Science and Industry and China Construction Science & Technology achieved remarkable results as model
enterprises in terms of technological renovation, and both were listed into the demonstrative technological
renovation cases of SASAC of the State Council. Meanwhile, the Company made overall scientific plans and
solidly promoted the preparation of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, actively implemented the special listed company
governance actions deployed by the State Council and the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC),
and continuously promoted the advantages in governance system to be turned into governance effectiveness,
thereby advancing the high-quality development of the listed company.
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Continual improvement and more fruitful achievements in scientific and technological innovation.
The Company adhered to a technology-guided and innovation-driven approach, continued to establish and
improve technological innovation management systems, expanded inputs in technological innovation, and
constantly facilitated the transformation, promotion and application of technological innovation achievements.
During the Reporting Period, the Company was granted 4,191 patents (including 403 invention patents); and
took the lead in preparing 4 national standards, and developed 601 provincial and ministerial engineering
construction methods. By focusing on industry demands and enterprise needs, the Company continuously
improved the scientific research and innovation system for the entire business sectors, made active
deployments in high-performance engineering structure laboratory, civil engineering materials laboratory,
intelligent construction engineering research center, green construction engineering research center and
other original technology sources, and achieved major progress in the establishment of the first batch of
“CSCEC technological innovation platforms”. The Company continued to focus on “key and core” technology
projects, increased investment in overcoming key and core technology difficulties and making technological
innovations, and made new breakthroughs in the fields of technologies for rapid construction of super-high-rise
and assembly buildings, connection of assembly concrete structure, engineering intelligent equipment,
construction in extreme environment, digital steel processing and 5G intelligent remote control. The Company
took the lead in developing new and efficient “dry” assembly technology and formed a prefabricated
prestressed Efficient Fabricated Frame (CSCEC PPEFF system) with independent intellectual property rights.
The first intelligent assembly bridge-building machine (“IABM”) in the PRC independently developed by the
Company has successfully commenced operation.

Deployment in green development to lead the future. The Company always adheres to the green
development concept, and regards serving the ecological civilized construction as an important responsibility,
striving to explore a high-quality transformation and development path. With the strategic positioning of ecology
first and green development, the Company has strengthened forward-looking thinking and overall planning to
continuously guide the Company to break new ground. During the Reporting Period, the Company enhanced
top-level design, and planned for a target path of carbon peaking and carbon neutrality from the prospective
of the mid- and long-term development strategies of the enterprise; solidly ensured carbon inspection, carbon
calculation and other fundamental work, and actively participated in the national and industry related subject
research and standard formulation; incorporated green and low-carbon development concept into the whole
process of production and operation, established a green and low-carbon development research center, and
explored the establishment of construction carbon emission database and statistics monitoring platform; and
vigorously developed green construction, intelligent construction and construction industrialization, promoted
energy-saving and low-carbon technological renovation and upgrading, accelerated the transformation
towards green development, and led the industry in terms of “zero-carbon” photovoltaic power generation,
energy storage, direct current and flexible application technology development.

In the second half of 2021, the Company will, with promoting high-quality development as the theme, implement the
new development philosophy in a complete, accurate and comprehensive manner, focus on the strategic goals of “one
creation and five aspects of strength” and accelerate implementing “166” strategic initiatives. It will continue to coordinate
normalized pandemic prevention and control as well as production and operation, and make every effort to focus on
marketing, promote contractual performance, enhance management and prevent risks. Meanwhile, the Company will strive
to complete various annual targets and tasks with a firm belief and hard work, and make committed efforts to develop itself

into a world-class enterprise with global competitiveness.

Significant changes in the Company’s operations during the Reporting Period, as well as events
that have and are expected to have a significant impact in the future on the Company’s operations

during the Reporting Period

(] Applicable v N/A
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Key Business Data

2021 (January 2020 (January  Growth YOY

L Sl to June) to June) (%)
Total value of new contracts RMB100 million 18,265 15,101 21.0
| Construction business
(1 Acgumulatlve yalue of new contracts RMB100 million 16,070 13,294 20.9
during the period
By industry 1. Housing construction 12,080 10,617 13.8
2. Infrastructure 3,927 2,610 50.5
3. Prospecting and design 63 68 -6.8
By region 1. Domestic 15,417 12,312 25.2
2. Overseas 652 982 -33.6
(1) Quantity of housing construction works Ten thousand / / /
....................................... ] Square meters
1. Accumula_ltlve area under 141,085 135,951 38
construction
2. Accumulgtlve area of new 16,062 16,128 0.4
construction projects
3. Accumulaﬁve area of completed 6,630 6,225 6.5
construction
(1) Quantity of infrastructure works / / / /
1. Road (newly signed in China) Kilometers 2,063 1,614 27.8

Ten thousand
square meters

(I) Contract sales during the period RMB100 million 2,196 1,807 21.5
Of which: China Overseas O 1,639 1,441 13.7
(I) Contract sales area during the period Ten thousand 1,004 1,006 -0.2
............................................................................... Square meters
Of which: China Overseas 731 712 2.6
(1 SLIl?SCI’IptIOﬂ sales at the end of the RMB100 million 178 147 211
period
(IV) Average selling price during the period RMB/square meter 21,871 17,961 21.8
(V) Land reserve at the end of the period @  Ten thousand 11,462 12,061 50
(Full amount) square meters
Of which: China Overseas 5,940 6,372 -6.8
(V1) Purchase of land reserve (Full amount)  Ten thousand 654 908 -28.0
............................................................................... Square meters
Of which: China Overseas 489 582 -15.9

Notes: (D China Overseas refers to the real estate business that China Overseas Land & Investment and its subsidiaries are engaged in,
but does not include that of China Overseas Grand Oceans;

(2 Land reserve at the end of the period = land reserve at the end of the previous year + newly acquired land reserve — area
completed in the current period + (or —) adjusted area of projects.
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[=]) . .
= Value of new contracts for construction business

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

[=]) .
S Contract sales of real estate business

18,000 - 2,500
16,070 2196
15,000 13,294 1842
12,140 12,518 2,000 ore - 1,807
12000 - 11,955 1,410
1500~ {223
9,000
1,000
6,000
3,000 500
0 0
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
January  January  January January  January January  January January January  January
to June to June to June to June to June to June to June to June to June to June
= (=) . .
S Revenue = Net profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company
12,000 300
256.4
9,367
240
9,000 203.1
7,082 180.4 191.4 198.4
6,854 50
5,889 o
6,000 5,253
120
3,000
60
0 0
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
January  January  January  January  January January  January  January January  January
to June to June to June to June to June to June to June to June to June to June
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Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

S . S .
£(® Proportion of new contract value S(® Proportion of segment revenue .

21.5% 20.6%
12.0% 15.6%
0.4% 0.5%
[l Housing [ Infrastructure || Real estate ] Design [l Housing [ Infrastructure || Real estate ] Design
construction construction
S® Proportion of gross profit by segment S©® Gross profit margin by segment
38.7% 30.0%
25.1%
0.9% 25.0%
20.0% 18.1%
15.0%
41.8% 9.2%,
10.0%
6.7%
18.6% 0.0%

Housing Infrastructure Real estate Design
construction

[l Housing [ Infrastructure || Real estate ] Design
construction

Note:  The denominator of the segment business is the direct summation of data from the four business segments of the Company (housing
construction, infrastructure, real estate and design).
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V.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Main Operation Results for the Reporting Period

()

Analysis of principal business

1. Analysis of changes in related items in the financial statement

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Amount of
Amount in the the same period Change ratio
ltems current period last year (%)
Revenue 936,715,963 728,187,767 28.6

Reason for changes in revenue: In recent years, the value of the Company’s new contracts has maintained a
relatively high growth rate, and the projects under construction have been smoothly advanced.

Reason for changes in cost of sales: The expansion of business scale led to the increase in the cost of sales
accordingly.

Reason for changes in selling and distribution expenses: The Company’s real estate business increased
advertising investment during the pre-sale period, and the corresponding advertising fees and business
promotion fees, business fees and sales commissions grew rapidly.

Reason for changes in general and administrative expenses: Such expenses increased due to the
expansion of business scale as well as the increase in management personnel and business activities.

Reason for changes in finance expenses: It was primarily due to the increase in interest income and foreign
exchange income over the same period of last year.

Reason for changes in R&D expenses: The Company paid attention to technological innovation,
strengthened technological R&D and application, and continued to increase investment in technological R&D,
resulting in the increase in R&D expenses.

Reason for changes in net cash flows from operating activities: It was primarily due to the increase in cash
receipts for sales of goods and provision of labor services in the current period.

Reason for changes in net cash flows from investing activities: It was primarily due to the increase in
cash receipts for other investment-related activities, as well as the decrease in cash payments for other
investment-related activities in the current period.

Reason for changes in net cash flows from financing activities: It was primarily due to the increase in cash
receipts for borrowing and bond issuance, as well as the decrease in cash payments for other financing-related
activities in the current period.

Detailed explanation on major changes in the Company’s types of business, profit
composition or source of profit during the current period

[J Applicable v N/A
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Principal business by industry and region

By industry Revenue Cost of sales . YoY of of costof  gross profit margin
margin (%) o o o
revenue (%)  sales (%) (%)
Housing construction 506,067,825 556,293,792 6.7 24.6 243 O3percentage
engineering point increased
Infrastructlure construction 193,592,320 175,853,670 9.2 339 35.1 0.'7 percentage
and investment point decreased
Real estate development 4y o5 465 109,796,191 25.1 33.4 49  39percentage
and investment points decreased
Prospecting and design 4,931,897 4,040,205 18.1 27 184  SOpercentage
points increased
Others 12,193,470 7,805,414 36.0 432 447 0.7 percentage
point decreased
Elimination -16,603,015 -15,636,767 / / / /
Total 936,715,963 838,152,505 10.5 28.6 293  OSpercentage
point decreased
Principal business by region
: Change  Change YoY  Change YoY of
. Gross profit ) .
By region Revenue Cost of sales margin (%) YoY of of costof  gross profit margin
I %) revenue (%) sales (%) (%)
Chinas Mainland 892418921 798,207,330 106 293 302  0percentage
point decreased
Overseas Note 44,297,042 39,945,175 9.8 16.9 12 36 percentage
points increased
Total 936,715,963 838,152,505 10.5 28.6 293  OSpercentage

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Principal business by industry

Gross profit Change  Change YoY  Change YoY of

point decreased

Note:  “Overseas” refer to the regions other than China’s Mainland.
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o Housing construction engineering business

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s housing construction business grew steadily in terms of both scale and
benefits, and continued to lead the mid-to high-end markets. The value of new contracts of the Company for housing
construction business was RMB1,208.0 billion, an increase of 13.8% year-on-year with revenue at RMB596.1 billion, an
increase of 24.6% year-on-year; gross profit was RMB39.8 billion, an increase of 29.0% year-on-year with a gross profit
margin of 6.7%, an increase of 0.3 percentage point year-on-year.

-
=

)
+

The National Convention and Exhibition Center (Tianjin) phase I project

During the Reporting Period, the Company fully leveraged its competitive edge in respect of whole industry chain in
the housing construction engineering field and stuck to the marketing strategy featuring “high-end markets, high-end
customers and high-end projects” and the enterprise management strategy of “low-cost competition and high-quality
management”. The Company made sustained efforts to enhance its core competitiveness in the fields of super-high-rise
building, large-span space structure, rapid construction, green construction, etc., and further enhanced its competitive
advantages in the field of housing construction engineering, such as exhibition centers and industrial plants, educational
and cultural facilities as well as medical facilities. In terms of construction of exhibition centers and industrial plants, the
value of new contracts amounted to RMB124.4 billion, an increase of 51.4% year-on-year. The Company undertook the
Xiamen New International Conference & Exhibition Center — Exhibition Center section | project, Shenzhen Liding high-end
integrated circuit board and advanced package base and other projects. The National Convention and Exhibition Center
(Tianjin) phase | project undertaken by the Company has been successfully completed and put into use, and the main
plant project of production line of the Changsha Huike (£7)E#%}) 8.6 generation ultra-high-definition new display device
components, being the largest single display clean plant, has passed acceptance check. In terms of the construction
of educational and cultural facilities, the value of new contracts amounted to RMB81.8 billion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 22.0%. The Company undertook the Hohai University Changdang Lake University Science Park (Phase
), Science and Education Park Area PPP project of Shandong Yantai University Development Zone and other projects,
and continued to develop a full set of green prefabricated school product chain. In terms of construction of medical
facilities, the value of new contracts amounted to RMB104.7 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 138.6%. The
Company fully leveraged its rapid construction abilities with highly macroscopic visions to facilitate, with full speed, the
construction progress of Minhai Biotechnology vaccine base in Daxing, Beijing, Sinopharm Zhongsheng Wuhan Institute
inactivated COVID-19 vaccine production capacity expansion project, newly constructed and reorganized COVID-19
vaccine production workshop in Lanzhou and other projects, to contribute to the prevention and control of the pandemic.
Meanwhile, the Company actively committed itself into old town renovation and urban renewal construction, and won
the bids for the EPC project of renovation of old villages in Liucun Gegang Area of Liucun Community in Guangzhou,
Guangdong, the EPC project (phase Il) of renovation of shanty area in Shatang District, Ezhou, Hubei, Sichuan Chengdu
FISU World University Games housing guarantee project — Yihe New Town G zone housing construction and auxiliary
engineering EPC project, etc.

During the Reporting Period, the Company always insisted
on accelerating digital transformation, actively promoted the
green construction, intelligent construction and construction
industrialization, and continued to consolidate its technical
strengths in terms of housing construction business. The high-
rise building intelligent integration platform (building machines)
independently developed by the Company was included in
the SASAC’s recommended list of technological innovation
achievements of state-owned enterprises. The Shenzhen
Changzhen public housing project undertaken by the Company
was included in the first batch of the List of Repeatable Practices s Rt ¢
for Coordinated Developmer(w(;ofbmgteilliggntJC;ﬁr;struc{tioT% anyg The project of produgtie i
Industrialized New Building (S ge@&5HAERR T vihEE : b A e
B2 HIEBAEER)) published by the MOHURD, of which  [NNNINRAI heratiod ¥Hra_high
five practices including intelligent construction platform and QiR ol R S leRele e
intelligent robotic building have been recognized and promoted,

ranking first among all recommended projects in terms of such

number.
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Infrastructure construction and investment operations

During the Reporting Period, the Company achieved rapid growth in its infrastructure business and continued to optimize
its business structure, stimulating the high-quality development of infrastructure business. The Company has entered
into new infrastructure contracts with a total value of RMB392.7 billion, an increase of 50.5% year-on-year. It recorded a
revenue of RMB193.6 billion, an increase of 33.9% year-on-year; and the gross profit amounted to RMB17.7 billion, an
increase of 23.6% year-on-year with a gross profit margin of 9.2%, a decrease of 0.7 percentage point year-on-year.

During the Reporting Period, the Company firmly incorporated itself into serving the national strategies, displayed its
advantages in resources from the whole industry chain, and won a number of bids for major infrastructure projects. The
Company continuously improved its project performance capability, and completed a large batch of key projects, including
cross-sea, cross-river and cross-lake projects, at high quality. In terms of municipal highways and bridges, the Company
continued to expand efforts in this regard with the value of new contracts amounting to RMB130.6 billion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 42.7%. The Company won the bids for the PPP project of Wuzhou-Leye Highway Guangning
to Zhaoping Through Cangwu (Guangxi section), which serves the construction of the GBA, Beijing-Taipei Expressway
Jinan-Tai’an section project, etc. The construction project of Wuhan Fourth Ring Line, the fast passage for urban ring line
with the highest construction standard in China, as undertaken by the Company has been fully put into operation. In terms
of railway construction, the Company achieved major breakthroughs. It won the bids for the newly-constructed Sichuan-
Tibet railway Ya’'an-Linzhi section project (CZSCZQ-6 section), and the project of fast line from Xiong’an New Area to
Beijing Daxing International Airport. In terms of port engineering, the Company achieved rapid growth with the value
of new contracts amounting to RMB10.57 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 227.2%. The Company won
the bids for Ningbo Zhoushan Port Dapukou container terminal project, Nvdao Port upgrading and renovation auxiliary
engineering design, construction and general contracting project, etc. In terms of rail transit transportation, the Company
further reinforced and improved its performance, in particular, winning the bids for Changchun Metro Airport Line (Line 9)
phase | project, Chongging Metro Line 15 phase | project (K72+824~K92+369.955), etc. The Xuzhou Metro Line 3 phase |
project as undertaken by the Company has commenced trial operation. In terms of water conservancy and environmental
protection, the Company continued to win the bid for Wuhan East Lake-South Lake tunnel (East Lake section) section |l
project, etc. The Company actively explored new infrastructure sectors, achieved substantive progress in cooperation
with leading electricity and telecom enterprises, and won the bid for Zhengzhou new 5G infrastructure communication
engineering project, etc.

During the Reporting Period, the Company expanded efforts on collaboration, focused on tackling areas of weakness and
strengthening areas of strength, and strived to improve the R&D and manufacturing level of high-end equipment. It also
fully enhanced its core competitiveness in infrastructure business, actively contributed to the infrastructure construction
in China, and achieved good economic and social effects. The first intelligent assembly bridge-building machine (IABM)
in the PRC independently developed by the Company initiated the new model of prefabricated construction of overpass;
the first self-adaptable and flexible straddle rail beam welding robot and BIM light engine in the PRC independently
developed by the Company improved working efficiency by more than 10 times with saving of construction costs by
approximately 80% in some construction units; the undisturbed shield muck paving block independently developed by the
Company passed trial, and the first generation of “CSCEC block machine” product has entered the new stage of industrial
application.

The Xuzhou Metro Line 3 project
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Real estate development and investment business

During the Reporting Period, the Company firmly implemented the national regulation policies, and consistently made
efficient and accurate investments, to ensure the sustainable and healthy development of its real estate business. The
Company’s real estate business achieved contract sales of RMB219.6 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
21.5%, and contracted sales area of 10.04 million square meters, a year-on-year decrease of 0.2%; revenue amounted
to RMB146.5 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 33.4%; and gross profit amounted to RMB36.7 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 15.2%, with a gross profit margin of 25.1%, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 3.9 percentage points.

*

The U World, Beijing New Town

During the Reporting Period, the Company delivered a new construction area of 13.35 million square meters, representing
a year-on-year increase of 2.5%; and an area under construction of 74.52 million square meters, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 8.9%. The Company actively explored urban renewal and other diversified development models. The
newly acquired land bank was 6.54 million square meters, and the land bank at the end of the period was approximately
114.62 million square meters. The Company'’s real estate inventory is mainly concentrated in first-tier and provincial capital
cities.

After years of development, the Company continues to improve its asset holding and operation capabilities, and currently
owns 11.96 million square meters of investment properties encompassing office buildings, hotels, apartments, commercial
real estate and others, with a net book value of RMB107.6 billion, accounting for 4.6% of the Company’s total assets.
During the Reporting Period, the investment property recorded a revenue of RMB2.94 billion. The Beijing CSCEC Star of
Daxing project, a city complex project invested, constructed and operated by the Company, has been officially put into
use.

During the Reporting Period, the Company adhered to sound and prudent development strategies for its real estate
business, and maintained sound financial position, adequate funds, and asset-liability ratio and other relevant indicators far
below the “three red lines” limits. China Overseas under the Group was in compliance with the “three red lines” indicators
and maintained its asset-liability ratio at the lowest range in the industry. The Company continuously accelerated the
transformation and upgrading of its real estate business by promoting the development of commercial properties, cultural
education, healthcare and elderly services, medical services, logistics and other new business sectors while consolidating
the development of residential development business. The Company actively engaged in security housing, joint ownership
housing, apartment and other fields which benefit people’s livelihood, contributing to the building of a beautiful city by
delivering high quality projects. The Shanghai Jinhai Huacheng Dacheng Garden (/&% EEINAMIMSE), the first 4.0
security housing product in China as invested and constructed by the Company, CSCEC Happiness Apartment project (FR
EERAE), which was listed as the first pilot “conversion of non-residential to residential” leasing filing unit in Shanghai,
the project of historical building protection and urban renewal at 67-71 East Jianguo Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai,
bridge building in Hanyang, Wuhan and other key urban renewal projects have been advanced orderly.

For details, please refer to “Properties under development”, “Completed properties for sale” in Note V. 8 “Inventories”, and
“Advances for sale of properties” in Note V. 30 “Contract liabilities” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL
REPORT".
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Prospecting and design business

During the Reporting Period, the Company maintained a sound growth momentum in its prospecting and design business.
The value of new contracts amounted to RMB6.3 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.8%. It achieved a
revenue of RMB4.9 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 22.7%; and gross profit of RMB900 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 46.7%, with gross profit margin of 18.1%, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.0
percentage points.

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to build a design-centered whole industry chain, expand housing
construction engineering design business and municipal infrastructure design business, actively expanded its full-process
engineering consulting business, and built a design industry system with full-field coverage, full-process services, full-value
chain, and full-element growth with a view to enhancing and improving its prospecting and design business. The Company
fully fulfilled its design competitiveness in the segments including urban planning, airport transportation and cultural venues
to serve the national development at the macro level, and undertook a batch of representative design and consulting
businesses. In terms of urban planning, the Company won the bids for the four major new city plannings in Jialing District,
Nanchong, the overall state-owned land and space planning in Ningcheng County, Chifeng, Inner Mongolia and other
projects. In terms of airport transportation design, the Company won the bids for Shenzhen Airport T4 area planning and
terminal plan design project, Leshan Airport civil terminal area project, etc. In terms of municipal infrastructure design, the
Company undertook the G25 expansion Huzhou section Mogan Mountain Interchange to National Highway 104 connection
line (West Beihu Street) renovation and upgrading engineering and intelligent transportation supporting facilities project,
etc., and the Chengdu Tianfu International Airport jointly designed and constructed by the Company also commenced
official operation. In terms of cultural venues design, the Company won the bids for Xi'an Cultural and Artistic Exchange
Center — Chang’anle and other projects, and the China Grand Canal Museum (Yangzhou) designed by the Company has
been successfully delivered and put into use.

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to facilitate the transformation of its prospecting and design
business, accelerated the development of architect accountability system, explored the model of “engineering general
contracting + architect accountability”, and drove the business development along the entire industry chain through
design. The Company undertook the rural vitalization and ecological property project in Liaozhong, the Sports Center and
Art Center in Chengdu Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, and other engineering general contracting projects, and
engaged in the “Research on Digital Transformation and Upgrading of the Full-process Engineering Consulting Industry”,
an annual important subject of the National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC), overall planning and consulting
services for preliminary plan of Hangzhou West Lake Zhijiang Future Community project, and other engineering consulting
projects.

The project of the Chengdu Tianfu International Airport
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Overseas business

During the Reporting Period, the Company maintained the growth of its overseas business by overcoming various
difficulties. It recorded an overseas revenue of RMB44.3 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.9%. The value
of new contracts for overseas business amounted to RMB67.5 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 33.2%; and
gross profit amounted to RMB4.4 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 84.2%, with a gross profit margin of 9.8%,
an increase of 3.6 percentage points year-on-year.

The project of Alamein New Town high-rise complex

During the Reporting Period, the Company always took COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control as a focus of overseas
work, and regarded the health and safety of employees as a top priority. It strictly implemented various normalized
pandemic prevention and control measures, actively coordinated domestic medical resources, and strengthened medical
security for overseas employees through dispatching a medical working group, establishing a long-distance medical
platform and other methods. The Company strictly implemented the “prevention of imported cases” requirement, arranged
shift of overseas employees in a safe and orderly manner, and therefore the lives, safety and health of the Company’s
foreign and Chinese employees abroad were well protected.

During the Reporting Period, the Company steadily expanded overseas markets, continued to intensively develop
the existing markets where the Company has advantages, and entered new markets at a steady pace. The Company
continued to consolidate its advantageous position in overseas markets, and undertook a batch of major projects, such
as the El Alamein New Town high-rise complex of new town development project in Egypt, phase lll of commercial and
residential development project at Wong Chuk Hang Station in Hong Kong, etc.; entered the Mexican market through
signing projects, establishing new presence in overseas markets; achieved new breakthroughs in many overseas
infrastructure segments such as high-speed trains, water-related affairs and tunnels, and independently or jointly undertook
Sino-Thailand high-speed train phase | (Bangkok-Nakhon Ratchasima section) 4-3 section (Nava Nakhon-Banpo section)
project, water supply and recycling plant in Tuas, Singapore, Singapore Metro Cross Island Line Aviation Park Station to
Loyang Station shield tunnel CR105 project, etc.

During the Reporting Period, the Company advanced its quality performance of overseas projects, optimized construction
organization plan based on the changes in the pandemic trend, overcame the pressures on construction period and costs
caused by the pandemic, and ensured the ongoing stability of various production and operation activities. The central
business district project of Egypt’'s new capital, being the highest building in Africa, achieved structural ceiling of main
works of symbolic tower, the North Lantau Hospital Hong Kong Infection Control Center, being the world’s first infectious
disease hospital with totally negative pressure isolation wards adopting MiC construction technology, was completed and
delivered within only four months, and the Suvarnabhumi Airport expansion project, a major livelihood project in Thailand,
was successfully completed and handed over.

Other business

Other business of the Company mainly includes the income from primary land development, lease of machinery equipment
and engineering supervision and management. During the Reporting Period, other business recorded a revenue of
RMB12.2 billion, an increase of 43.2% year-on-year; gross profit amounted to RMB4.4 billion, an increase of 40.5% year-
on-year, with a gross profit margin of 36.0%, a decrease of 0.7 percentage point year-on-year.

For details, please refer to Note V. 51 “Revenue and cost of sales”, Note V. 63 “Expenses by nature” and Note XIV. 1
“Segment reporting” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT".
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(I Operating investment business

During the Reporting Period, the Company completed an investment of RMB175.0 billion, an increase of 13.9%
year-on-year, and the investment business maintained steady development.

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Amount of

investment

during the
Reporting Period

Classification of projects Proportion (%)  YoY increase (%)

By categories of projects

Note: The above classification of projects is designed in accordance with industry practices and the Company’s
internal management needs. The classification attributes of some projects will be adjusted according to the actual
circumstances of the project. The year-on-year growth rate in the table will be adjusted retrospectively to the
changed projects accordingly.

1. Real estate development business

During the Reporting Period, the investment amount of the Company’s real estate development business
reached RMB121.1 billion, a year-on-year increase of 7.6%; payback of investment return was RMB164.2
billion, a year-on-year increase of 40.7%; and ratio of investment to income was 135.6%, a year-on-year
increase of 31.6 percentage points.

2. Business of investment in infrastructure and housing construction

During the Reporting Period, the investment in infrastructure and housing construction of the Company
reached RMB46.0 billion, a year-on-year increase of 32.6%; payback of investment return was RMB22.2 billion,
a year-on-year increase of 32.7%; and ratio of investment to income was 48.3%, a year-on-year increase of 0.3
percentage point.

3. Comprehensive urban construction business

During the Reporting Period, the amount of investment of the Company’s comprehensive urban construction
business reached RMB6.4 billion, a year-on-year increase of 7.6%; payback of investment return was RMB9.5
billion, a year-on-year increase of 79.2%; and ratio of investment to income was 148.4%, a year-on-year
increase of 60.2 percentage points.

4. Investment and construction in key regions

The Company resolutely implemented the significant decision-making and deployment of the CPC Central
Committee and the State Council, took the responsibility as a central enterprise around major national strategic
planning and deployment, actively practiced regional coordinated development strategies, and was deeply
involved in the coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, the development of the Yangtze
River Economic Belt, the construction of the GBA, investment and construction in key national areas such as
the integrated development of the Yangtze River Delta, ecological protection and high-quality development of
the Yellow River Basin. During the Reporting Period, the amount of investment of the Company in the Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei Region, the Yangtze River Economic Belt, the GBA, the Yangtze River Delta, and the Yellow River
Basin reached RMB146.5 billion, representing 83.7% of the Company’s overall investment.
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5. Development of PPP business

In accordance with the relevant national requirements on the regulated development of PPP business, and
under the guidance of national policy, the Company has comprehensively cleared up and rectified the
existing PPP projects, maintained reasonable control over the scale of PPP projects, and adhered to the high-
quality development of PPP business. The Company invested in and constructed a number of major landmark
projects related to national economy and people’s livelihood through PPP business, covering the fields of
municipal engineering, transportation, security housing engineering, ecological construction and environmental
protection, which strongly promoted the Company’s steady growth and structural adjustment. This helped the
Company'’s transformation from a company which is solely engaged in housing construction business to the
world’s largest investment and construction conglomerate, and enhance the brand influence of CSCEC.

During the Reporting Period, the Company won new bids for 10 PPP projects with an equity investment of
RMB21.6 billion. As of the end of June 2021, the Company had a total of 394 PPP projects with an equity
investment of RMB645.79 billion, among which 33 were at the preliminary stage, 210 were under construction,
138 were under operation and 13 would be subject to early termination. In terms of the industry to which
projects belong, the equity investment in transportation amounted to RMB230.64 billion, accounting for 35.7%
of the total; the equity investment in municipal engineering amounted to RMB222.27 billion, accounting for
34.4% of the total; the equity investment in comprehensive urban development amounted to RMB108.32 billion,
accounting for 16.8% of the total; the equity investment in culture, sports, medical and healthcare and security
housing engineering construction amounted to RMB57.94 billion, accounting for 9.0% of the total; and the
equity investment in ecological and environmental protection and other fields amounted to RMB26.64 billion,
accounting for 4.1% of the total.

In recent years, the Company has strictly implemented the requirements of relevant policies of the NDRC, the
Ministry of Finance and other ministries and commissions as well as local governments regarding regulating
the implementation of PPP projects, developed and improved a risk management system for PPP business,
and continued to promote the high-quality development of PPP business. First, the Company closely followed
the relevant policies to continuously improve PPP management rules and systems. Second, the Company
adhered to investment standards to continuously improve the quality of new projects. Third, the Company
strengthened process monitoring to resolve the risks relating to the existing PPP projects. Fourth, the Company
actively and comprehensively enhanced PPP project operation and management. Fifth, the Company regulated
intermediate valuations and timely summarized and analyzed the implementation of projects. As of the end of
June 2021, the Company completed an equity investment of RMB326.76 billion through its PPP projects, and
the payback of investment return was RMB43.13 billion.

Operating status of the professional sectors

Since the implementation of the “specialization” strategy, the Company has fostered and developed a number
of professional companies with sophisticated management mechanisms, innovative capabilities and core
competencies in their respective specialized fields. The Company split its principal business into 11 professional
sub-sectors, which continued to maintain satisfactory overall development momentum. The total value of new
contracts was RMB274.65 billion, a year-on-year increase of 20.5%; revenue was RMB188.71 billion, a year-on-
year increase of 20.3%; gross profit was RMB13.74 billion, a year-on-year increase of 42.6%; and operating profit
was RMB6.48 billion, a year-on-year increase of 55.0%.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s division of specialization and layout became more rational, the
synergetic and coordination mechanism was more sophisticated, and the overall competitive edge became
more prominent. Various specialized sectors and related subsidiaries provided solid support for the Company’s
development in the full business area, full life cycle, and whole industry chain capabilities. China Construction
Science and Industry has been ranking first in the PRC construction and steel structure industry for nine
consecutive years; the core propane dehydrogenation plant product of China Construction Industrial & Energy
Engineering Group Co., Ltd. (CCIEE) had the largest market share in the world for three consecutive years; the
construction scale of glass curtain wall business of China State Decoration remained its leading position in the
industry; China Construction Science & Technology and CSCI invested in and constructed 29 modern assembly
industry bases in the key areas across the country; and China West Construction continued to maintain a leading
position in the industry in terms of the concrete output for commercial use.
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233.6

Name of
sector

Installation

Commercial
concrete

Municipal
projects

Roads and
bridges

SECTION I
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

Revenue for
2021 H1

321.4

YoY increase
(%)

Gross profit
for 2021 H1

Gross profit margin (%)

2021 H1

2020 H1

YoY change
(Percentage

points)

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

YoY increase
(%)
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Operating
profit for
2021 H1

YoY increase
(%)

2,131.3

Operating profit margin (%)

2021 H1

2020 H1

(IV)  Explanation on significant changes in profit arising from non-major business

[J Applicable  N/A

YoY change
(Percentage
points)
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(V1)

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

2. Overseas assets

\ Applicable [ N/A

(1) Asset scale
As of the end of the Reporting Period, the overseas assets of the Company amounted to RMB170.5 billion,
accounting for 7.3% of the total assets.
(2) Description of overseas assets
\ Applicable [ N/A
During the Reporting Period, there were no material changes in major assets of the Company. The above
data on overseas assets was not reviewed.
Restriction on major assets as of the end of the Reporting Period
\ Applicable [ N/A
For details, please refer to Note V. 68 “Assets with restricted ownership” to the financial statements under
Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.
Other explanation
\ Applicable [ N/A

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company’s total interest-bearing liabilities were RMB583.1 billion,
representing an increase from the beginning of the year. This was mainly due to the increase in the Company’s
business volume, the corresponding increase in borrowings, and the increase in interest expenses. As of the
issuance date of the report, the Company publicly issued new ordinary bonds with a total nominal value of
approximately RMB25.2 billion, which well satisfied the need for funding arising from the rapid development of
business as well as industrial restructuring. The Company’s financing structure was further optimized through
increasing the efforts in direct financing.

Analysis of investment

1.

General analysis of external equity investment
\ Applicable [ N/A

The Company’s external equity investment mainly includes stocks purchased from the secondary market for
trading purposes, and equities held in other listed or unlisted companies for non-trading purposes. Accounting
items include financial assets held for trading, investments in other equity instruments, long-term equity
investments and other non-current financial assets.

(1) Major equity investment
[J Applicable  N/A

(2) Major non-equity investment
[J Applicable  N/A

(3) Financial assets measured at fair value

\ Applicable [ N/A
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Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB
Investment ~ Changesin  Investment Carrying Gainsor  Changesin

Stock code Stock name costatthe  investment cost at valueat  lossesduring fair value in Accounting items Source of
beginning of costduringthe theendof  theendof  the Reporting the Reporting 9 stocks
the period period the period  the period Period Period
/ SPH 1,869 1,869 0 0 274 274 Financial assets —— p hage
held for trading
/ PACIFICCENTURY 9472 9472 0 0 580 frg  Cnencalassels o
held for trading
/ PACIFIC2 CENTURY2 1,403 1,403 0 0 70 70 Financil assets o
held for trading
CHENGDU HI-TECH Financial assets
000628.5Z DEVELOPMENT CO LTD. 440 0 440 2,577 -59 -59 held for rading Purchase
601328.5H BANKCOMM 2,660 0 2660 12355 1,059 fosg (mencalassels o e
held for trading
601638.SH  BANK OF CHENGDU 255 0 255 4,884 761 761 Financial assets o hase
held for trading
600015.5H HUAXIA BANK 5,558 0 5,558 8,260 52 gp  Cnanclassels o
held for trading
otoggH  AGRICULTURALBANKOF g g7 0 7467 o0d@ 55010 dgeer  esimemsmoner o e
CHINA equity instruments
600015.5H HUAXIA BANK 241,479 0 24479 356838 17449 gazg  vesmensinomer o e
equity instruments
601328.5H BANKCOMM 2,005 0 2005 7,025 0 gp  mesimenisinoler - p e
equity instruments
00687 HK HKICIM Group 199,904 0 199004 23240 0 gy vestmenisinother o e
equity instruments
601229SH  BANK OF SHANGHAI 1,641 1,641 0 0 0 gy nvesmenisinoler g e
equity instruments
000617.5Z CNPCCCL 1,900,000 0 1,900,000 1,481,332 0 -187,012 Other current assets Purchase
600390.SH MINMETALS CAPITAL 1,500,000 0 1,500,000 1,060,493 18,443 -177,340 Other current assets Purchase
Other investment in securities 219695 208897 548592 521,885 14,131 771 Financial assets —— p hage
held for trading
Total 4,912,848 284,512 5,197,360 4,381,371 108,040 -384,247 / /

Notes

® This table sets out the Company’s investment in securities including as financial assets held for trading and investments in other equity
instruments.

@ Gains or losses during the Reporting Period, with respect to financial assets held for trading, include the investment income and changes
in fair value during the holding period; with respect to investments in other equity instruments, include investment gains during the holding
period.

® Other investment in securities refers to investment in securities accounted for as financial assets held for trading other than those listed above.

®@ In addition to the table above, for other items included in financial assets held for trading and investments in other equity instruments,

please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note V. 2 “Financial assets held for trading” and Note V. 15 “Investments in other equity
instruments” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT".

(VII) Major disposal of assets and equity interests

[J Applicable  N/A
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(VII) Analysis of major controlling companies or companies with shareholding

\ Applicable [ N/A

1.

Major subsidiaries acquired through incorporation or investment

China Overseas Land &
Investment

China Construction First Group
Corporation Limited

China Construction Second
Engineering Bureau Ltd.

China Construction Third
Engineering Bureau Group Co.,
Ltd.

China Construction Fourth
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

China Construction Fifth
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

China Construction Sixth
Engineering Bureau Corp., Ltd.

China Construction Seventh
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

China Construction Eighth
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

China Construction Engineering
Design Group

Nature of business

Investment holding

Real estate development
and operation

Industrial renovation and
decoration

Business of infrastructure
construction

Registered
capital

31,032,258

Shareholding
ratio (%)

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Total assets

960,785,975

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

INTERIM REPORT 2021

Net assets Net profit
317,638,897 22,265,265
287,446,685 18,117,067

52,031,776 2,929,125

2,059,850 330,725

20,551,130 1,442,080

30,107,109 1,678,618

57,383,792 4,442,488

21,068,833 247,078

28,878,156 1,895,786

12,010,642 211,781

23,255,725 888,945

57,296,879 4,962,243

999,392 -119,340
2,723,707 10,881
17,753,794 613,222
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2. Major subsidiaries acquired through business combination under common control

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Registered  Shareholding

Name Nature of business Total assets ~ Net assets Net profit

capital ratio (%)
CSCEC Xinjlang Construction - Gonstruction and 3,500,000 8500 53,832,608 13,827,967 804,979
& Engineering installation
China West Construction Construction materials 1,262,354 57.79 27,877,153 10,297,110 419,374
Shenzhen China Overseas Real estate development
Investment (RIIFEIRE) and operation 2,650,000 10000 493,666 458,681 8310
CSC Finance Finance 10,000,000 80.00 93,464,009 12,550,775 383,231

3. Major subsidiaries acquired through business combination not under common control

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

FRREEE | SRS |

Name Nature of business . . Net assets  Net profit
capital ratio (%)
CSC Development Constructionand 1166 000,000 4780 6433713 1290443 185314
installation
China Construction Harbour Business of infrastructure
and Channel Engineering 1,333,333 70.00 9454910 2,112,894 79,510

construction
Bureau

For details, please refer to relevant information as set out in “1. Interests in subsidiaries” under Note VII “Interest
in other entities” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT".

(IX)  Structured entities under the control of the Company
\ Applicable [ N/A

For details, please refer to relevant information as set out in “3. Interests in consolidated structured entities” under
Note VII “Interest in other entities” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT".
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Other Disclosures

()

Potential risks
\ Applicable [ N/A

1.

Macro-economic risks

Despite the better-than-expected global economic recovery overall so far this year, the next development
trend of the pandemic and its derivative effects remain complicated and the risks relating to the international
politics and economy continue to pile up. Given an undercurrent of reverse globalization, unilateralism and
protectionism ideas, the global industry chain and supply chain face restructuring, and national strategic and
technological strengths become an important variable for competition among great powers. China takes the
lead in economic recovery amid the COVID-19 pandemic with a continual pickup trend. As the pressure from
imported inflation intensifies, the continuous recovery of domestic needs is still subject to many restrictions.
In the first half of the year, the value of new contracts in the construction industry grew rapidly, and leading
enterprises gradually dominated the market with continuously improved industry concentration. Against
the general backdrop of carbon peaking and carbon neutrality, construction enterprises must accelerate
the transformation towards green and low-carbon development to re-develop their core competitiveness.
CSCEC will continue to highlight the main responsibilities and main business in accordance with the principle
of respecting history and embracing the future, and firmly promote the Group’s continuous high-quality
development, innovative development, eco-friendly development, business optimization development,
digital development and overall security development and transformation, and properly expand emerging
business areas closely related to the main business. During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, the Company
will actively serve the establishment of a new development pattern, closely center on the theme of high-quality
development, focus on the strategic goals of “one creation and five aspects of strength”, and adhere to the “Six
Commitments” to promote its corporate reform and development to a new level.

International operation risks

The continual spread of the COVID-19 pandemic hinders normal economic activities and affects the global
economy. Some countries face the risks of increased debt size, greater financial pressure, weakened social
stability, and exchange rate fluctuations. In addition, the strategic game among great powers intensifies with
more uncertainties and risks relating to the international situation, posing significant challenges to the overseas
business of the Company. The Company makes comprehensive researches and judgments on the overseas
market condition and the industry development tendency, formulates the “14th Five-Year” special plan for
overseas business in a scientific manner based on its overall objectives and overseas development status, and
clarifies specific strategies and refined measures to guide the high-quality development of overseas business.
The Company enhances market analysis, research and judgment, expands efforts on studying key areas and
national markets to precisely respond to the needs in the countries and regions where it operates and tap the
development opportunities in the international engineering contracting market during the post-pandemic era,
facilitating the orderly development of the overseas markets. The Company continues to ensure the normalized
pandemic prevention and control overseas, and continuously adjusts and improves its prevention and control
measures and work plans based on the developments of the pandemic. The Company pays attention to the
exchange rate fluctuations of major currencies, and copes with exchange rate risks based on foreign currency
value protection plan and by payment for procurement and sub-contracting contract in the same currency
as the master contract. The Company strengthens overseas talent cultivation, develops a high-quality,
professional and inter-disciplinary overseas management talent team, and improves the comprehensive
capabilities of overseas employees.

Risks related to safety and environmental protection

As the principal business of the Company, engineering contracting business accounts for a large proportion
of its business portfolio and covers a wide range of sectors. Considering a specific industry and the external
environment, contract performance may be exposed to natural disasters such as floods, rainstorms,
earthquakes, typhoons, and fires as well as unexpected public events. With the further deepening of
environmental protection and green architecture concepts in the construction field, environmental inspection
has become stricter. Accordingly, enterprises are exposed to risks in their safe production, environmental
protection and quality assurance. The Company has profoundly implemented the deployment of the Party and
the government regarding safe production, made good use of the rectification roles of the two special actions,
namely “National Special Rectification” and “Implementation and Systematic Management of Production
Safety Responsibility of the Group”, continued to give full play to the role of normalized special supervision and
inspection on production safety, and established and improved two long-term systems for production safety
responsibility and supervision. The Company formulated special work plans, continued to conduct inspections
on ecological and environmental risks and self-checks on compliance within the entire system, prevented
potential risks, and optimized normalized risk management and compliance management mechanism.
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Risks related to the pandemic

Currently, with the spread of Delta variant, the global pandemic resurges significantly. China faces increasing
pressure from possible imported cases. In particular, amid the sporadic outbreaks in many places across the
country, the country is encountering the most stringent and complex pandemic prevention and control situation
since 2021. The pandemic affects the production and operation of the Company in all aspects, causes greater
pressure on the Company’s contract value, revenue, profit and other indicators for the whole year, and, in
turn, affects its asset-liability ratio, operating cash flow, “inventories and accounts receivable”, interest-bearing
liabilities and other indicators. The Company attaches great importance to pandemic prevention and control,
implements pandemic prevention and control measures stringently, pragmatically and in details, urges and
guides its subordinate units and projects to earnestly fulfill political responsibilities, and implement all of the
requirements for pandemic prevention and control. The Company has established an office for pandemic
prevention and control (employee health), developed a normalized pandemic prevention and control
mechanism, and implemented various prevention and control measures in detail. The Company stringently
implements normalized prevention and control measures, further strengthens its prevention and control
responsibilities, enhances organizational leadership, and pays attention to pandemic prevention and control in
key places and over key personnel; persistently focuses on overseas pandemic prevention and control, makes
scientific research and judgment on pandemic situations in various countries, and applies multi-level targeted
approach to pandemic prevention and control to ensure sufficient supply of anti-pandemic materials and
solidly guarantee the safety and health of employees.

Investment risk

Domestic investment recovers in general, but not to the pre-pandemic growth rate level, and the investment
structure continues to improve. Macro leverage ratio continues to decline slightly. As such, local governments
face great pressure in reducing hidden debts. With sound prospects in new infrastructure, new urban
construction, urban renewal and other fields, the traditional infrastructure investment implies structural
opportunities, causing greater downward pressure on real estate investment. The Company will continue to
strengthen research on national policies, regulations and industry policies, strictly implement the requirements
of relevant policies and documents, and improve its investment business management and control standards.
The Company will strictly implement the investment budget, insist on the principle of “making no investment
without budget”, and strictly require that subsidiaries without budget space shall not invest in new projects
to reasonably control the scale of investment. The Company will adhere to the principle of operating within
capacity, and establish a “dual control” mechanism for investment budgets and asset-liability ratios. The
Company will strictly regulate the expansion of infrastructure projects, strictly implement investment business
control requirements, carry out project feasibility research, prevent decision-making risks with scientific
advance planning and demonstration, and take a “zero tolerance” approach to compliance defects of projects,
with a view to effectively improving the quality of new investment projects. At the same time, the Company
will strengthen the process management and control of investment projects, comprehensively improve
project operation capabilities, and promptly give warnings on and mitigate risks that may arise during the
implementation of investment projects.

Various financial risks faced by the Company in its operating activities include market risks (mainly interest
rate risks, exchange rate risks and equity instrument investment price risks), credit risks and liquidity risks. The
overall risk management plan of the Company will focus on the unpredictability of the financial market, and
reducing the potential adverse impact on the financial performance. For details, please refer to the relevant
information as set out in Note VIII “Risks relating to financial instruments” to the financial statements under
Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

For details of the Company’s goodwill and impairment, please refer to the relevant information as set out in
Note V. 21 “Goodwill” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

Other Disclosures

[J Applicable +/ N/A
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SECTION IV CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Overview on the General Meetings of Shareholders

Date of
disclosure of
resolutions

Search index of the
designated website for
publishing resolutions

Date of
general
meeting

Session

The first

extraordlnar.y January 15, 2021 WWW.Sse.com.cn January 16,
general meeting 2021

in 2021

2020 annual
general meeting

May 14,

May 13, 2021 2021

www.sse.com.cn

Description of general meetings

\ Applicable CIN/A

1. On January 15, 2021, the Company held the first extraordinary general meeting in 2021, at which four proposals
were considered and approved by a combination of onsite and online voting, including the Proposal on
Amendment to the Working Rules for Independent Directors of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited. The resolutions of the meeting were disclosed on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, China
Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News, Securities Times and Securities Daily. For details, please refer to
the Announcement on Resolutions of the 2021 First Extraordinary General Meeting of China State Construction

Resolutions of the meeting

Considered and approved the Proposal on
Amendment to the Working Rules for Independent
Directors of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, the Proposal on the Repurchase
of Participants’ Shares under the Phases Il and
Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited,
the Proposal on Renewal of the Comprehensive
Services Framework Agreement between China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and
China State Construction Engineering Corporation
and the Proposal on Renewal of the Financial
Services Framework Agreement between China
State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and China State
Construction Engineering Corporation.

Considered and approved 16 resolutions including the
2020 Work Report of the Board of Directors of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited,
the 2020 Work Report of Independent Directors of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, the 2020 Work Report of the Board of
Supervisors of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, the Proposal on 2020 Annual
Final Accounts Report of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited and the Proposal
on 2020 Profit Distribution Plan of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited.

Engineering Corporation Limited (Announcement No.: 2021-004) published on January 16, 2021.

2. On May 13, 2021, the Company held the 2020 annual general meeting, which was held by both on-site and by
means of online voting, at which 16 resolutions were considered and approved, including the 2020 Work Report
of the Board of Directors of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, the 2020 Work Report of
Independent Directors of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, the 2020 Work Report of the
Board of Supervisors of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, the Proposal on 2020 Annual
Final Accounts Report of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and the Proposal on 2020
Profit Distribution Plan of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited. The resolutions of the meeting
were disclosed on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities
News, Securities Times and Securities Daily. For details, please refer to the Announcement on Resolutions of 2020
Annual General Meeting of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited (Announcement No.: 2021-

031) published on May 14, 2021.
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II. Changes in Directors, Supervisors and Officers

\ Applicable [IN/A

Name Position held Change

Xu Wenrong Independent director Elected
................ SunChengmmg|ndependemd,rectorE|ected
....................... L.p.ng|ndependentd.rectorE|ected
.................. YangChunJm|ndependentd|rectorRes|gned
.................... Y uHa”ong|ndependemd|rectorRes|gned
.............. ZhengChanghong|ndependentd|rectorRes|gned
................... va|aogangEmp|oyeerepresematwesupemsorE|eCted
................ QuHongguangEmp|oyeerepresentat.vesuperv.sorE|ected
LUYanbm ........................... Emp|oyeerepresentat.vesupemsor ................................ Res.gned ...........................
................. ngwangChuEmployeerepresematlvesupemsorReSIgned

Explanation on changes in directors, supervisors and officers
\ Applicable CIN/A

Changes in directors: The Company held the 2020 Annual General Meeting on May 13, 2021, at which the members of
the third session of the Board of Directors were elected. For details, please refer to the Announcement on Resolutions of
2020 Annual General Meeting of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited published on May 14, 2021.

Changes in supervisors: The Company held the second meeting of the second session of the Workers’ Congress on
May 7, 2021, at which the employee representative supervisors of the Company’s third session of the Board of Supervisors
were elected. For details, please refer to the Announcement on Election of Employee Representative Supervisors of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited published on May 8, 2021. The Company held the 2020 annual
general meeting on May 13, 2021, at which the shareholder representative supervisors of the third session of the Board of
Supervisors were elected. For details, please refer to the Announcement on Resolutions of 2020 Annual General Meeting of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited published on May 14, 2021.

Changes in officers: Nil.

lll.  Profit Distribution Plan or Reserve Capitalization Plan

Profit distribution plan and reserve capitalization plan proposed for the first half year

Whether to distribute or capitalize No
Nu m berofbonus Shares per 1 0 ) Shares ........................................................................................... O ....................................
. Amount Of d Mdend Sd|31 nb u ted per10 Shar e S (RMB) (tax m C |us,ve) ................................................ O ....................................
. Nu m ber ofShareS . cap,ta| |Zed pe r 1 0 . Shares ..................................................................................... O ....................................



SECTION IV CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Iv.

Equity Incentive Scheme, Employee Stock Ownership Plan or Other Employee Incentive

Programs of the Company and Their Implications

(1

(I

Relevant incentive matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress

or changes in subsequent implementation

\ Applicable  [IN/A
Summary of matter
912.036 million restricted shares granted by the Company to participants of the phase IV

restricted A share incentive scheme were changed from circulating shares not subject to
trading moratorium to circulating shares subject to trading moratorium on January 13, 2021.

On January 15, 2021, the Proposal on the Repurchase of Participants’ Shares under the
Phases Il and |1l Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited was considered and approved at the 2021 First Extraordinary General
Meeting of CSCEC.

It was considered and approved by the Company to repurchase restricted shares that were
subject to restriction on unlocking from 156 participants involved in the phases Il and IlI
restricted A share incentive scheme. A total of 11,511,000 restricted shares were repurchased,
of which, the number of restricted A shares under Phases Il and Ill were 4,067,000 shares
(2,905,000 shares before ex-rights) and 7,444,000 shares, respectively. The repurchase of the
phase Il restricted A shares was based on the adjusted grant price of RMB3.47571 per share
(RMB4.866 per share before the reserve capitalization of the Company), and the repurchase
of the phase Ill restricted A shares was based on the price of RMB3.468 per share. The total
amount of funds for the repurchase was RMB39,951,522. After all the repurchased shares are
cancelled, the registered capital of the Company will be reduced by RMB11,511,000.

195,076,000 shares were unlocked as the first tranche in 2020 under the phase Ill restricted A
share scheme, and the date of listing and trading was January 21, 2021.

107,940,000 shares were unlocked as the third tranche in 2020 under the phase Il restricted A
share scheme, and the date of listing and trading was February 18, 2021.

The Company’s repurchase and cancellation of restricted shares involved a total of 185
participants of the Company’s phases |, Il and Il restricted A share incentive scheme (including
simultaneous repurchase from 42 participants of the phase Il restricted A shares and phase |lI
restricted A shares). A total of 16,903,667 restricted shares were proposed to be repurchased
and cancelled (578,667, 5,621,000 and 10,704,000 restricted shares under phases |, Il and
Il respectively). After the completion of the repurchase and cancellation, a total of 489,000
restricted shares were to be repurchased by the Company, and 1,303,585,000 restricted shares
under the share incentive schemes were remained. After the completion of the repurchase
and cancellation, the registered capital and share capital of the Company will be reduced by
RMB16,903,667 (16,903,667 shares) to RMB41,948,167,844 (41,948,167,844 shares).

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

INTERIM REPORT 2021

Index for details

Announcement on the Progress
of Granting under Phase IV
Restricted A Share Incentive
Scheme published on January
13, 2021.

Announcement on the
Resolutions of the 2021 First
Extraordinary General Meeting
published on January 16, 2021.

Announcement on Decrease
in Registered Capital of the
Company after Repurchase and
Cancellation of Part of Phases
Il and Il Restricted Shares and
Notice to Creditors published on
January 16, 2021.

Announcement on the First
Tranche of Unlocking in 2020 in
Respect of Phase Il Restricted
A Share Incentive Scheme and
Listing of Shares published on
January 16, 2021.

Announcement on the Results of
Grant under Phase IV Restricted
A Share Incentive Scheme
published on January 19, 2021.

Announcement on the Third
Tranche of Unlocking in 2020 in
Respect of Phase Il Restricted
A Share Incentive Scheme and
Listing of Shares published on
February 6, 2021.

Announcement on
Implementation of Repurchase
and Cancellation of Part of
Restricted Shares under the
Equity Incentive Scheme
published on April 7, 2021.

Incentive not disclosed in provisional announcements or with subsequent progress

Information on equity incentives

(] Applicable v N/A

Other explanation

[J Applicable  N/A

Information on employee stock ownership plan
[J Applicable +/ N/A

Other incentives

[J Applicable  N/A
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SECTIONV ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Environmental Information

(1)

(In

Explanation on environmental protection efforts of the highly polluting companies and their
key subsidiaries as announced by the environmental protection authority

(] Applicable v N/A

Explanation on environmental protection efforts of companies other than highly polluting
companies

\ Applicable [J N/A

1.

Administrative penalties due to environmental issues
\ Applicable [J N/A

During the Reporting Period, the construction projects of the Company’s subsidiaries were subject to a total of
114 administrative penalties due to environmental problems such as construction noise, dust, sewage and
solid waste, involving a total fine of approximately RMB3.5171 million®. Up to now, all of the issues involved in
the aforementioned administrative penalties have been rectified.

Disclosure of other environmental information with reference to highly polluting companies
\ Applicable [ N/A

The Company attaches great importance to environmental protection and pollution prevention and control.
During the Reporting Period, there were no emergency environmental incidents, major environmental pollution
or ecological damage incidents caused by the Company. The impact of the production and operation activities
of the Company on the environment and the pollutant emissions were mainly concentrated in the project
construction. For the construction projects invested by the Company, the Company has continuously been
conducting environmental impact assessments in accordance with the law, and implementing the energy
conservation and environmental protection requirements through the entire process of design, construction and
operation, so as to ensure the pollution prevention facilities were designed, constructed and put into operation
at the same time as the main body of the project. For the construction projects undertaken by the Company,
in accordance with the national and local requirements for environmental protection and pollution prevention
at the construction site, the Company identified the environmental factors prior to the commencement of the
project, and prepared the environmental protection and green construction planning. The Company also
equipped and standardized operation of various pollution prevention facilities such as automatic spraying,
vehicle washing and sedimentation tanks, gave priority to new technologies and processes of energy
conservation and environmental protection, and strengthened emergency drills, so as to minimize the impact
of construction on the environment and pollutant discharge.

Reasons for not disclosing other environmental information

[J Applicable  N/A

Note: Statistics on administrative penalty is mainly based on the self-examination of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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(1 Explanation on the subsequent progress or changes in the environmental information
disclosure during the Reporting Period

(] Applicable v N/A

(IV) Relevant information that is conducive to protecting ecology, preventing pollution, and
fulfilling environmental responsibilities

\ Applicable [ N/A

Guided by President Xi Jinping’s ideology on ecological civilization, the Company thoroughly implemented the
decision and deployment on ecological environmental protection of the CPC Central Committee and the State
Council, and continued to implement environmental protection and pollution prevention measures.

1. Constant improvement of the environmental management system. During the Reporting Period, in
accordance with the latest policies and regulations, the Company revised and improved the environmental
management system, required and urged its subsidiaries at all levels to be adequately staff themselves
with full and part-time environmental management personnel to consolidate the foundation of environmental
management and improve basic management capabilities.

2. Strengthening of the prevention and control of environmental risks. The Company has strengthened
its deployment to carry out the investigation and rectification of major ecological and environmental risks,
and further rectify existing problems, so as to prevent potential risks and hidden dangers, and consolidate
the bottom line for ecological and environmental protection.

3. Strengthening of environmental protection supervision and regulation. The Company has built a
multi-level and multi-channel supervision and regulation system to expressly define the responsibilities
through comprehensive means of tour inspections, tour supervision, audits and checks.

4. Strengthening of the prevention and control of pollution at the construction site. The Company has
strictly implemented various prevention and control measures for pollution such as air, noise, water, soil
and solid waste, and actively explored new thinking and new measures. Taking the Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Science and Technology Open Innovation Center project in Shenzhen as an example, through cooperating
with external professional organizations, the active efforts were made to promote the classification
and recycling of construction waste in the project, with the recycling rate of soft waste such as rubber
and plastic reaching 40%, that of hard waste such as concrete blocks and muck exceeding 90%, and
the transport cost of construction waste reduced by 28%, realizing both environmental protection and
economic benefits.

5. Active participation in external pollution control and ecological restoration. The Company has
undertaken the environmental protection and ecological restoration of the Yangtze River, the Yellow
River Basin, Xiong’an New Area and other key areas, and participated in the implementation of a series
of environmental governance and ecological restoration projects such as the ecological protection of
Wauliangsuhai basin in Inner Mongolia and the “1000-year Afforestation” in Xiong’an, actively contributing to
building a “beautiful China”.
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(V)

Measures taken to reduce carbon emissions during the Reporting Period and the effects

\ Applicable [ N/A

Carbon peak emissions and carbon neutrality are major strategic decisions made by the CPC Central Committee
and the State Council based on the long-term development of the country. As a leader in the construction
industry, CSCEC has kept abreast of the national policy direction, made efforts to integrate the concept of green
and low-carbon throughout the entire production and operation process, focused on building a green and low-
carbon circular development system, and continued to promote carbon emission reduction through scientific and
technological innovation, green construction, energy saving and efficiency improvement, with a view to promoting
the green and low-carbon development of the whole society and the entire industry.

1.

Strengthening the top-level design and integrating carbon emission reduction into the Company’s
development strategy. CSCEC upholds the guiding philosophy of “implementing the new development
concepts and adhering to high-quality development”. The Company held several special meetings to
learn General Secretary Xi Jinping’s important speech on achieving carbon peak emissions and carbon
neutrality, making it a clear strategy to promote the green and low-carbon development while adhering to
ecological priority, required units at all levels to gain deep understanding of the significance of achieving
carbon peak emissions and carbon neutrality, and strengthened forward-looking thinking, overall planning,
strategic layout and overall promotion. Through strengthening the top-level design, the Company planned
the target path of carbon peak emissions and carbon neutrality from the height of its medium-term and
long-term development strategy. By strengthening scientific and technological innovation, the Company
researched and promoted technological upgrading and transformation routes by focusing on the entire
industrial chain of the construction industry. It also made concrete efforts to complete the basic work such
as carbon screening and carbon accounting, and actively participate in national and industry-related
research and standard formulation. Through formulating special plans, the Company strengthened the
organization, clarified responsibilities, and acted proactively.

Continuously improving the green and low-carbon management system. Taking into account of
the new situation and new requirements of green, low-carbon, ecological and environmental protection,
the Strategy and Investment Committee of the Company has strengthened the research, supervision
and evaluation functions of sustainable development issues at the decision-making level. In terms of
management systems, a series of management systems such as the Provisions on the Responsibility
Management on Ecological Environmental Protection (Trial) ((ESFIBRIF TEREBIEME (IR17))), the
Ecological Environmental Protection Management Measures ((ESIHFREIE/%)) and the Ecological
Environmental Protection Management Manual ((ESIFREIEFA)) have been newly established and
revised. In terms of institutional and personnel management, the Company strengthened the construction
and staffing of institutions at all levels, enhanced the promotion, education and training, and focused on
improving the capacity to promote green and low-carbon work in a systematic, overall and coordinate
manner.

Actively carrying out R&D, promotion and application of green and low-carbon technologies.
CSCEC has regarded green and low carbon as a priority and a key area of scientific and technological
R&D, established the “Green and Low-carbon Development Research Center” with the support of the
China State Construction Industry Research Institute (FJZF=#F5z). Based on the research results of the
sub-project of the 13th Five-Year Plan national key R&D program undertaken by the Company, namely
Research and Development Platform of Building Carbon Emission Information Accounting ((G2IRExHEBIE
BUIZEFTEMAL)), the Company explored the establishment of construction carbon emission database
and statistical monitoring platform, and strengthened the research and application of comprehensive
carbon reduction technologies such as energy saving, water saving, material saving, greening and carbon
sink in the construction process, providing effective technological support for carbon emission reduction.
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Focusing on promoting green investment operations and green construction. CSCEC strived
to implement the requirements of green and carbon saving in all sectors and aspects of investment,
construction and operation. Taking its subsidiary China Overseas as an example, since 2021, all new
development projects have been constructed in accordance with green building standards, and an energy
consumption information platform has been established independently to cover all self-owned office
building projects to check the use of energy in real time, analyze and optimize the energy usage. As an
advocate of green construction in the industry, the Company has required its subordinate units to actively
follow green construction practices through making full use of intelligent management platforms such
as BIM, yzw.cn, and digital construction in the construction projects. The Company promoted the use of
temporary construction facilities for box-type houses, the wide use of energy-saving equipment such as
solar street lights and air energy heat pumps, the reduction and resource utilization of construction waste,
and effectively implemented the green construction concepts in every aspect and the entire processes
of the production, achieving better results in energy saving and carbon reduction. In the first half of 2021 only,
China Overseas obtained green building certifications for 48 new projects, with a certified GFA of 8.01
million square meters. As of the end of the Reporting Period, it has accumulated 439 projects with green
building certifications and a total GFA reaching 80.80 million square meters.

Vigorously developing prefabricated buildings. As of the end of June 2021, more than 34 steel structure
and concrete component production plants were invested and constructed by the Company, with annual
production capacity ranking top in the industry. The Company promoted the transformation of construction
methods, reduced energy and resource consumption, and promoted effective implementation of carbon
emission reduction. Taking the North Lantau Hospital Hong Kong Infection Control Centre project
undertaken by the Company as an example, the project only took two and a half months to complete the
streamlined manufacturing of 524 assembled building units, completed the site installation within one
month, reduced energy and water consumption by 55% and 60%, respectively throughout the construction
process, saved wood of 80%, and reduced construction waste by 80%, significantly reducing the
construction waste and energy and resource consumption.

Issuance of green financial products. The Company has paid great attention to the relevant policies of
the inter-bank market and stock exchanges, and actively organized subsidiaries to promote the issuance
of green bonds. On April 28, 2020, COHL issued a green asset-backed special program with two green
building projects, Center Towers A and B of China Overseas International Centre in Chengdu and plaza
project of China Overseas, as the underlying assets. In this program, COHL issued RMB3.701 billion at
the interest rate of 2.5%. On June 17, 2021, China Overseas Land & Investment issued the first “green +
carbon neutrality” bond of a domestic real estate enterprise with the China Overseas International Centre
in the core business district of Chengdu Financial City as the underlying assets, with an issue amount of
RMB2.1 billion at the interest rate of 3.6%.
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7. Promoting the green transformation and upgrading of the entire industry. As the first enterprise
advocating green construction in the industry, CSCEC has actively carried out green construction and
intelligent construction engineering practices, advocated the “four-savings and one-environmental
protection” (namely, energy saving, water saving, land saving, material saving and environmental
protection) throughout the entire construction process, promoted temporary construction facilities for
box-type houses, independently developed and applied intelligent construction management platforms,
and carried out construction waste reduction and resource utilization. The implementation of green
construction and intelligent construction will help to reduce pollution and material wastage from the
source, reduce energy consumption, improve resource recycling efficiency, and reduce carbon emissions
during the entire construction process. While strengthening internal management, CSCEC has actively
delivered green construction and management results to the entire society and the entire industry, and
played a leading and exemplary role within the industry. CSCEC has participated in the drafting and
revision of dozens of national, local and industrial standard documents such as the Green Construction
Technical Guidelines (Trial) ((RBEEFAZN(R17))), the Green Construction Evaluation Standards for
Construction Engineering (2R T2 &I TITFMNITAED), Green Construction Guidelines in Xiong'an New
Area (HELZHXFEEESN)) and Green Construction Management Regulations in Beijing (At RHEE
T EEMIEY), effectively promoting the green and low-carbon transformation and upgrading of the entire
industry.

Achievements of Consolidating and Expanding the Results in Poverty Alleviation, Rural

Revitalization and Other Specific Work

\ Applicable [ N/A

(1

Planning of rural revitalization

The Company and its controlling shareholder China State Construction resolutely implemented the decisions and
deployments of the CPC Central Committee, the State Council and the SASAC on targeted poverty alleviation,
counterpart support and provision of assistance to Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region and Tibet Autonomous
Region in the new era, to conscientiously implement the work requirements of “four continuing requirements”. They
provided targeted and concrete assistance to Kangle County, Zhuoni County and Kang County in Gansu Province
(referred to as the three counties of Gansu), provided counterpart support to Changting County, Fujian Province,
and made concrete efforts to promote the provision of assistance to Xinjiang and Tibet. In May 2021, CSCEC
established a rural revitalization work leading team and a promotion team to coordinate the targeted poverty
alleviation, counterpart support and provision of assistance to Xinjiang and Tibet, which studied and developed the
Key Points of Rural Revitalization in 2021, held the 2021 rural revitalization work meeting to make detailed plans
for the rural revitalization throughout the year. Giving full play to the Company’s advantage of “whole industrial
chain” in the construction industry, the Company persistently made “combined efforts” in reducing poverty through
industrial development, employment, education, consumption and Communist Party building, with a view to
promoting the consolidation and expansion of poverty alleviation achievements in targeted areas and effective
connection with rural revitalization.
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Summary of rural revitalization

In the first half of 2021, CSCEC organized and convened the 2021 rural revitalization work meeting to summarize
targeted poverty alleviation work, honor advanced individuals and groups in poverty alleviation, and coordinate the
deployment of rural revitalization work. The Company received the CPC and government officials in the targeted
areas for six times, sent over 250 officials of the Company at all levels to conduct investigations there, and held 14
on-site meetings to discuss with the local CPC committees and governments on the plan for rural revitalization.

In the first half of the year, CSCEC invested and raised funds at a total amount of RMB80,157,300 to the three
counties of Gansu. It implemented 35 poverty alleviation projects such as the homestay group phase | in Kangle
County, organized its seven professional design institutes to carry out rural revitalization and village planning for
91 villages in Kangle County. The Company dispatched 18 cadres to fulfill the temporary poverty alleviation posts
in targeted counties and recipient counties of counterpart support, assigned 15 predominant subsidiaries to make
joint efforts to lift the three counties of Gansu out of poverty. 35 subsidiaries fully participated in poverty alleviation
by promoting consumption to develop characteristic agricultural products such as quinoa of “Yunjian Woye (=
[BI7XEF)”, purchasing and helping to promote the sales of agricultural products of over RMB17,000,000. It held
training class for advanced skilled personnel of CSCEC, and provided order-oriented training for 101 students in
difficulties. It supported 132 leading enterprises (cooperative entities) through e-commerce. In the three counties
of Gansu, 34 demonstration villages for facilitating export of construction labor were continuously constructed and
consolidated, providing job and labor migration opportunities for 1,391 local people. The Company investigated
the proposed cooperation projects in Changting County and planned a rural tourism planning competition in
Tongmu Village, Changting County. Relevant subsidiaries dispatched 40 cadres to fulfill the temporary village
posts to continue the work of “visiting the people, benefiting livelihood and warming hearts” in Xinjiang. It also went
to Tibet University and other universities to carry out campus tour targeting Tibetan college students, interviewed
1,276 Tibetan college graduates in 2021 and issued 247 employment offers.

CSCEC was awarded the highest rating in the evaluation of targeted poverty alleviation performance of central
enterprises, in particular, the Northwest Company of China Construction Eighth Engineering Division was awarded
the title of “National Advanced Group for Poverty Alleviation”, four subsidiaries were awarded the “Advanced
Group for Poverty Alleviation in Gansu Province”, and one cadre fulfilling the temporary post was awarded the
“Advanced Individual for Poverty Alleviation in Gansu Province”.

Subsequent plan for assisting in rural revitalization

In the second half of the year, CSCEC will continue to implement the deployment and arrangements of the rural
revitalization work meeting and requirements of annual focus of work, and promote the implementation of poverty
alleviation projects. It will complete the training of grassroots cadres and technicians in the three counties of
Gansu, pay close attention to the construction of Kang County Poverty Alleviation through Tourism Development
Demonstration Zone Phase IV and other poverty alleviation projects, and promote the rapid effectiveness of the
poverty alleviation of industrial projects. The Company will continue to provide labor migration opportunities, and
carry out party school training for party member engaged in the project in an innovative manner. The Laoshugou
Primary School and Wenjiahe Hope Primary School in Kangle County will be completed and put into use. It will
pay attention to families in difficulty and left-behind children, and continue to carry out poverty alleviation activities
through education such as “Inspirational Summer Camps (FIEE<$E)” and “CSCEC Happiness Courses Plan”.
It will distribute Kang County “emergency relief” funds to complete the corridor construction project of hospital
in Zhuoni County, so as to improve local medical conditions. It will make greater efforts to contribute to the sales
through procurement and complete the task of contributing to the sales through procurement of agricultural
specialty products of RMB40.00 million. It will continue to pay close attention to the Party-building in pairs with
other Party units of 19 villages, and develop demonstration sites for rural revitalization in an innovative manner. The
Implementation Plan for Counterpart Support will be issued to comprehensively promote the counterpart support
in Changting County. The Company will also go to Xinjiang to investigate and study the provision of assistance to
Xinjiang, and extend its regards to cadres supporting Xinjiang.
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SECTION VI IMPORTANT MATTERS

VL.

VIL.

VIl

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

Any Non-operating Loans to the Controlling Shareholder and Other Related Parties during
the Reporting Period

[J Applicable +/ N/A

Guarantees in Violation of Regulations
[J Applicable +/ N/A

Audit of the Interim Report

[J Applicable / N/A

Changes and Handling of Matters Involved in Non-standard Audit Opinions in the Previous
Year’s Annual Report

(] Applicable v N/A

Matters Related to Insolvency/Reorganization

[J Applicable +/ N/A

Matters Related to Significant Litigation and Arbitration

] There were significant litigations and arbitrations during the Reporting Period
\/ There was no significant litigation or arbitration during the Reporting Period

Suspected Violations, Penalties and Rectifications of the Company and Its Directors,
Supervisors, Officers, Controlling Shareholders, and De Facto Controller

[J Applicable +/ N/A

Explanation on the Integrity of the Company and Its Controlling Shareholder and De Facto
Controller during the Reporting Period

[J Applicable +/ N/A



SECTION VI

X.

IMPORTANT MATTERS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

INTERIM REPORT 2021

Material Related Party Transactions

()

Related party transactions relating to ordinary course of business

1.

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in

subsequent implementation

\ Applicable [ N/A

Summary of matters

On December 29, 2020 and January 15, 2021, the Proposal on the
Renewal of the Comprehensive Services Framework Agreement
between China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
and China State Construction Engineering Corporation was considered
and approved at the 51st meeting of the second session of the Board
of Directors, the 34th meeting of the second session of the Board of
Supervisors and 2021 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

The Company and China State Construction renewed the Comprehensive
Services Framework Agreement Between China State Construction
Engineering Corporation and China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited in respect of the related party transactions arising
from the sales, procurement, commercial factoring services, financial
leasing services, property leasing and other business between the
Company, and China State Construction and its subsidiaries. During
the term of the agreement, the sales between the Company and China
State Construction and its subsidiaries shall not exceed RMB3.1 billion;
procurement shall not exceed RMB9.2 billion; the maximum balance of
commercial factoring services (excluding those from CSC Finance) shall
not exceed RMBO.5 billion, and factoring interest and service fee shall
not exceed RMBO0.03 billion; the maximum balance of financial leasing
services (excluding those from CSC Finance) shall not exceed RMBO0.2
billion, and financial leasing interest and service fee shall not exceed
RMBO0.01 billion; property leasing shall not exceed RMBO.2 billion; other
daily related party transactions shall not exceed RMBO.6 billion (RMB0.35
billion for interest on capital borrowings, RMB0.05 billion for signing
trademark license agreement, and RMBO.2 billion for others).

During the Reporting Period, the sales between the Company and
China State Construction and its subsidiaries was RMB440 million; the
procurement was RMB2.86 billion; no commercial factoring and financial
leasing service was performed; the property leasing was RMB8 million;
other daily related party transactions were RMB66 million (RMB58 million
for interest on capital borrowings, and RMB8 million for others). The
amount of actual daily related party transactions of the Company was
within the budget.

Index for details

Announcement on the
Resolutions of the 51st
Meeting of the Second
Session of the Board of
Directors published on
December 30, 2020.

Announcement on the
Resolutions of the 34th
Meeting of the Second
Session of the Board of
Supervisors published on
December 30, 2020.

Announcement on
the Renewal of the
Comprehensive Services
Framework Agreement
between the Company and
China State Construction
Engineering Corporation
and Daily Related Party
Transaction published on
December 30, 2020.

Announcement on the
Resolutions of the 2021
First Extraordinary General
Meeting published on
January 16, 2021.
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Summary of matters

On December 29, 2020 and January 15, 2021, the Proposal on the
Renewal of the Financial Services Framework Agreement between
China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and China State Construction
Engineering Corporation was considered and approved at the 51st
meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors, the 34th
meeting of the second session of the Board of Supervisors and 2021 first
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

CSC Finance, a subsidiary of the Company, and China State Construction
renewed the Financial Services Framework Agreement Between China
State Construction Engineering Corporation and China State Construction
Finance Co., Ltd. in respect of the related party transactions arising
from the deposits, loans, financial and financing consultancy and other
relevant financial services provided to China State Construction and its
subsidiaries (excluding CSCEC and subsidiaries of CSCEC) from CSC
Finance. During the term of the agreement, the daily balance cap of the
deposits (inclusive of accrued interests) to be placed by China State
Construction and its subsidiaries with CSC Finance shall not exceed
RMB20.0 billion, with the daily balance of loans (inclusive of accrued
interests) to be obtained not exceeding the daily balance cap of the
deposits (inclusive of accrued interests); the fees to be charged by CSC
Finance for providing other financial services to China State Construction
and its subsidiaries shall not exceed RMBO0.3 billion.

During the Reporting Period, the actual daily balance cap of the deposits
and ending deposit balance placed by China State Construction and its
subsidiaries with CSC Finance was RMB7.596 billion, and the accrued
interest was RMB6 million; the maximum daily loan balance was
RMB5.998 billion and the accrued interest was RMB17 million, the ending
loan balance was RMB5.616 billion without accrued interest; the fees
charged by CSC Finance for providing other financial services to China
State Construction and its subsidiaries was RMB1.5 million.

On July 23, 2021, the Proposal on the Provision of RMB1.4 Billion of
Entrusted Loan by China State Construction Engineering Corporation
to China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and the
Proposal on the Provision of RMB60.00 Million of Entrusted Loan by
China State Construction Engineering Corporation to China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited were considered and
approved at the 2nd meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors
and the 2nd meeting of the third session of the Board of Supervisors of
the Company.

On July 26, 2021, the Company signed the Entrusted Loan Contract with
China State Construction and CSC Finance, under which China State
Construction will provide RMB1.4 billion of entrusted loan to CSCEC
through CSC Finance, with a term of one year, early repayment allowed
and an interest rate of 2.99% per annum. The Company signed the
Entrusted Loan Contract with China State Construction and CSC Finance,
under which China State Construction will provide RMB60.00 million of
entrusted loan to CSCEC through CSC Finance, with a term of 3 years,
early repayment allowed and an interest rate of 3.8% per annum.

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

IMPORTANT MATTERS
INTERIM REPORT 2021

Index for details

Announcement on the
Resolutions of the 51st
Meeting of the Second
Session of the Board of
Directors published on
December 30, 2020.

Announcement on the
Resolutions of the 34th
Meeting of the Second
Session of the Board of
Supervisors published on
December 30, 2020.

Announcement on the
Renewal of the Financial
Services Framework
Agreement between China
State Construction Finance
Co., Ltd. and China State
Construction Engineering
Corporation and Daily
Related Party Transaction
published on December 30,
2020.

Announcement on the
Resolutions of the 2021
First Extraordinary General
Meeting published on
January 16, 2021.

Announcement on the
Resolutions of the 2nd
Meeting of the Third Session
of the Board of Directors
published on July 24, 2021.

Announcement on the
Resolutions of the 2nd
Meeting of the Third Session
of the Board of Supervisors
published on July 24, 2021.

Announcement of CSCEC
on Provision of Entrusted
Loans to the Company by Its
Controlling Shareholder and
Related Party Transactions
published on July 24, 2021.
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2. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

[J Applicable +/ N/A

3. Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements

[J Applicable +/ N/A
(I Related party transactions as a result of acquisition or disposal of assets or equity

1. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation
[J Applicable  N/A

2. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

(] Applicable v N/A

3. Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements
[J Applicable +/ N/A

4. Disclosure of performance achieved for the Reporting Period if with agreed-upon
performance targets
[J Applicable  N/A

(1 Material related party transactions in joint external investment

1. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation
[J Applicable +/ N/A

2. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

[J Applicable v N/A

3. Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements

[J Applicable +/ N/A
(IV)  Creditor’s rights and debts with related parties

1. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation
[J Applicable +/ N/A

2. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

[] Applicable v N/A

3. Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements

(] Applicable v N/A
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(V)

(V)

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

Financial business between the Company and the related-party financial companies, and
between the Company’s holding financial companies and the related parties

\ Applicable [ N/A

1.

Deposit
\ Applicable [ N/A
Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB
Maximum daily Amount
. : deposit limit Deposit interest  Opening incurred Closing
R | (R Sy (including accrued rate range (%)  balance during the  balance
interest) period
China State Controlling
Construction  shareholderand its g 40 409 0455.1.495 2,311,783 5284326 7,596,109
and its directly or indirectly
subsidiaries  controlled entities
Total / / / 2,311,783 5,284,326 7,596,109
Loan
\ Applicable [ N/A
Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB
Amount
al Openin incurred Closin
Related party ~ Related relationship Loan facility interest rate pening . 9
balance during the balance
range (%) ;
period
China State Controlling Not exce_edlng
Construction  shareholder and its the maximum
) . . daily deposit limit 3.2-3.7 5,980,000 -364,000 5,616,000
and its directly or indirectly . )
e o (including accrued
subsidiaries  controlled entities )
interest)
Total / / / 5,980,000 -364,000 5,616,000

Credit facility or other financial businesses

\ Applicable [ N/A

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Actual amount

Related party Related relationship Business type Total amount

incurred
. . Controlling shareholder
China State Construction e Giractly or indirectly ~ Factoring 60,662.97 1,505.72
and its subsidiaries -
controlled entities
CSCEC SCIMEE Sci. & Entity indirectly controlled by Credit facilty ~ 500,000.00 0.00

Tech. Co., Ltd. the controlling shareholder

Other explanation
\ Applicable [ N/A

The above related party transactions of the Company have been considered and approved by the 51st
meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors, the 34th meeting of the second session of the
Board of Supervisors and the 2021 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company. For details, please
refer to “(l) Related party transactions relating to ordinary course of business” in “X. Material Related Party
Transactions” under Section VI.

Other material related party transactions
[J Applicable +/ N/A
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Other material contracts

\ Applicable [ N/A

1.

SECTION VI

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

Major domestic business contracts during the Reporting Period

No.

Name of contract

Construction contract for Changchun
Metro Airport Line (Line 9) phase
| (KETHTNERBTBL(9S
#)—HATEME T &[E) Contract for
relocation of pipes for Changchun
Metro Airport Line (Line 9) phase |
(KETHHNBERRBTEBE(9SL)
—HTRRELTHER)

General contract for the prospecting,
design and construction of the old
village renovation project in Liucun
village and Gegang area of Liucun
community, Guangzhou (/" NXIAT#:
Xt KA XIBAUSTE B2
KIS AEERE)

General construction contract of
Chongging Metro Line 15 phase
| (K72+824~K92+369.955) (&
KIWERXRBI55 L —HIE
(K72+824~K92+369.955) it T 7%
aamE)

General EPC contract of renovation
of shanty towns in Shatang area of
Ezhou (phase Il) (BN 70HE F X4
PEGET B (ZH)EPC BRABINE

aF)

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Signing Party

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation
Limited, China Construction
First Group Corporation
Limited, China Construction
Second Engineering Bureau
Ltd., China Construction Third
Engineering Bureau Group
Co., Ltd., China Construction
Sixth Engineering Bureau
Corp., Ltd., China Construction
Seventh Engineering Division
Corp. Ltd., China Construction
Eighth Engineering Division
Corp., Ltd., China Construction
Communications Engineering
Group Co., Ltd., and China
Construction Industrial & Energy
Engineering Group Co., Ltd.

The First Construction Co., Ltd.
of China Construction Third
Engineering Bureau

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation
Limited, China Construction
Third Engineering Bureau
Group Co., Ltd., China
Construction Fifth Engineering
Division Corp., Ltd., and China
Construction Sixth Engineering
Bureau Corp., Ltd.

China Construction Third
Engineering Bureau Group Co.,
Ltd.

IMPORTANT MATTERS

Value of
contract

76.82

66.38

58.01

INTERIM REPORT 2021

Type of
contract

Infrastructure
construction

Housing
construction

Infrastructure
construction

Housing
construction



SECTION VI

No.

10

IMPORTANT MATTERS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

Name of contract

General construction contract of
reconstruction resettlement area plot
806 project for Hetangxia old village
renovation project (fAIE T IRITEGE
MEEERXREX806HIRTIZMET S
ABER)

General construction contract of
plot 713 (primary school) and plot
718 projects in the financing area
for Hetangxia old village renovation
project (fAI%E T IBAI ST B R X
7ASHBR(NF). 718HBR TR TR
ABER)

General construction contract of plot
714 projects in the financing area
for Hetangxia old village renovation
project (fAI%E T IBAI ST BRI X
TIAMIR TA2HE T SA&B SR)
General construction engineering
contract of western semiconductor
integrated circuit high-tech industrial
park project (FAEB¥ SAEM B S
R R B Big T T2 S A&

Contract of Zhanggiu Wanda Plaza
project in Jinan (FEZELRIE 7
B TEEMR)

General construction contract of
International Business District and
International Residential District of
Changchun Airport New Area (K&
TEMXEMRF L XNERBEEX
MLEEEEH)

Project contract of Hohai University
Changdang Lake University Science
Park (CABAFHMAFRHR E T
BIESR)

Construction contract for the first
tender section of the urban renewal
unit project of “converting industrial
land to affordable housing” in
Shangmugu Community, Pinghu
Street, Longgang District (25X
HEE EARGHEX ‘TR HHE
WMRETHE MRS TIERETIS
)

General EPC contract of Smart
Economy Industrial Park (Yunshang
Economic Demonstration Park)
project (BE&EF I HE (= L&

TBE)MEEPCIRREAEEE)

INTERIM REPORT 2021

Signing Party

The Second Construction Co.,
Ltd. of China Construction Third
Engineering Bureau

China Construction Seventh
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

China Construction Second
Engineering Bureau Ltd.

China Construction Third
Engineering Bureau Urban
Construction Co., Ltd.

China Construction Second
Engineering Bureau Ltd.

The Fourth Construction Co.,
Ltd. of CSCEC 7th Division (H
BtRENEERNERAE)

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation
Limited

Value of
contract

50.45

44.76

38.58

35.00

Type of
contract

Housing
construction

Housing
construction

Housing
construction

Housing
construction

Housing
construction

Housing
construction

Housing
construction



No.

12

Name of contract

General contract of Guangzhou
Airport Central Business District
Sunac Exhibition Center Project (I~
MEBRREFS XA RPOT
BEEBTIESH)

SECTION VI

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

Signing Party

The First Company of China
Eighth Engineering Bureau Ltd.

IMPORTANT MATTERS

(EPC) engineering contract of
Shangrao Daihu Lake Sunshine
City Project (_LixH M HINE
(EPC)IE&M)

China Construction Second
Engineering Bureau Ltd.

14

Construction contract of YHSG-
3 tender section of Wuzhi-
Jiyuan section of the Yanhuang
Expressway (CBEEREM EFTR
ERERAK YHSG-3 #RERFETHE
aEMIYH)

China Construction Eighth
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

Engineering contract of China —
ASEAN Mayors Plaza Project (-
REDKAEDETZER)

China Construction Eighth
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

Xiamen New International
Conference & Exhibition Center —
Exhibition Center section | project
contract (B JMisEBH L — B
O I AR TIEER)

China Construction Fourth
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

17

Engineering, procurement and
construction contract for the
Yangtze River Delta (Jiashan)
Financial Innovation Center Project
(K= (%) s/eIFHmPOom B
ITREETTESFAEER)

China Construction Third
Engineering Bureau Group Co.,
Ltd.

Engineering contract of Yashilin
Changsha (International) Sericulture
and Silk Intelligent Manufacturing
Project (LMD (EFF) BRLA
BiEFIINE TE2EMR)

China Construction Fifth
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

EPC project contract of Xilankapu
international health and wellness
resort (A=ZFREEMRFERKX
EPCINE T2 &)

China Construction
Communications Engineering
Group Co., Ltd.

INTERIM REPORT 2021
Value of Type of
contract contract

33.48 Housing
construction
33.40 Housing
construction
33.39 Infrastruct_ure
construction
31.88 Housmg
construction
3114 Infrastruct.ure
construction
30.79 Housmg
construction
30.00 Housmg
construction
30.00 Infrastruct.ure
construction

Note:

The contracts listed above are mainly sourced from the statistics of the contracts actually entered into by the
Company as of the end of the Reporting Period.



SECTION VI

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

2.

IMPORTANT MATTERS

INTERIM REPORT 2021

Major overseas business contracts during the Reporting Period

No.

Name of contract

Engineering contract for the high-
rise complex project in Egypt's New
Alamein City (&K EMiBES
SERTEIESR)

Unit: 100 million dollars

Signing Party

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

Value of
contract

Currency: USD
Type of
contract

Housing
construction

Contract of Wong Chuk Hang
station phase Il commercial and
residential development project (&

MR E=HEH L REELEIB

China Overseas Building
Construction Limited

Housing
construction

China-Thailand Railway Bangkok —
Nong Khai section (phase | project:
Bangkok — Nakhon Ratchasima
section) 4-3 tender section: Civil
engineering contract for Nava
Nakhon — Banpo section (FZEkEK
S8 - FHAR(EHHE  E85—W
MEL)4-3 HREL @ ARELART — DEIRER
TETREAE)

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

3.72

Infrastructure
construction

Contract of student dormitory
project of Hong Kong Baptist
University (REAFFEBEESIE
alm)

China State Construction
Engineering (Hong Kong) Limited

Housing
construction

Master contract for Kathmandu —
Terai/Madhesh Expressway Project
in Nepal (fEB/RINEHE — F5R/5
ER TR E E&F)

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

Infrastructure
construction

Engineering contract of Vladivostok
art and culture complex project (&

ZREAXUGEEIE T2AE

China Construction (Russia) Co.,
Ltd. (PEZR(BTENBRIEE
A7)

Housing
construction

Contract of public housing
development plan phase IV
project at Lei Yue Mun of Housing
Department (FEZHE & TAERE
EREITRIEMEATIE 5[F)

China State Construction
Engineering (Hong Kong) Limited

Housing
construction

Contract of public housing phases 1
and 2 project at Ching Hong Road
North, Tsing Yi (BB ERIL—&
ZHRBmMB&R)

China State Construction
Engineering (Hong Kong) Limited

Housing
construction

Subcontract of civil construction
works for ISBL tender section of
natural gas chemical complex
project in Amur, Russia (% a2
IRRAR[NILEEEINE ISBL 1REL
TEETTESBEER)

China Construction (Russia) Co.,
Ltd. (REZR(BZ ENBRIEE
AF)

1.59

Infrastructure
construction

Contract of Tuen Mun logistics
centre project (B M¥IRALIMEBE &
&)

China Overseas Building
Construction Limited

Housing
construction
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No. Name of contract Signing Party Value of Type of
contract contract
China Construction Third
Engineering Bureau Group Co., .
11 gontract of KCC. GenCon. NTPL |1y philippine Branch (E 129~ _HoWIng
prel RE=TRBERARFRRES
AF)
Contract of Fernvale Land EC Fung Shing Construction .
Housing

12 project (Fernvale Land EC TiE& Company Limited (FEEINEG 1.08
Ei)) [RAT])

construction

Note: The contracts listed above are mainly sourced from the statistics of the contracts actually entered into by the
Company as of the end of the Reporting Period.

Newly-signed comprehensive credit facility contracts
Unit: 100 million yuan/dollars  Currency: RMB/USD

Name of comprehensive Comprehensive credit

No. credit facility contract Credit grantor Accredited party facillty limit Credit period
China State January
Master agreement on o g port mport ~ COnStruction . 18, 2021 —
1 trading and financial . Engineering RMB12.0 billion
. " } Bank of China . December 14,
credit facility business Corporation
e 2023
Limited
China State
BNP Paribas China  Construction June 4, 2021 -
2 Facility letter Co., Ltd. Beijing Engineering USDO.1 billion  no fixed expiry
Branch Corporation date
Limited

Newly-signed strategic cooperation and business cooperation agreements

No. Name of contract Signing date Contents of contract

According to the overall development planning for
the construction of a modern metropolitan area
in Changchun, CSCEC will fully participate in the
economic and social construction of Changchun,
invest in and construct a number of demonstration
projects and high-quality projects, and key
cooperation contents include: development of a smart
city construction demonstration project of Changchun;
active participation in the renovation of old residential,

March 8, 2021 old industrial areas and the development of new
urban areas; active participation in the construction
of major transportation infrastructure; active
participation in the comprehensive management
of river basins and development and construction
along the basins; construction of Jilin regional
headquarters base of China Construction with high-
standard; and continuous expansion of the scale and
technology standard of the Changchun prefabricated
construction industrial park.

Cooperation
Memorandum
between Changchun
People’s Government
and China State
Construction
Engineering
Corporation Limited



SECTION VI IMPORTANT MATTERS

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

No. Name of contract

Strategic Cooperation
Framework
Agreement between
the People’s
Government of

Putuo District,
Shanghai and China
State Construction
Engineering
Corporation Limited

Signing date

March 16, 2021

INTERIM REPORT 2021

Contents of contract

According to the overall planning of the People’s
Government of Putuo District, Shanghai, and taking
into account of the development of CSCEC, it will help
Putuo District to build the headquarters of integrated
and innovative enterprises in the Yangtze River
Delta and achieve win-win cooperation between the
two parties. The cooperation is carried out based
on the principles of complementary advantages,
mutual benefit, and common development. The key
cooperation contents include: jointly promoting the
construction of the Shanghai regional headquarters
of CSCEC,; jointly serving the integrated development
strategy of the Yangtze River Delta; and jointly
promoting the development and construction of the
Carbon Neutral City on the left bank of Suzhou Creek.

Strategic Cooperation
Framework
Agreement between
Beijing Economic
— Technological

3 Development
Area Management
Committee and China
State Construction
Engineering
Corporation Limited

March 31, 2021

According to the overall planning of Beijing Economic
— Technological Development Area (BDA), and
taking into account of the development of CSCEC,
it will achieve resource sharing, complementary
advantages, mutual benefit and win-win relationships,
and develop a stable and sustainable preferred
partnership with the BDA through efficient, pragmatic
and innovative cooperation models. The key
cooperation contents include: active participation
in the development of the BDA; guiding enterprises
to land on the BDA; exploration of new ways of
cooperation; joint development of technology-based
enterprises; participating in the planning of a new
Beijing E-Town, in particular, active participation
in the development of the BDA, including housing
and infrastructure construction projects, such as
new urbanization, sponge cities, industrial parks,
watershed management, landmark parks and urban
renewal.

Strategic Cooperation
Framework
Agreement between
Putian People’s

4 Government
and China State
Construction
Engineering
Corporation Limited

April 26, 2021

According to the overall planning of the Putian
People’s Government, and taking into account the
development of CSCEC, an all-round, wide-ranging
and in-depth strategic cooperation mechanism
will be established and improved through both
government promotion and market operation on
the basis of fairness, justice, mutual benefit, and
win-win. Key cooperation sectors include: urban
infrastructure, comprehensive urban development
and renewal, construction of new infrastructure,
revitalization of existing infrastructure assets and in-
depth cooperation in the development of industrial
integration.



SECTION VI IMPORTANT MATTERS

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

No. Name of contract Signing date Contents of contract

According to the overall planning of Fuzhou
People’s Government, and taking into account of
the development of CSCEC, the cooperation will be
carried out based on the principles of complementary

Strategic Cooperation advantages, mutual benefit and common development.
Framework Agreement The key cooperation contents include: planning,
between Fuzhou design, investment and construction in the sectors
5 People’s Government April 26, 2021 of urban construction, ecological and environmental
and China State ' protection, transportation, industrial upgrading,
Construction cultural, educational, sports, health and public
Engineering buildings, infrastructure and public facilities; making
Corporation Limited greater efforts in guidance and supervision of projects

of related enterprises under CSCEC in Fuzhou;
actively supporting Fuzhou to improve the functions
of new districts and industrial parks, and improve the
carrying capacity of industries and population.

Xll. Explanation on Other Significant Matters

()

(I

(1

Changes in accounting policies, estimates and methods compared with the previous
accounting period and the reasons for and implications of such changes

\ Applicable [ N/A

Pursuant to the relevant requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 21 — Leases (the “New
Lease Standard”), the Company has implemented the New Lease Standard since January 1, 2021. Compared
with the old lease standard, the core change of the New Lease Standard is to cancel the lessee’s classification of
financial leases and operating leases, and require lessees to recognize the corresponding right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of all leases in the balance sheet (except short-term leases and low-value asset leases where the
simplified treatment is chosen), and recognize depreciation and interest expenses, respectively.

According to Interpretation of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 (“Interpretation No. 14”),
in providing construction services (here and below, including construction and reconstruction and expansion)
or contracting to other parties, the private partner shall determine whether it acts as a principal or an agent, and
perform accounting treatments to recognize contract assets in accordance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue. According to the agreement of the PPP project contract, in providing
numerous services (such as both asset construction services and post-completion operation services and
maintenance services for PPP project), the private partner shall follow the requirements of the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue to identify the individual performance obligations under
the contract, and allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation in accordance with the relative
proportion of the stand-alone selling price of each performance obligation. Since January 1, 2021, the Company
has conducted accounting treatment in accordance with the above requirements. According to the transitional
requirements, information for the comparable period will not be adjusted and the difference between the above
requirements and the current standards on the date of initial application were included into the retained earnings
and other relevant items of the financial statements at the beginning of the year.

Please refer to “Changes in accounting policies” in Note Il 37 “Changes in accounting policies and estimates” to
the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

The retrospective restatements of material accounting error corrections during the Reporting
Period and the corrected amounts, reasons for and effects of such restatements

[J Applicable +/ N/A

Miscellaneous

[J Applicable  N/A
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Xlll. Index of Information Disclosure

During the Reporting Period, the Company published 69 documents on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(www.sse.com.cn), and related announcements were also published in the China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities
News, Securities Daily, and Securities Times.

No. Matter Date of disclosure
1 CSCEC: Briefing on Business from January to December 2020 January 7, 2021

CSCEC: Announcement on the Progress of Granting under Phase IV Restricted A Share
Incentive Scheme

CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on the 2021 First Extraordinary General
Meeting of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters regarding First
6  Tranche of Unlocking in 2020 in Respect of Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of January 16, 2021
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

CSCEC: Announcement on Decrease in Registered Capital of the Company after Repurchase

7 and Cancellation of Part of Phase Il and Il Restricted Shares and Notice to Creditors January 16, 2021
CSCEC: Announcement on the First Tranche of Unlocking in 2020 in Respect of Phase Il

8 . . - January 16, 2021
Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme and Listing of Shares
CSCEC: Announcement on the Results of Grant under Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive

9 January 19, 2021
Scheme

10 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project January 26, 2021
CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 52nd Meeting of Second Session of Board of

11 Directors January 28, 2021

CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters regarding Third
12 Tranche of Unlocking in 2020 in Respect of Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of February 6, 2021
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

CSCEC: Announcement on the Third Tranche of Unlocking in 2020 in Respect of Phase I
Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme and Listing of Shares

CSCEC: Announcement on Winning the Bid for the PPP Project of Wuzhou-Leye Highway
March 24, 2021
Guangning-Cangwu-Zhaoping (Guangxi Section)

CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters regarding
19  Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of Restricted Shares under Phases |, Il and Il Restricted April 7, 2021
A Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

CSCEC: Announcement on Implementation of Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of

20 Restricted Shares under the Equity Incentive Scheme April 7, 2021

o1 CSCEC: Advance Announcement on Performance Presentation and Cash Dividend Meeting April 10, 2021
of 2020

22  CSCEC: Accounting Firm’s Audit Report on the Company’s Internal Control April 17, 2021

23  CSCEC: 2020 Internal Control Evaluation Report April 17, 2021

24  CSCEC: 2020 Investor Protection Work Report April 17, 2021

o5 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on 2020 Internal Control Evaluation April 17, 2021
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No. Matter Date of disclosure
26  CSCEC: Announcement on Re-appointment of the Auditor for Internal Control April 17, 2021
T CSOREG. 5090 Anial Finar il Statemants and Audit Reson
s CSCEG. 5090 Sustaabilin Fanart
B G
a0 COOEG. 5050 Al Rt
RO, A

CSCEC
32 Directors

CSCEé: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Re-appointment of the

34 Company’s Auditor for Internal Control in 2021 April 17, 2021
35 CSCEC: Independent Director’s Prior Approval of Opinions on Re-appointment of the Aoril 17. 2021
Company’s Auditor for Financial Reports in 2021 P ’
36 CSCEC: Announcement on Proposed Additional Financing Guarantee Amount in 2021 April 17, 2021
37  CSCEC: Announcement on Re-appointment of Auditor for Financial Reports April 17, 2021
38 CSCEC: Acgountlng Firm’s Special Report on Loans to Controlling Shareholder and Other April 17, 2021
Related Parties

39 CSCEQ: Announcement on Resolutions of the 35th Meeting of Second Session of Board of April 17, 2021
Supervisors

40 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the 2020 Profit Distribution Plan April 17, 2021
of the Company
CSCEC: Report on the Performance of Duties of the Audit Committee of the Second Session )

41 . April 17, 2021
of Board of Directors for 2020

42 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Financing Guarantee Amount of April 17, 2021
the Company in 2021

43 CSCEC: Independent Director’s Prior Approval of Opinions on Re-appointment of the Aoril 17. 2021
Company’s Auditor for Internal Control in 2021 P ’

44 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Concurrent Appointment of Aoril 17. 2021
Some Officers of the Company as Officers of the Controlling Shareholder P ’

45 CSCEC: Independent Qplnlons of Independent Directors on the Registered Domestic Bond April 17, 2021
Quota of the Company in 2021

46 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Re-appointment of the Aoril 17. 2021
Company’s Auditor for Financial Reports in 2021 P ’

47  CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to March 2021 April 20, 2021

48 CSCEC_: Announcement on Resolutions of the 36th Meeting of Second Session of Board of April 23, 2021
Supervisors

CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Nomination of Candidates for the

53 Third Session of Board of Directors and Independent Directors April 23, 2021
54  CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project April 28, 2021
55  CSCEC: Information on 2020 Annual General Meeting April 30, 2021
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No. Matter Date of disclosure

57 QSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 55th Meeting of Second Session of Board of April 30, 2021
Directors

58 CSCEC: Report of Q1 2021 April 30, 2021

59 gfg:ﬁ;(ﬁgnouncement on Resolutions of the 37th Meeting of Second Session of Board of April 30, 2021

May

61 CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on 2020 Annual General Meeting of May 14. 2021
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited yis

62 CSCEC?: Announcement on Resolutions of the 1st Meeting of Third Session of Board of May 14, 2021
Supervisors
63 glfe(iltfcgs Announcement on Resolutions of the 1st Meeting of Third Session of Board of May 14, 2021
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2. Explanation on changes in shares

\ Applicable [ N/A

As of the end of the Reporting Period, there were four changes in the Company’s shares, which were caused

by the Company’s grant of restricted shares, unlocking of restricted shares, repurchase and cancellation of

some restricted shares. The details are as follows:

(1)

The Company repurchased 912,036,000 A ordinary shares of the Company issued and listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange from the secondary market through centralized bidding trading, and
granted 912,036,000 A ordinary shares to 2,765 participants at a grant price of RMB3.06 per share.
The repurchased shares were changed from circulating shares not subject to trading moratorium to
circulating shares subject to trading moratorium on January 13, 2021, all the transfer procedures for
this grant of restricted shares were completed on January 14, 2021, and all transfers have been made
from the Company’s special repurchase account to the name of the participants. After the completion
of this grant, the total share capital of the Company remains unchanged at 41,965,071,511 shares. For
details, please refer to the Announcement on the Granting under Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive
Scheme published on December 24, 2020, the Announcement on the Progress of Granting under
Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme published on January 13, 2021 and the Announcement
on the Results of Grant under Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme published on January 19,
2021.

The Company completed the unlocking of the first tranche of 195,076,000 restricted shares under
the Phase Il restricted A share incentive scheme, converting circulating shares subject to trading
moratorium to circulating shares not subject to trading moratorium. The total share capital of the
Company amounted to 41,965,071,511 shares. For details, please refer to the Announcement on the
First Tranche of Unlocking in 2020 in Respect of Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme and
Listing of Shares published on January 16, 2021.

The Company completed the unlocking of the third tranche of 107,940,000 restricted shares under
the Phase Il restricted A share incentive scheme, converting circulating shares subject to trading
moratorium to circulating shares not subject to trading moratorium. The total share capital of the
Company amounted to 41,965,071,511 shares. For details, please refer to the Announcement on the
Third Tranche of Unlocking in 2020 in Respect of Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme and
Listing of Shares published on February 6, 2021.

The Company completed the repurchase from the participants and cancellation of 16,903,667
restricted shares that were not eligible for unlocking. After the completion of the repurchase
and cancellation, the registered capital (and share capital) of the Company was decreased by
RMB16,903,667 (and 16,903,667 shares) to RMB41,948,167,844 (and 41,948,167,844 shares). For
details, please refer to the Announcement on Implementation of Repurchase and Cancellation of Part
of Restricted Shares under the Equity Incentive Scheme published on April 7, 2021.

3. The impact, if any, of changes in shares between the end of the Reporting Period and the
date of disclosure of the Interim Report on financial indicators such as earnings per share
and net asset per share

[J Applicable v N/A

4. Other disclosures that the Company deemed necessary or were required by securities
regulatory authorities

(] Applicable v N/A
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(I Changes in shares subject to trading moratorium
\ Applicable [ N/A

Unit: Share(s)

Number of Number of new

Number of shares . Number of shares
. . shares released shares subject . )
subject to trading : ; subject to trading  Reason for ~ Date of release
: from trading to trading . ) .
Name of shareholder moratorium at the . . moratoriumas  the trading from trading
o moratorium for  moratorium for . .
beginning of the . . attheend of the  moratorium moratorium
; the Reporting  the Reporting . )
period Period Period Reporting Period
- ) During the trading
Participants of Restricted Share 7,4 160 667 319,919,667 912,036,000  1,308,585,000  moratorium /
Incentive Scheme -
period
Total 711,468,667  -319,919,667 912,036,000  1,303,585,000 / /

For details, please refer to “2. Explanation on changes in shares” in “(l) Table of changes in shares” under “I.
Changes in Share Capital” in this section.

II. Shareholders

U] Total number of shareholders:

Total number of preference shareholders with voting rights restored as at the
end of the Reporting Period

() Shareholding of top ten shareholders, top ten shareholders of circulating shares (or holders
of shares not subject to trading moratorium) as of the end of the Reporting Period

Unit: Share(s)
Shareholding of top 10 shareholders

Number Pledged or frozen
Increase/decrease  Number of shares Percentage of shares
Name of shareholder (full name) during the held as at the end %) % el subject Nature of shareholder
Reporting Period ~ of the period ° totaging ~ Sttus  Number
moratorium
China Stalg Construction Engineering 0 23630695997 56.33 0 N 0 State-owned legal
Corporation person
ChlpalSecurmes Finance Corporation 100 1258,300,898 300 0 il 0 Other
Limited
Hong Kong Securies Clearng 80506547 1059,537,879 253 0 Ni 0 Other
Company Limited
Central Huijin Asset Management 0 596,022,420 140 0 N 0 State-owned legal
Co., Ltd. person
GIC PRIVATE LIMITED -5,010,244 210,710,888 0.50 0 Nil 0 Foreign legal person
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. - Securiies investment
E Fund 50 SSE Index Enhanced 11,000,000 147,642,126 0.35 0 Nil 0
” fund
Securities Investment Fund
Industrial & Commercial Bank of
China - SSE Index 50 Tradlng 16,326,560 139,842,503 033 0 Nl 0 Securities investment
Open-end Index Securities fund
Investment Fund
Portfollol106 of the National Social 0 135,304,213 032 0 N 0 Other
Security Fund
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
- ICBQ Credit SU|sse S.trateglc 122,508,806 122,508,806 029 0 Nl 0 Securities investment
Foresight Hybrid Securities fund

Investment Fund
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()

Shareholdings of the top 10 holders of circulating shares not subject to trading moratorium

Number of circulating Class and number of shares
Name of shareholder shares not subject to trading
moratorium Class Number
China State Construction Engineering Corporation 23,630,695,997 RMB ordinary shares 23,630,695,997

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. - E Fund SSE 50 Index Enhanced
Securities Investment Fund

Industrial & Commercial Bank of China - SSE Index 50 Trading Open-end
Index Securities Investment Fund

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. - ICBC Credit Suisse Strategic Foresight
Hybrid Securities Investment Fund

Descriptions on entrusted voting rights, being entrusted voting rights or
waiving voting rights of the above shareholders

There is no related relationship or action in concert between China State
Construction Engineering Corporation, the largest shareholder of the Company, and
any other shareholder mentioned above. The Company is not aware of any related

shareholders relationship among the above shareholders, or whether they are parties acting in
concert.
Descriptions on the preference shareholders with voting rights restored and N/A

Descriptions on the related relationship or acts in concert of the above

number of shares held

Number of shares held by top 10 holders of shares subject to trading moratorium and trading moratorium
[J Applicable +/ N/A

Please refer to the relevant content of “(Il) Changes in shares subject to trading moratorium” under “I. Changes in
Share Capital” in this section.

Strategic investors or general legal persons becoming the top 10 shareholders as a result of
new share placement

[J Applicable  N/A
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I, Directors, Supervisors and Officers

()

Changes in shareholdings of incumbent and resigned directors, supervisors and officers
during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable [ N/A
Changes in shareholdings of incumbent directors, supervisors and officers

Unit: 0,000 shares

Number of Number of Changes in
Name Position shares held at  shares held at  shares during Reason for
the beginning of  the end of the  the Reporting changes
the period period Period
Zhou Naixiang Chairman 0 0 0 /
Zheng Xuexuan Director, President 50.4 50.4 0 /
Zhang Zhaoxiang Director 0 0 0 /
Xu Wenrong Independent director 0 0 0 /
Jia Chen Independent director 0 0 0 /
Sun Chengming Independent director 0 0 0 /
Li Ping Independent director 0 0 0 /

The restricted
shares held
by him were

Shi Zhiping Chairman of the Board 83.7 238 59.9 repl_Jrchased as
of Supervisors being elected
as the chairman
of the Board of
Supervisors
Li Jianbo Supervisor 44.8 44.8 0 /
Tian Shifang Supervisor 15.4 15.4 0 /
Employee
Lv Xiaogang representative 16.7 16.7 0 /
supervisor
Reduction of
shareholding
through the
Employee secondary
Qu Hongguang representative 9.8 0 -9.8 market before
supervisor being elected
as an employee
representative
supervisor
Wang Yuniin VIC.e preslldent., chief 0 0 0 /
financial officer
Zhao Xiaojiang Vice president 0 0 0 /
Ma Zeping Vice president 50.4 50.4 0 /
Zhou Yong Vice president 83.7 83.7 0 /
Shan Guangxiu Vice president 122.046 122.046 0 /
Huang Kesi Vice president 134.716 134.716 0 /
Grant of
Xue Keqing Secretary to the Board 1299 201.9 72.0 restricted A

shares under
phase IV

of Directors
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CHANGES IN ORDINARY SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS

Changes in shareholdings of resigned directors, supervisors and officers

Name

Yang Chunjin

Position

Independent
director

Number of
shares held at
the beginning of
the period

Number of
shares held at
the end of the

period

Changes in
shares during
the Reporting

Period

Unit: 0,000 shares

Reason for
changes

Independent
director

Independent
director

Employee
representative
supervisor

22.12

2217

0.05

Increase of
shareholding
through the
secondary
market after
resignation

Employee
representative
supervisor

Other explanation

(] Applicable v N/A

Stock options granted to directors, supervisors and officers during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable [ N/A

Name

Zhou Naixiang

Position

Chairman

Unit: 0,000 shares

Number of
restricted shares
held at the end
of the period

Director,
President

Independent
director

Independent
director

Independent
director

Independent
director

Chairman of
the Board of
Supervisors

Number of Number of
restricted shares newly granted
held atthe  restricted shares HlLeecd Locked shares
e ; shares
beginning of during the
the period  Reporting Period
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
59.9 0 59.9

Employee

representative

supervisor
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Number of Number of
; Number of
restricted shares  newly granted )
- ) Unlocked restricted shares
Name Position heldatthe  restricted shares Locked shares
P . shares held at the end
beginning of during the of the period
the period  Reporting Period P
Employee
Qu Hongguang representative 9.8 0 9.8 0 0
supervisor
Vice president,
Wang Yunlin Chief financial 0 0 0 0 0
officer
Zhao Xiaojiang Vice president 0 0 0 0 0
Ma Zeping Vice president 0 0 0 0
Zhou Yong Vice president
Huang Kesi Vice president

uangxiu ice presid

Secretary to

Xue Keqing the Board of 59.9 72 27.9 104 104
Directors
Total / 3191 72 131.2 259.9 200

Other explanation
\ Applicable [ N/A

The Company held the 2020 annual general meeting on May 13, 2021, at which Zhou Naixiang, Zheng Xuexuan
and Zhang Zhaoxiang were elected as directors of the third session of the Board of Directors of the Company, and
Xu Wenrong, Jia Chen, Sun Chengming and Ling Ping were elected as independent directors of the third session
of the Board of Directors of the Company for their terms of three years commencing from the date of election of
directors at the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company. At the same time, Shi Zhiping, Li Jianbo and Tian
Shifang were elected as shareholder representative supervisors of the third session of the Board of Supervisors for
their terms of three years commencing from the date of election of supervisors at the 2020 annual general meeting
of the Company. For the above details, please refer to the Announcement on Resolutions of 2020 Annual General
Meeting published by the Company on May 14, 2021.

The Company held the second meeting of the second session of the Workers’ Congress on May 7, 2021, at which
Lv Xiaogang and Qu Hongguang were elected as employee representative supervisors of the third session of the
Board of Supervisors for a term of three years commencing from the date of election of employee representative
supervisors of the third session of the Board of Supervisors at the general meeting of the Company. For details,
please refer to the Announcement on the Election of Employee Representative Supervisors published by the
Company on May 8, 2021.

The Company held the first meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors on May 13, 2021, at which Mr.
Zhou Naixiang was elected as the chairman of the third session of the Board of Directors of the Company. The
term of office is from the date of consideration and approval of the Board of Directors to the expiration of the third
session of the Board of Directors. For details, please refer to the Announcement on Resolutions of the 1st Meeting
of Third Session of Board of Directors published by the Company on May 14, 2021.

The Company held the first meeting of the third session of the Board of Supervisors on May 13, 2021, at which
Mr. Shi Zhiping was elected as the chairman of the third session of the Board of Supervisors of the Company. The
term of office is from the date of consideration and approval of the Board of Supervisors to the expiration of the
third session of the Board of Supervisors. For details, please refer to the Announcement on Resolutions of the 1st
Meeting of Third Session of Board of Supervisors published by the Company on May 14, 2021.

Changes in Controlling Shareholders or De Facto Controller

[J Applicable +/ N/A
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SECTION Vil INFORMATION RELATED TO PREFERENCE SHARES

[ Applicable +/ N/A
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SECTION IX INFORMATION ON BONDS

. Enterprise Bonds, Corporate Bonds and Non-financial Enterprise Debt Financing
Instruments

\ Applicable [ N/A

(1

(I

Enterprise bonds

[J Applicable v N/A

Corporate bonds

\ Applicable [ N/A

1.

Basic information of corporate bonds

The Company’s countermeasures to the risks of trading termination of bonds
[J Applicable +/ N/A

Outstanding bonds overdue

[J Applicable  N/A

Explanation on debts overdue

(] Applicable v N/A

The triggering and implementation of the issuer’s or investor’s option articles and investor
protection articles

[J Applicable +/ N/A
Adjustment of credit rating results
(] Applicable v N/A

The implementation and changes of guarantees, debt repayment plans and other debt
repayment protection measures during the Reporting Period and their impact

[J Applicable +/ N/A
Explanation of other information of corporate bonds
\ Applicable [ N/A

The issuance of corporate bonds by subsidiaries as at the date of the report is as follows:
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The Company’s countermeasures to the risks of trading termination of bonds
[J Applicable +/ N/A
Outstanding bonds overdue
[J Applicable +/ N/A
Explanation on debts overdue
(] Applicable v N/A
2. The triggering and implementation of the issuer’s or investor’s option articles and investor
protection articles

(] Applicable v N/A

3. Adjustment of credit rating results
[J Applicable v/ N/A

4. The implementation and changes of guarantees, debt repayment plans and other debt
repayment protection measures during the Reporting Period and their impact

(] Applicable v N/A

5. Explanation of other information of debt financing instruments of non-financial enterprises
\ Applicable [ N/A

The issuance of debt financing instruments of non-financial institutions by subsidiaries as at the date of the
report is as follows:
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SECTION IX

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

(IV)
of its net assets at the end of the previous year
[J Applicable  N/A

(V) Key accounting data and financial indicators

\ Applicable [CIN/A

End of the

Major indicators Reporting Period

Current ratio (%) 131.7
Quick ratio (%) 66.0
Gearing ratio (%) 74.4

The Reporting

Period (January to

June)
Net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company
after deducting non-recurring
profit or loss 24,538,379
Debt-to-EBITDA ratio 0.11
Interest coverage ratio 4.9
Cash interest coverage ratio -1.8
EBITDA interest coverage
ratio 5.5
Loan repayment ratio (%) 100.0
Interest repayment ratio (%) 100.0

Convertible Corporate Bonds

[J Applicable + N/A

INFORMATION ON BONDS

INTERIM REPORT 2021

Loss in the Company’s consolidated statement during the Reporting Period exceeded 10%

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Increase/decrease
as at the end of the
Reporting Period as
compared to the end
of last year (%)

Decrease by 0.2

End of last year

131.9 percentage point

Increase by 2.8
63.2 percentage points

Increase by 0.7

73.7  percentage point

Increase/
decrease in the
Corresponding Reporting Period

as compared to
the corresponding
period of last
year (%)

period of last year

Increase by
32.0 percentage

18,583,408 points
0.11 /
Increase by

14.0 percentage

4.3 points
-3.6 /
Increase by

17.0 percentage

4.7 points
100.0 /
100.0 /

Reason for the change

Increase in quick
assets

Increase in total
liabilities

Reason for the change

Increase in operating

Increase in profit
before interest and

Increase in cash
flow from operating
activities

Increase in profit
before interest and
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SECTION X FINANCIAL REPORT

. Review Report

\ Applicable [ N/A

Please refer to the attached Review Report.
Il. Financial Statements

Please refer to the attached Financial Statements.

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang

Submission date approved by the Board of Directors: August 27, 2021
Amendments

[J Applicable +/ N/A
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REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EY:

REPORT ON REVIEW OF
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2021) Zhuan Zi No. 61398485_A15

To the Shareholders of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited:

We have reviewed the interim financial statements of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited.,which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated and company statements
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity and the
consolidated and company statements of cash flows for the six months then ended, and the notes to the financial statements
(together referred as to “Interim Financial Statements”). The preparation of these financial statements is the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express a report on review of these financial statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with China Certified Public Accountant Review Standard No. 2101 — Review of Financial
Statements. This Standard requires us to plan and perform the review to obtain limited assurance about whether these financial
statements are free from material misstatements. A review is limited primarily to procedures as enquiry of entity’s personnel and
analytical review procedures applied to the financial information and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not
performed an audit, and therefore we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying financial statements are
not prepared in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and cannot present fairly, in
all material respects, the consolidated and company financial position as at 30 June 2021, and operating performance and cash
flows for the six months ended 30 June 2021.

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Zhou Ying
Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yang Shujuan
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Shen Yan

Beijing, China 27 August 2021
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS Note V 30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Current assets

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Note V 30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Current liabilities

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

For the six months For the six months
Notes V ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020

Revenue 51 936,715,963 728,187,767

Losses from derecognition of financial assets

measured at amortised cost (683,493) (853,615)
S ( Losses)/Gamsansmgfromchanges|nfa|rvalue ............................. 58(142,618) ........................ 199572
Credltlmpalrmentlosses .................................................................. 59(3,466,779) .................... ( 3423365)
Assetlmpawmentlosses .................................................................. o (204,265)(391531)
Gamsondlsposalsofassets ................................................................................................ 136,915 ........................... 16967
- Operat| ng proflt ..................................................................................................................... 5 ,61 . ’ R A 3259 s
AddNonoperatmglncome ...................................................................... S s 51’330 ......................... . 95532
e 'N‘(')'h'-‘(.:;bé o ng expens L o R i ’ B 180088
B " 51,72 . ’ - s
i xexpens Lo e R 11,64 . ’ o R (0840077
" 40,08 | ’ e 3,934 800
s by o ylblf”b';')‘éfét'i'é R -
e ng 'Sﬁéfét‘i'b'h‘s' .......................................................................................... 40,08 | ’ e 35.934.800
Gieaiiod by . ‘\)\)Héf‘sﬁib' e eqmty ................................................................................................................................................
e é'b”a‘féh‘t' ............................................................................. 25,64 5 , o 10830785
e 'n”g'i'r‘{t'é'féé'té ........................................................................ i'il',‘c'llé . , e 15,005,015

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)
For the six months  For the six months

Notes V ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (339,076) (531,092)

Other comprehensive loss that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss (272,293) (281,936)
Remeasurement gains or losses of a defined benefit plan - (37,920)
Changes in fair value of investments in other equity instruments (272,293) (244,016)
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to profit or loss (85,514) (71,932)

Shares of other comprehensive losses that will be
reclassified subsequently into profit or loss by

the investee under equity method (137,922) (45,448)

Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency

financial statements 62,529 (18,570)
Attributable to non-controlling interests 47 18,731 (177,224)
Total comprehensive income 39,742,432 32,403,708

Attributable to owners of the parent 25,285,016 19,485,917
Attributable to non-controlling interests 14,457,416 12,917,791
Earnings per share 65
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.62 0.47
Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.61 0.46

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 95
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

For the six months For the six months
Notes V ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020

.  Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash receipts from disposal of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets 1,030,796 407,802
Net cash receipts from disposal of subsidiaries and
other business units 48 -
........... NetcashrecelptsfromacqmsmonofsubS|d|ar|esand
other business units 51,053 428,856
Cash receipts relating to other investing activities 66 12,671,228 10,196,002
R Subtotal cash flows from |nvest|ng e 17’34 S ’ o R 15590 2 00
........... G ashpaymentstoacqulreflxedassets
intangible assets and other long-term assets 15,474,834 13,315,435
R Gach pay e " : ,62 ) , < R A 275 5 e
........... Netcashpaymentstoach|resubS|d|ar|esand
other business units - 1,154,210
Cash payments relating to other investing activities 66 7,953,149 8,908,619
Sub-total cash flows used in investing activities 29,050,007 27,653,788
Net cash flows used in investing activities (11,700,809) (12,063,588)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

For the six months  For the six months
Notes V ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020

lll. Cash flows from financing activities

Including: Cash receipts from capital contributions
from non-controlling shareholders of

subsidiaries 5,983,593 6,085,792
RS C aSh rece I pts from bo rrowmgs ....................................................................................... 205,7 1 3, 715 .................. 1401 31 0 4 8 .
RS C aSh rece I pts from Issuanc e Ofbonds .............................................................................. 15’60 1 , 714 .................... 131 99 6 6 7 .
RS C aSh rece I pts rela t I ng to Other ﬂn ancmg a C tlvm es ............................. 66 ........................... 11 ,55 5 , 070 .................... 10954 5 5 0 .
RS S Ubto tal c a s h ﬂo w sfrom fmancmgactwmes .......................................................... 238,85 4, 092 .................. 188373 9 2 5 .
RS Repayme n tS of borrow' ngs ............................................................................................ 130’95 0 , 049 .................... 77458 7 3 9 .

Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit and
interest expenses 21,982,960 19,550,808

Including: Dividends or profit paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries 3,679,238 1,235,314

Cash payments to acquire non-controlling interest of

subsidiaries 153,982 -
RS O ther CaSh p a yments relatmg to f mancmg . actlvmes .......................... 66 ........................... 20,23 0 , 968 .................... 261 85 7 2 4 .
RS s UthtaI caShﬂowsusemnfmancmg actwmes ...................................................... 173,317’959 .................. 123195271
RS Net caSh ﬂows from . fmancmg actmtles ....................................................................... 65’53 6 , 1 33 .................... 651 78 6 5 4 .

IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents (626,311) 388,728
V ...... Ne“ncre ase/(de crea s e) I n c aShand caSheqw valems .................................................. 3 ,4 6 4 , 910 ................... (17141 4 1 2)
U A dd CaSh and . CaSh equwalem S . at begmm ng of peHOd .................................................. 267’86 1 , 580 .................. 271727 8 0 8 -
VI ..... C aShandcaShequwalentsattheendof perwd ........................... 67 ......................... 271’32 6 , 490 .................. 254586 3 9 6

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)
ASSETS Note XV 30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Current assets

Cash and bank balances 19,221,291 24,262,315
e NOtesrecelvable ....................................................................................................................... 2 90,522 ......................... 129092
e Ac Coums rec e,vab| e ............................................................................... 1 ............................. 24,3 7 5 ’ 877 .................... 24796 O 5 1 .
e AC Counts rec elvabl efmanC| ng ......................................................................................................... 200 ............................. 1 3 0 0
P repa yments .......................................................................................................................... 7 ’22 6 , 720 ...................... 7 975 5 8 9
e Other recelvables ................................................................................... 2 ............................ 21 ,95 8 , 538 .................... 2202 8 9 0 7 -
|nventones ................................................................................................................................ 156,266 ......................... 114451
e Com ract asset S ...................................................................................................................... 7 ,64 7’ 213 ...................... 6 673 6 1 9 -
e Currem pomo n . Of noncurrent assets ..................................................................................... 8 ,52 0 , 729 ...................... 5 32 9 5 8 8 -
e Other Currem as Sets ............................................................................................................... 4 ’39 4 , 521 ...................... 4 006 0 7 6 -
. Tota| . current assets .............................................................................................................. 93,30 1 , 877 .................... 9531 6 9 8 8 -

Debt investments 6,036,671 8,597,518
e Longtermrecewames2,8694109
e Longtermeqwtymvestments ................................................................ 3 .......................... 199,937’079 .................. 184728922
|nvestments,notherequ,tymstrumems .................................................................................. 1,122,503 ...................... 1148493
e OthernonCurrentf|nanc|a|assets ............................................................................................. 3 00,000 ......................... 3 00000
|nvestmempropemes ................................................................................................................ 5 26,468 ......................... 5 90927
leedassets ............................................................................................................................. 8 06,512 ......................... 7 99412
e Construct,onmprogress ........................................................................................................... 107’737 ........................... 8 2790
nghtofuseassets ................................................................................................................... 3 71,444 ................................... _
|ntang,b|eassets ....................................................................................................................... 120’236 ......................... 128294
e Longtermprepa,dexpenses29,67424084
e Deferredtaxassets ................................................................................................................... 9 02,289 ......................... 7 56192
e OthernoncurrentaSSEts ........................................................................................................ 5 ’364’253 ...................... 5 600968
. Tota| . non cu"en t a s SEtS ..................................................................................................... 216,67 7 , 835 .................. 202761 7 0 9 -
. TOTAL . ASSETS ................................................................................................................... 310,4 7 9 ’ 712 .................. 298078 6 9 7 -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Current liabilities
e rowmgs .......................................................................................................... 31’54 7, e R 29526 9 s
- Accountspayable ................................................................................................................. 46,815 ,044 .................... 43286 70 =
e 13’7 o , e 15009 8 o
Employeebenefltpayable 304,347 ......................... 376220
R payable ........................................................................................................................ 1’2 - ,366 ...................... 2488 417
e payables .................................................................................................................... 45’4 i , e R 48191 6 o
ument pomon e R g ,13 ; ,088 ...................... 8918 70 S
e R s ,84 o ,283 ...................... 345199 =
e R 152’115 ,066 .................. 151250 48 5
B R - R
e Longtermborrowmgs ............................................................................................................ " ,812 ,000 ...................... 3323 00 5
e dspaya e g ,99 s ’ o R 9991 7 e
- Leasellabllltle3279,068 ................................... o
- Longtermpaya R " 11,67 ; ,226 .................... 1386183 =
- Longterm employeebenef |tpayable ......................................................................................... 11 ,050 ......................... I 83 5
i 23,051 ........................... 5 5092
T 3,3654521
e 24,92 5 ’ g 27355 O o
s e R 177’03 . , e 178605 55 S
ahareholdors equny ......................................................................................................................................................................
Paldmcapltal ...................................................................................................................... 41,948,168 .................... 41965072
e eqwtymstrum " 10,00 o , e R 10000 O 0o
R i IudlngPerpetua e 10’00 o , e R 10000 00 5
- Capltalreserve ..................................................................................................................... 29,38 . ’ e R 29016 68 =
- LessTreasuryshares(4,146,986) .................... (4204385)
- Othercomprehenswelncome(708,330) ....................... ( 738725)
- Sp e e - 10 .
e rpl Y 10’1 o ’ e R 10101 6 o
et nedearnlng ] 46,85 8 ’955 .................... 33307 76 =
oial shareholdere’ eqmty .................................................................................................. 133’4 . 1, e 119473 1 e
R T T e G e R 310’4 -0 ,712 .................. 298078 69 S

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

For the six months For the six months
Notes XV ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020

Revenue 4 47,700,121 40,706,237

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss

nt gains or

Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified
to profit or loss 22,979 (102,754)

Shares of other comprehensive losses that will be
reclassified subsequently into profit or loss by

the investee under equity method (283) -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign

currency financial statements 23,262 (102,754)
Total comprehensive income 22,901,162 22,294,132

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020

.  Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from sales of goods and rendering of services 49,220,209 46,323,207
U Refundoftaxesandsumharges8,2278962
U C aSh recel pts rela tl ng to Other ope r a “ ng actlvmes ............................................................... 2 ’96 4, 542 ...................... 3694 9 2 O -
U S Ubto tal c a Sh ﬂo w sfrom operatl n g actl v I tl es .............................................................. 52,1 9 2, 978 .................... 50027 0 8 9 -
U C aSh pa ymems f o r g 0 Ods and se mces ............................................................................. 42,7 5 2, 025 .................... 43690 7 5 8 -
U C aSh pa ymems t o a ndonbehalf Ofemplo y ees ...................................................................... 9 5 2, 859 ......................... 901 7 3 1
U Payme n ts of taxesand Su r C harges ..................................................................................... 1’3 3 3, 992 ......................... 973 4 3 8 -
U C aSh pa ymems rela tl ng to Ot he r o p er atmg act I vme S ............................................................ 2 ’62 4, 028 ...................... 2455 8 4 2 -
U S Ubto tal c a Sh ﬂo w s used : I n ope ratmg actw'tles ......................................................... 47,66 2, 904 .................... 48021 7 6 9 -
U NetcaSh ﬂows from . op e ratmgactwmes ......................................................................... 4 ’53 0 , 074 ...................... 2005 3 2 O -

Net cash receipts from disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and

other long-term assets 13,860 1,291
RS C aSh recel pts re|a tl ng to Other m vestm g actlv mes ................................................................... 1 5 5 , 618 ...................... 1552 1 0 6 .
RS S Ubto tal c a Sh ﬂo w sfrom mvestmg actwltles .............................................................. 18,3 8 5 , 1 63 .................... 20611 4 2 7 .
........... C aShpaymentstoacqu"eflxedassetsmtanglbleassetsand

other long-term assets 73,059 79,426
RS C aSh pa yments f o r mvest me n ts ........................................................................................ 15’1 5 9 , 624 ...................... 4267 O 8 2 .
RS C aShpaymentsrelatmgtomhermvestmgactlvmes6,164 ......................... 505640
RS s Ubto tal c a Shﬂo wsusedmmvestmg actl vmes .......................................................... 15’2 3 8 , 847 ...................... 4852 1 4 8 .
RS NetcaSh ﬂows from . I n Vestl ng . a c t“" tle s .......................................................................... 3 ,1 4 6 , 316 .................... 15759 2 7 9 .

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
(Al amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020

lll. Cash flows from financing activities

Cash receipts from capital contributions - 10,000,000

Cash receipts from borrowings 24,500,000 30,000,000

Cash receipts relating to other financing activities - 18,995
RS S Ubto tal c a Sh ﬂo w sfrom fmancmgactwmes .............................................................. 24’50 0 , 000 .................... 4 001 8 9 9 5 -

Repayments of borrowings 26,011,000 25,611,000

Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit and interest expenses 9,991,206 9,723,783

Other cash payments relating to financing activities 1,004,992 20,975,410
RS S Uthtal caShﬂowsusedmﬂnancmg actlwtles .......................................................... 37’007,198 .................... 56310193

Net cash flows used in financing activities (12,507,198) (16,291,198)

IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (86,984) 12,315

V. Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (4,917,792) 1,485,716
RS A dd CaSh and . CaSh equ I valen tsat the beg I nnmg Of . p er I Od ............................................... 23’66 3 , 373 .................... 21 52 8 3 43 -

VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 18,745,581 23,014,059

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited (“the Company”) was established as a joint
stock limited company under the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) laws and regulations in accordance
with the approval of Guo Zi Gai Ge [2007] No.1495
issued by State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council
(“SASAC”) on 6 December 2007. The founder-
members of the Company are China State Construction
Engineering Corporation (“CSCEC”), China National
Petroleum Corporation, Baosteel Group Corporation
and Sinochem Corporation (the latter three are called
by “other founder-members”).

In November 2017, after approval by SASAC,
CSCEC was transformed from a wholly people-
owned enterprise to a wholly state-owned company.
After the transformation, the Company’s name was
changed to China State Construction Engineering Co.,
Ltd. (“CSCEC”), and its contributor was SASAC who
represents the State Council.

The Company was established on 10 December 2007
in Beijing, PRC, and its head quarter is situated in
Beijing, PRC. The parent company and the ultimate
parent company of the Company is CSCEC. The
Company was listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (“A
shares”) for trading in July 2009. As at 30 June 2021,
total share capital of the Company was approximately
RMB42 billion at the par value of RMB1.00 per share.
As at 30 June 2021, CSCEC held approximately
23,630,700,000 shares, representing 56.33% of the
total share capital.

The approved scope of business of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) includes
survey, design, construction, installation, consultation,
development, decoration service, manufacturing,
wholesale, retail and imports and exports. The
core operations include: offering a full range of
construction-related services to foreign and domestic
civil engineering and building construction such as
construction, installation and consultation, investment
and construction of infrastructure projects, foreign and
domestic real estate investment and development,
architecture and infrastructure construction survey
and design, decoration engineering, landscape
engineering design and construction, industrial
investment, contracting for foreign projects in PRC,
import and export, production and distribution of
construction materials and other non-metal mineral
products, construction-related metalwork and tools
and construction engineering and drilling equipment,
and financial business such as lending and borrowing
within the Group.
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These financial statements are authorised for issuance
by the Company’s Board of Directors on 27 Aug 2021.

Please refer to Note VI for details of significant
subsidiaries included in the consolidation scope in the
current year. The Group does not have any significant
subsidiaries newly included in the consolidation scope
or excluded from the consolidation scope in the current
year.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises — Basic Standard and specific
accounting standards, implementation guidance,
interpretations, other relevant regulations issued
subsequently by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF”)
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “ASBEs”).

The financial statements have been presented on a
going concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments. If the assets are impaired, corresponding
provisions for impairment shall be made according to
relevant requirements.

Significant accounting policies and
estimates

Specific accounting policies and estimates were
decided by the Group according to the characteristics
of its production and operation, mainly including
measurement of expected credit losses on receivables
and contract assets, valuation method of inventories,
recognition and measurement of revenue, etc.

Statement of compliance with ASBEs

The consolidated and company financial statements
present fairly and fully the financial position of the
Group and the Company as at 30 June 2021 and
the financial performance and the cash flows for the
six months ended 30 June 2021 in accordance with
ASBEs.

Accounting period

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to
31 December of each calendar year.

Functional currency

The Group’s reporting and presentation currency is
Renminbi (“RMB”). Unless otherwise specified, all are
expressed in thousands of RMB.

Each subsidiary, joint venture or associate of the Group
determines its own functional currency based on the
primary economic environment in which it operates. In
preparation of the financial statements, their functional
currencies are translated into RMB.



Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Business combinations

Business combinations are classified into business
combinations involving entities under common control
and business combinations not involving entities under
common control.

Business combinations involving entities under
common control

A business combination involving entities under
common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after the
combination, and that control is not transitory. In a
business combination involving entities under common
control, the entity that, at the combination date, obtains
control of another combining entity is the absorbing
entity, while that other combining entity is the entity
being absorbed. The combination date refers to the
date on which the merging party actually obtains
control of the merged party.

The assets and liabilities (including goodwill arising
from the ultimate controlling party’s acquisition of
the entity being absorbed) that are obtained by the
absorbing entity in a business combination involving
entities under common control shall be measured on
the basis of their carrying amounts in the financial
statements of the ultimate controlling party at the
combination date. The difference between the carrying
amount of the net assets obtained and the carrying
amount of the consideration paid for the combination
(or the aggregate face value of shares issued as
consideration) shall be adjusted to share premium
under capital reserve. If the capital premium is not
sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be
adjusted against retained earnings.

Business combinations not involving entities
under common control

A business combination not involving entities under
common control is a business combination in which all
of the combining entities are not ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after the
combination. In a business combination not involving
entities under common control, the entity that, on the
acquisition date, obtains control of another combining
entity is the acquirer, while that other combining entity
is the acquiree. The acquisition date is the date on
which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the
acquiree.

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in
the business combination at their fair values on the
acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially recognised and measured at cost,
being the excess of the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration transferred (or the fair value of
the equity securities issued) and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree over the Group’s interest in the fair value

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. After initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Where the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred (or
the fair value of the equity securities issued) and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is lower than the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets,
the Group reassesses the measurement of the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities and the fair value of the
consideration transferred (or the fair value of the equity
securities issued), together with the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree.
If after that reassessment, the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration transferred (or the fair
value of the equity securities issued) and the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is still
lower than the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
acquiree’s net identifiable assets, the Group recognises
the remaining difference in profit or loss.

Where a business combination not involving
enterprises under common control is achieved through
multiple transactions in stages, the long-term equity
investments held in the acquiree before the acquisition
date are remeasured at fair value at the acquisition
date, with any difference between the fair value and
the carrying amount included in investment income
for the current period. Where the long-term equity
investments held in the acquiree before the acquisition
date relates to other comprehensive income measured
under the equity method, the accounting treatment
shall be conducted on the same basis as the direct
disposal of related assets or liabilities by the invested
entity, other changes in shareholders’ equity except net
profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution shall be transferred to income for the period
in which the acquisition date falls. Where the equity
instrument investments are held in the acquiree before
the acquisition date, accumulated changes in the fair
value of other comprehensive income of those equity
instrument investment before the acquisition date are
transferred to retained earnings.

Consolidated financial statements

The scope of the consolidated financial statements,
which include the financial statements of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries, is determined on the basis
of control. Subsidiary refers to the entity controlled
by the company (including the divisible parts of the
enterprises, the invested units, and the structured
entities controlled by the company, etc).

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, where the accounting policies of a
subsidiary are different from those of the Company
have made adjustments to the financial statements
of the subsidiary based on the Company’s own
accounting policies, and where the accounting period
of a subsidiary is different from that of the Company,
the Company has adjusted the financial statements
of the subsidiary based on the Company’s own
accounting period. All intra-group assets, liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Consolidated financial statements (continued)

Where the loss for the current period attributable
to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary exceeds
the non-controlling interests of the opening balance
of equity of the subsidiary, the excess shall still be
allocated against the non-controlling interests.

For subsidiaries acquired through business
combinations not involving entities under common
control, the financial performance and cash flows of
the acquiree shall be consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date such control ceases. While
preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Group shall adjust the subsidiary’s financial statements,
on the basis of the fair values of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised on the
acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired through business
combinations involving entities under common
control, the financial performance and cash flows of
the entity being absorbed shall be consolidated from
the beginning of the period in which the combination
occurs. While preparing the comparative financial
statements, adjustments are made to related items
in the financial statements for the prior period as if
the reporting entity after the combination has been in
existence since the date the ultimate controlling party
first obtained the control.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if any changes in facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control.

A change in the non-controlling interests, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the accounting treatment of a transaction is
inconsistent in the financial statements at the Group
level and at the Company or its subsidiary level,
adjustment will be made from the perspective of the
Group.

Classification of joint arrangement and joint
operation

A joint arrangement is classified as either a joint
operation or a joint venture. A joint operation is a joint
arrangement whereby the joint operators have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the joint operators have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

A joint operator recognises the following items in
relation to its interest in a joint operation: its solely-
held assets and its share of any assets held jointly; its
solely-assumed liabilities and its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly; its revenue from the sale of its share
of the output arising from the joint operation; its share
of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint
operation; its solely-incurred expenses and its share of
any expenses incurred jointly.

INTERIM REPORT 2021

7.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Group’s cash on hand and bank
deposits that can be readily withdrawn on demand.
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency transactions and foreign
currency translation

The Group translates foreign currency transactions into
its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded,
on initial recognition in the functional currency using
the spot exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions in which the transactions occur. Monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the spot exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss, with
the exception of those relating to foreign currency
borrowings specifically for the construction and
acquisition of qualifying assets, which are capitalised
in accordance with the guidance for capitalisation
of borrowing costs. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions, and the amount
denominated in the functional currency is not changed.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income depending on the nature
of the non-monetary items.

For foreign operations, the Group translates their
functional currency amounts into RMB when preparing
the financial statements as follows: as at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities are translated
using the spot exchange rates at the balance sheet
date, and equity items other than “unappropriated
profit” are translated at the spot exchange rates at the
dates of transactions; revenue and expense items in
profit or loss are translated using the spot exchange
rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in profit or loss. If the disposal only
involves a portion of a particular foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit
or loss on a pro-rata basis.

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of
foreign subsidiaries are translated using the spot
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of cash flows.
The effect of exchange rate changes on cash is
separately presented as an adjustment item in the
statement of cash flows.



Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and derecognition

The Group recognises a financial asset or a financial
liability when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of a financial instrument.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

(1) the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset have expired; or

2) the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the financial asset,
or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged, cancelled, or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised using trade date
accounting. Regular way purchases and sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. The trade
date is the date that the Group committed to purchase
or sell a financial asset.

Contract change due to benchmark interest rate
reform

Due to the benchmark interest rate reform, the terms
of some financial instruments of the Group have been
modified to replace the original benchmark interest rate
with the alternative benchmark interest rate, and other
modifications have been made to the terms of financial
instruments.
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For financial assets or financial liabilities measured
by the effective interest method, the Group will not
evaluate whether the change leads to derecognition
or adjust the book balance of the financial assets or
financial liabilities only if the determination basis of the
contract cash flow is changed directly due to the reform
of the benchmark interest rate and the determination
basis before and after the change is economically
equivalent, and the group recalculates the effective
interest rate according to the changed future cash flow
and makes subsequent measurement on this basis. In
case of other changes in financial assets or financial
liabilities at the same time, the Group shall firstly
conduct accounting treatment for the changes caused
by the benchmark interest rate reform in accordance
with the above provisions, and then evaluates whether
other changes lead to substantial changes.

Classification and measurement of financial
assets

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, financial assets at amortised
cost and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All affected related financial
assets will be reclassified only if the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets are measured at fair value on
initial recognition, but accounts receivable or notes
receivable arising from the sale of goods or rendering
of services that do not contain significant financing
components or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component due within one year,
are initially measured at the transaction price.

For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
relevant transaction costs are directly recognised in
profit or loss, and transaction costs relating to other
financial assets are included in the initial recognition
amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Debt investments measured at amortised cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met: the financial
asset is held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using the effective interest
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income

The Group measures debt investment held at fair
value through other comprehensive income if both of
the following conditions are met: the financial asset is
held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling;
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Interest income is recognised using
the effective interest method. The interest income,
impairment losses and foreign exchange revaluation
are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to profit or loss.

Equity investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income

The Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity
investments which are not held for trading as equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Only the relevant dividend
income (excluding the dividend income explicitly
recovered as part of the investment cost) is recognised
in profit or loss. Subsequent changes in the fair value
are included in other comprehensive income, and no
impairment allowance is made. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the accumulated gains or losses
previously included in other comprehensive income
are transferred from other comprehensive income to
retained earnings.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The financial assets other than the above financial
assets measured at amortised cost and financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income
are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Such financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are, on initial
recognition, classified into financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, or other financial liabilities.
For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
relevant transaction costs are directly recognised in
profit or loss, and transaction costs relating to other
financial liabilities are included in the initial recognition
amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
consist of financial liabilities held for trading (including
derivative instruments that are financial liabilities) and
those designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities held
for trading (including derivative instruments that are
financial liabilities) are subsequently measured at
fair value. All changes in fair value of such financial
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss. Financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at fair value and gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss, except for the
gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive income. If
gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive income
will lead to or expand accounting mismatch in profit
or loss, the Group will include all the changes in fair
value (including the amount affected by changes in the
Group’s own credit risk) of such financial liabilities in
profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

For such financial liabilities, the effective interest rate
method is adopted and the subsequent measurement
is carried out according to the amortized cost.

Impairment of financial assets

Based on the expected credit losses (“ECLs”), the
Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for the
financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, contract assets, and
financial guarantee contracts.

For accounts receivable and contract assets excluding
significant financing components, the Group applies
the simplified approach to recognise a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs.



Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For accounts receivable, contract assets including
significant financing components and lease receivable,
the Group applies the simplified approach to recognise
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs.

Except for financial assets which apply the simplified
approach as mentioned above, the Group assesses
other financial assets and financial guarantee contracts
that whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition at each end of the reporting
period. If the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition (stage 1), the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs by the
Group and the interest income is calculated according
to the carrying amount and the effective interest rate;
if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired (stage 2), the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs by the Group and the interest income
is calculated according to the carrying amount and
the effective interest rate; if such financial assets are
credit-impaired after initial recognition (stage 3), the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs by the Group and the interest income
is calculated according to the amortised cost and
the effective interest rate. If the credit risk of financial
instruments is low at the end of the reporting period, the
Group assumes that the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

The Group assesses the expected credit loss of
financial instruments based on individual and portfolio.
Taking into account the credit risk characteristics of
different customers, the Group evaluates the expected
credit loss of accounts receivable and contract assets
on the basis of ageing portfolio.

In case the ECLs of individually assessed accounts
receivable and contract assets cannot be evaluated
with reasonable cost, the Group divides accounts
receivable and contract assets into certain groupings
based on credit risk characteristics, and calculates
the ECLs of the groupings of accounts receivable. The
groupings of accounts receivable are as follows:

Grouping 1 Due from government, authorities and

central state-owned enterprises
Grouping 2 Due from overseas and enterprises
Grouping 3 Due from other customers
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The Group, with consideration to historical credit loss
experience, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, prepares the cross-reference
between the ageing of accounts receivable and the
lifetime ECLs rates, and calculates the ECLs of the
groupings of contract assets. The groupings of contract
assets are as follows:

Grouping 1 Engineering projects

G rouplng PR Fonl etate prolects ............................

G roupmgS .......... Unimatored wanrantios

Grouping4  PPP projects which are managed in
the model of financial assets

Grouping5  Primary land development projects

Grouplng 6 Other comtract aseats

Based on the exposure at default and the lifetime ECLS
rate, the Group calculates the ECLS of contract assets
that are classified into groupings with consideration to
historical credit losses experience, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

For long-term receivables arising from sales of goods
or rendering of services in the ordinary course of
the activities, such as receivables for PPP projects,
receivables for BT projects, receivables for primary land
development, and receivables for other infrastructure
projects, the Group calculates the ECLs through default
risk exposure and the lifetime ECLs rate, on the basis of
historical credit loss experience, the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Based on
the exposure at default and the 12-month/lifetime ECLs
rate, the Group calculates the ECLs of other long-term
receivables with consideration of historical credit loss
experience, the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

In the case where the ECLs of other receivables
individually assessed cannot be evaluated
with reasonable cost, the Group divides other
receivables into certain groupings based on credit
risk characteristics, and calculates the ECLs for the
groupings. The groupings of other receivables are as
follows:

Grouping 1 Guarantees, deposits and reserves
receivables

Grouping 2 Advances receivable

Grouping 3 Other receivables

The Group, on the basis of the exposure at default and
the 12-month/lifetime ECLs rate, calculates the ECLs
of other receivables that are classified into groupings
with consideration to historical credit loss experience,
the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group’s judgement criteria for a significant
increase of credit risk, the definition of credit-impaired
assets, and the assumptions on the measurement of
expected credit losses are disclosed in Note VIII. 3.

When the Group no longer reasonably expects to be
able to recover all or part of the contractual cash flows
of a financial asset, the Group directly writes down the
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts; and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts
that require a payment to be made by the issuer to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are measured, on initial
recognition, at fair value. For financial guarantee
contracts that are not designated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after initial
recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of: (i)
the amount of provisions for ECLs at the balance sheet
date, and (ii) the amount initially recognised less the
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the guidance for revenue recognition.

Transfer of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset to the transferee. A financial asset is not
derecognised when the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of the financial asset.

When the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset, it either (i) derecognises the financial asset and
recognises the assets and liabilities created in the
transfer when it has not retained control of the asset; or
(i) continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement, in which
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred financial asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the financial asset and the guarantee amount.
The guarantee amount is the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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Inventories

The inventories include inventories of raw materials,
work in progress, finished goods, turnover materials,
properties under development and completed
properties for sale, etc.

Inventories are initially carried at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, laid down
cost, costs of conversion and other costs.

Cost is determined using the first-in first-out or
weighted average method when raw materials, turnover
materials, work in progress and finished goods are
delivered. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
systematically allocated production overhead based on
the normal production capacity.

Properties under development and completed
properties for sale mainly include costs for acquiring
the land use rights, expenditures of basic facilities,
expenditures of construction and installation work,
borrowing costs incurred before the completion of
development project. Properties under development
will be carried forward to the completed properties for
sale according to the actual cost after the completion
of the project, completed properties for sale are
measured at actual cost.

Turnover materials are amortised based upon numbers
of usage.

The Group adopts the perpetual inventory system.

At the end of the reporting period, inventories are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The inventories are written down below cost to net
realisable value and the write-down is recognised in
profit or loss if the cost is higher than the net realisable
value. When the circumstances that previously caused
the inventories to be written down below cost no
longer exist, in which case the net realisable value of
inventories becomes higher than the carrying amount,
the amount of the write-down is reversed. The reversal
is limited to the amount of the original write-down, and
is recognised in profit or loss.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and relevant taxes. For inventories with
large quantity and low values, provision for decline in
value is made based on categories of inventories, and
other inventories are written down item by category.
Items of inventories relating to the same product line
that have the same or similar end uses or purposes,
are produced and marketed in the same geographical
area and cannot be practicably evaluated separately
from other items in that product line, are grouped and
written down on an aggregate basis.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments include equity
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates.

A long-term equity investment is initially measured at
its initial investment cost on acquisition. For a long-
term equity investment acquired through a business
combination involving entities under common control,
the initial investment cost of the long-term equity
investment is the acquirer’s share of the carrying value
of shareholder’s equity of the party being absorbed at
the combination date. For the difference between the
initial investment cost and the book value of the merger
consideration, the capital reserve shall be adjusted (if
it is not enough to offset, the retained earnings shall
be offset); for other comprehensive income before
the merger date, the accounting treatment shall be
conducted on the same basis as the direct disposal
of relevant assets or liabilities by the investee. The
shareholder’s equity recognized due to changes in
other shareholders’ equity of the investee other than net
profit and loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution shall be transferred to the current profit and
loss when the investment is disposed of; among them,
the long-term equity investment after disposal shall be
carried forward proportionally, and that converted into
financial instruments after disposal shall be carried
forward in full. For a long-term equity investment
through a business combination not involving entities
under common control, the initial investment cost of the
long-term equity investment is the cost of combination
(for a business combination not involving entities under
common control achieved in stages that involves
multiple exchange transactions, the initial investment
cost is carried at the aggregate of the carrying amount
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree and the new investment cost incurred on
the acquisition date), the cost of combination is the
aggregate of the fair values, at the acquisition date,
of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity securities issued by the acquirer; For other
comprehensive income held before the acquisition date
and recognized by the equity method, the accounting
treatment shall be carried out on the same basis as
the direct disposal, relevant assets or liabilities by the
investee, and the shareholder’s equity recognized due
to changes in other shareholders’ equity of the investee
other than net profit and loss, other comprehensive
income and profit distribution, When the investment
is disposed, it is transferred to the current profit and
loss; among them, the long-term equity investment
after disposal is carried forward proportionally, and the
financial instrument converted after disposal is carried
forward in full; the accumulated fair value change of
the equity investment held before the purchase date as
a financial instrument included in other comprehensive
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income is transferred to retained earnings when
accounting by cost method. For a long-term equity
investment acquired otherwise than through a business
combination, the initial investment cost is determined as
follows: for a long-term equity investment acquired by
cash, the initial investment cost is the actual purchase
price paid and direct costs, taxes and other necessary
expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition
of the long-term equity investment; for a long-term
equity investment acquired by the issue of equity
securities, the initial investment cost is the fair value of
the securities issued; for a long-term equity investment
acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets,
the initial investment cost is determined in accordance
with Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No.
7 — Exchange of Non-monetary Assets; for a long-term
equity investment acquired through debt restructuring,
the initial investment cost is determined in accordance
with Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No.
12 — Debt Restructuring.

For a long-term equity investment where the Company
can exercise control over the investee, the long-term
investment is accounted for using the cost method in
the Company'’s individual financial statements. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee.

Under the cost method, the long-term equity
investment is measured at its initial investment cost.
When additional investment is made or the investment
is recouped, the cost of long-term equity investment
is adjusted accordingly. Cash dividends or profit
distributions declared by the investee are recognised
as investment income in profit or loss.

The equity method is adopted when the Group has
joint control, or exercises significant influence over
the investee. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control with other parties over
those policies.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment
cost of a long-term equity investment exceeds the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the acquisition date, no
adjustment is made to the initial investment cost. Where
the initial investment cost is less than the Group’s
interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets at the acquisition date, the difference is
charged to profit or loss, and the cost of the long-term
equity investment is adjusted accordingly.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Long-term equity investments (continued)

Under the equity method, after it has acquired a long-
term equity investment, the Group recognises its share
of the investee’s profit or loss, as well as its share of the
investee’s other comprehensive income, as investment
income or loss and other comprehensive income,
and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment
accordingly. The Group recognises its share of the
investee’s profit or loss after making appropriate
adjustments to the investee’s profit or loss based on
the fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets at
the acquisition date, using the Group’s accounting
policies and periods. Unrealised profits and losses
from transactions with its joint ventures and associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures (except for assets
that constitute a business) (However, any loss arising
from such transactions which are attributable to an
impairment loss shall be recognised at its entirety). The
carrying amount of the investment is reduced based
on the Group’s share of any profit distributions or cash
dividends declared by the investee. The Group’s share
of net losses of the investee is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment together
with any long-term interests that in substance form part
of its net investment in the investee is reduced to zero,
except that the Group has the obligations to assume
further losses. The Group’s share of the investee’s
equity changes, other than those arising from the
investee’s profit or loss, other comprehensive income
or profit distribution, is recognised in the Group’s
equity, and the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly.

Upon disposal of a long-term equity investment, the
difference between the proceeds actually received
and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss. For a long-term equity investment accounted for
using the equity method, when the Group discontinues
using the equity method due to disposal, all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are accounted for on the same basis as would have
been required if the investee had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Equity previously
recognised resulting from the investee’s equity
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changes other than profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and profit distribution is reclassified to profit or
loss in its entirety. When the Group continues to use
the equity method, the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are accounted for on
the same basis as would have been required if the
investee had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities and reclassified to profit or loss on a pro-
rata basis. Equity previously recognised resulting from
the investee’s equity changes other than profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and profit distribution is
reclassified to profit or loss on a pro-rata basis.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. Investment
properties include land use rights leased out, land use
rights held for transfer upon capital appreciation, and
buildings leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at cost.
If the economic benefits relating to an investment
property will probably flow in and the cost can be
reliably measured, subsequent costs incurred for the
property are included in the cost of the investment
property. Otherwise, subsequent costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

The Group uses the cost model for the subsequent
measurement of its investment properties. Buildings
and land use rights are depreciated or amortised
according to their service life and estimated net
residual values rate.

Fixed assets

A fixed asset is recognised only when the economic
benefits associated with the asset will probably flow
into the Group and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. Subsequent expenditures incurred
for a fixed asset that meets the recognition criteria
shall be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the
carrying amount of the component of the fixed asset
that is replaced shall be derecognised. Otherwise,
such expenditures are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of
a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price,
relevant taxes and any directly attributable expenditure
for bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use.



.
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Significant accounting policies and estimates (continued)

Fixed assets (continued)

In addition to the safety production expenses extracted, depreciation of fixed assets is calculated using the straight-line
method. The useful lives, estimated net residual value rates and annual depreciation rates of each category of the fixed

assets are as follows:

Buildings

Office equipment, temporary facilities
and others

8 to 35 years

Estimated net residual Annual
value rate depreciation rate

0% to 5% 2.71% to 12.50%
0% to 5% 6.79% to 20.00%
0% to 5% 9.50% to 33.33%
0% to 5% 9.50% to 20.00%

The Group reviews the useful life, estimated net residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied at

least at each year end, and makes adjustments if necessary.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined
according to the actual expenditures incurred for the
construction, including all necessary construction
expenditures incurred during the construction period,
borrowing costs that shall be capitalised before the
construction is ready for its intended use, and other
relevant expenditures.

Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets
when it is ready for its intended use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred
by the Group in connection with the borrowing of the
funds. Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of
discounts or premiums related to borrowings, ancillary
costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings, and exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised. The amounts of other borrowing
costs incurred are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
of acquisition, construction or production to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences only
when all of the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) expenditures for the asset have been incurred;
2) borrowing costs have been incurred; and
(3) activities that are necessary to acquire,

construct or produce the asset for its intended
use or sale have been undertaken.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the
qualifying asset being acquired, constructed or
produced gets ready for its intended use or sale. Any
borrowing costs subsequently incurred are recognised
in profit or loss.

During the capitalisation period, the amount of interest
eligible for capitalisation for each accounting period
shall be determined as follows:

(1) where funds are borrowed specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of interest eligible for capitalisation
is the actual interest costs incurred on that
borrowing for the period less any bank
interest earned from depositing the borrowed
funds before being used on the asset or any
investment income on the temporary investment
of those funds; or

(2) where funds are borrowed generally for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of interest eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a weighted average
interest rate on the general borrowings to
the weighted average of the excess of the
cumulative expenditures on the asset over
the expenditures on the asset funded by the
specific borrowings.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
during periods in which the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset is suspended
abnormally by activities other than those necessary to
get the asset ready for its intended use or sale, when
the suspension is for a continuous period of more
than 3 months. Borrowing costs incurred during these
periods are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss until the acquisition, construction or production is
resumed.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Right of use assets (applicable from 1 January
2021)

The Group’s right of use assets mainly include
buildings, machinery and equipment, motor vehicles
and other equipments.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognizes its right to use the leased asset within the
lease term as the right of use asset, including: the initial
measurement amount of lease liability; For the lease
payment paid on or before the beginning of the lease
term, if lease incentive exists, the relevant amount of
lease incentive used shall be deducted; Initial direct
expenses incurred by the lessee; The estimated cost
incurred by the lessee for dismantling and removing
the leased asset, restoring the site where the leased
asset is located or restoring the leased asset to the
condition agreed in the lease terms. The Group
subsequently depreciates the right of use assets by
using the straight-line method. If the ownership of the
leased asset is obtained at the expiration of the lease
term by reasonable anticipation, the group accrues
depreciation within the remaining service life of the
leased asset. If the ownership of the leased asset
cannot be obtained at the expiration of the lease
term by reasonable anticipation, the group accrues
depreciation within the shorter of the lease term and
the remaining service life of the leased asset.

The Group remeasures the lease liability according
to the present value of the changed lease payment
and adjusts the book value of the right of use asset
accordingly. If the book value of the right of use asset
has been reduced to zero, but the lease liability still
needs to be reduced further, the group will include the
remaining amount in the current profit and loss.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset shall be recognised only when
it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are
measured initially at cost. However, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination not involving
entities under common control with a fair value that can
be measured reliably are recognised separately as
intangible assets and initially measured at the fair value
at the date of acquisition.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined
according to the period over which it is expected
to generate economic benefits for the Group. An
intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the asset is expected to generate
economic benefits for the Group.
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Land use rights that are purchased by the Group are
accounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such
as plants that are developed and constructed by the
Group, and relevant land use rights are accounted for
as fixed assets and intangible assets, respectively.
Payments for the land and buildings purchased
are allocated between the land use rights and the
buildings; they are accounted for as fixed assets if they
cannot be reasonably allocated.

The Group is involved in a number of service
franchising arrangements. The Group carries out
infrastructure projects for the licensor in accordance
with the preconditions set by the licensor in exchange
for the right to operate the relevant assets. Prescribed
in the contract after the completion of the infrastructure,
the Group engaged in business has rights to access
the service object for a certain period of time of charge
with uncertain amount, those rights do not constitute
an unconditional charge right which can collect the
certain amount of money or other financial assets,
and is attributed to intangible assets. The Group will
present the franchise acquired under such franchise
arrangement as an intangible asset on its balance
sheet. Upon completion of the relevant infrastructure
project under the franchise arrangement, the franchise
shall be amortized on a straight-line basis during the
franchise period.

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortised
using the straight-line method over its useful life. For
an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the Group
reviews the useful life and amortisation method at least
at each year end and makes adjustment if necessary.

The Group classifies the expenditures on an internal
research and development project into expenditure
on the research phase and expenditure on the
development phase. Expenditure on the research
phase is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Expenditure on the development phase is capitalised
only when the Group can demonstrate all of the
following: (i) the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale; (i) the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it; (iii) how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits (among
other things, the Group can demonstrate the existence
of a market for the output of the intangible asset or the
intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used internally, the
usefulness of the intangible asset); (iv) the availability
of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and the ability to use or
sell the intangible asset; and (v) the ability to measure
reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during the development phase. Expenditure on
the development phase which does not meet these
above criteria is recognised in profit or loss when
incurred.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Impairment of assets

The Group determines the impairment of assets, other
than the impairment of inventories, contract assets and
contract cost assets, deferred tax assets, and financial
assets, by using the following methods:

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists that an asset may
be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs impairment testing.
Goodwill arising from a business combination and an
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life are tested
for impairment at least at each year end, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that the asset may be
impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready
for their intended use are tested for impairment each
year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset. The Group estimates the recoverable amount on
an individual basis unless it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of the individual asset, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
asset group to which the asset belongs. Identification of
an asset group is based on whether major cash inflows
generated by the asset group are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset
group is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount by the
Group. The reduction in the carrying amount is treated
as an impairment loss and recognised in profit or loss.
A impairment allowance loss of the asset is recognised
accordingly.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying
amount of goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated from the acquisition date on a reasonable
basis, to each of the related asset groups unless it is
impossible to allocate to the related asset groups, in
which case it is allocated to each of the related sets
of asset groups. Each of the related asset groups or
sets of asset groups is an asset group or a set of asset
groups that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination and shall not be larger than
a reportable segment determined by the Group.

When testing an asset group (a set of asset groups) to
which goodwill has been allocated for impairment, if
there is any indication of impairment, the Group firstly
tests the asset group (set of asset groups), excluding
the amount of goodwill allocated, for impairment, i.e.,
the Group determines and compares the recoverable
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amount with the related carrying amount and
recognises any impairment loss. After that, the Group
tests the asset group (set of asset groups), including
goodwill, for impairment, the carrying amount of the
related asset group (set of asset groups) is compared
to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of
the asset group (set of asset groups) is higher than
its recoverable amount, the amount of the impairment
loss is firstly used to reduce the carrying amount of
the goodwill allocated to the asset group (set of asset
groups), and then used to reduce the carrying amount
of other assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset
group (set of asset groups), on a pro-rata basis of the
carrying amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss is recognised, it
cannot be reversed in subsequent accounting periods.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include the expenditure
for improvements to fixed assets held under operating
leases, and other expenditures that have been incurred
but should be recognised as expenses over more than
one year in the current and subsequent periods. Long-
term prepaid expenses are amortised on the straight-
line basis over the expected beneficial period and are
presented at actual expenditure net of accumulated
amortisation.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits refer to all forms of consideration or
compensation other than share-based payments given
by the Group in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for termination of employment. Employee
benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-
employment benefits, termination benefits and other
long-term employee benefits. Benefits given by
the Group to an employee’s spouse, children and
dependents, family members of deceased employees
and other beneficiaries are also employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

The short-term employee benefits actually occurred
are recognised as a liability in the accounting period
in which the service is rendered by the employees,
with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the
current period or the cost of relevant assets.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution
plan)

The employees of the Group participate in a pension
scheme and unemployment insurance managed by the
local government, and an enterprise pension fund, the
corresponding expenses shall be included in the cost
of related assets or profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Post-employment benefits (defined benefit plan)

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan
which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund. The benefits are unfunded. The cost
of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements arising from the defined benefit
pension plan, comprising actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to equity through other comprehensive income in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the
earlier of the date of the plan amendment and the date
that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs
or termination benefits.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under administrative expenses, and
finance expenses in the income statement: service
costs comprising current service costs, past service
costs, and gains and losses on settlements; net interest
comprising interest income on plan assets, interest
costs on the defined benefit obligation and interest on
the effect of the asset ceiling.

Termination benefits

The Group provides termination benefits to employees
and recognises an employee benefits liability for
termination benefits, with a corresponding charge to
profit or loss, at the earlier of when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits resulting
from an employment termination plan or a curtailment
proposal and when the Group recognise costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Early retirement benefits

The Group offers early retirement benefits to those
employees who accept early retirement arrangements.
The early retirement benefits refer to the salaries and
social security contributions to be paid to and for the
employees who accept voluntary retirement before the
statutory retirement age, as approved by management.
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The Group pays early retirement benefits to those early
retired employees from the early retirement date until
the normal retirement date. The Group accounts for
the early retirement benefits in accordance with the
treatment for termination benefits, in which the salaries
and social security contributions to be paid to and for
the early retired employees from the off-duty date to
the normal retirement date are recognised as liabilities
with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for
the current period. The differences arising from the
changes in the respective actuarial assumptions of the
early retirement benefits and the adjustments of benefit
standards are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they occur.

The termination benefits expected to be settled within
one year since the balance sheet date are classified as
current liabilities.

Lease liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2021)

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group
measures the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
In calculating the present value of the lease payments,
the Group uses the interest rate implicated in the lease
as the discount rate. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate. The Group calculates the interest
expenses of the lease liability in each period during the
lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest,
and recognises such interest expenses in profit or loss,
except those recognised in the costs of the related
asset as required. Variable lease payments that are
not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, except
those recognised in the costs of the related asset as
required.

After the commencement date of the lease, when the
actual fixed payment amount, the expected payable
amount of the guaranteed residual value, the index or
ratio used to determine the lease payment amount, and
the evaluation results or actual exercise of the purchase
option, renewal option or termination option change,
the Group remeasures the lease liabilities according to
the present value of the changed lease payments.

Provisions

An obligation related to a contingency shall be
recognised by the Group as a provision when all of the
following conditions are satisfied, except for contingent
considerations and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination not involving entities under
common control:
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Provisions (continued)

(1) the obligation is a present obligation of the
Group;
(2) it is probable that an outflow of economic

benefits from the Group will be required to
settle the obligation; and

(3) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation, taking into account factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money as a whole. Provisions are reviewed
at each balance sheet date. Where there is clear
evidence that the carrying amount of a provision does
not reflect the current best estimate, the carrying
amount is adjusted to the current best estimate.

Share-based payments

A share-based payment is classified as either an
equity-settled share-based payment or a cash-settled
share-based payment. An equity-settled share-based
payment is a transaction in which the Group receives
services and uses shares or other equity instruments
as consideration for settlement.

An equity-settled share-based payment in exchange
for services received from employees is measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted to the
employees. If such equity-settled share-based payment
could vest immediately, related costs or expenses at
an amount equal to the fair value on the grant date are
recognised, with a corresponding increase in capital
reserve; if such equity-settled share-based payment
could not vest until the completion of services for a
vesting period, or until the achievement of a specified
performance condition, the Group at each balance
sheet date during the vesting period recognises the
services received for the current period as related
costs and expenses, with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve, at an amount equal to the fair value
of the equity instruments at the grant date, based on
the best estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest, which is made on the basis of the
latest available information such as the changes in the
number of covered employees. The fair value of the
Share Options was determined by the Binomial Options
Pricing Model, as stated in Note XI.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in capital
reserve, over the period in which the specified
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performance and service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each end of the reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest.

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based
award are modified, as a minimum an expense is
recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification
that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled share-based award is
cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date
of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not
met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award.

Other equity instruments

Perpetual bonds issued by the Group are classified
as equity instruments when the Group has the right
to extend the term indefinitely upon the maturity of
perpetual bonds and defer the payment of stated
interests of perpetual bonds, and has no contractual
obligation to pay cash or other financial assets.

The equity instruments such as non-cumulative
preference shares issued by the Group shall meet
the following conditions at the same time: (1) it does
not include the contractual obligation to deliver cash
or other financial assets to other parties or exchange
financial assets or financial liabilities with other parties
under potential adverse conditions; (2) the equity
instruments of the Group must be used or can be
used for settlement. If it is a non derivative instrument,
the equity instrument of the Group shall be used for
settlement, and the relevant financial instruments shall
not include the contractual obligation to deliver non
fixed amount of the Group’s own equity instruments for
settlement; If it is a derivative instruments, the relevant
financial instruments can only be settled by exchanging
a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets with a
fixed amount of the Group’s own equity instruments.
Therefore, the Group will calculate them as other equity
instruments.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Other equity instruments (continued)

The dividend declaration and payment of the
Company’s preference shares shall be decided by
the board of directors of the Company in accordance
with the authorization of the general meeting of
shareholders. Prior to the ordinary shareholders,
the preference shareholders shall be distributed the
dividends prior to the ordinary shareholders, and the
Company shall not distribute profits to the shareholders
of ordinary shares until the agreed current dividend
of preference shares is fully distributed. The general
meeting of shareholders of the Company has the right
to decide to cancel the payment of part or all of the
current dividends of the preference shares, which does
not constitute a default of the Company. The preference
shares is a non-cumulative dividend type preference
shares. The Company classifies the preference shares
as other equity instruments.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when the Group has fulfilled its performance
obligations in the contracts, that is, when the customer
obtains control of relevant goods or services. Control of
relevant goods or services refers to the ability to direct
the use of the goods, or the provision of the services,
and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
from the goods or services.

Construction contracts

A construction contract between the Group and the
customer usually includes performance obligations of
housing construction and infrastructure construction.
Because the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced, the revenue is recognised over
time only if the Group can reasonably measure its
progress towards the complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation. The Group uses the input
method and determines the progress towards the
complete satisfaction of the rendering of services on
the basis of costs incurred. If the progress towards the
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
cannot be reasonably measured, but the Group
expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the
performance obligation, the revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time
that the Group can reasonably measure the progress
towards the complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation.
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Revenue from sales of real estate

The Group’s revenue from real estate development
business is recognised when the control over properties
is transferred to the customer. According to the terms
under the sales contract and laws and regulations
applicable to the contract, the control over properties
can be transferred within a certain period of time or at a
certain point of time. Where goods produced during the
Group’s performance of the contract are irreplaceable
and the Group is entitled to collect payments for the
part of the performance that has been completed
so far during the entire contract period, revenue is
recognised within a certain period of time based on the
progress of performance obligation fulfilment during
the contract period, and the progress of performance
obligation fulfilment is determined based on the
proportion of contract costs incurred for the fulfilled
performance obligations to the estimated total contract
costs. Otherwise, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the physical ownership of goods or
the legal ownership of completed properties and the
Group obtains the present right to receive payment and
probably recovers the contract consideration.

Revenue from design services

Due to the reason that the design services provided
by the Group during the performance of contracts
have irreplaceable uses and the Group has the right
to receive payments for the completed portions of the
projects during the entire contract period, therefore,
such services are accounted for as performance
obligations to be fulfilled within certain periods
of time, and revenue is recognised based on the
performance schedule, unless the performance of
the contract cannot be reasonably determined. The
Group determines the performance progress for the
services rendered by using the input method. Where
the performance of the contract cannot be reasonably
determined, revenue is recognised at the amount of
costs incurred if it is predicted that the costs can be
compensated till the performance progress can be
reasonably determined.

Contracts for the sale of goods

A contract for the sale of goods between the Group and
the customer usually only includes the performance
obligation to transfer the goods. The revenue is
recognised at transfer control point in time based on
the following indicators, which include: a present right
to payment for goods, the transfer of significant risks
and rewards of ownership of goods, the transfer of
legal title to goods, the transfer of physical possession
of goods, the customer’s acceptance of goods.
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estimates (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Variable consideration

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers include
arrangements of variable consideration. The Group
determines the best estimate of variable consideration
by using the expected value method or the most
likely amount method. However, the transaction price
including variable consideration is only to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

Significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component, the Group determines the transaction
price based on an amount that reflects the price that a
customer would have paid for the goods or services in
cash at the time of obtaining the control of the goods
or services, and amortises the difference between the
transaction price and the consideration promised in the
contract under the effective interest method within the
contract period using the discount rate that discounts
the nominal amount of the contract consideration to
the current selling price of the goods or services. The
Group does not consider the effects of a significant
financing component in the contract if it is expected
that the period between when the customer obtains
control of the goods or services and when the customer
pays for such goods or services will be one year or
less.

Warranties

The Group provides a warranty in connection with
the sale of a good or the construction of an asset in
accordance with the contract and the relevant laws and
regulations, etc. For an assurance-type warranty that
provides the customer the assurance that the goods
sold or the assets built complies with agreed-upon
specifications, the Group accounts for the warranty
in accordance with Notes Il.22. For a service-type
warranty that provides a customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications, the Group accounts
for it as a separate performance obligation. On the
basis of the relative proportion between the stand-
alone selling price of the good and the service-type
warranty, a portion of the transaction price is allocated
to the service-type warranty and revenue is recognised
when a customer obtained control of the good. When
assessing whether a service-type warranty provides
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a customer with a separate service in addition to
the assurance that the good complies with agreed-
upon specifications, the Group considers whether the
warranty is required by law, the length of the warranty
coverage period and the nature of the tasks that the
Group promises to perform, etc.

Principal/agent

The Group judges whether the identity of the group is a
principal or an agent when the transaction is conducted
based on whether the Group has control over the
product or service before transferring to the customer.
Under the circumstance that Group controls goods or
services before goods or services are transferred to
the customer, the Group is a principal and recognises
revenue in the gross amount of consideration received
or receivable. Otherwise, the Group is an agent
and recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled from the
customer. The amount is the net amount of the gross
consideration received or receivable after paying the
other party the consideration received in exchange for
the goods or services to be provided by that party or
determined by the agreed-upon amount or proportion
of commissions, etc.

Contract modifications

When a modification is incurred in the construction
contract between the Group and the customer:

(1) the Group accounts for a contract modification
as a separate contract if the construction
services are distinct and price increases and
the increased price of the contract reflects
the stand-alone selling prices of the additional
construction services;

(2) the Group accounts for the contract
modification as if it were a termination of
the existing contract and by combining the
unsatisfied and modified portion of the contract
as a new contract, if the contract modification
does not meet the criteria in (1) and the
remaining construction services are distinct
from the construction services transferred on
the date of the contract modification; or

(3) the Group accounts for the contract
modification as if it were a part of the existing
contract if the contract modification does not
meet the criterion in (1) and the remaining
construction services are not distinct from the
construction services transferred at the date
of the contract modification. The effect on
the recognised revenue is recognised as an
adjustment to the revenue at the date of the
contract modification.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Recognition of revenue from Public-Private
Partnership (“PPP”)

The social capital party who provides multiple service
(eg. providing construction service for PPP project
and operation and maintenance service after the
construction is complete) base on PPP contract,
recognizes revenues and costs of construction service
in accordance with Construction Contract. Revenue
from construction service is measured by consideration
collected or entitled to charge and recognize contact
assets at the same time.

In accordance with the PPP contract, during the
operation of PPP project, the Group, entitled to collect
certain cash flows (or other financial assets), should
recognize revenue and receivables simultaneously
when the social capital party has the right to collect
such consideration (a right is only determined by the
passage of time), in accordance with “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Instruments”.

In accordance with the PPP contract, during the
operation of PPP project, the Group is entitled to collect
cash flows from parties who received public products
and services with uncertain amount, and such right
doesn’t constitute an unconditional right to collect cash.
The Group should recognise the consideration or the
revenue recognized from construction activity of PPP
assets as intangible assets when the PPP assets reach
working condition, in accordance with “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 6 — Intangible
Assets”.

After PPP assets reach working condition, the social
capital party should recognize revenue for operation
of PPP projects in accordance with “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue”.

Recognition of revenue from Build-Transfer (“BT”)

For construction services rendered by the Group,
related revenue and costs are recognised during the
stage of construction according to the construction
contract. Revenue from construction services is
measured at the consideration received or receivable
by the Group. The Group recognises contract assets
when recognising revenue, and accounts for any
significant financing component in the contractual
arrangement. The contract assets are transferred to
financial assets when the Group obtains the right to
unconditionally collect consideration and is deducted
against long-term receivables after the Group receives
the payment from the project owner.
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Contract assets and contract liabilities

The Group presents contract assets or contract
liabilities depending on the relationship between the
satisfaction of its performance obligations and the
customer’s payment in the balance sheet. The Group
offsets the contract assets and contract liabilities under
the same contract and presents the net amount.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer, and that right is conditioned
on something other than the passage of time.

For details of how the Group measures and accounts
for the ECLs of a contract asset, refer to Notes I11.9.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration or an amount of consideration
is due from the customer, such as an amount of
consideration that an entity has received before the
transfer of the promised goods or services.

Contract cost assets

The Group’s contract cost assets include the costs
to obtain and fulfil a contract and are classified as
inventories, other current assets and other non-current
assets by liquidity.

The Group recognises as an asset the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if the
Group expects to recover those costs, unless the
amortisation period of the asset is one year or less.

Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, fixed assets and intangible assets, etc.,
costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are
capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria are
met:

(1) the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract, including direct
labour, direct materials, overheads (or similar
expenses), costs that are explicitly chargeable
to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because an entity entered into
the contract;

(2) the costs generate or enhance resources
of the Group that will be used in satisfying
performance obligations in the future; and

(3) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The contract cost asset is amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the pattern of the revenue to which the asset
related is recognised.
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estimates (continued)

Contract cost assets (continued)

The Group accrues provisions for impairment and
recognises impairment losses to the extent that the
carrying amount of a contract cost asset exceeds:

(1) the remaining amount of consideration that the
entity expects to receive in exchange for the
goods or services to which the asset relates;
less

(2) the costs that are expected to be incurred to
transfer those related goods or services.

The Group recognises in profit or loss a reversal of the
impairment loss previously recognised to the extent
that the difference between (1) and (2) exceeds the
carrying amount of the asset due to the subsequent
changes of the factors causing asset impairment in
previous periods, but the carrying amount after the
reversal does not exceed the carrying amount of the
asset at the reversal date as if no impairment loss has
been otherwise recognised.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when all attaching
conditions will be complied with and the grants will
be received. If a government grant is in the form of
a transfer of a monetary asset, it is measured at the
amount received or receivable. If a government grant
is in the form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset,
it is measured at fair value; if fair value is not reliably
determinable, it is measured at a nominal amount.

According to the government documents, those used
for the purposes of purchase, construction or other
formations of long-term assets shall be regarded as the
government grants related to assets; if the government
documents are not clear, the judgment shall be made
on the basis of the basic conditions that must be met
to obtain the grants. The government grants related
to assets shall be those based on the purchase,
construction or other formations of long-term assets,
and the others shall be regarded as the government
grants related to income.

The group adopts the total method to measure
government grants.

A government grant related to income is accounted for
as follows: (i) if the grant is a compensation for related
expenses or losses to be incurred in subsequent
periods, the grant is recognised as deferred income,
and released in profit or loss over the periods in which
the related costs are recognised; or (ii) if the grant is a
compensation for related expenses or losses already
incurred, it is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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A government grant relating to an asset shall be offset
against the carrying amounts of relevant assets, or
recognised as deferred income and amortised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the related asset by annual
instalments in a systematic and rational way (however,
a government grant measured at a nominal amount is
recognised directly in profit or loss). Where the assets
are sold, transferred, retired or damaged before the
end of their useful lives, the rest of the remaining
deferred income is released to profit or loss for the
period in which the relevant assets are disposed of.

Where the Group receives loans granted at a below-
market rate of interest from a lending bank funded with
financial interest subsidies, the initial carrying amount
of the borrowings is the actual proceeds received, and
the calculation of the borrowing costs shall be based
on the principal and the below-market rate of interest.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised as income or expense in profit or loss,
or recognised directly in equity if it is not arise from a
business combination or is not relate to a transaction or
event which is recognised directly in equity.

Current tax liabilities or assets arising from the current
and prior periods at the amount expected to be paid by
the Group or returned by the tax authority calculated
according to related tax laws.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet
liability method, on all temporary differences at the
end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the tax bases and the
carrying amounts of the items, which have a tax base
according to related tax laws but are not recognised as
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

(1) when the taxable temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill, or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of
transaction, affects neither accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

(2) in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax losses and any unused tax credits. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised, except:

(1) when the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

(2) in respect of the deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will be reversed in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can
be utilised in the future.

At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, in accordance with the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available in future periods to allow
the deferred tax assets to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of the
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities,
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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Leases (applicable from 1 January 2021)

Identification of leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, the Group
assesses whether, throughout the period of use, the
customer has both of the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and the right to direct the use of the identified
asset.

Identification of a separate lease component

For a contract that contains multiple separate lease
components, the Group separates the components
of the contract and accounts for each separate lease
component. The right to use an underlying asset is a
separate lease component if the following both criteria
are met:

(1) the lessee can benefit from use of the
underlying asset either on its own or together
with other resources that are readily available
to the lessee; and

(2) the underlying asset is neither highly
dependent on, nor highly interrelated with, the
other underlying assets in the contract.

Separating lease components and non-lease
components

For a contract that contains lease components and
non-lease components, the Group accounts for lease
components and non-lease components separately as
a lessor or a lessee.

Assessment of the lease term

The lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease
for which the Group has the right to use an underlying
asset. If the Group has an option to extend the lease,
that is, the Group has the right to extend the lease,
and is reasonably certain to exercise that option,
the lease term also includes periods covered by an
option to extend the lease. If the Group has an option
to terminate the lease, that is, the Group has the right
to terminate the lease, but is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option, the lease term includes periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease. The
Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise an extension option, purchase option, or not to
exercise a termination option, upon the occurrence of
either a significant event or a significant change in the
circumstances that is within the control of the Group
and affects whether the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise an option not previously included in its
determination of the lease term.



30.

Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2021)
(continued)

As lessee

For the general accounting treatment of the group as
lessee refers to Note Ill, 16 and Note Ill, 21.

Lease modifications

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease,
or the consideration for a lease, that was not part
of the original terms and conditions of the lease, for
example, adding or terminating the right to use one or
more underlying assets, or extending or shortening the
contractual lease term.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if the follow both criteria are met:

(1) the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

(2) the consideration for the lease increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease
modification, the Group remeasures the lease liability
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate. The revised discount rate is
determined as the interest rate implicated in the lease
for the remainder of the lease term, or the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the effective date of the
modification, if the interest rate implicated in the lease
cannot be readily determined.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by:

(@) decreasing the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease for lease modifications
that decrease the scope of the lease, and
recognising the gain or loss relating to the
partial or full termination of the lease in profit or
loss; or

(2) making a corresponding adjustment to
the right-of-use asset for all other lease
modifications.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group considers a lease that, at the
commencement date of the lease, has a lease term of
12 months or less, and does not contains any purchase
option as a short-term lease; and a lease for which the
value of the individual underlying asset is not more
than RMB30,000 when it is new as a lease of low-value
assets. If the Group subleases an asset, or expects
to sublease an asset, the head lease does not qualify
as a lease of a low-value asset. The Group does not
recognise the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases and of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets in the costs of the related
asset or profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

As lessor

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset, except that a lease is
classified as an operating lease at the inception date.
The Group, as an intermediate lessor, classifies the
sublease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease.

As lessor of an operating lease

Rent income under an operating lease is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, through profit
or loss. Variable lease payments that are not included
in the measurement of lease receivables are charged
to profit or loss as incurred.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group assess and determine whether the assets
transferred in sale and lease back transactions is sales
activity in accordance with Note Ill. 25.

As a seller-lessee

For assets transferred in sale and lease back
transactions constitutes a sale, the Group, as a seller-
lessee, measures the right-of-use asset arising from the
leaseback at the proportion of the previous carrying
amount of the asset that relates to the right of use
retained, and recognises only the amount of any gain
or loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer-
lessor. For assets transferred in sale and lease back
transactions doesn't constitute a sale, the Group, as a
lessee, continues to recognise the transferred asset,
and recognises a financial liability which equals to the
transfer proceeds and accounts for the financial liability
in accordance with Note I11.9.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Leases (applicable to 2020)

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset. An
operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

As lessee of an operating lease

Lease payments under an operating lease are
recognised by a lessee on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, and either included in the cost of the
related asset or charged to profit or loss. Contingent
rents are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

As lessor of an operating lease

Rent income under an operating lease is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, through profit
or loss. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss
as incurred.

As lessee of a finance lease

For an asset that is held under a finance lease, at the
commencement of the lease term, the leased asset
is recognised at the lower of its fair value and the
present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, and the minimum lease payment
is recognised as the carrying amount of the long-term
payables; the difference is accounted as unrecognised
finance charge, which is amortised using the effective
interest method over each period during the lease
term. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

Share repurchase

Considerations and transaction costs paid for
repurchase of our equity instruments should be
accounted for a deduction from equity. In addition
to share-based payment, the issuance (including
refinancing), repurchase, sales or cancellations of
own equity instruments shall be treated as changes in
equity.

Profit distribution

The cash dividend is recognised as a liability upon
approval in the general meeting of shareholders.

Safety production expenses

Safety production expenses provided according to the
regulations are included in costs of related products
or profit or loss, and credited to the special reserve.
They are treated differently when being utilised: (i) the
special reserve are debited for those expenditure with
the expense nature; or (i) the cumulative expenditures
are capitalised as a fixed asset for those expenditure
to be capitalised when the working condition for the
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intended use is reached, and at the same time, special
reserve are debited with the full depreciation of the
fixed asset of the same amount.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures part of its debt instruments and
equity investments at fair value at each end of the
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the orderly transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group at the measurement date. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data and other information are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 Based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 Based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly;

Level 3 Based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation on each balance sheet date.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements which have a significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating leases — the Group as lessor

The Group has entered into lease agreements on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined these leases to be operating leases, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
agreements, that it retains almost all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of these properties.

Division of investment properties and inventories

The properties constructed by the group may be used
for sale, rent earning and/or capital appreciation. At
the initial stage of construction, the Group classifies
the property into inventory or investment property
according to the holding purpose. During the period
under construction, the properties used for sale after
completion are classified as inventories-properties
under development and included in current assets,
and the properties used to earn rent and/or capital
appreciation after completion are classified as
investment properties in progress and included in
non-current assets. After completion, the properties
used for sale are transferred to inventories-completed
properties for sale, while the properties used to earn
rent and/or capital appreciation are transferred to
investment properties.

Division of investment properties and fixed assets

The Group determines whether the property it
holds meets the definition of investment property
and establishes relevant standards when making
judgments. The Group classifies the property held for
earning rent or capital appreciation, or both (including
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buildings under construction or development for future
use for rental) as investment properties. The Group
will consider whether the cash flow generated by the
property is largely independent of other assets held
by the group. Some properties are used to earn rent
or capital appreciation, and the remaining part is
used to produce goods, provide services or operation
and management. If the part used to earn rent or
capital appreciation can be sold or leased separately,
the Group measures that part separately. If not, the
property will be classified as investment property
only if the part used for producing goods, providing
labor services or operation and management is not
significant. When determining whether the importance
of auxiliary services is sufficient to make the property
not meet the recognition conditions of investment
property, the Group will make a separate judgment
based on individual property benchmark.

Determination method of construction contract

performance schedule

The Group determines the performance progress
of the construction contract according to the input
method. Specifically, the Group determines the
performance progress according to the proportion
of the accumulated actual construction cost in the
estimated total cost. The accumulated actual cost
includes the direct cost and indirect cost incurred
in the process of the Group transferring goods to
customers. The construction contract price with the
customer is determined based on the construction cost.
The proportion of the actual construction cost to the
estimated total cost can truly reflect the performance
progress of the construction service. In view of the long
lifetime of the construction contract and the possibility
of spanning several accounting periods, the Group
will review and revise the budget with the progress
of the construction contract, and adjust the revenue
recognition amount accordingly.

Business model

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
financial assets. When determining the business
model, the Group considers the methods to include
evaluation and report financial asset performance to
key management, the risks affecting the performance
of financial assets and the risk management, and the
manner in which the relevant management receives
remuneration. When assessing whether the objective
is to collect contractual cash flows, the Group needs
to analyse and judge the reason, timing, frequency
and value of the sale before the maturity date of the
financial assets.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Contractual cash flow characteristics

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’'s contractual cash flow
characteristics, and the judgements on whether the
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
including when assessing the modification of the time
value of money, the judgement on whether there is any
significant difference from the benchmark cash flow
and whether the fair value of the prepayment features
is insignificant for financial assets with prepayment
features, etc.

Whether a contract is, or contains, a lease

The Group signed the lease agreement on equipments
for some engineering construction projects. The Group
believes that, based on the agreement, there is no
identified asset, or the supplier has the substantive
right to substitute the underlying asset throughout
the period of use. Therefore, the agreement does not
contain a lease, and the Group treats it as acceptance
of a service.

Lease term — A lease contract that contains an option
to extend the lease

The Group determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease, together with the periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option. Some of the
Group’s lease contracts contain the option to extend the
lease in the next few years. While assessing whether
it is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for it
to exercise, or not to exercise, the option, including any
expected changes in facts and circumstances from
the commencement date of the lease until the exercise
date of the option. The Group believes, considering
the more favourable contractual terms and conditions
for the optional periods compared with market rates,
significant leasehold improvements undertaken (or
expected to be undertaken) over the term of the
contract, significant costs relating to the termination of
the lease, the importance of that underlying asset to
the Group’s operations, the non-availability of suitable
alternatives, conditionality associated with exercising
the option and the high likelihood that those conditions
will exist, it is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease and therefore the lease term
includes the periods covered by an option to extend
the lease.
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Revenue from sales of real estate

According to the accounting policies described in
Note Ill. 25, the Group’s revenue from real estate
development business is recognised when the
control over properties is transferred to the customer.
According to the terms under the sales contract and
laws and regulations applicable to the contract, the
control over properties can be transferred within
a certain period of time or at a certain point of
time. Where goods produced during the Group’s
performance of the contract are irreplaceable and the
Group is entitled to collect payments for the part of the
performance that has been completed so far during
the entire contract period, revenue is recognised over
a certain period of time based on the progress of
performance obligation fulfilment during the contract
period. Otherwise, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the physical ownership of goods or
the legal ownership of completed properties, and the
Group obtains the present right to receive payment and
probably recovers the contract consideration.

Due to the restriction of real estate sales contract, the
Group’s properties generally have no alternative use.
However, whether the Group has the enforcement right
to collect the part that has been completed so far and
use the method of recognising income over a period
of time depends on the agreement of each contract
term and the relevant law applicable to the contract. In
order to assess whether the Group has obtained the
enforcement right on the part that has been performed,
the Group reviews its contract terms, relevant local
laws, and takes into account the opinions of local
regulatory authorities when necessary, and needs to
make a lot of judgments.

When the Group signs a sales contract with a properly
buyer, according to the requirements of some banks,
if the buyer needs to obtain a mortgage loan from the
bank to pay the house money, the Group will enter into
a tripartite mortgage guarantee loan agreement with
the buyer and the bank. The Group will provide phased
joint liability guarantee for mortgage loans issued
by banks to the properly buyer. The phased joint
liability guarantee will be released after the properly
buyer has completed the house ownership certificate
and completed the real estate mortgage registration
procedures. The Group only needs to provide
guarantee to the bank for the outstanding mortgage
loan of the buyer within the guarantee period. The bank
will only claim against the Group if the buyer defaults
and fails to repay the mortgage loan.

According to the Group’s historical experience in selling
similar developed products, the Group believes that
during the period of phased joint liability guarantee, the
ratio of the Group’s guarantee liability to the bank due
to the buyer’s failure to repay the mortgage loan is very
low, and the Group can claim the advance payment
paid by the buyer for undertaking the guarantee of
phased joint liability. In the case of non-repayment by
the buyer, the Group can avoid loss by giving priority
to the relevant property according to the relevant
purchase contract. Therefore, the Group believes that
the financial guarantee has no significant impact on the
recognition of sales revenue of development products.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments such as non-cumulative preference
shares and perpetual bonds issued by the Group
do not need to be settled by the Group’s own equity
instruments, excluding the contractual obligations to
deliver cash or other financial assets to other parties,
or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities
with other parties under potential adverse conditions.
Therefore, the Group calculates them as other equity
instruments.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the future accounting periods, are
described below.

Impairment of financial instruments and contract assets

The Group uses the expected credit loss model to
assess the impairment of financial instruments and
contract assets. The Group is required to perform
significant judgements and estimations and take into
account all reasonable and supportable information,
including forward-looking information. When making
such judgements and estimates, the Group infers the
expected changes in the debtor’s credit risk based
on historical repayment data combined with economic
policies, macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and
other factors. The different estimates may impact the
impairment assessment, and the impairment allowance
may also not be representative of the actual impairment
loss in the future.

Impairment of non-current assets other than financial
assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indications
of impairment for all non-current assets other than
financial assets at the end of the reporting period.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such
an indication exists. Other non-current assets other
than financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indications that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from it. The
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calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the assets. When the calculations of the present value
of the future cash flows expected to be derived from
an asset or asset group are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or asset group and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis.This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill has been allocated. Testing the value in
use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued
based on the expected cash flows discounted at
current rates applicable for items with similar terms and
risk characteristics. This valuation requires the Group
to make estimates about expected future cash flows,
credit risk, volatility and discount rates, and hence they
are subject to uncertainty.

Construction and service contracts

Recognition of revenue and expenses from construction
and service contracts requires management to make
relevant estimates. If losses are expected to occur in
construction and service contracts, such losses should
be recognised as current costs. The management of
the Group estimates the possible losses based on the
construction and service contract budget. Due to the
characteristics of housing construction, infrastructure
construction, and design businesses, the date at
which the contract activity is entered into and the date
when the activity is completed usually fall into different
accounting periods. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs
in each contract budget as the contract progresses.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant judgement from the management
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Land appreciation tax

The Group is required to pay land appreciation tax in
accordance with tax laws on the value-added portion
of property sales. The provision for land appreciation
tax is the best estimate made by the management
based on the understanding of relevant tax laws and
regulations. The actual land appreciation tax liability
must be determined by the tax authority when the
land appreciation tax is settled. The Group has not
yet determined its land appreciation tax settlement
and taxation plans for certain real estate development
projects with tax authorities. The final land appreciation
tax calculation result may be different from the amount
initially recorded, and any difference will affect the land
appreciation tax expenditure and related provision
amount during the period when the difference is
realised.

Confirmation and allocation of properties under

development

The cost of real estate construction is recorded as
inventory during the construction period, and will be
carried forward to the income statement after real
estate sales revenue is confirmed. Before the final
settlement of project costs and other related real estate
development costs, such costs need to be estimated
by the management of the Group based on budgeted
costs and development progress. The Group’s real
estate development is generally carried out in stages,
and the cost directly related to the development of a
certain period is recorded as the cost of that period.
The common costs of different stages are allocated
to each stage according to the saleable area. If the
final settlement of the project cost and the related
cost allocation are different from the initial estimate,
the increase or decrease of the project cost and other
costs will affect the profit and loss in the future years.

Inventory impairment

The Group’s inventory is measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The net realisable value of
inventory refers to the estimated selling price of the
inventory minus the estimated cost, estimated selling
expenses and relevant taxes and fees at the time of
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completion. The management’s calculation of the net
realisable value of inventories involves the estimation of
estimated selling prices, estimated costs to be incurred
by the time of completion, estimated selling expenses
and relevant taxes. Changes in these estimates will
affect the book value of inventories and the profit and
loss of future changes.

Measurement of defined benefit obligations

The Group recognised the supplementary allowances
and benefits paid to certain retired and early retirement
employees as liabilities. The amount of these welfare
expenses and liabilities are determined using actuarial
valuations conducted by independent professional
actuaries. Independent professional actuaries evaluate
the actuarial status of the Group’s retirement plan every
year. These actuarial valuations involve assumptions
made on discount rates, retirement benefit inflation
rates and other factors. In view of its long-term nature,
the above estimates are uncertain.

Useful lives and residual values of fixed assets

After considering the residual value of the fixed assets,
the Group accrues depreciation within the estimated
useful life. The Group regularly reviews the estimated
useful life and residual value of related assets to
determine the amount of depreciation expenses that
will be included in each reporting period. The useful
life and residual value of assets are determined by the
Group based on the past experience of similar assets
and combined with expected technological changes.
If the previous estimate changes significantly, the
depreciation expense will be adjusted in the future
period.

Lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

If the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily
determined, the Group measures the lease liability at
the present value of the lease payments discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.
According to the economic environment, the Group
takes the observable interest rate as the reference
basis for determining the incremental borrowing rate,
then adjusts the observable interest rate based on its
own circumstances, underlying assets, lease terms and
amounts of lease liabilities to determine the applicable
incremental borrowing rate.
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Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and estimates

Changes in accounting policies

The New Leases Standard

In 2018, the MOF issued revised Accounting Standard
for Business Enterprises No. 21 — Leases (the “New
Leases Standard”). The New Leases Standard
introduces a single model similar to the current
accounting treatment of finance leases, requiring
the lessor to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all the leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets, and recognise
depreciation and interest expense, respectively. The
Group has accounted for leases under the revised
leases standard since 1 January 2021. As a practical
expedient, the Group did not reassess whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial
application. According to the transitional requirements,
the Group did not restate comparative information.
Instead, the Group recognised the cumulative effect of
the initial application of the New Leases Standard as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
of 2021 at the date of initial application:

(1) the Group recognised the right-of-use asset
and the lease liabilities at the amount of the
carrying amount of the lease asset and lease
liability under the original standards applicable
at the date of initial application for leases
previously classified as finance leases;

(2) for leases previously classified as operating
leases, the Group recognised lease liabilities
based on the present value of the remaining
lease payments discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application,
and measured right-of-use assets based on the
amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted
for any related prepaid and accrued lease
payments previously recognised;

(3) the Group applied Note Ill, 18 to perform its
impairment test of right-of-use assets and
account for the impairment.
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For operating leases of low-value assets and operating
leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months
before initial application, the Group applied a simplified
approach and did not recognise the right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities. For leases previously classified as
operating leases, the Group also applied the available
practical expedients wherein it:

(1) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;
and excluded the initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application;

2) used hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contained options to extend
or terminate the lease;

(3) relied on its assessment of whether leases
are onerous applying Note IlI, 18 immediately
before the date of initial application as an
alternative to performing an impairment review,
and adjusted the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application by the amount of any
provision for onerous leases recognised in the
balance sheet immediately before the date of
initial application; and

(4) accounted for the changes in leases before
the date of initial application based on the final
arrangement for such changes.

As an intermediate lessor, the Group reassessed
subleases that were classified as operating leases
before and are ongoing at the date of initial application,
to determine whether each sublease should be
classified as an operating lease or a finance lease
applying the New Leases Standard. The Group
performed this assessment at the date of initial
application on the basis of the remaining contractual
terms and conditions of the head lease and sublease
at that date. For subleases that were classified as
operating leases before but finance leases applying
the New Leases Standard, the Group accounted for
the sublease as a new finance lease entered into at the
date of initial application. Except for these, the Group
did not adjust the leases for which it is an intermediate
lessor.
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lll. Significant accounting policies and estimates (continued)
37. Changes in accounting policies and estimates (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The New Leases Standard (continued)

The Group reconciled the outstanding minimum lease payments for significant operating leases disclosed in 2020 financial
statements with lease liabilities included in the balance sheet as at 1 January 2021 based on the present value of the
minimum lease payments discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the Group as the lessee as at 1 January 2021
as follows:

Minimum lease payments for significant operating leases as at 31 December 2020 6,963,695
loee Loncs p . yments . nderS|mpl|f|ed e 1570 0 o
B i g Gt o 1031 3 0
2 T cas 7 o
S Leases of low-value assets with lease term that ends in more than 12 months 4,904
O PSSP 5393 6 w5
Welghtedaverage|ncrementalborrowmgrate470%
Dicooun tedoperatmg e o January R 4966 6 e
A B p é'yéb'l'é's' 1 Decombar ansg 14 4 .
g i anuary Dot 5281 0 .

The effect of implementation of the New Leases Standard on the balance sheet as at 1 January 2021 is as follows:

Consolidated balance sheet

Under
Carrying the original
amount standard Effect
Prepayments 41,926,900 42,243,346 (316,446)

Fixed assets

17,369,990

Company balance sheet

Under

Carrying the original
amount standard Effect
Prepayments 7,970,853 7,975,589 (4,736)
Right-of-use assets 430,279 - 430,279
Current portion of non-current liabilities 9,024,111 8,918,702 105,409
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Significant accounting policies and estimates (continued)
Changes in accounting policies and estimates (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The New Leases Standard (continued)

The impact of the implementation of the new lease standard on the financial statements for the six-month period ending
30 June 2021 is as follows:

Consolidated balance sheet

Under
Carrying the original
amount standard Effect
Prepayments 35,673,464 35,679,451 (5,987)

xed assets

Consolidated income statement

Under
Carrying the original
amount standard Effect
Cost of sales 838,152,505 838,199,288 (46,783)
Generalandadmlnlstratlveexpenses 16,468,874 16,493,358 ................... (24,484)
Researchanddevelopmentexpenses13,857,924 ............. 13,858,319 ........................ ( 395)
e eexpenses ................................................................................ 5,096,920 ............... 4,991,68 o 105’240 ]
Incometaxexpenses11,644,405 ............. 11,667,961 ................... (23,556)
Company balance sheet
Under
Carrying the original
amount standard Effect
Prepayments 7,226,720 7,221,688 5,032
SRt S0P PPNPPRUUPRURNPOOOOO . ... - 0 2 TR 371,444 .
- OO ... .o AR R R R 1,032 .
OO ... o< et R 101’535 .
eeeeeeatneemaneteattesantteanreaantesasneanacaensteeasttaeenesateesanreeantesanseeenseeeareerese AR U 279,068 .

(3,095)
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lll. Significant accounting policies and estimates (continued)
37. Changes in accounting policies and estimates (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The New Leases Standard (continued)

Company income statement

Under
Carrying the original
amount standard Effect
Cost of sales 45,965,774 45,965,799 (25)
General and administrative expenses 614,432 619,701 (5,269)
Finance expenses 1,206,167 1,196,746 9,421
Income tax expenses (108,604) (107,572) (1,032)

In addition, the cash paid by the Group for repayment of the principal and interest of the lease liability is included in the
statement of cash flows as cash outflows from financing activities, and the payments for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets accounted for using the practical expedients and variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of the lease liability are still included in cash outflows from operating activities.

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Under
Carrying the original
amount standard Effect
Net cash flows used in operating activities (49,744,103) (50,568,688) 824,585
Net cash flows from financing activities 65,536,133 66,360,718 (824,585)
Company statement of cash flows
Under
Carrying the original
amount standard Effect
Net cash flows from operating activities 4,530,074 4,477,809 52,265
Net cash flows used in financing activities (12,507,198) (12,454,933) (52,265)

The social capital party changes the accounting treatment of the public-private partnership (PPP) project contract

PPP contract refers to the agreement signed by both the Group and government according to laws and regulations, such
agreement shall possess the following features (referred as “dual features”):

(@) the Group, as a delegate of government, provides public products and services by employing assets of PPP
projects in the operating period stipulated by the agreement;

(2) the Group shall be compensated for the public products and services provided in the operating period stipulated
by the agreement.

Such agreement shall meet the following criteria (referred as “dual controls”):

(1) the nature,object and price of public products and services provided by the Group using assets of PPP projects
are controlled by government;

(2) When the PPP contract is terminated, government will control the significant residual interests of PPP projects
through ownership, usufruct or other legal rights.



37.

Significant accounting policies and
estimates (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and estimates
(continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The social capital party changes the accounting
treatment of the public-private partnership (PPP)

project contract (continued)

According to the “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises Interpretation No. 14" (hereinafter referred
to as “Interpretation No. 14”"), the social capital party
providing construction services (including construction
and reconstruction and expansion, the same below) or
contracting to other parties shall be in accordance with
the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 14-Revenue” determines whether its identity
is the main responsible person or an agent, and
performs accounting treatments to confirm contract
assets. According to the agreement of the PPP project
contract, the social capital party provides multiple
services (such as providing both PPP project asset
construction services and post-completion operation
services and maintenance services), it shall follow the
provisions of the “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 14-Revenue”, identify the individual
performance obligations in the contract, and allocate
the transaction price to each performance obligation
in accordance with the relative proportion of the stand-
alone selling price of each performance obligation.

For the borrowing cost incurred during the construction
of PPP projects, the social capital party should measure
such borrowing cost in accordance to “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 17 Borrowing
Costs”. For the part recognized as intangible assets
in the following circumstance, the social capital party
should capitalized related borrowing costs when
they meet the criteria of capitalization, and transfer to
intangible assets as PPP projects reach the prospective
serviceable condition. For borrowing costs other than
mentioned above, the social capital party should
expensed them as incurred.

Consolidated balance sheet

Accounts receivable
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According to the agreement of the PPP project
contract, the private partner has the right to collect
fees from those who obtain public products and
services during the operation of the project, but if the
amount of the fees is uncertain, this right does not
constitute an unconditional right to receive cash. When
the asset reaches the intended working condition,
the consideration amount of the relevant PPP project
asset or the confirmed construction income amount is
recognized as an intangible asset, and the accounting
treatment is carried out in accordance with the
“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.
6 Intangible Assets”. According to the agreement of
the PPP project contract, the private partner shall have
the right to collect the consideration in the private
partner if it meets the conditions for the right to receive
a determinable amount of cash (or other financial
assets) during the project operation period (this right
depends only on the passage of time) are recognise
that determinable amount of cash as receivables, and
are accounted for in accordance with the “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Instruments”. The
social capital party shall, when the PPP project assets
reach the expected working condition, recognise
the difference between the consideration amount
of the relevant PPP project assets or the confirmed
construction income amount exceeding the right
to receive a determinable amount of cash (or other
financial assets) as intangible assets.

The Group will begin accounting treatment in
accordance with the above regulations from 1 January
2021. According to the convergence regulations, the
information for comparable periods will not be adjusted.
The cumulative impact of the implementation of the
above regulations and the current standards on the
first day will be adjusted and retained at the beginning
of the year on the effective date of this interpretation.
The amount of income and other related items in the
financial statements.

The impact of Executive Interpretation No. 14 on the
balance sheet items on 1 January 2021 is as follows:

Under

Carrying the original
amount standard Effect
161,126,144 160,441,814 684,330

77,936,729

231,953,228

The change in accounting policy illustrated above has no impact on company financial statements.
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37.

Significant accounting policies and estimates (continued)
Changes in accounting policies and estimates (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The social capital party changes the accounting treatment of the public-private partnership (PPP) project contract
(continued)

The impact of Executive Interpretation No. 14 on the financial statements for the six-month period ending 30 June 2021 is
as follows:

Consolidated balance sheet

Under
Carrying the original
amount standard Effect
Accounts receivable 184,383,313 183,765,362 617,951

247,531,519 (746,160)

Consolidated income statement

Under
Carrying the original
amount standard Effect
Revenue 936,715,963 934,975,655 1,740,308
e éééﬁéé,ﬁ(’)’é ........... é's'é;iﬁ'z','i o 1;746,'3'68' y
Asset impairment losses 204,265 205,142 (877)
Cred fihﬁﬁé}ﬁhé i é;ééé,'ﬁé ............... 5;46“1','3‘:'3 g 5.,.44.0. /]
Finance expenses 5,096,920 5,028,058 68,862

The change in accounting policy illustrated above has no impact on company financial statements.

Accounting treatment of contract changes resulting from benchmark rate reform

According to the accounting standards explanation for enterprises No. 14, the Group recalculates the actual interest
rate base on the revised future cash flow which is changed only due to the reform of the benchmark interest rate directly
leading to the change in the determination basis of the contractual cash flow of financial assets or financial liabilities
calculated by using the effective interest rate method with same economically equivalent impact, and measures financial
assets and financial liabilities based on this actual interest rate in subsequent period. In case of other changes in financial
assets or financial liabilities at the same time, the Group shall first make accounting treatment for the changes caused
by the reform of the benchmark interest rate in accordance with the above provisions, and then evaluate whether other
changes lead to the termination of recognition of the financial assets or financial liabilities. If the determination basis of
future lease payments is changed solely due to bench rate reform and the determination basis is economically equivalent
before and after the change, the Group, as a lessee, adjusts discounted rate based on the changed determination basis
of lease payments due to the benchmark rate reform, discounts changed lease payments by adjusted discounted rate and
adjusts book value of lease liabilities and right of use assets correspondingly.

Since 1 January 2021, the Group will conduct accounting treatment in accordance with the above provisions. According
to the convergence provisions, the information of comparable periods will not be adjusted. The difference between the
implementation of the above provisions and the current standards on the first day of implementation will be included in
retained earnings at the beginning of this year and other related accounting subjects in financial statements.

Changes in the presentation of financial statements

According to the Question and Answer on the implementation of enterprise accounting standards issued by the Ministry of
Finance in December 2020, the Group reclassified the impairment loss of contract assets originally included in the “credit
impairment losses” in the income statement to “asset impairment losses”. The change in accounting policy has no impact
on the net profit and the equity both on the consolidated and the company financial statements.



Iv.

1.

Taxation

Main taxes and rates

City maintenance and
construction tax

Preferential tax treatments
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Taxable income is calculated at the corresponding tax rate as output tax, and the
value-added tax is calculated on the basis of the difference after deducting the input
tax allowed to be deducted in the current period. The applicable tax rates of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 included 13%, 9%, 6%, 5% and 3%.

According to the “Regulations on Issues Related to the Pilot Reform of Business Tax
to Value-Added Tax” issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
of Taxation in 2016, the Group calculates tax payable at 3% and 5% of taxable
income for old projects (refer to projects initially built before 1 April 2016) in the
construction industry based on simple tax calculation methods and in the real estate
development industry, respectively.

The Group’s corporate income tax in Mainland China is calculated and paid at 25%
of the taxable income (except for the tax incentives described in Note IV.2). The
corporate income tax in Hong Kong is calculated and paid at 16.5% of the taxable
income. For other overseas regions, the taxable income shall be 0 to 35% of the
taxable income.

If the Group transfers land use rights and the property r|ghts of buildings or other
attachments on the ground for a fee, the land appreciation tax is calculated and paid
at a four-tier progressive tax rate of 30% to 60%.

Real estate tax is levied at 1.2% of the original value of the property or 12% of the
rental income.

The corporate income tax preferences enjoyed by the Group are as follows:

(1) Preferential tax treatment for key high and new technological enterprises encouraged and supported by

the state

According to the income tax law and other relevant regulations, the Group’s subsidiaries recognised as key high
and new technological enterprises encouraged and supported by the state are as follows:

Company name

Certificate of
High and New Effective
Technological Enterprises tax rate

China Construction City Planning Development Co., Ltd. GR202011006190 15%
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IV. Taxation (continued)
2. Preferential tax treatments (continued)

(1) Preferential tax treatment for key high and new technological enterprises encouraged and supported by
the state (continued)

Certificate of

High and New Effective
Company name Technological Enterprises tax rate
China Construction Science And Industry Co., Ltd. GR202044202198 15%

Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd. of China Construction
Sixth Engineering Division GR201912002245 15%



Iv.

2.

Taxation (continued)

Preferential tax treatments (continued)

(1)

Preferential tax treatment for key high and new technological enterprises encouraged and supported by
the state (continued)

Certificate of

High and New Effective
Company name Technological Enterprises tax rate
China State Construction Fourth Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd. GR201944005866 15%
China Construction Fourth Bureau Third Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. GR201852000186 15%
China Construction Fourth Bureau Civil Engineering Co., Ltd. GR202044205254 15%
Sixth Construction Co., Ltd. of China Construction Fourth Engineering Division GR201934001377 15%
China Construction Fourth Bureau (Jieyang) Investment and
Construction Co., Ltd. GR201852000109 15%

China Construction Xinjiang Construction Engineering Group Third Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd. GR202065000046 15%

Co., Ltd. GR202044204908 15%
e Consiton Teehnoioay Ghengde Go. L. S 2
T ot
e b P
T G o e P
 China Construction Railway Investment and Construction Group Co., Ltd. GR201811008129  15%

Guizhou China Construction Architecture Research and
Design Institute Co., Ltd. GR202052000333 15%
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IV. Taxation (continued)
2. Preferential tax treatments (continued)

(1) Preferential tax treatment for key high and new technological enterprises encouraged and supported by
the state (continued)

Certificate of

High and New Effective

Company name Technological Enterprises tax rate

Second Construction Co., Ltd. of China Construction Third Engineering Division GR202042002204 15%
 Third Construction Co., Lid. of China Construction Third Engineering Division GR202042001764  15%
T Condtra ng|neer|n gDeS|gn o Lo crooromoooara e
i Gonsiriction Sixth Engmeenng Division Co. L Rooiorsonoese e
 China Construction Sixth Engineering Installation Co., Ltd. GR202012001086  15%
* China Construction Engineering Design Group Corporation Limited GR202011003894  15%
hemsher Overeans Decoraion Engmeenng Co R Roosonasosess e
 Beijing Construction Engineering Quality Sixth Inspection Institute Co., Ltd. GR201911001810  15%
i Ge pCoLtd ........................................................... aRsoiomanoros T e
* China Construction Third Bureau Installation Engineering Co., Ltd. GR201942002292  15%
i it Conatriion Technology WuhanCo L GR0s0ise0izis T e
* China Construction Third Bureau Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. GR201842001070  15%
~ China Construction First Bureau Group Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd. GR202011004486  15%
GuangdongZhongjlan New Bulldlng Components CoLtd ............................................. cRooisaiooiors T s
~ China Construction Fourth Bureau Fifth Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. GR202044204395  15%
* China Construction Third Bureau Urban Construction Co., Ltd. GR202022000413  15%
Langfan gZho ng] o Machlnery Co e cRoosoisoosse s
 China Construction Southwest Survey, Design and Research Institute Co., Lid. GR202051000142  15%
 Ghina Conctraction U nderground Sp e CoLtd .......................................................... cRooissioosnad s
 China Construction Dongshe Geotechnical Engineering Co., Ltd. 1 GR202021001224  15%
 China Construction Zhongxin Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. 1 GR202037101613  15%
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IV. Taxation (continued)
2. Preferential tax treatments (continued)

(2) Preferential tax policy related with Western Development Strategies and Xinjiang region

Preferential Policy Effective
Company Name (Note) tax rate
Xi'an Xingchu Construction Co., Ltd. Cai Shui [2020] No. 23

Sichuan Southwest Construction Management and Consulting China Northwest
design and Research Institute Co., Ltd.

China Construction Communications Engineering Group Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries

Note: According to the Notice Concerning the Continuation of the Cestern Development Enterprise Income Tax
Policies (Ministry of Finance Notice No. 23 of 2020), the eligible enterprises are entitled 15% preferential income tax
rate.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Cash and bank balances

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Cash on hands 135,365 132,591

Other cash and bank balances represents deposits for bank acceptance notes, guarantee deposits and deposits for
migrant workers’ wages, etc.

As at 30 June 2021, the amount of fixed deposit with maturity of more than 3 months in the Group’s bank deposits is
RMB3,228,142 thousand (31 December 2020: RMB6,684,616 thousand).

Restricted cash and bank balances mainly represents reserves with Central Bank, deposits for bank acceptance notes,
guarantee deposits, pre-sale supervision fund and mortgage deposits. As of 30 June 2021, the restricted cash and bank
balances is RMB19,409,564 thousand (31 December 2020: RMB21,310,994 thousand).

As at 30 June 2020, the offshore deposits of the Group amounted to RMB37,412,231 thousand (31 December 2020:
RMB31,500,940 thousand).The amount deposited abroad and restricted in remittance recovery is RMB2,158,170 thousand
(31 December 2020: RMB2,019,638 thousand).

Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates.

2. Financial assets held for trading
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Note 1: The fair value of an investment in debt instrument held for trading is mainly determined based on the trading price
published by the financial institution in which it trades on the last trading day of the current period.

Note 2: The fair value of an investment in equity instrument held for trading is determined based on the closing price of the
last trading day of the current period of the stock exchange in which the instrument trades.

3. Notes receivable
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Commercial acceptance bills 28,317,101 31,989,282
e Impa|rment "+ - R e o
B " 28,3 ’ 7, e R 31989 2 .

The pledged notes receivable are as follows:
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Commercial acceptance bills 2,221,437 2,028,537

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the notes receivable that were pledged by the Group to banks for borrowings
are presented in details in Note V. 68.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Notes receivable (continued)

Commercial acceptance bills which had not matured but had been endorsed to other parties are as follows:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Derecognised Recognised Derecognised Recognised
Commercial acceptance bills - 13,892,765 - 14,402,188

Regardless of whether there is a significant financing component or not, the impairment provision of the Group’s notes
receivables are measured based on the lifetime ECL. After evaluation, the Group believes that the commercial acceptance
notes held do not have significant credit risk, and the ECLs amount is insignificant.

Accounts receivable

The ageing of accounts receivable is analysed as follows:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Within 1 year 148,840,138 122,961,573

Provision for impairment:

Accounts receivable and impairment allowance are disclosed by category:

30 June 2021
Gross carrying amount Impairment allowance Carrying value
Ratio for
Amount Ratio (%) Amount  impairment (%)
Impairment of individually accrued 61,506,358 28.91 14,518,934 23.61 46,987,424
Impairment of collectively accrued by credit 151,209,981 71.09 13,814,002 914 137,395,889
risk portfolio
Total 212,716,339 100.00 28,333,026 13.32 184,383,313
31 December 2020
Gross carrying amount Impairment allowance Carrying value
Ratio for
Amount Ratio (%) Amount  impairment (%)
Impairment of individually accrued 54,492,592 29.26 13,322,049 24.45 41,170,543
Impairment of collectively accrued by credit 131,739,022 7074 12,467,951 946 119271271
risk portfolio
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Accounts receivable (continued)

Provision for impairment: (continued)

As at 30 June 2021, impairment allowance of accounts receivable individually accrued is as follows:

Carrying Impairment Expected credit
amount allowance loss ratio Reasons
Company 1 2,833,535 1,051,960 37.13% Recovery possibility
Company 2 1,643,000 1,643,000 100.00% Recovery possibility

As at 31 December 2020, impairment allowance of accounts receivable individually accrued is as follows:

Carrying Impairment Expected credit
amount allowance loss ratio Reasons
Company 1 2,621,863 811,436 30.95% Recovery possibility

The accounts receivable with impairment allowance collectively accrued by credit risk portfolio are as follows:

Portfolio 1

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Estimated Expected Estimated Expected
gross carrying credit Lifetime  gross carrying credit Lifetime
amount at loss ratio expected amount at loss ratio expected
default (%) credit loss default (%) credit loss
Within 1 year 27,937,681 2.02 565,307 18,771,108 2.00 375,423
1-2 years 5,441,805 5.00 272,090 6,147,525 5.00 307,376
2-3 years 3,102,534 15.00 465,380 2,305,610 15.00 345,842
3-4 years 650,931 30.00 195,279 591,134 30.00 177,340
4-5 years 307,398 45.00 138,329 295,105 45.00 132,797
Over 5 years 228,391 100.00 228,391 244,208 100.00 244,208
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Accounts receivable (continued)

Provision for impairment: (continued)

Portfolio 2

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Estimated Estimated
gross carrying Expected Lifetime  gross carrying Expected Lifetime
amount at credit loss expected amount at credit loss expected
default ratio (%) credit loss default ratio (%) credit loss
Within 1 year 2,455,204 6.00 147,312 3,155,015 6.00 189,301
1-2 years 496,420 12.00 59,570 588,659 12.00 70,639
2-3 years 263,000 25.00 65,750 240,065 25.00 60,016
3-4 years 223,391 45.00 100,526 37,907 45.00 17,058
4-5 years 11,824 70.00 8,277 4,293 70.00 3,005
Over 5 years 100,712 100.00 100,712 102,860 100.00 102,860
Total 3,550,551 482,147 4,128,799 442,879
Portfolio 3
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Estimated Estimated
gross carrying Expected Lifetime  gross carrying Expected Lifetime
amount at credit loss expected amount at credit loss expected
default ratio (%) credit loss default ratio (%) credit loss
Within 1 year 76,386,492 4.50 3,437,235 66,510,054 450 2,992,951

The movements in impairment allowance for accounts receivable are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021:

Balance Changes in
at the end of accounting Opening Other
prior year policies balance Provision Reversal Write-off movements  Closing balance
25,790,000 12,430 25,802,430 7,296,946 (4,465,499) (218,986) (81,865) 28,333,026
2020
Opening balance Provision Reversal Write-off Other movements Closing balance

23,804,177 15,060,518 (12,166,489) (902,942) (5,264) 25,790,000
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Accounts receivable (continued)

Provision for impairment: (continued)

The major amounts reversal or collection for the six months ended 30 June 2021 are as follows:

Basis and rationality

for determining Amount of
the provision for reversal/  Way of
Reason for reversal/collection impairment collection  collection

Company 1 Individually accrued

Individually and
Others Accounts receivable of project collected Collectively accrued 4,268,404 Cash

As at 30 June 2021, the five largest accounts receivable according to customers are analysed as follows:

Amount of Percentage

Impairment of total accounts

Amount allowance receivable

Total amount of the five largest accounts receivable 9,531,938 2,992,733 4.48%

As at 31 December 2020, the five largest accounts receivable according to customers are analysed as follows:

Amount of Percentage

Impairment of total accounts

Amount allowance receivable

Total amount of the five largest accounts receivable 7,541,356 3,719,461 4.05%

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the amount of accounts receivable derecognised by the Group due to the transfer
of financial assets was RMB12,952,565 thousand (2020: RMB45,613,400 thousand), and the related expenses were
RMB683,493 thousand (2020: RMB2,200,204 thousand).

On 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, accounts receivable that were pledged by the Group to banks for borrowings
are presented in details Note V, 68.

Accounts receivable financing
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Bank acceptance bills 4,996,742 3,788,082

The Group discounts and endorses some bank acceptance bills according to the needs of daily capital management.
Therefore, bank acceptance bills are classified as financial assets measured at fair value and their changes included in
other comprehensive income.

Accounts receivable financing that have been endorsed or discounted on the balance sheet date but not overdue are as
follows:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Derecognised Recognised Derecognised Recognised
Bank acceptance bills 1,195,421 1,369,186 1,883,153 1,110,596

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group measured impairment allowance based on the expected credit loss
of the entire lifetime. The bank acceptance bills held by the assessment was not subject to significant credit risk, and the
amount of expected credit loss was not significant.
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6. Prepayments
The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows:
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Carrying Percentage of Carrying Percentage of
amount total balance amount total balance
Within 1 year 32,359,144 90.71 37,140,758 87.92
1-2 years 1,737,867 4.87 2,166,342 5.13
2-3 years 671,332 1.88 2,056,042 4.87
Over 3 years 905,121 2.54 880,204 2.08
35,673,464 100.00 42,243,346 100.00
As at 30 June 2021, prepayments aged more than 1 year amounted to RMB3,314,320 thousand (31 December 2020:
RMB5,102,588 thousand), mainly including advances to subcontractors and prepayments for land use rights, where the
project is not completed, or land use permit has not been obtained.
As at 30 June 2021, the five largest prepayments to suppliers are as follows:
Percentage of
Amount total balance
Total amount of the five largest prepayments to suppliers 10,081,181 28.26%
As at 31 December 2020, the five largest prepayments to suppliers are as follows:
Percentage of
Amount total balance
Total amount of the five largest prepayments to suppliers 15,441,353 36.55%
7. Other receivable
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Other receivable 79,768,052 54,626,721
The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Within 1 year 62,905,868

38,773,389
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

7.

Other receivable (continued)

Nature of other receivables are as follows:

Deposits and petty cash receivable

30 June 2021
40,226,713

31 December 2020
20,848,096

Changes in impairment allowance recognised for the 12-month ECLs and lifetime ECLs on other receivables are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
Stage 1

12-month expected
credit losses

Opening balance of the period 2,024,990

Stage 3 Total
Credit-impaired
financial assets
(Lifetime expected)
credit losses

4,734,463 6,759,453

Stage 1

12-month expected
credit losses

Opening balance of the year 1,653,840

Stage 3 Total
Credit-impaired
financial assets
(Lifetime expected)
credit losses

5,427,482 7,081,322
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Other receivables (continued)
The gross carrying amount of other receivables contributed to changes in the impairment allowance are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
12-month expected Credit-impaired
credit losses financial assets

Lifetime expected
credit losses

Opening balance of the period 48,757,796 12,628,378 61,386,174

70,030,630

Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
12-month expected Credit-impaired
credit losses financial assets

Lifetime expected
credit losses

Opening balance of the year 47,855,701 12,412,142 60,267,843

The major amounts reversal or collection for the six months ended 30 June 2021 is as follows:

Amount of
Reason for reversal/ Receivable reversal/  Way of
collection collected collection  collection
Company 1 Receivable collected Individually accrued 20,565 Cash

- Company S Roceivabio coleciog i duaIIy e 1551 > e
- Company . Roceivabio coleciog ol Iectlvely oo 1488 W e
- Company P Roceivabio coleciog Indmduallyaccrue G 1216 o oan
- Company o Roceivabio coleciod ol Iectlvely oo 1169 o o
Others Receivable collected Individually and Collectively accrued 598,956 Cash
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
7. Other receivables (continued)

As at 30 June 2021, other receivables from the five largest customers are as follows:

Impairment

% of allowance

Amount total balance Nature Ageing Amount

Company 1 18,000,000 20.70 Cash deposit Within 1 year -

As at 31 December 2020, other receivables from the five largest customers are as follows:

Impairment

% of allowance

Amount total balance Nature Ageing Amount

Company 1 1,596,657 2.60 Account current Within 1 year 63,866
Company2 ................... 1135984 ......................... e Moot emens Within'd year11360 .
CompanyS ................... 1125658 ......................... s e deposﬂ ............. Wi year Tos years ................ 25513 .
Company4918000 ......................... e Mecountoumen W|th|n1year1t02years ................ 47040
Company5790500 ......................... : 290ashdep03|t ............................... W|th|n1year15810
Crem 5566799907 .............................................................................................. 163589

8. Inventories
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment

amount provision Net value amount provision Net value

Properties under development 581,066,769 (2,919,708) 578,147,061 575,666,522 (3,537,411) 572,129,111
 Completed properties forsale 94,588,439 (1,109,481)  93,478958 79,177,264 (557,024) 78,620,240
Rawmatenalsz4,130,989 ............ (17,803)24,113,18620157082 ............ (17803)20139279
o progress .......................................... 866,1 s R ; 66,1 - : 026 w e . 02632 .
e goods ......................................... 3,91 2,1 o (1’1 45) 44444444 3’91 1,0 . 32927 o (604 11) ........ 323231 =
e ) 41,832 ..................... S ) 41,832 ............ , 01748 R 301748 .
e 2o 4,806,351 ........ (4,048,137) 44444 700,758,2 . 9297977 ........ (41 72649) ..... o 51253 e

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the inventories that were pledged by the Group to banks for borrowings are
presented in details in Note V, 68.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

8. Inventories (continued)

The details of properties under development are as follows:

Estimated Estimated
Date of completion completion 31 December
Project Name commencement time investment 30 June 2021 2020
Beijing Daji Critical Reform Project January 2003 December 2025 43,707,456 19,946,661 19,941,813
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V.
8.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Inventories (continued)

The details of properties under development are as follows: (continued)

Date of Estimated
Project Name commencement  completion time
Beijing Shougangyuan Phase Il Project August 2020 June 2022

Estimated
completion
investment

5,027,540

31 December
30 June 2021 2020

3,987,936 3,871,233

3,603,204
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

8. Inventories (continued)

The details of properties under development are as follows: (continued)

Estimated Estimated
Date of completion completion 31 December
Project Name commencement time investment 30 June 2021 2020
Tianjin Meilin Road Project November 2019 December 2021 3,207,121 2,660,028 2,796,351

Taiyuan Comprehensive Reform Zone Yangzhuang

Project October 2020  December 2021 6,509,280 2,365,117 2,083,118
. ry 0 n|ver5|ty Pro1ect ............................ Apr oo ceonersis 37 5650 - R 2’3 e '400 R 7941 .
 Shanghai Minle Affordable Housing Project November2011  December2021 - 2281871 2206740 1575215
b r()]ect ......................................................... Vo0t Decemperaoni 28 54214 ............ 2,275'770 ............ 21 3237 .
 Taiyuan Beihan Village Utban Reform Project ~~~~~ May 2019 December2021 5263008 2273650 2348705
. Xu1|a ng o Gadan Januaw oot Decarperaons 33 6404 - R 2’235 ,337 ............ 21 1358 o
. T|an1|n Clty S a0t Decomperaops 229 2627 - B 2’225 ,41 - R 71 8391 g
. Nanshanyln Prolect .......................................... September oo August o 33 0000 - R 2’220 ,083 ....................... =
. Tong kP Apr o0 Nowar 40 2093 - R é,é o ,727 ....................... =

Jinan Railway Vocational and Technical College
D-2BX plot January 2019 January 2022 3,240,153 2,210,404 2,054,547
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
8. Inventories (continued)
The details of completed properties held for sale are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Completion

time of the 31 December
Project Name latest phase 2020 Additions Deductions 30 June 2021
Dalian CITIC Harbour City June 2021 1,489,925 2,548,062 (1,162,553) 2,875,434

Huangdao District Double Star Tire Old Factory
Development Project May 2021 - 4,019,771 (2,682,547) 1,337,224

China State Construction Splendid World Zone B
and C June 2021 - 2,362,884 (1,654,473) 708,411
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
8. Inventories (continued)
The details of completed properties held for sale are as follows: (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2021 (continued)

Completion

time of the 31 December
Project Name latest phase 2020 Additions Deductions 30 June 2021
Beijing Shougang Park Phase Il Project January 2021 - 3,448,626 (2,750,531) 698,095

China-Construction-Chi Cube
(Hefei China Construction Industrial Base)

Guiyang Dayingpo Zhongjian Huafu Project
ADEF District December 2017 698,900 6,590 (192,783) 512,707

Jilin Changchun Zhonghai * Shangxue
Mansion Phase Il December 2020 549,452
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Inventories (continued)
The details of completed properties held for sale are as follows: (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2021 (continued)

completion
time of the 31 December
Project Name latest phase 2020

Yantai Zhonghai Wanjin Community June 2021 -

December 2020

Movements in the carrying amount of inventories are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
1 January 2021 Additions
Properties under development 575,666,522 132,898,969

128,844,297

157, 281,993,864

Additions Deductions 30 June 2021
452,474 (80,138) 372,336

Deductions 30 June 2021
(127,498,722) 581,066,769
94,588,439
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Inventories (continued)

Movements in the carrying amount of inventories are as follows: (continued)

2020

31 December 31 December

2019 Additions Deductions 2020

Properties under development 489,478,279 317,783,688 (231,595,445) 575,666,522
' Completed properties held for sale 67,414,180 216,342,332 (204,579,248) 79,177,264
B 22474381 e 22 878924 4444444444 (5 25 19622 5 ) ............ 20 157082 -
Worklnprogress1133413 ............... 2894359 44444444444444 (3325140) ................. 702632
S goods ...................................................... 2487860 4444444444444 43730456 444444444444 (4292558 . ) .............. 3 292729 -
COthare 129615 ............... 2723831 44444444444444 (255169 . ) ................. 301748 -
Total583117728 444444444 1106353590 (1010173341)679297977

Movements in the impairment provision of inventories are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

1 January Increase during the period Decrease during the period
2020 Accrual Others Reversal Write-off Others 30 June 2021
Properties under development 3,537,411 - (592,584) - - (25,119) 2,919,708
- Completedpro peme e R 557, o s 592, s (39’ 705) ................. S (1 ’ 275) o 1,1 09, i
B 17,803 .................. S I [ I —17,803 ]
- F|n|shedgoods ........................................ 60, i [ S (59’ 266) ................. [ S 1 ’ s
Total4,172,649 ............... s S (98,971) ................. S (26,394)4,048,137
2020
1 January Increase during the year Decrease during the year 31 December
2019 Accrual Others Reversal Write-off Others 2020
Properties under development 3,580,736 400,000 (372,226) - - (71,099) 3,537,411

Impairment provision of inventories is as follows:

Reasons of reversal and

Net realisable value write-off during the year
Properties under development ] ) )
Completed properties held Expegted selling price Ie§s estlmateq costs to . Net realisable value increased or
be incurred at completion, the estimated selling

for sale sales realised

...................................................... expenses and the relevant taxes and fees
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V.
9.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Contract assets

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Receivables from Construction projects 172,249,821 139,279,091

Less: Contract assets disclosed within Current portion of

non-current assets (Note V.10) (55,861,657) (39,798,227)
Less: Contract assets disclosed within the other non-current assets
(Note V. 24) (236,542,181) (137,765,940)

The Group provides construction services to customers and revenue recognised based on performance progress in

excess of progress billings is presented as contract assets. Upon settlement with the customers, the Group has an
unconditional rights to receivable payments and the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade
receivables.

Changes in impairment allowance of contract assets are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Changes in

accounting
31 December 2020 policies 1 January 2021 Provision Reversal Other changes 30 June 2021
5,331,689 377,813 5,709,502 854,232 (535,827) 34,600 6,062,507

For the year ended 31 December 2020
1 January 2020 Provision Reversal Other changes 31 December 2020
5,584,007 1,594,339 (1,779,231) (67,426) 5,331,689

The changes in the impairment allowance of the current part of contract assets are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

1 January 2021 Provision Reversal Other changes 30 June 2021
2,326,970 375,165 (242,810) 54,512 2,513,837

For the year ended 31 December 2020

1 January 2020 Provision Reversal Other changes 31 December 2020
2,980,333 327,307 (943,678) (36,992) 2,326,970
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Contract assets (continued)

Whether the contract assets have significant financing components or not, the impairment allowance is measured
according to the expected credit loss for the whole lifetime.

30 June 2021
Gross carrying amount Impairment allowance
Ratio for
Amount Ratio(%) Amount impairment (%)
Impairment of individually accrued 24,990,763 14.22 1,529,679 6.12
Impairment of collectively accrued
by credit risk portfolio 150,813,916 85.78 984,158 0.65
Total 175,804,679 100.00 2,513,837 1.43
31 December 2020
Gross carrying amount Impairment allowance
Ratio for
Amount Ratio(%) Amount impairment (%)
Impairment of individually accrued 20,488,216 14.29 1,536,364 7.50
Impairment of collectively accrued
by credit risk portfolio 122,904,710 85.71 790,606 0.64
Total 143,392,926 100.00 2,326,970 1.62
As at 30 June 2021, contract assets individually assessed for expected credit losses are as follows:
ECLs rate
Carrying Impairment for the entire
amount allowance lifetime (%) Reasons
Company 1 210,724 94,826 45.00 Note
Company 2 174,727 2,310 1.32 Note
Company 3 163,081 99,403 60.95 Note
Company 4 157,930 33,631 21.29 Note
Company 5 127,411 57,335 45.00 Note
Others 24,156,890 1,242,174 5.14 Note
Total 24,990,763 1,529,679
As at 31 December 2020, contract assets individually assessed for expected credit losses are as follows:
ECLs rate
Carrying Impairment for the entire
amount allowance lifetime (%) Reasons
Company 1 475,087 3,448 . Note

Note: The Group provides construction services to customers above. Due to the shortage of funds of the customers, the
Group expected some contract assets are difficult to be settled and impairment allowance is provided accordingly.

The terminated contract assets by the Group are presented in detail in Note V. 4.

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the contract assets that were pledged by the Group to banks for borrowings
are presented in detail in Note V, 68.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

10.  Current portion of non-current assets

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Current portion of long-term receivables (Note V. 13) 25,868,151 30,009,625

11.  Other current assets
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Input VAT to be credited 42,011,257 39,093,862
,422,677

12. Debt investments

30 June 2021

Impairment
Carrying amount allowance Net amount
Loans receivable from related parties(Note X.6) 19,678,616 (7,176) 19,671,440

Less: Debt investments of non-current assets due within
one year (Note V.10)

31 December 2020

Impairment
Carrying amount allowance Net amount

19,183,824 (4,669) 19,179,155

Less: Debt investments of non-current assets due within
one year (Note V.10)
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V.

13.

14.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Long-term receivables

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Receivables from PPP projects (Note) - 90,254,972

Note: According to explanation No.14 issued by the Ministry of Finance, the long-term receivables of PPP projects were
adjusted in this period, resulting the amount of PPP project for long-term receivables at the end of the period is Nil.

On 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group pledged long-term receivables to banks for borrowings are presented
in detail in Note V. 68.

Long-term equity investments
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Joint ventures 42,987,287 39,920,192

159
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
14. Long-term equity investments (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2021

(a) Joint venture
Movement during the period

Investment
profits/ Other Impairment
Opening Increase/ (losses)  comprehensive  Declaration Closing allowance
Balance ~ (Decrease)  under equity income of cash Others balance of atthe end
of the period investment method adjustment dividends (Note 1) theperiod o the period
Guiheng Investment Co., Ltd. 2,013,091 - 42,507 - - - 2,455,598 -
Gl&hothhengm Expressway Investment Management 2452818 _ _ (154) _ _ 2452664 _
CITICBaohdaReaIEstate(Foshan)CoLtd1,925,754-(11,078)---1,914,676 ......... '2'9'2',;1‘6'2““
Zunyi Nanhuan Expressway Development _ _ _ B
Co.Ltd. (ole) 1,402,963 37,100 45,540 1,485,603
China Construction and Construction Credit Shares
No. 9 Urbanization Investment Private Equity Fund L B - - B o Lkl B
Zhengzhou GSCEC Shenzhen Rail Transit Co., Ltd. 1,029,089 244,606 (52,233) - - - 1,221,462 -
Beijing Chenxing International Convention and _ _ _ _ _ B
Exhiiton Co, Ltd 1,199,964 1,199,964
Nanjing Second Yangtze River Bridge Co., Ltd. 1,010,136 - 96,439 1,724 - - 1,108,299 -
China Construction New Urbanization (Xinjiang) 826,422 187,007 70 _ _ _ 1058222 _
Investment Co., Ltd.
Guizhou Leirong Expressway Investment 1004347 _ 150 (5.081) _ _ 999,416 B
Management Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Lingbo Haihui City Construction and 947,670 15321 (1) (15716) _ _ 947,263 _
Development Co,, Ltd
Shanghai Lingang New District Jingang Dongjiu Real _ _ _ _ _
Estete Co, Ld 911,400 (6,191) 905,209
China Overseas Souther Airines Construction & 825,130 _ 5262 _ _ _ 830392 _
Development Co., Ltd.
Anchgl Elijggwu Expressway Investment Management 740,658 70,000 _ (1,704 _ _ 808,954 _
Liupanshui urban pipe gallery construction and 704,934 _ _ _ _ _ 700934 _

Development Investment Co., Ltd.

China Construction Sharing No. 35 Infrastructure

Investment Private Equity Fund il B B B B B Ml B
Guangdong Guotong Logistics City Co., Ltd. 666,978 KINETS (13,596) (10,239) - - 674,880 -
Shenzhen CSCEC Win-win No. 8 Infrastructure 850,000 (225,000) %888 _ (26,86) _ 25,000 _

Investment Center (LP)

CSCEC Road & Bridge Group Co., Lid. 661,819 - 8,748 (425) - (48,899) 621,243 -
Mianyang Zhongjian Kefa Guanlang Road _ _ _ _ _

Investment and Construction Co., Ltd. 32,306 (1878) 551028
Jinan Zhonghai Dongcheng Real Estate Development 525,030 _ 11828 _ _ _ 536,858 _

Co,, Ltd.

Changsha GSCEC Chengtou Pipe Well Development 53792 _ 215 _ _ _ 534,007 _

Investment Co., Ltd.

Shaotong CSCEC Construction Investment &

Develpment Co, LG 511,373 - (3,654) - - - 507,719 -
Others 16,627,506 1,377,364 163,862 (14437) (154,504) 45944 18,045,735 1,358
Joint ventures sub-total 39,920,192 2,938,189 359,285 (46,032) (181,392) (2,955) 42,987,287 293,820

Note 1: Other changes are mainly caused by the changes in the investee’s other equity movement other than other
comprehensive income and the volatility of foreign exchange rate.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Long-term equity investments (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2021 (continued)

Associates

Movement during the period

Investment
profits/ Other Impairment
Opening Increase/ (losses) ~ comprehensive  Declaration Closing allowance
balance ~(Decrease)  under equity income of cash Others balance of atthe end
of the period investment method adjustment dividends (Note 1) theperiod  of the period
Crina Overseas Grand Oceans Group LG 9247852 - 10440 e (7S (4) 10060525 .
(“Overseas Oceans’)
Anhui Guoyuan Trust Co., Ltd. 3,010,767 - 92,152 (17422) - 56,049 3,081,546 -
Jiqing Express Railway Co., Ltd. 2,312,211 - (28,391) - - - 2,283,820 -
C%COC iltjéao Expressway Investment & Development 1,662,658 95,000 (48,410) - - - 1,709,248 -
. Huahexpressway e s

1,185,000 376,004 - - - - 1,561,094 -

Development Co., Ltd.
Everbright Securities Co., Ltd. 1,453,184 - - - - (14,432) 1,438,752 -
Sanmenxia National Highway 31-0 South Moving 1,242,936 8573 _ _ _ _ 1328670 _

Project Construction Management Co., Ltd.

Xuzhou Line One Rail Transit Investment Development
Co., Ltd.

Chongging Jinke Zhaoji Real Estate Development

Co,, Ltd. 612,740 = 5,072 = - - 617,812 -
China State Construction Xi‘an Urban Construction 548,866 _ (4669) _ _ _ 544,203 _
Investment Co., Ltd.
Nantong Raocheng Expressway Co., Ltd. - 518,291 - - - - 518,291 -
Liupanshui Dongda highway investment and 501,602 _ _ (2554) _ _ 199,048 _
Development Co., Ltd.
Shanxi International Power Group Real Estate 194,59 _ _ _ _ _ 194,559 _
Development Co., Ltd.
Others 14,244,652 699,447 172,314 (20,349) (87,653) (15,576) 14,992,835 236
Associates sub-total 46,812,925 2,741,500 1,394,873 (22,409) (749,863) 10289 50,187,315 236
Total 86,733,117 5,679,689 1,754,158 (68,441) (931,255) 7334 93,174,602 294,056

Note 1: Other changes are mainly caused by the changes in the investee’s other equity movement other than other
comprehensive income and the volatility of foreign exchange rate.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

14. Long-term equity investments (continued)
2020

(a) Joint ventures
Movement during the year

Investment
profits/ Other Impairment
Opening Increase/ (losses)  comprehensive  Declaration Closing allowance
Balance ~ (Decrease)  under equity income of Cash Others balance of atthe end
oftheyear ~ investment method adjustment dividends (Note 1) the year of the year
Guizhou Zhengxi Expressway Investment Management 250072 150610 ) 145 ~ ~ 2452818 ~

Co., Ltd.

Zunyi Nanhuan Expressway Development Co. Ltd.

1,132,736 100,000 170,227 - - - 1,402,963 -

(Note 2)

Zhengzhou CSCEC Shenzhen Rail Transit Co., Ltd. 325,180 704,240 (331) - - - 1,029,089 -

Nanjing Second Yangtze River Bridge Co., Ltd. 1,103,558 - 86,814 (678) (179,558) - 1,010,136 -

GlgzohOEkI]elrong Expressway Investment Management 159486 19799 _ 16868 _ _ 004347 _

Shanghai Lingbo Hainui City Construction and 90,360 _ (13577) 87 _ _ 97670 _
Development Co., Ltd

Shanghai Lingang New District Jingang Dongjiu Real _ 911,400 _ _ _ _ 911,400 _
Estate Co., Ltd

Shenzhen CSCEC Win-win No. 8 Infrastructure 1,000000 (150,000 620 _ (T4620) _ 850,000 _
Investment Center (LP)

China Overseas Southern Airlines Construction & 17,99 _ 712 _ _ B 825,130 _
Development Co., Ltd.

Liupanshui urban pipe gallery construction and ~ _ ~ _ _
Development Investment Co., Ltd. 759 (663 734,33

Beijing Nanyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 728,933 - 35,985 - - - 764,918 -

Anggl I?jggwu Expressway Investment Management 605,617 135,426 _ (385 _ _ 740658 _

"'Gh'érigdbh‘g‘Gﬁét‘dﬁg'l.'bgi's‘ﬁc's‘Ci‘tylc‘b.',‘ﬁd."‘wwmwww: 444444444 e wos

CSCEC Road & Bridge Group Co., Lid. 607,293 - 45,381 (247) - 9,392 661,819 -

Mianyang Zhongj|an Kefa Guanlang Road Investment 316757 240,000 (3851) ~ ~ ~ 552,906 ~
and Construction Co., Ltd.

Changsha CSCEC Chengtou Pipe Well Development 528,106 _ 5686 ~ _ ~ 533792 _
Investment Co., Ltd.

China Constvrucuon Haijia (Foshan) Investment and 522,61 _ 10985 6399 _ ~ 527,253 ~
Construction Co., Ltd.

Shaotong CSCEC Construction Investment & 504,445 _ 6908 ~ _ _ 511,473 _
Development Co. Ltd.

China Construction (Tianjin) Rail Transit Investment 245,681 23,143 ~ ~ ~ ~ 178804 ~
Development Co., Ltd.

Urumgi Zhongeheng Silk Road Sports Management 188671 _ (10850) ~ _ ~ T8t ~
Co., Ltd.

China Constructwon (Tangshan Caofeidian) Engineering 163456 B 11299 2199) B _ 17255 B
Construction Co., Lid.

Hebei Road and Bridge Group Co., Ltd. 409,465 - 30,254 (165) - - 439,554 -

Others 16,182,466 3,061,271 2,097,169 (104320)  (1473123)  (2,239,085) 17,524,408 1,358

Joint ventures sub-total 34,648,316 6,545,918 2,750,015 (67,093)  (1,727301)  (2,229663) 39,920,192 293,820

Note 1: Other changes are mainly caused by the changes in the investee’s other equity movement other than other
comprehensive income and the volatility of foreign exchange rate
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Long-term equity investments (continued)

2020 (continued)

Associates

Movement during the year

Investment
profits/ Other Impairment
Opening Increase/ (losses)  comprehensive  Declaration Closing allowance
balance ~ (Decrease)  under equity income of cash Others balance of atthe end
of the year investment method adjustment dividends (Note 1) the year of the year
Crina Overseas Grand Oceans Group LG 7,489,769 - 1676410 V672 (309420) (62) 9247852 -
(Overseas Oceans’)
Anhui Guoyuan Trust Co., Ltd. 2,799,221 - 175,143 36916 (32,966) 32,453 3,010,767 -
Jiging Express Railway Co., Ltd. 2,082,659 322,490 (92,938) - - - 2,312,211 -
C%COC iltjéao Expressway Investment & Development 1,302,088 41915 (82,245) - - - 1,662,658 -
EverbnghtSecuntlesCoLtd1460733— 4444444444 72704 ............ 24240 ........... (5136) 4444444444 ( 99357)1453184—
Sanmenxia National Highway 31-0 South Moving
Project Construction Management Co., Ltd. 0000 255 1:2425%
Yunnan Huali expressway investment and Development 790,000 395,000 _ ~ _ _ 1,185,000 B
Co., Ltd.
Xug:ouul.(;ne One Rail Transit Investment Development 790000 200000 B ~ B ~ 1,090,000 B

Chongging Jinke Zhaoji Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

China State Construction Xi‘an Urban Construction

Investment Co, Lid. - 557,846 (8,980) - - - 548,866 -

Liupanshui Dongda highway investment and 509,644 _ " (6056) _ _ 501,602 _
Development Co., Ltd.

Shanxi International Power Group Real Estate 194,659 B _ ~ B ~ 194659 B
Development Co., Ltd.

Zhengzhou pubhc Zhongeheng road and Bridge 415,000 £2658 B ~ ~ ~ 477658 B
Construction Management Co., Lid.

Nanjing Zhongjian Rural Tourism Construction ~ 119290 _ ~ _ _ 119290 _
Investment Co., Ltd.

Other 14,980,666 (2,209,818) 397,509 (58,861) (324,251) 562,459 13,347,704 236

Associates sub-total 40,562,641 2,738917 3,168,120 389,401 (1,457,914) 1,411,760 46,812,925 236

Total 75,210,957 9,284,835 5,918,135 322,308 (3,185,215) (817,903) 86,733,117 204,056

Note 1: Other changes are mainly caused by the changes in the investee’s other equity movement other than other
comprehensive income and the volatility of foreign exchange rate.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Long-term equity investments (continued)
The movements in impairment allowance of long-term equity investments are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Closing balance
of the period

Opening balance
of the period

Increase during
the period

Decrease during
the period

CITIC Baolida Real Estate (Foshan) Co., Ltd. 292,462 - - 292,462
- = 1,594
294,056

Opening balance Increase during Decrease during Closing balance

of the year the year the year of the year
CITIC Baolida Real Estate (Foshan) Co., Ltd. 292,462 - - 292,462
e 1594__ ....................... 1594
e 294056—— ................... 294056
Investments in other equity instruments
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Equity investments
e eq uny e 1,2 - , o A 1329 8 s
C Unisted eqwtymve e A ,2 . 4, o R 4508 5 .
e s ,5 . 4, o R 5838 3 e
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Equity investments
B~
e e tedequn y e R 1,2 10 , e R 1241 4 o
e Unisiod o q mty . s ,67 . , e 3899 7 e
G ges e R
e Llstedequnylnvestments49,730 ........................... 88343
e Unisiod o qmty e - 7, e R o8 8 0
B " s ’57 4, e R 5838 3 a1
For the six months ended 30 June 2021
Reasons
o ; designated
Changes Dividend income of the year as fair value
in fair value Equity measurement
accumulated instruments with changes
to other derecognised in Equity included in other
comprehensive the current instruments comprehensive
income Fair value year still held income
Listed equity investments 49,730 1,289,585 - 72,459 Non-tradable
Unisied equnylnvest e 607,619 ............... 4,284,496 ........................ o 66,946 4444444444 s
B T 657,349 ............... 5,574 ,081 ........................ o 139,405 ..............................
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

15. Investments in other equity instruments (continued)

2020
Reasons
o ; designated
Changes Dividend income of the year as fair value
in fair value Equity measurement
accumulated instruments with changes
to other derecognised in Equity included in other
comprehensive the current instruments comprehensive
income Fair value year still held income
Listed equity investments 88,343 1,329,839 - 108,778 Non-tradable
Unlisted equity investments 608,807 4,508,545 18,983 28,385 Non-tradable
Total 697,150 5,838,384 18,983 137,163

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group disposed of RMB270,522 thousand of other equity instrument
investment (2020: RMB643,269 thousand), and a total amount of RMB7,371 thousand has been transferred from other
comprehensive income to retained earnings (2020: RMB310,690 thousand).

16. Investment properties
Subsequent measurement under the cost model:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Investment
properties
Buildings Land use rights in progress Total
Cost
Opening balance of the period 61,368,409 16,536,224 29,176,233 107,080,866
Increase during the period 5,289,075 4,360,751 2,497,013 12,146,839
Decrease during the period (472,491) (31,562) (23,503) (527,556)
Closing balance of the period 66,184,993 20,865,413 31,649,743 118,700,149
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation

Opening balance and Closing
balance of the period
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16.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Subsequent measurement under the cost model: (continued)

2020
Investment
properties
Buildings Land use rights in progress Total
Cost
L Openmg T, oftheyear ............................ 52236824 1316721 . 18862716 ............. 84266751 .
Increasedurmgtheyear11525091 ............... 341931010537506 ............. 25481907
 Decrens edurmg e year .................................. (2393506 ) .................. (50297 ) ................ (22398 S ) ............. (2667792) -
o mg balance of the year .............................. o 368409 e 16536224 ............. 2917623 s : 07080866 -
o depreC| oy

amortisation

)

Investment properties are leased out to third parties under operating leases.

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group changed the use of houses and buildings with a carrying amount of
RMB84,268 thousand (A cost of: RMB94,582 thousand) for self-use and transferred them into fixed assets at the date of
change of use; for the year of 2020, the Group changed the houses and buildings with a carrying amount of RMB1,659,677
thousand (A cost of: RMB1,710,402 thousand) for self-use and transferred them into fixed assets at the date of change of
use.

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group has not changed the investment; for the year of 2020, the Group
changed the investment properties with a carrying amount of RMB25,184 thousand (A cost of: RMB26,667 thousand) to
inventory.

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group changed the inventory with a carrying amount of RMB1,071,733
thousand (A cost of: RMB1,071,733 thousand) to lease, and transfers the inventory into investment properties at the date of
change of use; for the year of 2020, the Group changed the inventory with a carrying amount of RMB9,047,396 thousand (A
cost of: RMB9,047,396 thousand) to lease, and transferred the inventory into investment properties at the date of change of
use.

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group changed the fixed assets with a carrying amount of RMB55,159
thousand (A cost of: RMB83,439 thousand) to lease, and transferred from fixed assets to investment properties at the
date of change of use; for the year of 2020, the Group changed the fixed assets with a carrying amount of RMB267,317
thousand (A cost of: RMB308,100 thousand) to lease, and transferred from fixed assets to investment properties at the
date of change of use.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group’s construction in progress project with a carrying amount of
RMB5,484,290 thousand (A cost of: RMB5,484,290 thousand) was completed and used for leasing, which was changed
to investment properties; for the year of 2020, the Group’s construction in progress project with a carrying amount of
RMB580,792 thousand (A cost of: RMB580,792 thousand) was completed and used for leasing, which was changed to
investment properties.

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group disposed the investment real estate with book value of RMB256,155
thousand with a disposal income of RMB22,447 thousand; In 2020, the Group disposed the investment real estate with a
book value of RMB84,622 thousand, with a disposal income of RMB168 thousand.

For the six months ended 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the investment properties that were pledged by the
Group to banks for borrowings are presented in details in Note V. 68.

Fixed assets

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Office
equipment,
temporary
Machinery and Motor facilities and
Buildings equipment vehicles others Total
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V.

17.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Fixed assets (continued)

2020
Office
equipment,
temporary
Machinery and Motor facilities and
Buildings equipment vehicles others Total

Fixed assets held under a finance lease are as follows:

31 December 2020

Accumulated Impairment
Cost depreciation allowance Net book value
Machinery and equipment 710,394 (137,189) - 573,205

The carrying amount of operating leased fixed assets are as follows:

As at 30 June 2021, the fixed assets with a carrying amount of RMB120,208 thousand,and a cost of RMB193,619 thousand
are leased out under operating leases (31 December 2020:a carrying amount of 159,348 thousand,and a cost of RMB247,937
thousand).

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the fixed assets that were pledged by the Group to banks for borrowings are
presented in details in Note V, 68.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

Carrying
amount

5,764,955

30 June 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment Net book
allowance value
250,945 5,514,010

Carrying
amount

11,184,034

The movements of significant projects of construction in progress are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021:

Beijing Advanced Business Park Office
Building of China Construction Third
Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Zhongjian Yuelan Mountain
Project

Liutai Building of China Construction Sixth
Engineering Division Corp. Ltd.

Songjiang Yunzhu Shenlan Construction
Project

Beijing Advanced Business Park Office
Building of China Construction Third
Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Zhongjian Yuelan Mountain
Project

Liutai Building of China Construction Sixth
Engineering Division Corp. Ltd.

Songjiang Yunzhu Shenlan Construction
Project

Note: Other transferred out mainly include the situation that the construction in progress is used for leasing and transferred

Budgeted
amount

2,152,390

Budgeted
amount

2,152,390

Opening
balance of
the period

1,023,147

Opening
balance of
the year

1,515,607

Additions

183,457

Additions

410,646

Transfer to
fixed assets
(Note V. 17)

(1,877,941)

Transfer to
fixed assets
(Note V. 17)

to investment properties after the completion of construction in progress.

Other
transferred
out (Note)

(119,869)

Other
transferred
out (Note)

INTERIM REPORT 2021

31 December 2020

Impairment Net book

allowance value

(250,945) 10,933,089

Proportion

of

Closing investment

balance of Source  to budget

the period of funds (%)
Self-funding

108,794 and loan 9

- Self-funding 67
Self-funding

- and loan 0
Self-funding

- and loan e
Self-funding

773,931 and loan 59

691,915 Self-funding 94

- Self-funding 99
Self-funding

399,502 and loan 73

3,790,813 N/A N/A

5,764,955

Proportion

of

Closing investment

balance of Source  to budget

the year of funds (%)
Self-funding

1,923,147 and loan 89

936,438 Self-funding 64
Self-funding

895,968 and loan 69

839,821 Self-funding 60

714,036 Self-funding 54

626,476 Self-funding 99

369,439 Self-funding %
and loan

348,621 Self-funding 64
Self-funding

4,530,088 and loan N/A

11,184,034
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
18.  Construction in progress (continued)
The movements of significant projects of construction in progress are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021:

Accumulated Including:
amount of Interest Capitalisation
interest capitalised rate during the
Progress capitalised  during the period period (%)

Beijing Advanced Business Park Office
Building of China Construction Third 98% 11,577 30,851 5.78
Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd.

Zhonghai Huanyu City Construction
Project

Accumulated Including:
amount of Interest Capitalisation
interest capitalised rate during the
Progress capitalised during the year year (%)
Beijing Advanced Business Park Office
Building of China Construction Third 89% 187,417 63,556 5.78
Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd.
CSCEC Jinxiutiandi Construction Project 69% 115,270 43,455 4.50
Songjiang Building Construction Project 96% 6,303 2,718 4.75
Others N/A 59,383 29,282 N/A
Total 368,373 139,011

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the construction in progress that were pledged by the Group to banks for
borrowings are presented in details in Note V, 68.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Construction in progress (continued)

Impairment allowance of construction in progress:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Opening balance
of the period

250,945

Opening balance
of the year

Right of use assets

Increase during
the period

Increase during
the year

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Decrease during
the period

Decrease during
the year

Machinery and
equipment

Buildings

Increase during
the period

250,945

Increase during
the year

Motor
vehicles

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

Reason

The book value is higher
than the recoverable
amount

Reason

The book value is higher
than the recoverable
amount

Other
equipments Total
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V.

20.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Intangible assets

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Land use Franchise

rights rights Software Others Total

rights rights Software Others Total

of RMB18,491,848 thousand that have not yet been operated
in the contract assets in the intangible assets — franchise rights.

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the intangible assets that were pledged by the Group to banks for borrowings
are presented in details in Note V, 68.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Goodwill
For the six months ended 30 June 2021
Opening balance Increase during  Other movements Closing balance
The invested entity of the period the period (Note) of the period
China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. (“China Overseas 1,429,449 _ (22,018) 1,407,431

Land & Investment”)

China State Construction Development Holdings Limited
(“State Construction Development”)

China Construction Sixth Engineering D|V|S|pn Water 42.797 _ _ 42797
Conservancy and Hydropower Construction Group
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

21.  Goodwill (continued)

2020
Opening balance Increase during  Other movements Closing balance
The invested entity of the year the year (Note) of the year
China Overseas Lanci& Investment Ltd. (“China Overseas 1,498,889 B (69,440) 1,429,449
Land & Investment”)
Ch|£1a State Constrgctlon Developmt?‘nt Holdings Limited 51123 _ (23,684) 487548
(“State Construction Development”)
Plaza Construction LLP 105,551 - (6,829) 98,722
Fingnciere Groupe Betom - 59,210 (807) 58,403
China Construction Sixth Engineering Division Water 42797 _ _ 12797

Conservancy and Hydropower Construction Group

Changes in impairment allowance of goodwill are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Opening balance Accrued Other movements Closing balance
of the period this period (Note) of the period
Jimsar County Tianyu Huaxin Cement Development 14,601 _ _ 14,601

Co., Ltd
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

Changes in impairment allowance of goodwill are as follows: (continued)

2020

Opening balance Accrued Other movements Closing balance

of the year this year (Note) of the year

Jirr(l:sir Et(;unty Tianyu Huaxin Cement Development 14,601 B _ 14,601
e Haoyulnvest - CoLt Lo 5 142 ............................. S R 1 3142 -
- Chongqnghonghal st Co L . 1 o S (51 7) ..................... 10650 -
GG 7o ngHuan . ngmeer |ng P R R - 031 ............................. S o 03 .
Cobee 1634101 ............................ (7)4257
e % 073 ...................... 6 1 p (524) ..................... 5468 o

Note: Other movements are mainly due to changes in exchange rates.

The measurement basis and main assumptions for the recoverable amounts of the above asset groups are as follows:

The recoverable amount of an asset group is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and the present value of the future
cash flows estimated to be derived from the asset or the asset group.

For the asset group or portfolio of China Overseas Land & Investment and China State Construction Development, the
present value of the future cash flows of the asset group were higher than the book value, and there was no impairment of
the relevant goodwill.

Long-term prepaid expenses

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Balance Changes in Opening Closing

at the end of accounting balance balance

prior year policies  of the period Increase ~ Amortisation = Other decrease  of the period

Expendiure on improvement of 444,600 - 444,600 57,535 (64,067) 7993) 430075

leased fixed assets

Opening Closing

balance Other balance

of the year Increase Amortisation decrease of the year

Expenditure on improvement of 417,141 149,747 (117,334) (4,954) 444,600

leased fixed assets

Office rent 66,650 129,265 (40,062) (1,651) 154,202
Decoration cost 218,649 112,276 (70,959) (4,669) 255,297
Others 233,360 88,067 (68,945) (7,872) 244,610

Total 935,800 479,355 (297,300

=
—_
=
©
L
S
2
—
f=}
©
o
~
o
©
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V.

23.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Deductible Deductible
temporary temporary
differences Deferred differences Deferred
and losses tax assets and losses tax assets

Deferred tax assets

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Taxable Taxable
temporary Deferred temporary Deferred
differences tax liabilities differences tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation of fixed assets 361,320 74,414 364,073 74,825

Fair value adjustment of business
combinations involving enterprises not 11,822,400 2,947,927 14,864,768 3,445,441

under common control

Changes in fair value of financial assets 647,956 133,969 621,625 170,550
Gain from special restructuring of 1,179,437 204,859 1179,437 294,859

subsidiaries (Note 1)

Note 1: According to Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on Enterprise Income Tax
Treatment of Enterprise Reorganization (Cai Shui [2009] No. 59), deferred tax liabilities are recognised by the Company
and other related subsidiaries for the difference between tax base and accounting base of equity investment arising from
reorganization of West Construction.

Note 2: According to the arrangement between Mainland China and Hong Kong Special Administrative Region over
income taxes to avoid double taxation and tax evasion, signed between Mainland China and Hong Kong, withholding tax
for dividends are provided by domestic subsidiaries, domestic associates and domestic joint ventures of the subsidiaries of
China Overseas Land & Investment and China State Construction International Holdings Limited (“China State Construction
International”) for profit estimated to be distributed to the subsidiaries of China Overseas Land & Investment and China
State Construction International at the tax rate of 5%.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that are presented at the net amount after offsetting:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Offsetting Net amount Offsetting Net amount
amount after offsetting amount after offsetting
Deferred tax assets 2,226,815 17,096,011 1,244,327 16,249,442
e R 2,226,81 s 5,670,447 ............... ; 24432 S 6 056150 -

Deductible temporary differences and deductible tax losses for which deferred tax assets are not recognised are listed as
follows:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Deductible temporary differences 22,770,724 22,128,260
Deductible tax losses 18,513,783 17,403,113
Total 41,284,507 39,531,373

Deductible tax losses that are not recognised as deferred tax assets will expire in the following years:
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
995,912 1,703,333

Other non-current assets
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Contract assets (Note V. 9) 238,733,550 139,278,678

As at 30 June 2021, the impairment allowance of the above contract assets is RMB2,191,369 thousand (31 December
2020: RMB1,512,738 thousand).
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V.

25.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Impairment allowance of assets

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Decrease during the period

Balanceat ~ Changes in Opening Closing
theendof ~ accounting  balance of  Provision for Transfer/ Other  balance of
prior year policies the period the period Reversal Write-off ~ movement the period

Impairment allowance of accounts receivable 25,790,000 12,430 25,802,430 7,296,946  (4,465,499) (218,986) (81,865) 28,333,026

Impairment allowance of other receivables 6,759,453 - 6,759,453 1,293,282 (673,781) (141,989) (27,805) 7,209,160

Impairment allowance of other current assets 1,531,269 - 1,531,269 113,454 - - - 1,644,723

Impairment allowance of curent porion of 4 g4 44 44260 1985273 135047  (269,571) - (94142 1,756,607
non-current assets

Impairment allowance of other non-current
assets

Impairment provision for write-down of

inventories
Impairment allowance of long-term equity 294056 _ 294,056 _ _ _ _ 294,056
investments ’ 2 )
Impairment allowance of fixed assets 227,767 - 227,767 - - (4,687) (58) 223,022
Impairment allowance of construction in 250945 _ 250945 _ _ _ _ 250.045
progress ’ ’ ’

Decrease during the year

Opening Closing

balance Provision Transfer/ Other balance of

of the year for the year Reversal Write-off movement the year

Impairment allowance of accounts receivable 23,804,177 15,060,518 (12,166,489) (902,942) (5,264) 25,790,000
Impairment allowance of other receivables (42,063) 6,759,453
Impairment allowance of other current assets (40,779) 1,531,269
Impairment allowance of current portion of 145,047 1941013

non-current assets

Impairment allowance of long-term equity
investments

Total
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Short-term borrowings

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Unsecured borrowings 70,334,254 24,576,438

The annual interest rate for the above borrowings varied from 0.28% to 10.00% (31 December 2020: 0.30% to 10.00%).

As at 30 June, 2021, the Group had a short-term loan principal of RMB4,907 thousand pledged by the letter of credit (31
December 2020: RMB21,455 thousand).

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group has mortgaged or pledged various assets to banks as security for
borrowings that are presented in details in Note V.68.

Notes payable

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Commercial acceptance bills 1,508,366 528,567

Accounts payable
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Payables for projects and for real estate development 257,464,317 255,909,264
- Payable sforpurchase e 174’39 o ’ e R 1671 s oy
- Payable R 60,92 . ’ e R 5602 5 e
St payable ................................................................................................................ 17’07 . , e R 15554 13
B 10,68 A , e R . 72 . e
B 520’54 5 , e 502386 o6s

As at 30 June 2021, accounts payable over 1 year with a carrying amount of RMB136,519,989 thousand (31 December
2020: RMB135,390,290 thousand) are mainly payables for projects, which are unsettled as the projects have not been
completed or settled.

Advances from customers
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Others 722,871 607,427

As at 30 June 2020, advances from customers over 1 year with a carrying amount of RMB17,079 thousand (31 December
2020: RMB10,766 thousand) are mainly for advance rent receipts.

Contract liabilities

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Amount due to customers for contract work 62,386,712 68,341,670

179
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

30. Contract liabilities (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the details of advances for sale of properties are as follows:

Estimated
completion/ Pre-sale
completion date percentage
Project name 30 June 2021 31 December 2020 (Note) (%) (Note)

Beixinan Shanty Town Repair Housing Placement Project 8,533,194 8,257,204 August 2022 45




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 181
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
30. Contract liabilities (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the details of advances for sale of properties are as follows: (continued)

Estimated
completion/ Pre-sale
completion date percentage
Project name 30 June 2021 31 December 2020 (Note) (%) (Note)
Huinan Minle Project, Pudong, Shanghai 1,506,101 1,343,987 June 2021 80

31

Qingdao Huangdao District Double Star Tire Old Factory Land
Development Project Plot G

Wuhan Zhonghailianhua Lake Project 840,652 1,613,937
. Chongq mg e pressm R 824, .. R 685 oo et
. Changde Zhongj B muangfu .............................................................. o ’ - 446 T e e
. Changzhouxmuayayuan .................................................................... . 6, g 21 64 B
. Shenyang . eplngz R 5#(Phase|) ............................................ 5 ’ ... R 324 o amen T
. Changsha CSCEC J|angshanNo R 6 2’500 ................ 1 008777 .......................................................
Shasrsjnzgogiim; :o;;;,n;he 19th block of Houshayu Town, 604,262 2,267,599
. Chengdu T R 7 563, oo 1 27412 .......................................................
R ZhongpanYuexn a|Pr01e R 529’ e 1 1 i b Dy
. Chongq |ng Zhongj " Yuhecheng ( - ) ............................................... 524’ e R 1 063 o0 et e
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

30. Contract liabilities (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the details of advances for sale of properties are as follows: (continued)

Estimated
completion/ Pre-sale
completion date percentage
Project name 30 June 2021 31 December 2020 (Note) (%) (Note)
Yunnan Kunming Three Gorges Building and Wu'ai Community 268,305 1,407,007 May 2021 79

Note: Most of the above projects are phased development projects. The estimated completion time is the last phase
of completion, and the pre-sale ratio is the proportion of the contracted area of the housing area that meets the sales
conditions at the end of each year.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
31. Employee benefits payable
For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance of during during balance of
the period the period the period the period

Short-term employee benefits payable 7,962,165 45,936,678 (47,394,079) 6,504,764

Defined contribution plans payable
(Defined contribution plans)

19,650
,696,717
2020
Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance of during during balance of
the year the year the year the year
Short-term employee benefits payable 7,474,848 75,080,672 (74,593,355) 7,962,165
Defined contribution plans payable 250,374 4,189,747 (4,230,346) 218,775
(Defined contribution plans)
Termination benefits payable (Note V. 40) 23,640 11,511 (15,531) 19,620
Total 7,757,862 79,281,930 (78,839,232) 8,200,560
Short-term employee benefits payable are as follows:
For the six months ended 30 June 2021
Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance of during during balance of
the period the period the period the period
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and 6,523,052 37,613,277 (39,168,785) 4,967,544

subsidies

Union running costs and employee
education costs
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

31. Employee benefits payable (continued)

2020
Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance of during during balance of
the year the year the year the year
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and 6,192,039 60,825,365 (60,494,352) 6,523,052
subsidies
i welfar 19766 ............... 5388159 44444444444444 (538974 o ) ................... 18178 -
Cod securny .......................................................... 12254 , 2556747 44444444444444 (258459 1) ................... 94698 -
R |ngMed|c i 10504 R 231022 g (233574 7 ) ................... 79526 -
Tttt Work |n]ury s 8261 444444444444444444 12582 L (12414 4) ..................... 9938 -
I i~ y T 923 e 120697 ................. ( 12470 5 ) ..................... 5234 -
. Suppleme . tarycomme i 933 g 147359 ................. (15568 2) ..................... 101 5
Housmg e 10960 L 3838600 44444444444444 (384131 5) ................. 106886 -
Union running costs and employee 1,000,494 1,725,485 (1,600,897) 1,125,082
education costs
Other Shomtier b 2107 g 598957 ................. (52677 1) ................... 93256 -
i 747484 g 75080672 444444444444 (7459335 5) .............. 7 962165 -
Defined contribution plans payable are as follows:
For the six months ended 30 June 2021
Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance of during during balance of
the period the period the period the period
Basic pension insurance 172,828 2,776,874 (2,822,897) 126,805
o toannwty ................................................ 36,97 , 522,736 ................. (524,96 7) ................... 34,741 N
U employm .- S 8,97 g 96,34 o (94,56 7) ................... 10,757 -
e 218,775 ............... 3’395!959 44444444444444 (3’442,43 1) ................. 172,303 N
2020
Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance of during during balance of
the year the year the year the year
Basic pension insurance 181,653 3,150,687 (3,159,512) 172,828
................................................................................................................. 934377
................................................................................................................. 104683

4,189,747
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

32. Taxes and surcharges payable

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Land appreciation tax 31,620,918 31,639,156

33.  Other payables
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Dividends payable 5,540,669 782,432
Other payables 116,942,989 117,490,810
Total 122,483,658 118,273,242

Dividends payable
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 5,223,369 462,132
Preferenceshares/perpetualbonddmdendspayable317,300 ......................... . 20300
B B " s ,54 0 , e o e
Other payables

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Guarantees payable 31,197,967 29,220,877
- Prolect o ancmg pa yables ............................................................................................ 5 ,4 | 7’ o R 36530 670
Deposntsp ayable ............................................................................................................ - ,4 a1 , e R . 296 o1
- Payable o 23,59 . , o R 19590 a1
- Payments s 1o restrictod stock nsoniive obje S A ,1 o3 , R . 206 003
B 19,1 s , o R 5 64 : 3
B 116,94 ) , o R 117490 10

As at 30 June 2021, other payables over 1 year with a carrying amount of RMB36,522,486 thousand (31 December 2020:
RMB35,120,396 thousand) are mainly guarantees payable and project financing payables, which were unsettled due to
the incompleteness of projects.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

34.  Current portion of non-current liabilities

30 June 2021
Current portion of long-term borrowings (Note V. 36) 45,651,509

31 December 2020
46,275,177

35. Other current liabilities
30 June 2021
VAT output to be transferred 72,262,306

31 December 2020
65,945,114

Note 1: The information of short-term financing bills is listed as follows:

Opening In current
Issuance date Maturity balance period
21 China Construction Second Engineering Division.Corp. Ltd SCP002 11 June 2021 90 days - 2,000,000

Annual

Ending interest
balance rate (%)
2,000,000 222

1,000,000
500,000

Note 2: As at 30 June 2021, the amount of funds borrowed by China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. in the interbank
lending market was RMB6,000,000 thousand (31 December 2020: Nil). The annual interest rate of the above borrowed
funds was 2.30% to 3.40%, the value date was 28 June 2021, and the maturity date was 5 July 2021. There were no
mortgage or guarantee terms.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

36. Long-term borrowings

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Unsecured borrowings 243,181,846 222,827,945

As at 30 June 2021, the annual interest rate of long-term borrowings (including current portion of long-term borrowings)
varied from 1.20% to 7.00% (31 December 2020: 1.23% to 7.00%).

On 30 June 2021, the group had RMB18,958,087 thousand long-term loan principal pledged by future income rights and
the project franchise (31 December 2020: RMB15,153,181 thousand).

At 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the group has mortgaged or pledged various assets to the bank as security for

borrowings that are presented in detail in Note V.68.

37. Bonds payables
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Corporate bonds 32,271,778 33,821,517
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

38. Lease liabilities

30 June 2021
Buildings 3,676,721

39. Long-term payables

Long-term payables
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Project quality warranty payable 21,127,061 22,710,864
Payablesforfmanceleases ......................................................................................................... - 1114428 .
- Payable i m|nor|ty et ancmg ........................................................................... 5 ,7 . 3, o R 1542 3 —
- Payable <o lomcin gcompanles ..................................................................................... 1,2 o , o RS 70 1 s
e ) ,86 . , o R 2877 O o
B 27,94 S ’ o R 28814 8 o
Loee Cunrens portlon orongterm payables (NoteV 34) (10’71 7,838) .................. (11314629)
B e 17,2 o ’ o R 17500 2 o

40. Long-term employee benefits payable

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Net defined benefit liability (a) 1,886,580 1,955,040

Less: Termination benefits expected to be paid within one year
(Note V,31)
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(a)

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Long-term employee benefits payable (continued)

Net defined benefit liability

The Company pays supplementary retirement benefits for its employees who retired on or before 31 March 2007 in
addition to the contribution made to statutory insurance schemes. Such supplementary retirement benefits are defined
benefit plans. The present value of the defined benefit plan obligation is calculated annually by the external independent
actuary Towers Watson Consulting Company based on the interest rate of the national debt similar to the obligation period
and currency, using the expected cumulative benefit unit method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Discount rate 3.25% 3.25%

Annual growth rate of living expenses for the family 4.50% 4.50%
dependents of deceased employees

Annual growth rate of supplementary welfare for retired

employees
Move three years Move three years
backward annuity life chart backward annuity life chart
Mortality rate of China’s Life Insurance of China’s Life Insurance
Industry of man/women Industry of man/women
(Year 2010-2013) (Year 2010-2013)

The quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions used is as follows:

30 June 2021

decrease in Increase in

defined benefit defined benefit

Increase % obligations Decrease % obligations

Discount rate 0.25 (35,730) 0.25 37,090
31 December 2020

decrease in Increase in

defined benefit defined benefit

Increase % obligations Decrease % obligations

Discount rate 0.25 (37,510) 0.25 38,950

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the balance sheet date. The sensitivity
analysis is based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity
analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss in respect of the plan are as follows:

For the six
months ended
30 June 2021 2020

Past service cost - 100,530
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
40. Long-term employee benefits payable (continued)

(a) Net defined benefit liability (continued)

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

For the six
months ended
30 June 2021 2020

Opening balance 1,955,040 1,984,467

(b) Long-term termination benefits

Some of the Group’s employees early retired. At the balance sheet date, the main actuarial assumptions used to determine
the Group’s early retirement benefits payable are as follows:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Discount rate 2.75% 2.75%

Annual growth rate of living expenses for the family 4.50% 4.50%
dependents of deceased employees

Annual growth rate of average medical expenses 8.00% 8.00%

Move three years Move three years

backward annuity life chart backward annuity life chart

Mortality rate of China’s Life Insurance of China’s Life Insurance

Industry of man/women Industry of man/women

(Year 2010-2013) (Year 2010-2013)

Early retirement benefits recognised in profit or loss are as follows:

For the six
months ended
30 June 2021 2020

General and administrative expenses 960 (220)

41. Provisions

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance of during during balance of
the period the period the period the period

Pending litigations 3,111,987 179,820 (62,408) 3,229,399

799,752

5,743,879
(1,985,167)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Deferred income

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Government grant 636,370

As at 30 June 2021, government grants related to liabilities were as follows:

Amount
Amount  recognised
recognised in non- Other

Opening Increase in other operating changes Closing Related to
balance during income income during balance assets/
of the the during the during the the of the Related to
period period period period period period income
Government Compensation for Workshop Construction of Related to
Guangdong Construction Base Co., Ltd. 142,008 142,008 assets
Henan Province Puyang City National Highway G240 Related to

Fanxian, $304 Puyang Baikun Yellow River Bridge - 100,000 - - - 100,000
: assets

Government Compensation
Govemnment Compensation for Demolition of Tangshan Related to
Fengrun District Linyin Road West Side Land 77,408 (2,497) 7491 assets
Goverpment Compepsahon for Demolition of Guiyang 72631 _ (1,185) _ _ 71,486 Related to
Dayingpo Renovation Project assets
Huinan Minle House External Wall Maintenance Subsidy - 53,604 - - - 53,604 Rel:t::e:‘;
Compensation for Tianjin Steel Structure Land 32,466 - - - (379) 32,087 Relit::etg
OO | .. ... .. o R R A R O TR R R S

Others 139,245 54,092 (31,941) (751) 1,674 162,319 assets and
income

636,370

As at 31 December 2020, government grants related to liabilities were as follows:

Amount
Amount  recognised
recognised in non- Other
Opening Increase in other operating changes Closing Related to
balance during income income during balance assets/
of the the during the during the the of the Related to
year year year year year year income
Government Compensat.lon for Workshop Construction of 118,314 28,860 6,171 _ _ 142,003 Related to
Guangdong Construction Base Co., Ltd. assets
Government Compensation for Demolition of Tangshan Related to
Fengrun District Linyin Road West Side Land 82432 (5,024 7,408 assets
Goverpment Compepsahon Tor Demolition of Guiyang 75001 ~ 2.370) ~ ~ 72631 Related to
Dayingpo Renovation Project assets
Compensation for Tianjin Steel Structure Land 33,224 - - (758) - 32,466 Relz::sdettz
PP ST

Others 131,528 90,692 (43,510) (9,996) (29,469) 139,245  assets and
income
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

43. Other non-current liabilities

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Exchangeable bonds in 2016 (Note 1) 4,505,415 4,421,322

Note 1: The Group’s subsidiary China Overseas Finance Investment (Cayman) V Limited (here in after “the issuer”) publicly
issued exchangeable bonds of USD1.5 billion on Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 6 January 2016. The bonds are
guaranteed by China Overseas Holdings Limited, and the maturity date is 5 January 2023. Related clauses are as
follows:

(1) The bondholder is entitled to apply for redemption of bonds at 111.54% of par value on 5 January 2020;

2) In cases of the change of guarantor, or delisting or restricted trading of China Overseas Land & Investment
Ltd. on Hong Kong Stock Exchange, bond holders have the right to require the issuer to redeem the bonds
readily;

(3) Bond holders have the right to apply for redemption on maturity date at 121.07% of par value;

(4) During the exchange period from 15 February 2016 to 8 work days before maturity date, bond holders have
the right to exchange the bonds for ordinary shares of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd., the par
value of which is HKDO0.10, at the price of HKD41.50 per share;

(5) At any time from 5 January 2020 to 7 work days before maturity date, if the stock price of China Overseas
Land & Investment Ltd. during 15 trading days is continuously higher than 130% of early redemption price
set in the agreement divided by exchange rate, the issuer has the right to carry out exchange in the full (not
partial) amount, and should release notice in no more than 3 days after the matter occurs.

Exchangeable bonds in 2016 were recognised as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the first
place and disclosed in other non-current liabilities.

Note 2: Related information regarding prepaid investment of convertible bonds in 2015:

Strategic Capital, LLC, a subsidiary of the Group, received a prepaid investment of USD300 million from Riton
Holdings Corporation Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guoxin International Investment Co., Ltd. As at 30 June
2021, under the convertible bond framework agreement entered into by both parties, and the relevant conversion
clauses under the framework agreement have not yet been determined, and Strategic Capital, LLC has redeemed a
total of US$67 million.

44. Paid-in capital
For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Movement
Opening during the Closing
balance of period balance of
the period Others the period
Shares not subjected to trading restriction 41,253,603 (609,020) 40,644,583
Shares subjected to trading restriction 711,469 592,116 1,303,585
Total 41,965,072 (16,904) 41,948,168
2020
Movement
Opening during the Closing
balance of year balance of
the year Others the year

41,141,075 112,528 41,253,603
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Other equity instruments

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Opening balance of the period Increase during the period Decrease during the period Closing balance of the period
amount  net book value amount  net book value amount  net book value amount  net book value
Perpetual Bond (b) - 10,000,000 - - - - - 10,000,000
2020
Opening balance of the year Increase during the year Decrease during the year Closing balance of the year
amount  net book value amount  net book value amount  net book value amount  net book value
Preference Share (a) 150,000,000 14,975,410 - - 150,000,000 14,975,410 - -
Perpetual Bond (b) ...................... [ 6000000 ................ R 1 0000000 ................ R 6000000 ................ R 1 0000000 .
Crea 2097541010000000 .......................... 2097541010000000

Preference Share

The Company obtained approval on its non-public issue preference shares (Guozi Chanquan ([2014] No. 436) from the
SASAC and permission about its non-public issue preference shares (Zhengjian Approval [2014] No. 1419) from China
Securities Regulatory Commission on 10 June 2014 and 25 December 2014, respectively, which approved the Company
to non-publicly issue preference shares to qualified investors, with total shares no more than 300,000,000 and initial issued
shares no less than 150,000,000, at the issue price of RMB100 per share. During the period of 5 years commencing from
the first value date of each tranche, the Company is entitled to redeem and cancel all or part of the preference shares of
such tranche at the dividend payment date of such shares each year. The holders have no redemption right to sell them
back to the Company. Unless the mandatory interest payment events whose occurrence can be decided by the Company
itself incurred, the Company’s meeting of shareholders is empowered to decide to cancel all or part of dividends of
preference shares, which will not constitute a default by the Company, and the dividends of preference shares issued at
the time will not be accumulated. The Company received an actual amount of RMB14,975,410 thousand after deducting
related transaction expenses from the total amount collected by initial issuance of 150,000,000 preference shares on 2
March 2015, and classified such amount as other equity instruments.

The dividends of preference shares the Company decided to pay will be paid annually. Dividend payment date is the day
of 1 year commencing from the payment deadline for the issuance of preference shares, while the dividend payment date
for the initially issued preference shares is 2 March. If such date is a legal holiday or non-working day, it will be postponed
to the next working day, and dividends payable will not bear interest during the postponement. Preference shares issued
at the time are at fixed dividend rate attached with one-time rate raise arrangement. Nominal dividend rate of the initially
issued preference shares is determined to be and kept at 5.80% for the 1st to 5th dividend accrual years through enquiry
method. From the 6th dividend accrual year, if the Company does not exercise all of the rights of redemption, dividend rate
per share will be 2 percentage points higher than that of the 1st to 5th dividend accrual years, and will remain the same
after the adjustment in the 6th dividend accrual year.

The aforementioned mandatory interest payment events comprise of one of the two circumstances below occurring within
12 months before dividend payment date: (1) Distribution of dividends to ordinary shareholders (including cash, shares,
the combination of cash and shares and other legitimate patterns); (2) Capital withdrawal by shareholders (except for the
redemption and cancellation of shares incurred by equity incentive plan, or the redemption and cancellation of ordinary
shares by issuance of preference shares).

Pursuant to the resolution on the redemption of 150,000,000 unlisted preference shares of China Construction Co., Ltd.,
which were approved at the first extraordinary general meeting of the Company in 2020 dated 19 February 2020, the
Company redeemed all preference shares held by all the preference shareholders of the Company on 2 March 2020. After
this redemption, the number of preference shares of the Company is zero.

As at 30 June 2021, the Company had no outstanding preference shares (31 December 2020: Nil).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Other equity instruments (continued)

Perpetual Bond

(1)

On 6 March 2018, the Company entered into a perpetual bond contract with China Credit Trust Co., Ltd., of which
the value date was 7 March 2018 and the bond can be redeemed by the Company on 6 September 2018 and
thereafter. The amount of the bond was RMB6 billion and the actual amount received was RMB6 billion. According
to the clauses of the contract, unless an event triggered by an accelerated repayment mechanism that can be
decided by the Company or by the redemption rights occurs, the perpetual debt will survive for a long period of
time, or unless a compulsory interest payment event occurs that can be decided by the Company. The Company
may defer the current interest and all interest that has been deferred on each interest payment day at its own
discretion. Payment is made on the next interest payment day and is not subject to any number of deferred interest
payments. The Company credits the perpetual debt to other equity instruments.

The nominal interest rate of the medium-term notes will be fixed in the first 2 years with annual interest rate of 6.5%.
The annual interest rate will be reset to the current benchmark interest rate plus initial interest-rate spread (i.e. the
variance between nominal interest rate and benchmark interest rate at the issue date) and 200 basis points every 2
years from the third interest-bearing year, if the Company did not exercise the Right of redemption. The final rested
interest rate will not exceed 10%.

The accelerated repayment mechanism mentioned previously include: (a) One of the following situations occurs
before the deferred payment of investment income and its fruits is completed (1) Distribution of dividends to
ordinary shareholders. (2) Capital withdrawal by shareholders (except for the redemption and cancellation of
shares incurred by incentive plan, or the redemption and cancellation of ordinary shares by issuance of preference
shares). (b) Events of breach of contract for perpetual bond.

The aforementioned mandatory interest payment events comprise one of circumstances below occurring within
12 months before dividend payment date: (1) Distribution of dividends to ordinary shareholders; (2) Capital
withdrawal by shareholders (except for the redemption and cancellation of shares incurred by incentive plan, or
the redemption and cancellation of ordinary shares by issuance of preference shares).

On 6 March 2020, which is the expiry date of the investment period after the second interest payment date of the
perpetual bond, the Company exercised the Right of redemption at the face value and the interest payable in
accordance with the terms of the issuance, and fully redeemed bonds held by the holders.

During the period from 1 April 2020 to 2 April 2020, the Company issued the 2020 first-phase medium-term notes
of which the value date was 3 April 2020, and it can be redeemed by the Company on 3 April 2023 and there after.
The total issuance amount was RMB4,000,000 thousand, and the actual amount received was RMB4,000,000
thousand. The value date of issuance from 9 April to 10 April 2020 is 13 April 2020, and it can be issued on 13 April
2023 The second-phase medium-term notes can be redeemed on 3 April 2023 and beyond and thereafter has a
total issuance of RMBS3 billion, and the actual receipt of RMB3 billion. The value date of the company’s issuance
from 16 April to 17 April 2020 is 20 April 2020, the 2020 third-phase medium-term notes, which can be redeemed
on and after 20 April 2023, have a total issuance of RMB3 billion, and actually received RMB3 billion. According
to the issuance terms of the batch of medium-term notes, the batch of medium-term notes will last for a long time
before being redeemed by the Company. On the third and every subsequent interest payment date of the batch of
medium-term notes, the company has the right to redeem the batch of medium-term notes (hereinafter referred to
as Right of “redemption”) at face value plus interest payable (including all deferred interest and its yield). Investors
of this batch of medium-term notes have no right to sell back. Unless there is a compulsory interest payment event
that can be determined by the company to control whether it occurs, on each interest payment date of the batch
of medium-term notes, the company can choose to include the current interest and all interest and its fruits that
have been deferred in accordance with the terms. Interest is deferred to the next interest payment date, and is not
subject to any restrictions on the number of deferred interest payments. The company accounts for the amount
actually received after deducting the relevant transaction costs from the total issuance as other equity instruments.

The coupon rate of this batch of medium-term notes remained unchanged for the first three interest-bearing years.
The annual interest rate of the first phase of medium-term notes in 2020 is 3.29%, and the annual interest rate of
the second phase of medium-term notes in 2020 is 3.10%. The annual interest rate of the third-phase medium-term
notes is 3.09%. If the Company does not exercise the Right of redemption, the annual interest rate will be reset
every 3 years based on the current benchmark interest rate plus the initial spread plus 300 basis points from the
fourth interest calculation year. Among them, the initial spread is the difference between the coupon rate and the
initial benchmark interest rate.

The aforementioned compulsory interest payment event refers to one of the following circumstance occurring within
12 months before the interest payment date: (1) Dividend distribution to ordinary shareholders (except for the profit
paid by a wholly state-owned enterprise); (2) Reduction of registered capital. The issuer promises that there is no
hidden compulsory dividend.

As of 30 June 2021, the carrying amount of the perpetual bonds issued by the Company was RMB10,000,000
thousand (31 December 2020: RMB 10,000,000 thousand).
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Capital reserves

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Opening Increase Decrease Closing

balance of the during the during the balance of the

period period period period

Capital premium 8,697,898 - (20,130) 8,677,768
1,567,853 478,350 2,022,524

751 478,350 10,700,292

Opening Increase Decrease Closing

balance of the during the during the balance of the

year year year year

Capital premium 10,377,619 582,530 (2,262,251) 8,697,898
Others 1,649,991 511,805 (5983,943) 1,567,853
Total 12,027,610 1,094,335 (2,856,194) 10,265,751

Note: Increase in share premium is mainly due to the second batch of second-phase restricted stocks unlocked on 29
December 2019, the third batch of second-phase restricted stocks unlocked on 29 December 2020, the first batch of
third-phase restricted stocks unlocked on 26 December 2020 (as described in Note Xl), and the impact on changes
in the shareholding ratio of subsidiaries. The changes in other capital reserve were mainly due to the share option
expenses recognized, and changes in the equity of the investee accounted for under the equity method other than the
changes recorded in comprehensive income and profit distribution.

Other comprehensive income

Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent in the consolidated balance
sheet:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

1 January Increase/ 30 June
2021 decrease 2021

Remeasurement gains or losses of a defined benefit plan (243,903) - (243,903)
Change in the fair value of other equity investments (828,927) (279,664) (1,108,591)
Other comprehensive income of the investee accounted for

under the equity method which will be reclassified to profit (892,534) (137,922) (1,030,456)

or loss subsequently
Change in the fair value of other debt investments (16,246) (10,121) (26,367)
Exghange differences on translation of foreign currency 802,209 62,529 864,738

financial statements
Total (1,179,401) (365,178) (1,544,579)

2020
1 January Increase/ 31 December
2020 decrease 2020

Remeasurement gains or losses of a defined benefit plan (199,879) (44,024) (243,903)
Change in the fair value of other equity investments 214,612 (1,043,539) (828,927)
Other comprehensive income of the investee accounted for

under the equity method which will be reclassified to profit (987,607) 95,073 (892,534)

or loss subsequently
Change in the fair value of other debt investments 6,579 (22,825) (16,246)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency (810,450) 1,612,659 802,209

financial statements
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
47.  Other comprehensive income (continued)
Amount of other comprehensive income:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Less:
Reclassification
of other
comprehensive Attributable to Attributable to
income to Less: owners of the non-controlling
Before tax profit or loss Income tax parent interests

Other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income of the investee

accounted for under the equity method which will (68,441) - - (137,922) 69,481
be reclassified to profit or loss
Change in the fair value of other debt investments (16,126) - - (10,121) (6,005)
Exchange dn.‘feren.ces on translation of foreign 17,899 _ _ 62,529 (44,630)
currency financial statements
Total (470,821) 731 (131,745) (365,178) 18,731
2020
Less:
Reclassification
of other
comprehensive Attributable to Attributable to
income to Less: owners of the non-controlling
Before tax profit or loss Income tax parent interests
Other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains or losses of a defined benefit (44,020) B _ (44,024) 4
plan
Change in the fair value of other equity investments (1,047,553) 310,690 (314,779) (1,043,539) 75
Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income of the investee
accounted for under the equity method which will 322,308 - - 95,073 227,235
be reclassified to profit or loss
Change in the fair value of other debt investments (34,829) - - (22,825) (12,004)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign 1427345 _ B 1,612,659 (185,314)

currency financial statements
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Specialised reserves

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Safety production funds

Surplus reserves

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Statutory surplus reserve

Opening balance
of the period

135,769

Opening balance
of the year

Increase during
the period

15,213,394

Increase during
the year

26,513,826

Opening balance

of the period
10,101,632

Opening balance

of the year
7,716,149

Decrease during
the period

(15,191,335)

Decrease during
the year

(26,466,531)

Increase during
the period

Increase during
the year

2,385,483

INTERIM REPORT 2021

Closing balance
of the period

157,828

Closing balance
of the year

135,769

Closing balance
of the period

10,101,632

Closing balance
of the year

10,101,632

According to the provisions of the Company Law and the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company appropriates
10% of the net profit to the statutory surplus reserve. Where the accumulated amount of the surplus reserve reaches 50%
or more of the Company’s registered capital, further appropriation is not required.

When approved, the statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for accumulated losses or converted to the paid-in
capital.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

50. Retained earnings

For the six months

ended 30 June 2021 2020

Retained earnings at the beginning of the year before adjustment 231,953,228 197,541,411
Adjustments (Note 1) (672,735) -
Retained earnings at the beginning of the period/year after adjustment 231,280,493 197,541,411
Net profit attributable to owners of the parent 25,642,823 44,944 250
Other comprehensive income included in the previous year 7,371 310,690
Others (78,596) (58,965)
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve (Note V. 49) - 2,385,483
Ordinary share dividends payable (Note 2) 9,006,272 7,763,538
Dividends payable to other equity holders (Note 3) 314,300 402,574
Appropriation to general reserve (Note 4) - 232,563
Retained earnings at the end of period/year 247,531,519 231,953,228

Note 1: In 2021, due to the change in accounting policy, the undistributed profit at the beginning of the period was reduced
by RMB672,735 thousand.

Note 2: According to the resolution at the General Meeting of Shareholders dated 13 May 2021, the Company proposed a
cash dividend of RMBO0.2147 (before tax) per share to the shareholders on 30 June 2021, multiplied by the number
which resulted in the total amount of RMB9.006 billion (2020: RMB7.764 billion) of shares of 41.948 billion before
the implementation of the profit distribution plan.

Note 3: As stated in Note V. 45, according to the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders on May 13, 2021, the
Company’s payment of 2020 cash dividends to ordinary shareholders was one of the mandatory interest payment
events stipulated in the perpetual bond clauses of the 2021 three-phase medium-term notes (total RMB10,000,000
thousand), which required the Company to pay the dividends on the most recent perpetual bond interest date (the
first phase of the 2020 mid-term notes is 3 April 2022, the second phase of medium-term notes is 13 April 2022,
and the third phase of 2020 mid-term notes is 20 April 2022). Therefore, the Company accrued a total dividend of
RMB314,300 thousand on perpetual bonds ended 30 June 2021 (2020: RMB402,574 thousand).

Note 4: Appropriation to general reserve

China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the company:

In accordance with the requirements of the Administrative Measures for the Provision of Reserves of Financial
Enterprises (Cai Jin [2012] No. 20), financial institutions (including financial companies) should provide general risk
reserve for assets bearing risks and losses at the balance sheet date. The general reserve shall be appropriated
from net profit as profit distribution with an appropriation ratio not lower than 1.5% of risk assets at the end of year.
If it’s difficult for financial institutions to appropriate 1.5% general reserve at one time, it can also be made in years
but principally not more than 5 years. The general risk reserve of China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. in
2020 was RMB285,584 thousand, of which the amount attributable to shareholders of the parent company was
RMB228,467 thousand. As a result of fully withdrawn, there was no provision for the general reserve during the six
months ended 30 June 2021.

China State Construction Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the company:

According to the “Notice of the General Office of the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission on
Strengthening the Supervision and Management of Commercial Factoring Enterprises” issued by the General
Office of the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (issued by the Office of the China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission [2019] No. 205), China State Construction Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.
accrues the risk reserve. The general risk reserve is when the financing factoring funds are overdue, bad or in the
event of unforeseen risks, in order to maintain the funds for the normal operation of the enterprise, the risk reserve
should not be less than 1% of the balance at the end of the financial factoring business. The general risk reserve of
China State Construction Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. in 2020 was RMB4,096 thousand. It was fully withdrawn
on 31 December 2020. As a result of fully withdrawn, there was no provision for the general reserve during the six
months ended 30 June 2021.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

51. Revenue and cost of sales

For the six months ended For the six months ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020

revenue cost revenue cost

Revenue from main operations 935,489,101 837,136,143 727,003,982 647,401,468
- Revenue from 0 th er . operanons .............................. 1,226,86 2 ............... 1,016,362 ............... 1 18378 5 ................ 977705 .
Total ................................................................. 936,715,96 3 ........... 838,152,505 ........... 72818776 7 R 6 48379173 .

Revenue is as follows:

For the six months For the six months

ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

Revenue from contracts with customers 933,591,428 725,830,165
Ren tals .......................................................................................................................... 3 ,1 2 4 , 535 ...................... 2 357 6 0 2
Total ........................................................................................................................... 936,7 1 5 , 963 .................. 7281 87 7 6 7

For breakdown of operating income by main operating regions and main product types, please refer to Note 14.1.
Revenue is as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Infrastructure Real estate
Building construction ~ development
construction and and Prospecting
engineering investment investment and design Others Total
Revenue from main operations 584,809,407 191,898,714 145,745,351 4,501,840 8,533,789 935,489,101

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Infrastructure Real estate
Building construction  development
construction and and Prospecting
engineering investment investment and design Others Total
Revenue from main operations 464,365,337 144,408,601 108,624,505 3,935,982 5,669,557 727,003,982

As at 30 June 2021, part of the Group’s project contracting business is still in the process of operation, and the remaining
performance obligations is related to the progress of the corresponding contract, and will be recognised as revenue
according to the progress of performance in the future performance period.
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52. Taxes and surcharges

For the six months
ended 30 June 2020

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021

Land appreciation tax 4,058,388 3,254,081
Urba e 8 9 3, 658 ......................... 820 1 8 o
Educatlonalsurcharge446,640 ......................... 356231
B " 4,820 ........................... 5 3577
Othe " 1’3 6 3, 294 ...................... 1140 1 4 6
Total ............................................................................................................................... 6 ’7 6 6 , 800 ...................... 5594 2 e

53. Selling and distribution expenses

For the six months
ended 30 June 2020

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021

Advertising and communication fees 1,066,582 895,837
. Ope I |ngexpens e e 1’1 s , e w1 6 o
Employeebeneflts708,488 ......................... 530739
Othersz15,757 ......................... 135944
B " s .’41. 0 , o EEE 21 o4 1 -

54.  General and administrative expenses

For the six months
ended 30 June 2020

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021

Employee benefits 11,725,792 9,780,657
Offlce and trave | Img e . penses ........................................................................................... 9 5 9 , 286 ......................... o 6 ; 3 -
Leaseexpense s ................................................................................................................ 9 6 4, 194 ......................... 912 0 . 3 -
Depre0|at|onandamortlsatlon ........................................................................................... 9 56,574 ......................... 649206 -
Serwcefeesofspemahstagency352,169 ......................... 309728
Othe rs ............................................................................................................................ 1,5 ; 0 , 859 ...................... 1155 7 5 3 -
Total ............................................................................................................................. 16,4 6 8 ’ 874 .................... 13581 9 7 O -

55. Research and development expenses

Materials, fuels and power of consumption

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021

8,309,489

For the six months
ended 30 June 2020

5,974,886
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56. Finance expenses

For the six months For the six months

ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

Interest expenses 11,651,014 11,654,092
Lesslnterestlncome(1,680,920) .................... ( 1545420)
LessCapltallsedamountoflnterest(5,072,089) .................... ( 5304018)
Comm|55|oncharges ...................................................................................................... 1,08 A ,366 ...................... 1065 314
Forelgnexchange(909,057) ........................ 5 47708
D|scountedlongtermrecelvables/payablesandothers23,60643724
Total ............................................................................................................................... 5 ,09 6 ,920 ...................... 6 461400

The Group capitalizes the borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or production of assets that meet
the capitalization conditions. The capitalized amount of borrowing costs for the six months ended 30 June 2021 was
RMB5,072,089,000 (for the six months ended 30 June 2020: RMB5,304,018,000), which is included inventory, construction
in progress, and intangible assets.

57. Investment income

For the six months For the six months

ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

Long-term equity investment income under the equity method 1,754,158 3,090,860
T fromdlsp ety

cost (683,493) (853,615)
Investment|ncomeorlossfromd|sposalof Iongtermeqwty PR ] 5,033 ................................... =
e Tl dfortradmg ...................................................... 7’ o i o
 Investment income obtained during the holding period of debt investment 419,609 . 442,637
Dvidend noome fom other equny e R ; 39’417 ........................... . 9373
e ddurlngthe holdmgpenod e R I

investments 1,835 19,880
e e 130,880 ......................... = 23105
e 1,784,662 ...................... 5 527067

58. Losses/Gains from changes in fair value
For the six months For the six months

ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

Financial assets held for trading

209
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59. Credit impairment losses

For the six months
ended 30 June 2020

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021

Losses from impairment of accounts receivable (2,831,447) (1,975,973)
Lossesfrom|mpa|rmentofotherrecelvables(619,501) ....................... ( 359217)
Lossesfrom|mpa|rmentofothercurrentassets(113,454) ....................... ( 110750)
(Losses)/reversal fromlmpalrment e (1,331)9056
Reversal/(lo sses) P palrment o Iongterm e 110 , S ( 550 5 . 6)
e R (4 1,945) ....................... ( o 89 5)
Total(3,466,779) .................... (3423365)

60. Asset impairment losses

For the six months
ended 30 June 2020

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021

Reversal from write-down of inventories 98,118 169,264
Lossesfrom|mpa|rmentofcontractassets(132,355) ....................... ( 319394)
Lossesfrom|mpa|rmentofotherassets(170,028) ....................... ( 241401)
Total(204,265) ....................... ( 391531)

61. Non-operating income

Non-recurring profit
or loss for the

six months ended
30 June 2021

For the six months
ended 30 June 2020

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021

Government grants not related to the ordinary

course of business 61,000 55,236 61,000
Accountspayableexempnon53,321290111 ........................... 53321
quwdateddamages46,20448580 ........................... h 6204
Galnsonpenaltlesandflnes36,04924376 ........................... 36049
- Gam s from dama g e - an drenrement of ....................................................................................................................................

non-current assets 14,237 12,484 14,237
Others340,519264745 ......................... 340519
Total551,330 ......................... 6 95532 ......................... 551330

Details of government grants:

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021

For the six months
ended 30 June 2020

Related to
income/assets

Steady growth in the construction industry awards 28,353 - related to income

Compen_satlon coIIecte_q on Deping Road _ 4635 related to income
(Youyi Avenue-Tuanjian Avenue)

Others 32,647 50,601 related to income

and assets
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

62.  Non-operating expenses

Non-recurring profit
or loss for the

For the six months For the six months six months ended

ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020 30 June 2021

Litigation Estimated Liabilities 162,233 45,983 162,233
Forfelturelosssz,133 ........................... 13064 ........................... 3 2133
Latefee325,1072541925107
- Loss . on damage a . d . e t| rement of noncu rrent ......................................................................................................................

assets 13,259 16,689 13,259
quwdateddamages ....................................................................... ] 5,301 ........................... 10304 ........................... 15301
B 6,304 ........................... 127856304
Others .......................................................................................... 187,01456044 ......................... 187014
Total441,351 ......................... 180288 ......................... i 41351

63. Expenses by nature

The supplemental information for the total amount of cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses, general and
administrative expenses, and research and development expenses which categorised by nature is as follows:

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020
Subcontracting cost 298,964,378 222,352,077

64. Income tax expenses

For the six months For the six months

ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

Current tax 12,806,386 10,982,181
Deferred tax (1,161,981) (142,104)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Income tax expenses (continued)

The reconciliation between income tax expenses and profit before income taxes is as follows:

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020
Profit before income tax 51,725,913 43,774,877

,931,478 ,943,719

Utilization of deductible losses for which no deferred tax assets was
recognised in prior periods

Taxable temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets was

recognised in current periods 341,953 333,615
. Deduchbletemporary B ng T recognmo o

of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets in current periods (148,968) (258,065)
Adjustmentsoftaxexpensesforpnorpenods208,600 ...................... 1044199
e p e G roups e i ,64 4, e R 10840 0 .

Earnings per share

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020
RMB/share RMB/share
Basic earnings per share
. Contlnumgoperatlons ......................................................................................................... 062047
e e gspershare ....................................................................................................................................................
L Contlnumgoperatlons ......................................................................................................... 061046

The basic earnings per share is calculated based on the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company and the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares during the year.

The numerator of the diluted earnings per share is determined based on the current net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company after adjusting the following factors: (1) the interest of the diluted potential ordinary shares
that have been recognised as expenses in the current period; (2) the income or expenses of dilution potential ordinary that
will be generated when the shares are converted; and (3) the income tax impact related to the above adjustments.

The denominator of the diluted earnings per share is equal to the sum of the following two items: (1) the weighted average
number of issued ordinary shares of the parent company in the basic earnings per share; and (2) the increase of the
weighted average number of ordinary shares, assuming the conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

When calculating the weighted average of the number of ordinary shares increased by the conversion of diluted potential
ordinary shares into issued ordinary shares, the diluted potential ordinary shares issued in the previous period are
assumed to be converted at the beginning of the current period; the current diluted potential ordinary shares issued,
assuming the conversion on the issue date.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Earnings per share (continued)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows:

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

Revenue

25,642,823

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (in units of
1000 shares) (Note 3) 40,583,254 41,150,209

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

In accordance with the relevant clauses and regulations of preference shares and perpetual bonds as stated in
Note V. 45, in calculating the basic earnings per share, the dividends of other equity instruments included in the
net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company is deducted. The accrued dividends of perpetual
bonds with a value date of 3 April 2020 amounted to RMB132 million in 2020, The accrued dividends of perpetual
bonds with a value date of 13 April 2020 amounted to RMB93 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021, The
accrued dividends of perpetual bonds with a value date of 20 April 2020 amounted to RMB89 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2021, the above was RMB314 miillion in total. (for the six-month period ended 30 June 2020
RMB403 million).

As stated in Note Xl, the granting of the third batch of restricted shares to the third batch incentive targets in
accordance with the third batch incentive plan on 26 December 2018. On 23 December 2020, the grant of restricted
stocks for the fourth phase of incentive objects will be completed in accordance with the fourth batch incentive plan.
In accordance with the relevant stipulations in Explanation of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.7
issued by the Ministry of Finance in 2015, the Company deducted net profits attributable to restricted shares, which
are expected to be unlocked in the future from net profits attributable to shareholders of the Company in calculating
the basic earnings per share. The net profits attributable to restricted shares which are expected to be unlocked
in the future was about RMB280 million and RMB130 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 and the six
months ended 30 June 2020 respectively.

As stated in Note Xl, in accordance with the regulations of the third batch incentive plans and the fourth batch
incentive plan, whether the unlocked shares granted could be listed and circulated depended on whether the
restricted shares met the unlocking conditions at the unlocking date. Therefore, the impacted amount of the
restricted shares not yet meeting the unlocking conditions and those invalid restricted shares were deducted from
weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares in calculating the basic earnings per share.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is as follows:

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

Consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the

Company used for calculating diluted earnings per share 24,801,652 18,933,486
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding used for
calculating diluted earnings per share (in units of 1000 shares) 40,583,254 41,150,209
Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.61 0.46
For the six months ended 30 June 2021,the restricted shares outstanding and the share options issued by the Company’s

subsidiary China Overseas Holdings Limited have no dilutive effects in calculating the earnings per share. However,
the convertible bond issued by the Company’s subsidiary China Overseas Holdings Limited has dilutive effects on
consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company.
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66. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

Cash received relating to other operating activities

Deposits and warrant received and returned by third party 6,886,868 5,481,120
~ Deposits absorbed by China State Construction Finance Co. Ltd ! 5283987 . 4,439,558
e e R s ’7 o , o R 5990 6 o
e e R ) ,1 i 7, o S 2748 1 e
e R 1’90 ; , e S 1920 2 0
e e R g 09,939 ...................... 1360274
e Others785,420 ......................... 639395
e R 5 ’5 o , e 22579 4 0
Gaeh pald o ng P pe . ng e R e
L Dep03| ot pald PO, party ............................................... 25,3 5 4, o S 7631 4 o
e Otherpayables pald s party ............................................................................. 12,69 o , o R 7926 8 0
e e R s ’5 o6 , e 2153 3 o
e R 42,5 a8 , e 17711 6 e
Cadh e relatmg e tlng e R -
L Repaym o o lomne o pa o R s ,3 i , e R 9297 8 e
~ Repayment of fixed deposits which would mature after three months - a447177 140,000
e Repaym ot oo fromcooperatlv ecorporatlon i prolects .................................. ) ,04 ; ’ o R . 1 o
e e R 570 ’ o R o
e R 12,67 ; ’ e R 10196 O 0
Caer payme o elatlng B ngactlwtles .................................................................................................................
oo related p R 77+ s ,5 5 7’ e A 5958 3 5
e Pay o cooperatlve corporatlo o pl’OjeCt e R ] ’4 : 4’ e 1954 7 -
e 590 ’ e EES oot 5 o
B ; ’95 5 , e S 8908 6 e
CCaeh e relatlng e ngactlvmes .................................................................................................................
 heeed e cmg ............................................................................................ i ’55 . , e R 10954 5 o
B """ i ’55 . , e R 10954 5 e
Cashpayment relatlng P flnancmgactlwtles .................................................................................................................
L Repaym T 19,4 o , e R 26108 1 o
el payment ............................................................................................................. 5 4, o o
e e e R s o 5 .
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
67.  Supplementary information to the consolidate cash flow statement

(1) Supplementary information to the consolidate cash flow statement

Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows from operating activities:

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020
Net profit 40,081,508 32,934,800

Addlmpalrme B 208 , - R 5 91 B
L Credit |mpa|rment B """ s ’4 o6 , = 5 42 5 65
R oo p o e R ) ,86 A , o 5 24 5 10
R = p o senght R 1’05 ; , T =
R = p o entpropemes ..................................................................... 1’21 0 , e . 71 05
R Amomsatlonofmtanglbleassets237,197 ......................... 5 02560
R Amomsatlonoflongterm prepaldexpenses .............................................................. ; 62,111 ......................... ] 31288
........... Profltfromdlsposalofflxedassetsmtanglbleassetsand

other long-term assets (137,893) (12,763)

Changes in cash and cash equivalents

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020
Closing balance of cash 271,326,490 254,586,396

)
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

68. Assets with restricted ownership

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Cash and bank balances 19,409,564 21,310,994 Note 1

acceptance bill deposits, guarantee deposits, real estate pre-sale supervision funds, mortgage deposits and etc. As
of 30 June 2021, the balance of restricted cash and bank balances was RMB19,409,564 thousand (31 December
2020 RMB21,310,994 thousand).

Note 2: On 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 the Group pledged or mortgaged notes receivable, accounts receivable,
inventories, contract assets, investment properties, fixed assets, construction in progress, intangible assets and
long-term receivables to banks for borrowings.

69. The foreign currency monetary items

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Amount Amount
in foreign Exchange Amount in in foreign Exchange Amount in
currency rate RMB currency rate RMB

Cash and Bank balance




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 017
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

69. The foreign currency monetary items (continued)

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Amount Amount
in foreign Exchange Amount in in foreign Exchange Amount in
currency rate RMB currency rate RMB

Other receivables
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

69. The foreign currency monetary items (continued)

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Amount Amount
in foreign Exchange Amount in in foreign Exchange Amount in
currency rate RMB currency rate RMB

Other payables

VI. Changes of consolidation scope

1. The entities which were not significant to the Group were included in the consolidation scope through business
combination not under common control for the six months ended 30 June 2021.

2. There was no entity newly included in the consolidation scope through business combination under common
control for the six months ended 30 June 2021.

3. The entities which were excluded from the consolidated scope due to disposal of subsidiaries for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 were not significant to the Group.
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VIl. Interests in other entities
1. Interests in subsidiaries

Significant subsidiaries obtained through incorporation:

Shareholding Percentage (%)

Main operation Place of Nature of Registered
Location registration business capital Direct Indirect
The significant subsidiaries acquired through
establishing or investment
China Overseas Holdings Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment RMB31.03 billion 100.00 -
China Overseas Land & Investment Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Real Estate Invesiment and HKD1.095 billion - 56.08
Development
China State Construction International Hong Kong Cayman Islands Construction and Installation HKD1.5 billion - 64.81
China Overseas Property Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong Cayman Islands Property Management HKD30 million - 61.18
China Construction First Group Corporation Limited ~ Beijing Beijing Construction and Installation RMB10 billion 100.00 -
China Construction Second Engineering Bureau Ltd.  Beijing Beijing Construction and Installation RMB10 billion 100.00 -
Ch'ﬂ; Consiruction Third Engineering Butea €Oy o i Wb, Hubei ~ Construction and Intallion - AMB5.04bilin 10000 -
China Construction Fourth Engineering Division Corp.,  Guangzhou, Guangzhou, Consiruction and Instalaton RVBS billon 100.00 ~
Ltd. Guangdong Guangdong
Ch:;; Consiructon Fith Engineering Divsion Corp., Changsha, Hunan  Changsha, Hunan ~ Construction and Installation RMB10 billion 100.00 -
Ch'ﬂg Consiuction Sixth Engineering Divison Corp., ;. vy Tianjin Construction and Installaion ~ RMB4.28 bllon 100.00 -
Chg];pCoLrEtrucuon Seventh Engineering Division Zhengzhou, Henan  Zhengzhou, Henan  Construction and Installation RMBS billion 100.00 -
Chg\;pCT-rt\;trucllon Eighth Engineering Division Shanghai Shanghai Construction and Installation ~ RMB13.50 billion 100.00 -
China Cor?strulctllon Engineering Design Group Bejig Bejig Englngermg Prospecting and RVB510 milion 10000 _
Corporation Limited Design
China Construction Decoration Group Co., Ltd. Beijing Beijing Industrial Decoration RMB1 billion 50.00 50.00
China Construction Fangcheng Investment & Beijing Beijing Infrastructure Construction RMBS billion 100.00 -
Development Group Co., Ltd.
The significant subsidiaries acquired through a
business combination not involving under common
control
Chlpa'State Construction Development Holdings Hong Kong Cayman Islands Construction and Installation HKDO.1 billion - 47.89
Limited (Note)
Chﬂ: State Construcion Harbour Construction o, Shanghai Shanghai Infrastructure Construction RMB1.33 billion 70.00 -
Tuxiana Corp. Wanning, Hainan The British Virgin -~ Real Estate Development USD1 _ 55.99
Islands and Investment
Real Estate Development -
CITIC Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. Beijing Beijing RMB10.49 billion - 55.99
and Investment
The significant subsidiaries acquired through a
business combination involving entities under
common control
CSg(I)ECLEnJIang Consirucion & Engineering (Group) Wulumugi, Xinjiang  Wulumugj, Xinjiang ~ Construction and Installation RMB3.5 billion 85.00 -
................................................................................. Wqumuq|X|nJ|a R
Real Estate Development "
Co, Lt Hong Kong Shenzhen and Operaton RMB2.65 billion
Beijing Beijing

Note: The Group holds 47.89% of shares of Far East Global Group Ltd. The board of directors has the rights to determine
the relevant activities of Far East Global Group Ltd. The Group holds 74.06% of voting rights of Far East Global Group Ltd.
according to the proportion of the board of directors.
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VII. Interests in other entities (continued)
1. Interests in subsidiaries (continued)
Significant subsidiaries involving non-controlling interest:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Dividend
Shareholding of attributable to the
Non-controlling Non-controlling non-controlling Non-controlling
Interest Interest shareholders Interest
China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. 43.92% 8,545,170 117,352 132,506,563

Dividend

Shareholding of attributable to the
Non-controlling Non-controlling non-controlling Non-controlling
Interest Interest shareholders Interest
China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. 44.00% 17,931,523 5,045,049 128,003,879
China State Construction International 35.34% 3,169,849 826,143 21,128,649
West Construction Co., Ltd. 42.21% 331,022 40,239 3,304,528
China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. 20.00% 120,575 40,516 2,483,080

The summarised financial information of the above subsidiaries which progress necessary adjustments in accordance with
the company’s accounting policies is set out below. The amounts disclosed are before inter-company eliminations:

China China State
Overseas Land Construction West China State
& Investment International Construction Construction
Ltd. Holdings Ltd. Co., Ltd.  Finance Co., Ltd.

30 June 2021




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

VIL.

Interests in other entities (continued)

Interests in subsidiaries (continued)
Significant subsidiaries involving non-controlling interest: (continued)

The summarised financial information of the above subsidiaries which progress necessary adjustments in accordance
with the company’s accounting policies is set out below. The amounts disclosed are before inter-company eliminations
(continued):

China China State

Overseas Land Construction West China State

& Investment International Construction Construction

Ltd. Holdings Ltd. Co., Ltd.  Finance Co., Ltd.

2020

CurrentAsset3631691450 .............. 74517932 .............. 20484986 .............. 49508084
NoncurrentAssets ............................................... 1 24340915 .............. 7895 5851 ................ 3348630 .............. 6224 8763 -
TOtaIAssetS756032365 ............. 1 53473783 .............. 23833616111756847
0urrent L|ab|||t|es ................................................. 3001 6 7208 .............. 6509 3611 .............. 13726379 .............. 9934 1 446 -
Noncurrentl_|ab|||t|es180347534 .............. 42765015 .................... 50802 ............................. o
Tota| |_|ab |||t| eS ..................................................... 480514742 ............. 1 0785 3626 .............. 13777181 .............. 9934 1 446 -
Revenue187012838 .............. 55568034 .............. 23423096 ................ 2640190
NetPront ............................................................... 3688 0626 ................ 513 1 456 ................... 9 45990 ................... 60 2877 -
. TOtaI Co mprehe n SN elncome ................................. 3656 4040 ................ 746 9599 ................... 9 43287 ................... 60 2877 -
 Cash flow from/(used in) operating activies 0607,382 (3824677) 633114 (7,773,500)

Perpetual bonds of subsidiaries are as follows:

As of 30 June 2021, the balance of perpetual bonds and renewable loans issued by Company’s subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “subsidiary perpetual bonds”) amounted to RMB77,562,954 thousand (31 December 2020:
RMB76,740,046 thousand). The perpetual bonds of these subsidiaries exist for a long time, and the subsidiaries of the
Company can decide whether to redeem and repay them. Unless there is a compulsory interest payment event that can
be determined and controlled to occur by the Company’s subsidiary, on each interest payment date, the Company’s
subsidiaries can choose to postpone the current interest and all deferred interest to the next interest payment date and
is not subject to any restrictions on the number of deferred interest payments. The Group accounted for these perpetual
bonds as non-controlling shareholders’ equity.

Debt-to-equity swaps of subsidiaries are as follows:

In December 2019, some of the Company’s subsidiaries entered into capital increase agreements and shareholder
agreements with a number of third-party investors. In accordance with the Capital Increase Agreement and the
Shareholder Agreement (collectively referred to as the “Agreement”), third-party investors increase their capital in cash
to the subsidiaries of such subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as “the underlying company”), and upon completion of
the capital increase, the shareholding of the Company’s subsidiaries in the underlying company decreases, but there
is no loss of control over the underlying company. The agreement stipulates that the profit distribution of the underlying
company shall be determined by the shareholders’ meeting, that the exit method of the third-party investor shall be agreed
with the controlling shareholder of the target company, and that the controlling shareholder of the target company shall
have the right to acquire or designate other parties to acquire the shares of the target company held by the third party
investor after the expiration of a certain period (“investment period”) from the date of payment of the investment price. In
the event of a specific situation or the expiry of the investment period of the underlying company, a third-party investor may
make a request to the subsidiary of the Company to acquire the shares of the underlying company held by the Company’s
subsidiaries, and if the subsidiary of the Company does not choose to acquire such shares, the annual expected dividend
ratio will up to until the agreed upper limit of the dividend ratio. However, if the shareholders of the underlying company
will not pay dividends it do not constitute a breach of contract; A third party investor can transfer all or part of its equity
interest in the underlying company to any third part or increase the voting rights of third-party investors in the shareholders’
meeting or board of directors of the underlying company in order to achieve the joint control of the underlying company
with the Company’s subsidiaries. The above-mentioned arrangement does not constitute a contractual obligation of the
Company or its subsidiaries to deliver cash or other financial assets to other parties or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with other parties under potential adverse conditions, and the Company shall therefore account for
such capital increases as the equity of the underlying company. As of 31 December, 2019, third-party investors increased
their capital in the underlying company totalling RMB15,600,000 thousand. These transactions resulted in an increase
of RMB15,606,801 thousand in non-controlling shareholders’ equity in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
at 31 December 2019. As of 31 December, 2020, third-party investors increased their capital in the underlying company
totalling RMB7,200,000 thousand. The relevant clauses in the Capital Increase Agreement and Shareholders Agreement in
2020 are consistent with the above clauses. These transactions resulted in an increase of RMB7,200,458 thousand in non-
controlling shareholders’ equity in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020.
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VIL.

Interests in other entities (continued)
Interests in subsidiaries (continued)
Debt-to-equity swaps of subsidiaries are as follows (continued):

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, third-party investors paid in capital of RMB600,000 thousand in total to the
underlying company. The relevant clauses in the Capital Increase Agreement and Shareholders Agreement this year are
consistent with the above clauses. This year these transactions resulted in an increase in non-controlling shareholders’
equity in the Group’s consolidated financial statements of RMB608,250 thousand as at 30 June 2021.

Interests in joint ventures and associates

Main Percentage of Shares (%)
operation Place of Registered Accounting
location registration Nature of business capital Direct Indirect treatment
Associates
Real Estate Investment .
Overseas Oceans Hong Kong Hong Kong 5,579,100 - 38.32  Equity method

and Development

The summarised financial information in respect of Overseas Oceans adjusted for any differences in accounting policies
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements is as follows:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Current Assets 175,519,183 160,985,732

,722,631

The fair value of investment in associated companies that have publicly
quoted prices

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

25,737,715 16,109,339
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Interests in other entities (continued)

Interests in joint ventures and associates (continued)
A summary of financial information of the joint ventures and Associates that are not individually material to the Group is as
follows:

For the six months For the year ended
ended 30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Joint Ventures

Note 1: Both the net profit and other comprehensive income have considered the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities at the time the investment is obtained and the adjustment effects of the unified accounting policy.

Interests in consolidated structured entities

As at 30 June 2021, the main consolidated structured entities which set up by the Group’s subsidiary China State
Construction Fund Management Ltd. amounted to RMB12,378,963 thousand, and the Group’s subscribed amount is
RMB4,576,093 thousand. As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s paid-in amount is RMB4,318,750 thousand and other parties is
RMB6,907,800 thousand. The Group classified other parties’ paid-in amount as non-controlling interests. The Group has no
obligation and intention to provide financial supporting to these structured entities.

Interests in non-consolidated structured entities

As at 30 June 2021, the non-consolidated structured entities China State Construction Fund Management Ltd. participated
in is amounted to RMB35,294,455 thousand, and the Group’s subscribed amount is RMB8,546,180 thousand and other
parties is RMB26,748,275 thousand. The Group has no control power over these special purpose vehicles, thus The Group
cannot consolidate them. As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s paid-in amount is RMB4,770,870 thousand and classified as
long-term equity investments. The largest risk exposure of the Group is the paid-in amount as at the balance sheet date.
The Group has no obligation and intention to provide financial supporting to these structured entities.
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VIIl. Financial instruments and related risks

1. Financial instruments by category
Carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments at the balance sheet date are as follows:
30 June 2021

Financial assets

Financial assets

at fair value Financial assets at fair
through profit value through other
or loss Financial comprehensive income
Required by assets at Required by
the standard amortised cost the standard Designated Total
Cash and bank balances - 293,964,196 - - 293,964,196

Current portion of non-current

assets
L L i o
it s SR i Do S Y
QIS o T g
S T O i T i
invesiments In ofer equly - - - 5,574,081 5,574,081
I, L e
i s — T B S

Financial liabilities

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss

Required by Financial liabilities

the standard at amortised cost Total

Short-term loans - 74,790,164 74,790,164
- Notes payable ............................................................................................ S 8,087 ,8 6 5 ................... 8,087,86 5 o]
- Accounts paya b I é ....................................................................................... S 520’549 ,6 38 ............... 520,549,63 8 -
- Ot he ; p ayables ........................................................................................... S 122,483 ,6 58 ............... 122,483,65 8 o]
- Cu i ren t portlon of no - c u rren t “ab” |t|es ....................................................... S 76,61 . ’5 68 ................. 76,614,56 8 o]
- Ot he ; current I|ab| | |t|e s ................................................................................ S 20’597 ’2 00 ................. 20’597,2 0 0 -
- Longterm bo rrowmgs ................................................................................. S 325,763 ,1 ; 6 ............... 325,763,1 ; 6 -
- Bonds pa yable ........................................................................................... R 95’571 ,4 85 ................. 95,571,4 8 5 o]
- Longterm pa yables .................................................................................... S 17,231 ,2 54 ................. 17,231,2 5 i
Othernoncurrentllabllltles ............................................................ 4’505’415 ................... 1,499,611 ................... 6,005,026
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VIIl. Financial instruments and related risks (continued)

1. Financial instruments by category (continued)
Carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments at the balance sheet date are as follows: (continued)
31 December 2020

Financial assets

Financial assets

at fair value Financial assets at fair
through profit value through other
or loss Financial comprehensive income
Required by assets at Required by
the standard amortised cost the standard Designated Total
Cash and bank balances - 295,857,190 - - 295,857,190

Current portion of non-current

assets
Othercurrentassets2906177 ............. 21498496
bt imestmante 14605329
Oher et Imvestmene T 356377
Longtermrecewables— ........... 177642042
'”‘:ﬁgf;ﬂggﬁtg other equity - - - 5,838,384 5,838,384
e rom et e s 335510___ ................. 335510
Crew 579969 ........... 791570303 43270678744561 ........... 805221900
Financial liabilities
Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss Financial
Required by liabilities at
the standard amortised cost Total
Short-term loans - 29,317,096 29,317,096
Notespayable ............................................................................................ R 5265592 ................... 5265592
Accountspayable ....................................................................................... S 502386 9 T 502386965
Otherpayables ........................................................................................... S 118273242118273242
Cunont p o o P S 87696 1 e 876961 B
o curent ibiiias R 2313213 ................... 2313213
Longterm o rrowmgs ................................................................................. S 292897 0 w 292897038
Bonds pa yable ........................................................................................... S 88782 4 e 887824 o
Longtermpayables .................................................................................... S 1750026017500260
Othor momourront lbiiies 4421322 ................... 1520302 ................... 5941624
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VIl

Financial instruments and related risks
(continued)

Transfer of financial assets

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

As at 30 June 2021, the book value of bank acceptance
and commercial acceptance bills approved and
discounted by the Group was RMB15,261,951 thousand
(31 December 2020: RMB15,512,784 thousand). In
the View of the Group, the Group retains almost all of
its risks and remuneration, including the risk of default
associated with it, and therefore continues to fully
recognise it and the settled accounts payable or short-
term borrowings associated with it. After endorsement
or discount, the Group no longer reserves the right to
use it, including the right to sell, transfer or pledge it
to other third parties. As of 30 June 2021, the Group’s
book value of its settled accounts payable or short-term
borrowings received totalled RMB15,261,951 thousand
(31 December 2020: RMB15,512,784 thousand).

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised
in their entirety in which continuing involvement
exists

As of 30 June 2021, the book value of the Group’s
endorsed and discounted but not yet due bank
acceptance bill was RMB1,195,421 thousand (31
December 2020: RMB 1,883,153 thousand). On 30 June
2021, its maturity date is 1 to 12 months. According to
the relevant provisions of the “Negotiable Instruments
Law”, if the acceptance bank refuses to pay, its holder
has the right to claim against the group (“continue
involvement”). The Group believes that the group
has transferred almost all of its risks and rewards,
therefore, the book value of its and related settled
accounts payable is derecognized. The maximum loss
and undiscounted cash flow of continued involvement
and repurchase is equal to its book value. The Group
believes that the continued involvement in fair value is
not significant.

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2021, the
Group did not recognise gains or losses on the transfer
date. There was no income or expenses recognised in
the current year and accumulatively due to the Group’s
continued involvement in the derecognized financial
assets.

Risks of financial instruments

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: mainly include credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk (including interest rate risk, currency risk and equity
instrument price risk). The Group’s financial instrument
mainly includes cash and bank balances, equity
investments, debt investments, loans, bills receivable
and accounts receivable, receivables financing, bills
payable and accounts payable. The risks related to
the financial instruments, and the risk management
strategies adopted by the Group to reduce these risks
are as follows.

INTERIM REPORT 2021

The Board of Directors is responsible for planning and
establishing the Group’s risk management structure,
formulating the Group’s risk management policies and
related guidelines, and supervising the implementation
of risk management measures. The Group has
formulated risk management policies to identify and
analyze the risks faced by the Group. These risk
management policies specify specific risks, covering
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk management.
The Group regularly assesses changes in the market
environment and the Group’s operating activities to
decide whether to update the risk management policies
and systems. The risk management of the Group is
carried out by the Risk Management Committee in
accordance with the policies approved by the Board of
Directors. The Risk Management Committee identifies,
evaluates and avoids related risks through close
cooperation with other business departments of the
Group. The internal audit department of the Group
conducts regular audits on risk management controls
and procedures, and reports the audit results to the
audit committee of the Group.

The Group diversifies the risk of financial instruments
through appropriate diversified investment and
business portfolios, and formulates corresponding
risk management policies to reduce the risk of
concentration in any single industry, specific region or
specific counterparty.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy customers.lt is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
to ensure that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated
in the functional currency of the relevant operating
unit, the Group does not offer credit terms without the
specific approval of the Department of Credit Control in
the Group.

Since the counterparties of monetary funds, bank
acceptance bills receivable are banks with good
reputations and high credit ratings, these financial
instruments have low credit risks.

Other financial assets of the Group include notes
receivable, accounts receivable, financial assets held
for trading, other receivables, debt investments, long-
term receivable, other debt investments, other equity
instrument investments, and other non-current financial
assets. The credit risk of these financial assets stems
from the default of the counterparty. The maximum
risk exposure is equal to the book value of these
instruments.
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Financial instruments and related risks
(continued)

Risks of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum credit risk exposure that the Group
faces on each balance sheet date is the total amount
collected from customers minus the amount of
impairment allowances.

The Group also faces credit risks due to the provision
of financial guarantees, as disclosed in Note XII. 2 for
details.

Since the Group only conducts transactions with
recognised and reputable third parties, there is no need
for collateral. Credit risk is centralized and managed
according to customers/counterparties, geographic
regions and industries. Because the Group’s accounts
receivable customer base is relatively wide, Therefore,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk within
the Group.

The Jjudgment criteria for the significant increase of
crealt risk

The Group evaluates on each balance sheet date
whether the credit risk of relevant financial instruments
has increased significantly since the initial recognition.
When determining whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since the initial recognition,
the Group considers whether it is necessary to pay
unnecessary additional costs or efforts can be made
to obtain reasonable and based information, including
qualitative and quantitative analysis based on the
historical data of the Group, external credit risk ratings,
and forward-looking information. Based on a single
financial instrument or a combination of financial
instruments with similar credit risk characteristics, the
Group determines the change in the risk of default
during the expected life of the financial instrument by
comparing the risk of default on the balance sheet date
of the financial instrument with the risk of default on the
initial recognition date.

When one or more of the following quantitative
and qualitative standards are triggered, the Group
believes that the credit risk of financial instruments has
increased significantly:

(1) The quantitative standard is mainly that the
probability of default in the remaining lifetime of
the reporting day has increased by more than
a certain percentage compared with the initial
confirmation;

(2) The qualitative standards are mainly the major
adverse changes in the debtor’s business
or financial situation, the list of early warning
customers, etc.

Definition of credit-impalired assets

In order to determine whether credit impairment has
occurred, the standard used by the Group is consistent
with the internal credit risk management objectives
for relevant financial instruments, while considering
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quantitative and qualitative indicators. The main
consideration when the Group assesses whether a
debtor has credit impairment The following factors:

(1) The issuer or debtor has major financial
difficulties;

(2) The debtor breached the contract, such as
defaulting or overdue payment of interest or
principal;

(3) The creditor, out of economic or contractual
considerations related to the debtor’s financial
difficulties, gives the debtor a concession that
the debtor would not make under any other
circumstances;

(4) The debtor is likely to go bankrupt or undergo
other financial restructuring;

(5) The issuer or debtor’s financial difficulties
caused the disappearance of the active market
for the financial asset;

(6) A financial asset is purchased or originated at
a significant discount, and the discount reflects
the fact that credit losses have occurred.

The credit impairment of financial assets may be
caused by a combination of multiple events, and may
not be caused by a separately identifiable event.

Expected credlt 10ss measurement paramerers

Based on whether the credit risk has increased
significantly and whether the financial asset has been
credit-impaired, the Group measures the provision for
impairment of different assets based on the 12-month
ECLs or the lifetime ECLs. The key parameters
for expected credit loss measurement include the
probability of default, loss given default and default
risk exposure. The Group establishes the model of
probability of default, loss given default and default risk
exposure based on statistics of historical data (such
as the counterparty’s rating, guarantee method and
type of pledges, repayment method, etc.) and forward-
looking information.

The relevant definitions are as follows:

(1) The probability of default refers to the possibility
that the debtor will not be able to satisfy its
repayment obligations in the next 12 months
or throughout the remaining lifetime. The
probability of default of the Group is adjusted
against the results of the credit loss model
as well as the forward-looking information, to
reflect the probability of default of the debtor in
the current macroeconomic environment.

(2) The loss given default is the Group’s
expectation on the extent of loss of default risk
exposure. The loss given default varies by the
types of counterparties, the manner and priority
of recourse, and the collateral. The loss given
default is the percentage of exposure loss at
the time of default and is calculated over 12
months or lifetime; and

(3) The default risk exposure is the amount
payable to the Group at the time of default over
the next 12 months or lifetime.
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VIl

Financial instruments and related risks (continued)
Risks of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Expected credlt 10ss measurement paramerers (continuea)

The assessment of a significant increase in credit risk and the calculation of expected credit losses involve forward-looking
information. Through historical data analysis, the Group has identified key economic indicators that affect the credit risks
and expected credit losses of various business types. The impact of these economic indicators on the probability of default
and the loss rate of default varies with different business types.

7The exposure to credlt 1isk

As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020,the exposure to credit risk of notes receivable, accounts receivable, accounts
receivable financing, other receivable, contract assets, debt investments and long-term receivable refers to Note V.3, 4, 5, 7,
9,12, and 13.

Liquidity risk
The Group uses circular liquidity planning tools to manage the risk of funding shortfalls. The facility takes into account both
the maturity date of its financial instruments and the expected cash flows from the Group’s operations.

The objective of the Group is to maintain a balance between sustainability and flexibility in financing through the use of a
variety of financing instruments. As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group’s financial liabilities were mainly
due within one year.

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities and other liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments and earliest payment date required by related parties for the maximum amount under financial
guarantee contracts:

30 June 2021

Within 1 year 110 2 years 2to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Short-term borrowings 76,222,246 - - - 76,222,246

31 December 2020

Within 1 year 110 2 years 2to 5 years Over 5 years Total

Short-term borrowings 29,753,230 - - - 29,753,230
ot pa yable ..................................................... 5265592 ....................... R IR S : 265592 .
s p ayable ............................................. 502386965 ....................... IR R e : 023869 =
Otherpayables118273242 ....................... IR R - 118273242
e e 2321 309 ....................... R R I ) .’ w1 309 .
- Longter B ngs ......................................... 58637680 ......... 75728382 o 66073850 o 041 39 w0 404579802 .
o payable ................................................... 47299825 ........... 4555942 ......... 5 270929 ......... 99006 o 721 33491 .
- Longter . payabl L ; 314629 ......... 131 72142 ........... 4883129 R 46 e 29516605 .
e o S IR 70 39339 ....................... S . 039339 .
R guar o o 88988726 ............. 830358 ............. 214850 ........... 3500 wo 935339 i
e 864241 .’ o 94286824 o 99482097 ....... 206793 w0 364803509 .

Note: The above-mentioned long-term borrowings, bonds payable, lease liabilities and long-term payables all include the
parts due within one year.
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Financial instruments and related risks (continued)
Risks of financial instruments (continued)

Market risk

/nterest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing borrowings including borrowings, bonds payable. Financial
liabilities issued at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial liabilities issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group manages interest costs by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debt.As at 30 June 2021,
the Group’s interest bearing borrowings with fixed rates amounts to RMB261,531,175 thousand (31 December 2020:
RMB207,600,058 thousand), and floating rates interest bearing borrowings amounts to RMB331,475,085 thousand (31
December 2020: RMB292,999,141 thousand).

The Group’s finance department at its headquarters continuously monitors the interest rate position of the Group. Increases
in interest rates will increase the cost of new borrowing and the interest expenses with respect to the Group’s outstanding
floating rate borrowings, which could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position. The management
of the Group makes decisions with reference to the latest market conditions. The Group may enter into interest rate swap
agreements to mitigate its exposure to interest rate risk. For the six-month ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 the Group did not
enter into any significant interest rate swap agreements.

As at 30 June 2021, if the borrowing interest rate calculated at floating interest rate had been 50 basis points higher/lower,
with all other variables held constant, the Group’s net profit would have been decreased/increased by approximately
RMB748 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB1,167 million).

Currency risk

The Group’s major operational activities are carried out in Mainland China and a majority of the transactions is denominated
in RMB. The Group’s confirmed foreign currency assets and liabilities and future foreign currency transactions (foreign
currency assets and liabilities and foreign currency transactions are mainly denominated in US dollars and HK dollars) are
subject to foreign exchange risks. The Group’s finance department at its headquarters is responsible for monitoring the
foreign currency transactions and the scale of foreign currency assets and liabilities to minimize foreign exchange risks;.
The Group may consider entering into forward exchange contracts or currency swap contracts to mitigate the foreign
exchange risk. During the six-month ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, the Group did not enter into any significant forward
exchange contracts or currency swap contracts.

As at 30 June 2021, for Group’s all kinds of foreign currency financial assets and foreign currency financial liabilities, if
RMB appreciation or devaluation against foreign currency were 10%, other factors remain unchanged, the Group would
increase or decrease by approximately RMB9.577 billion (31 December 2020: about RMB9.788 billion).

Equity instrument price 1isk

The Group’s equity instrument price risks mainly arise from various types of equity instrument investments, and there is a
risk of changes in equity instrument prices.

As at 30 June 2021, if the expected price of various types of equity instrument investments of the Group increased
or decreased by 10% and other factors remained unchanged, the Group’s net profit would increase or decrease by
approximately RMB28,174 thousand (31 December 2020: approximately RMB27,949 thousand), other comprehensive
income would increase or decrease by approximately RMB628,902 thousand (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB696,888 thousand).
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VIIl. Financial instruments and related risks (continued)
4. Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support business development and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the
risk profile of related assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
owners, return capital to owners or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to external mandatory capital requirements.
No changes in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital were made during the six-month ended 30 June
2021 and year 2020.

The Group’s total capital is the shareholders’ equity shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group uses the gearing
ratio to monitor its capital. The debt to assets ratio refers to the consolidated balance sheet total liabilities divided by total
assets. The debt to assets ratio of the Group at the 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 was as follows:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Total liabilities 1,750,203,103 1,615,078,738
Total assets 2,351,232,414 2,192,173,839
Debt to assets ratio 74.44% 73.67%

IX. Disclosure of fair value

1. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

30 June 2021

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

Recurring fair value measurements

Investment in non-listed equity

) - - 4,284,496 4,284,496
instrument
4,724,017 - 9,616,748 14,340,765
e R 4’505,415 ............................ R 4,505’415

4,505,415 4,505,415
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Disclosure of fair value (continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

2020
Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

Recurring fair value measurements
el heeeie heldfortradmg .........................................................................................................................................
Dbt imvestment 214859—— .................. 214859
Equntymvestments .................................................. 29600— ............................ R 29600
Accountsrecelvablesflnancmg—— ............... 3788082 ............... 3788082
e et meeote
InvestmentmIlstedeqwtylnstrument ................. 2906177— ............................ R 2906177
e Moo T T
et 35510 .................... 35510
e 300000 .................. 300000
NoncurrentassetsdueW|th|noneyear .................... 182608— ............................ R 182608
O i 356377— ............................ IR 356377
Othar imaestm entlneqwtylnstr i
InvestmentlnIlstedeqmtymstrument ................. 1329839— ............................ —1329839
In\i/r(jssttrrsrir:nltn non-listed equity _ _ 4,508,545 4,508,545

PP 5019460— ............... 8632137 .............. : 3651597
T T 4421322 ...............................................................

4,421,322

Valuation of fair value

Fair value of financial instruments

The illustration below is the disclosure on comparison between the fair value and the carrying amount for each class of
financial assets and financial liabilities other than financial instruments where the difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value is insignificant:

Carrying amounts Fair value
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Bonds payable 95,571,485 88,782,471 100,706,026 95,718,907

The fair value of bonds payable quoted in an active market is determined at the quoted market price, and categorised
within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of bonds payable not quoted in an active market is the present
value of the contractually determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the rate of interest applied at that time by
the market to instruments of comparable credit status and providing substantially the same cash flows on the same terms,
and categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Disclosure of fair value (continued)
Valuation of fair value (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair value of cash and bank balances, notes receivable, accounts receivable, other
receivables, short-term loans, notes payable, accounts payable and other payables. Given the short term maturities, the
fair value approximate to the carrying value.

The Group’s finance department headed by the person in charge of the accounting institution is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The person in charge of
the accounting institution reports directly to the person in charge of accounting work and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements in the value of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the person in charge of accounting work.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair value.

Long-term receivables, long-term borrowings, debt investments, bonds payable, etc., adopt the future cash flow discount
method to determine the fair value, and use the market yield of other financial instruments with similar contractual terms,
credit risks and remaining maturity as the discount rate. As of 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the fair value of long-
term receivables, long-term borrowings and debt investments approximated to the carrying amount. The default risk of
long-term borrowings was evaluated as insignificant.

The fair value of listed equity instrument investment is determined at the market price. For investment in unlisted equity
instruments, valuation models such as discounted cash flow models and market-comparable company models are used to
estimate fair value, and the assumptions used are not supported by observable market prices or interest rates. The Group
believes that the fair value and its changes estimated by valuation techniques are reasonable and are the most appropriate
value on the balance sheet date.

Unobservable inputs

The valuation models used are mainly discounted cash flow models and market-comparable company models. The input
value of valuation techniques mainly include future cash flows, price-to-book ratio and price-earnings ratio of companies of
the same category.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements
Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements within Level 3 is as follows:

For the six-month ended 30 June 2021:

Total gains or losses Changes in

during the period unrealised

gains or losses

Included in included in

Opening other Closing profit or loss
balance of Includedin  comprehensive balance of  for assets held at
the period profit or loss income Purchases Sales the period  end of the period

Accounts receivable financing 3,788,082 - - 5,117,590 (3,908,930) 4,996,742 -
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IX. Disclosure of fair value (continued)

4. Reconciliation of fair value measurements (continued)
2020
Total gains or losses Changes in
during the year unrealised
gains or losses
Included in included in
Opening other Closing profit or loss for
balance of Includedin  comprehensive balance of assets held at
the year profit or loss income Purchases Sales the year end of the year
Financial assets held for trading
Debt investments 5,705 996 - - (6,701) - -
Accounts receivable financing 3,674,166 - - 5,671,235 (5,557,319) 3,788,082 -
Other non-current financial assets
Investment in stock 35,510 - - - - 35,510 -
Investment in fund 15,000 - - 300,000 (15,000) 300,000 -
Other investment in equity instrument
Investment in unlisted equity instrument 6,409,181 28,385 (451,259) 605,341 (2,054,718) 4,508,545 -
Total 10,139,562 29,381 (451,259) 6,576,576 (7,633,738) 8,632,137 -

For recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, gains and losses included in
profit or loss that relate to financial assets and non-financial assets are as follows:

For the six-month ended 30 June 2021

Profit or loss Profit or loss
related to related to
financial assets non-financial assets

Total realised gains included in profit or loss 66,958 -

Changes in unrealised losses included in profit or loss for assets held at

end of period B B
2020

Profit or loss Profit or loss

related to related to

financial assets non-financial assets
Total realised gains included in profit or loss 29,381 -

Changes in unrealised gains or losses included in profit or loss for assets
held at end of year

5. Fair value level conversion

During the six months ended 30 June 2021, the fair value level of the equity instrument or debt investment continuously
measured at fair value has no change. During the year of 2020, due to ban lifting of restricted shares, the fair value level of
the listed equity instrument investment of other current assets continuously measured at fair value has changed from level
21tolevel 1.

X. Related party relationships and transactions

1. Parent
Proportion Proportion
of ownership of voting
Registered Nature of Registered  interest in the power in the
address business capital  Company (%)  Company (%)
Investment
CSCEC Beijing 10 billion 56.33 56.33
holding
The Company’s ultimate controlling party is State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council.
2. Subsidiaries

The company’s important subsidiaries refer to Note VII. 1.
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates

Except the general information and other related information of joint ventures and associates set out in Note VII. 2, the
situation of joint ventures and associated enterprises that have transactions with the group is listed as follows:

Main place Place of Strategic to Shareholding
of business registration Nature of business group activities ratio (%)
Joint Ventures (Note 4)
Clear Elegant Limited (Note 1) Hong Kong, China  Hong Kong, China Real estate |nvesFment and No 30.00
development business
Luminous Dream Limited (Note 1) Hong Kong, China  Hong Kong, China ?J::;?:ture constucton No 30.00
Gainable Development Limited (Note 1) Hong Kong, China ~ Hong Kong, China Real estale mvesFment and No 20.00
development business
Marble Edge Limited (Note 1) Hong Kong, China ~ Hong Kong, China Real estele |nvesFment and No 18.00
development business
Sunrise JV Limited Hong Kong, China ~ Hong Kong, China ~ Other business No 50.00
Top Colour Development Limited (Note 1) Hong Kong, China ~ Hong Kong, China Real estele |nvesFment and No 34,00
development business
Anhui Bengwu Expressway Investment Management (Note 1) Anhui, China Anhui, China Ln;;?:;rsuscture constction No 70.00
Beijing Nanyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Beijing, China Beijing, China Realestate mves_tment and No 35.00
development business
Cangzhou Bohai New Area China Construction Port Construction Hebei, China Hebei, China Infrgstructure construction No %000
Management Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business
Cangzhou CSCEC Bohai investment Logistics Park Construction Hebei, China Hebei, China Infrgstructure construction No 3000
Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business

Infrastructure construction

Dazhou Dahuan Development Management Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Sichuan, China Sichuan, China business No 65.80

Dalian CSCEC sponge City Construction Development (Note 1) Liaoning, China Liaoning, China Lnlj::;rsuscture consiuction No 49.00

Danjangkou Hajia Constucton Co, Ld. (Note 1) Hubei, China Hubei, China L”J::g::‘“re constructon 60,00

Dongguan Jiafang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Guangdong, China  Guangdong, China Real estte mvesltment and No 32.50
development business

Dongguan Zhonghai Century City Education Technology Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China ~ Other business No 50.00

Ezhou Chuanggu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Hubei, China Hubei, China Feal estte |nvesltment and No 50.00
development business

Foshan Jiantou Zhongjian Yipin Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China Feal estate |nvesltment and No 49.00
development business

Foshan Zhongjian Yipin Pengyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China Real estate mvesllment and No 51.00
development business

Guangzhou Hong Land Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Guangdong, China  Guangdong, China Feal estae mvesllment and No 51.00
development business

Guangzhou SuiHai Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China Feal estate |nvesltment and No 25.00
development business

Guiheng Investment Co., Ltd. Chongging, China ~ Hong Kong, China Realestale "Wes.tmem an No 50.00
development business

Guizhou Leirong Expressway Investment Management Co., Ltd. Guizhou, China Guizhou, China Infrgstructure construction No 68.90

(Note 1) business
Guizhou Zhengxi Expressway Investment Management Co., Ltd. Guizhou, China Guizhou, China Infrgstruclure construction No 60.00
(Note 1) business

Real estate investment and
development business
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Main place Place of Strategic to Shareholding
of business registration Nature of business group activities ratio (%)
Joint Ventures (continued) (Note 4)
China Resources (Tai) Land Co, Lid. Shanxi, China Shanxi China Real estae investmentand 50,00
development business
Huizhou Zhongjian municipal ith Road Investment (Note 3) Guangdong, China  Guangdong, China E‘J;?:gs”:'“re construeion g 100.00
China Construction Jingmen 207 Highway Construction Co., Ltd. Hubei, China Hubei, China Infrlastruclure construction No 5200
(Note 1) business
Leading Investment Co., Lid. (Note 1) Jiangsu, China Hong Kong, China Real estate mves.tmem and No 51.00
development business
Liupanshui urban pipe gallery construction and Development Guizhou, China Guizhou, China Infrgstructure construction No 80.00
Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business
Mianyang thnguan Kefa Guanlang road investment and Sichuan, China Sichuzn, China Hogsmg construction No 3718
Construction Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business
Nanjing Kang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Jiangsu, China Jiangsu, China Real estale |nvespment and No 49.00
development business
Qingdao Fangchen Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China Real estate mves} mertand No 18.00
development business
Qingdao Fangchuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China Realestate mves_tment and No 18.00
development business
Qingdao Fanghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China Real estele |nves‘tment and No 18.00
development business
Qingdao Fanggian Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China Real estte |nves.tment and No 18.00
development business
Qingdao Songmao Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China Real estale mvesltment and No 18.00
development business
Qingdao tengmao Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China Real estele |nvesltment and No 18.00
development business
Qufu Nishan cultural tourism real estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China Real estele mves.tmem and No 60.00
development business
Quapzhou Taiwan Busmess Investment Zone China Construction Fujan, China Fujin, China Infrgstructure construction No 50,00
Fifth Bureau Haiwan Avenue Investment Co., Ltd. business
Rizhao Zhongjian Transportation Service Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China Ln:;?:;rsuscture consiuction No 26.50
Sanya Bihai Jincheng Business Management Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Hainan, China Hainan, China Real estele |nvesltment and No 17.00
development business
Xiamen Yongjing Bay Real Estate Co, Ltd. (Note 1) Fujan, China Fujan, China Realesta ivestmertand 2000
development business
Shandong China Overseas Huachuang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China Real estate mvesllment and o 60.00
development business
Shenzhen Shenshan special cooperation zone Zhongpu . . Infrastructure construction
Infrastructure Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Guangdong, China - Guangdong, China business No 6400
Sichuan Huayou Zhonglan Energy Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Sichuan, China Sichuan, China Other business No 12.00
TEDA Group Co, Ltd. (Note 1) Hong Kong, China  Hong Kong, China g‘:;?:é?:‘”’e construcion 33.00
* Tianjin Chuangliang Investment Management Co, L. (Note )~ Tianjn, China. Tanjn, Chna Oherbushess N 300
Tianjin Chuangging Investment Management Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Tianjin, China Tianjin, China Other business No 51.00
Tinjin Shurji Real Estate Co, L. (Note ) Tanjin, China Tanjin, China Real estate nvestmentand 1250

development business
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Main place Place of Strategic to Shareholding
of business registration Nature of business group activities ratio (%)

Joint Ventures (continued) (Note 4)

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Infrastructure construction
business

Real estate investment and

Xi'an Hehui Xingshang Properties Co., Ltd. Shanxi, China Shanxi, China . No 50.00
development business
Xian Jiarun Rongcheng Real Estate Co,, Lt Shani, China Shanxi, China Realesiate invesimentand 5000
development business
Xiangtan Haijia Construction Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Hunan, China Hunan, China LnJ::;rsuscture consiction No 51.00
Hing Chong Enterprise Co., Lid. Hong Kong, China ~ Hong Kong, China Real estele |nves‘tment and No 50.00
development business
Xinggui Investment Co,, Lt Tejang China  HongKong, China o2 estleinvestmentand 5000
development business
Xuzhou Metro Line Three Investment Development Co,, Ltd. (Note 1) Jiangsu, China Jiangsu, China Ian;ail:;rsuscture consiuction No 44.44
Xuancheng Haijia Lancheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Anhui, China Anhui, China Real estele |nvesltment and No 65.00
development business
Young Yue Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Hong Kong, China  Hong Kong, China Realestele mves.lmem and No 45.00
development business
Yinchuan Shenyang Road Underground Comprehensive Pipe IR o Infrastructure construction
Gallery Construction Management Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Ningiz, China Ningiz, China business o 7000

Real estate investment and

Changsha Yida Chuangzhi Property Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Hunan, China Hunan, China . o 49.00
development business

Changsha CSCEC Urban Investment Pipe Gallery Construction Hunan, China Hunan, China Infra}structure construction No 66.94
Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business

Changsha Zhongjian International Development Co., Lid. (Note 1)~ Hunan, China Hunan, China rﬁ:ﬁ:wm consiuction No 65.00

Changsha China Construction Future Technology City Investment Hunan, China Hunan, China Intrgstructure construction No 51.00
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business

Zhaotong Zhongjian Construction Investment Development Co., Ltd. Yunnan, China Yunnan, China Intrgstructure construction No 51.00
(Note 1) business

China Shipping Hecai (Beijing) Equity Investment Fund Management Bejjng, China Beijng, China Other business No 55,00
Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

Shipping Hongyang Haifu (Hefei) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Anhui, China Anhui, China Real estate mvesllment and 0 4500
(Note 1) development business

China Construction (Tangshan Caofeidian) Engineering Construction Hebel, China Hebel, China Infrgstruciure construction N 90.00
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business

China Construction (Tianjin) Rail Transit Investment Development Tinjin, China Tinjin, China Infre}structure construction N 1890
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business

CSCEC Chengdu rail transit investment and Construction Co., Ltd. Sichuan, China Sichuan, China Infrgstruclure construction N 20,00
(Note 1) business

CSCEC Dacheng Construction Co., Ltd. Beijing, China Beijing, China Housing consfucton No 50.00

business
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Joint Ventures (continued) (Note 4)

China Construction Intemational (Xiangyang) Construction Co., Ltd.

(Note 1)

Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

Operation Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

Operation Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

Joint ventures and associates (continued)

Main place
of business
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Place of
registration

Nature of business

Housing construction
business

Housing construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Real estate investment and
development business
Real estate investment and
development business
Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Infrastructure construction
business

Real estate investment and
development business
Real estate investment and
development business
Infrastructure construction
business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

China Construction Haijia (Foshan) Investment and Construction

China Construction Third Bureau Hubei Dadong Lake Deep Tunnel
Engineering Construction and Operation Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

China State Construction Xi'an Infrastructure Construction

China State Construction Zhanjiang Avenue Investment and
Construction Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

China Overseas Polytec Real Estate (Foshan) Co., Ltd. (Formerly
known as CITIC Polytec Real Estate (Foshan) Co., Ltd.)

China State Construction Development and Construction (Foshan)

Xiangyang Loop Line Speed-up Transformation Construction and

Nanjing China Construction Fifth Bureau Lishui Development Zone
Affordable Housing Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

Ezhou City Cultural and Sports Investment Construction and

China Overseas Southern Airlines Construction and Development

China State Construction Communications Construction Group
Linfen Jinhe Road and Bridge Engineering Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

INTERIM REPORT 2021
Strategic to Shareholding
group activities ratio (%)
No 70.00
No 80.00
No 60.00
No 50.00
No 51.00
No 55.00
No 22.50
No 70.10
No 50.00
No 50.00
No 49.00
No 60.00
No 761
No 80.00
No 60.00
No 39.00
No 2557
No 51.00
No 4750
No 51.00
No 18.00
No 20.00
No 50.00
No 44.00
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Main place Place of Strategic to Shareholding
of business registration Nature of business group activities ratio (%)

Joint Ventures (continued) (Note 4)

Investment and Construction of Haigang New City in Shenzhen- Infrastructure construction
Shantou Special Cooperation Zone Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business

Real estate investment and

Sichuan Dehui Expressway Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Sichuan, China Sichuan, China ) o 20.00
development business
China Cons.trucnoanhlr(l! Bureau Wuhan Jianghan Sl|xth Bridge Hubei, China Hubei, China Infrgstructure construction N 50.00
Connection Engineering Construction and Operation Co., Ltd. business
T|angue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Pengjiang District, Guangdong, China  Guangdong, China Real estate |nvespment and X 50,00
Jiangmen City development business
Lufan Haija Lancheng Real Estate Co.,Lid. (Note 1) Anhui, China Anhui, China Real estate mvestmentand 51.00
development business
Main place Place of Strategic to Shareholding
of business registration Nature of business group activities ratio (%)
Associates (Note 4)
Sanmenxia National Highway 310 South Moving Project Construction Henan, China Henan, China Infrgstruclure construction No 1000
Management Co., Ltd. business
Hebei Xongan Citzen Senvice Center Co., Lt (Note2) Hebel, China Hebe, China g‘::j;f:‘”’e constructon 5050
Hubei Trading Xiangyang North Expressway Co., Ltd. Hubei, China Hubei, China ?J;?i?:wre consiructon No 20.00
Wuhan Huangxiaohe Alrpon Rlverl Environment Comprehensive Hubei, China Hubei, China Infrgstructure construction No 1220
Treatment Construction Operation Co., Ltd. business

Infrastructure construction

Hebei Chenghong Pipe Gallery Engineering Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Hebei, China Hebei, China business No 5.00
Guangzhou Lihe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China Real estle mves}ment and o 20.00
development business
Suzhou Xinghui West Ring Road Construction Co., Ltd. Anhui, China Anhui, China Lnlj;?:;?:ture consituetion No 3093
Liupanshui Dongda highway investment and Development Co., Ltd. Guizhou, China Guizhou, China Infrgstructure construction No 50,00
(Note 2) business
Shandong Qilu Ningliang Expressway Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China LnJ:ia:;rsuscture consiuction No 49.00
Suzhou Junda National Road 206 Construction Co., Ltd. Anhui, China Anhui, China tl;ll?suiigsgsconstrucnon No 20.00
B —— HaoyunCo L Hebe|Ch|na ........... Hebe|Ch|na ........... S e wi
China Construction Haoyun Co., Ltd. Hebei, China Hebei, China Other business No 35.00
Haikou Qiyue Urban Construction Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Hainan, China Hainan, China Lnll?:;rsuscture consiuction No 2.00
Qingdao Yuefu Real Estate Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China Real estele |nvesltment and No 100.00
development business
Qingdao Zefu Real Estate Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China Real estte mves.tment and No 100.00
development business
Jinan Taihui Real Estate Development Co Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China Feal estte mvesltment and No 33.00
development business
Jiangmen Pengjiang Hebang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Guangdong, Chira  Guangdong, China Real estate |nvesltment and No 50,00
(Note 2) development business

Real estate investment and
development business
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Main place Place of Strategic to Shareholding
of business registration Nature of business group activities ratio (%)

Associates (continued) (Note 4)

Real estate investment and

Beijing Jinliang Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Beijing, China Beijing, China development business No 40.00

Xinjiang China Construction Urban Construction Investment Co., Ltd. ~ Xinjiang, China Xinjiang, China ?J::;rsusclure constriction No 20.00

Wuhan Binjiang Infrastructure Construction Development Co., Ltd. ~ Hubei, China Hubei, China ?J;?:érsu;ture constructon No 35.00

Guangzhou Bisen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China Real estate |nvesltment and No 14.28
development business

Jiaozuo Zhongjian south to North Water Diversion ecological Henan, China Henan, China Other business No 30,00

protection construction and Operation Co., Ltd.

Housing construction

Henan Xuxin Expressway Co., Ltd. Henan, China Henan, China . No 30.00
business
China Constr‘ucnon Third queau Xiangyang Yuliangzhou Ecological Hubei, China Hubei, China Other business No 150
Construction and Operation Co., Ltd.
China State anstructlon Wuhan Qingling Pipe Gallery Construction Hubei, China Hubei, China Infrgstructure construction No 9.0
and Operation Co., Ltd. (Note 2) business
Wuhan Wuyang Expressway Investment Management Co., Ltd. Hubei, China Hubei, China Lnlj;&il:;rsuscture consiction No 30.00
Wenzhou China Construction Steel Structure Olympic Sports Project Zhejiang, China Zhejiang, China Infrgstructure construction No 15.00
Management Co., Ltd. (Note 2) business
China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Nanchong ' . . ' Infrastructure construction
Environmental Construction Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Sichuan, China Sichuzn, China business o 1500
Liuzhou Chlqa Construction Steel Structure Dongcheng Exhibition Guangxi, China Guangxi, China Infra}structure construction No 1667
Construction Co., Ltd. business
Chengdu Changtou Dongjin Construction Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Sichuan, China Sichuan, China LnJ::;rsuscture construction No 1.00
* Zhengzhou Yiongyijan Supply Chain Management Co, Lt (Note2)  Henan, China Henan,China Saesmaterds oo 800
Shandong Zhongjian Zhongli Equipment Leasing Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China Leasing business No 30.00
Beijing China Construction Zhongchao Concrete Co., Ltd. Beijing, China Beijing, China Other business No 30.00
Sichuan Xijianshantui Logistics Co., Ltd. Sichuan, China Sichuan, China Other business No 30.00
Beijing Chmal Construction Runtong Electrical Engineering Beijig, China Beijig, China Hoqsmg construction No 30,00
Construction Co., Ltd. business
Sichuan Xijianzhonghe Machinery Co., Ltd. Sichuan, China Sichuan, China Other business No 44.44
Nanjing Zhongjian Rural Tourism Construction Investment Co., Ltd.  Jiangsu, China Jiangsu, China H;?:;T:Me consiiction No 20.00
Jinmao investment (Changsha) Co., Ltd. Hunan, China Hunan, China Realestae |nvesllment and No 20.00
development business
Nanjing CSCEC Gubei Urban Development Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, China Jiangsu, China ?Jg:;rsusdure constucton No 45.00
Suzhou Fu Real Estate Co., Lid. Jiangsu, China Jiangsu, China Real estate mves.tmem and No 34.00
development business
Guangzhou Ivrong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Guangdong, China  Guangdong, China Realestale mves;ment anc No 16.66
development business
Jlngg thr;zhou Zhongjian Transportation Construction Development Shandong, China Shandong, China ?J;?:érsusclure construction No 3%

Real estate investment and
development business
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Main place Place of Strategic to Shareholding
of business registration Nature of business group activities ratio (%)

Associates (continued) (Note 4)

China Construction Third Bureau Shengshi Jingzhou Real Estate Real estate investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (Note 2) development business

Real estate investment and

Guangzhou Zengcheng run Yu Real Estate Co., Ltd. Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China development business No 20.00
Wahan Hongtai Hongii Zhongjan Yipin Real Estate Co, Lid (Note ) Hubei, China Hubei, China Real estate investmentand 51.00
development business
Duyun Yinhe Real Estae Development Co, L Guzhou,China  Guizhou China o cstalemesimentand 13
development business
Hanzhong Xinghan City Parking Lot Construction Management Shami, China Shansi, China Other business No 18.00
Co., Ltd. (Note 2)
Chengdu Chuantou Airport Construction Co., Ltd. Sichuan, China Sichuan, China Ian;?:;r:sclure consiructon No 20.00
Putian Zhongjian Mulan Construction Development Co., Ltd. Fujian, China Fujian, China Lnl:::;rsu:ture consicton No 49.90
China Construction Third Bureau Ezhou Guang'an Real Estate Hubei, China Hubei, China Real estate mves}ment and No 20,00
Development Co., Ltd. development business
Baoding China Construction Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 2)  Hebei, China Hebei, China nfasiructute consiucton No 15.00

business

China Construction Third Bureau Rongchang Chengdu Tianfu New Real estate investment and
District Construction Investment Co., Ltd. development business

Real estate investment and

development business
Chmg Constructlgn Third Engmgenng Bureau Xiangyang East West Hubei, China Hubel, China Infrgstructure construction No 1000
axis construction and Operation Co., Ltd. (Note 2) business
China State Construction Xi'an Urban Construction Investment Shamsi, China Shamsi, China Infrgstructure construction No 30,00
Co., Ltd. business
Xiamen Junyi Properties Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Fujian, China Fujian, China Real estate |nvesFment and No 50.00
development business
CCCC dijiao Expressway Investment Development Co., Ltd. Hebei, China Hebei, China ?J::;?:wre constructon No 21.00
Yunnan Huali expressway investment and Development Co., Ltd. ~ Yunnan, China Yunnan, China :J;a:;rsuscture constucton No 46.00
Guangzhou Fuchuang Real Estate Development Co., Lid. (Note2) ~ Guangdong, China  Guangdong, China Real estele |nvesFment and No 34.00
development business
China Construghon Third Engmeenng Buregu Xianning Big Continent Hubei, China Hubel, China Infrgstructure construction No 1500
Lake ecological construction and Operation Co., Ltd. business
Liuzhou Chmg Construction Steel Structure Dongcheng Exhibition Guangy, China Guangy, China Infre_lstructure construction No 4000
Construction Co., Ltd. business

Real estate investment and

Changsha Xirong Real Estate Co., Ltd. Hunan, China Hunan, China ) o 33.00
development business
Shandong Zhongcheng Machinery Leasing Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China Leasing business No 30.00
Zhengzhou public Zhongcheng road and Bridge Construction Henan, China Henan, China Infrgstructure construction No 2500
Management Co., Ltd. business
Nanyang Zhongjian Jinrui Urban Construction Development Co., Ltd. ~Henan, China Henan, China LnJ;?s;rsuscture consituction No 20.00

Infrastructure construction
business
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)

Associates (continued) (Note 4)

China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Jingzhou Huanchang
Lake construction and Operation Co., Ltd.

Co., Ltd.

Panzhihua China Construction Third Bureau Government Service
Center Project Construction Development Co., Ltd. (Note 2)

Shijiazhuang Jiaojian Expressway Construction Management Co.,
Ltd.

China State Construction Xi'an Urban Construction Investment Co.,
Ltd.

Shanggiu China Construction Cloud Gity Urban Construction
Development Co., Ltd. (Note 2)

Main place
of business

Place of
registration

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

Nature of business

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Real estate investment and
development business

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Housing construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Real estate investment and
development business
Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Infrastructure construction
business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business
Real estate investment and
development business
Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Infrastructure construction
business

INTERIM REPORT 2021
Strategic to Shareholding
group activities ratio (%)
No 20.00
No 15.00
No 38.65
No 30.00
No 20.00
No 49.00
No 210
No 31.50
No 9.00
No 49.00
No 28.57
No 9.00
No 30.00
No 50.00
No 25.00
No 10.00
No 49.00
No 30.00
No 30.00
No 40.00
No 20.00
No 20.00
No 20.00
No 33.00
No 19.00
No 10.00
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Main place Place of Strategic to Shareholding
of business registration Nature of business group activities ratio (%)

Associates (continued) (Note 4)

China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Shiyan Aviation Road Infrastructure construction
Construction and Operation Co., Ltd. business

Real estate investment and

Beijing Jianyan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Beijing, China Beijing, China development business No 49.00
Putian Puyang University Construction Co., Ltd. Fujian, China Fujian, China tl;l;);f]zsgsconstrucuon No 32.90
T, Co L MacaoChm S MacaoChma .......... T o s
Suzhou Mudu Zhongxin land Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, China Jiangsu, China Real estale |nves'tment and No 35.00

development business
CSCEC Wuhan Yangsigang Road and Bridge Construction and Hubei, China Hubei, China Infre_astructure construction No 4000
Operation Co., Ltd. business
China Construction Thlrd Engmeenpg Bureau Yichang City Pipe Hubei, China Hubei, China Infrgstructure construction No 4129
Gallery Construction and Operation Co., Ltd. business
Haikou Tuoyi Real Estate Co., Ltd. Hainan, China Hainan, China Real estele |nves'tment and No 20.00
development business
Xuchang Chenheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. Henan, China Henan, China Real estate mves.tment an No 39.00
development business
- . . . Real estate investment and
Beijing Huiguang Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Beijing, China Beijing, China dovelopment business No 16.52
Wuhan Zhongjan Yipin Zhaoying Real Estate Co., Lid. (Note2) ~ Hubei, China Hube, China Real estale invesimentand 50.00
development business
Jinan Hongbi Real Estate Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China Real estele mves.lmem and No 20.00
development business
Futian Jiangkou Suanxi CSCEC Strait Infrastructure Investmentand  _ . . , . Real estate investment and
Fujian, China Fujian, China . o 5.00
Development Co., Ltd. (Note 2) development business

Zhangzhou China Merchants Economic and Technological Infrastruciure consiruction
Development Zone China State Construction Infrastructure Fujian, China Fujian, China . No 20.10
business
Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

Haizhou Investment Co., Ltd. Hong Kong, China ~ Hong Kong, China ~ Other business No 49.00
Jiging High Speed Railway Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Shandong, China  Shndong, China E‘J;?:gs“sct”re construeion 8.40
Luzhou Yangtze River Second Bridge Construction Co., Ltd. (Note 2) - Sichuan, China Sichuan, China H;?:;?:Me consiuction No 10.00
Panjin Xinjian Construction Co., Ltd. Liaoning, China Liaoning, China EJ::;T:MG consiuction No 45.85
Xinjiang China Construction Urban Construction Investment Co., Lid. ~ Xinjiang, China Xinjiang, China r:;?:;?:ture consiuction No 20.00
Shantou CSCEC new urbanization Investment Co., Ltd. Guangdong, China  Guangdong, China Ej;ail:;rsuscture consiiction No 36.77
Shanghai Fuhong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Shanghai, China Shanghai, China Real estate mvesltment and No 100.00
development business
Xuzhou No.1 Line Rail Transit Investment Development Co., Ltd. ~ Jiangsu, China Jiangsu, China gg::é?:wre constucton N 38.30
Liuzhou China Construction Steel Structure Ecological Garden Guangy, China Guangxi, China Infrastructure construction N 218

Construction Co., Ltd. business

Infrastructure construction
business
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Joint ventures and associates (continued)

Main place Place of Strategic to Shareholding
of business registration Nature of business group activities ratio (%)
Associates (continued) (Note 4)
Suining Donghu Qreen Water Ecological Environment Investment Sichuan, China Other business No 3.0
and Construction Co., Ltd.
| Alpine Skiing Co., L Beijin her business

Xiangyang Fancheng Ring Greenway and Park Construction Co.,
Ltd. (Note 2)

Changsha Rail China Construction Xinhe Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 3)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Infrastructure construction
business

Shandong, China business

Real estate investment and
development business

The Group’s shareholding ratio in some of the aforementioned joint ventures is less than 50% or more than 50%.
Major business decisions made by the board of directors of these companies or similar institutions can only be
approved after the unanimous consent of all investors; or according to the provisions of the articles of association
of these companies, major business decisions must be approved by representatives of more than two-thirds of the
voting rights. These decisions can be passed only if the Group and other shareholders agree unanimously. The
Group has no substantial control over these companies, so these companies are accounted for as joint ventures.

Hunan, China

For invested companies with a shareholding ratio of less than 20%, the Group has the right to participate in their
business decision-making by appointing directors to the board of directors of these companies, and has a significant
influence; for invested companies with a shareholding ratio of not less than 50%, According to the provisions of the
articles of association of these companies on the decision-making mechanism for major operations and financial
decisions, they cannot be controlled or jointly controlled, but the Group can only exercise significant influence.
Therefore, these companies are accounted for as associates.

Due to the acquisition of these companies’ equity, on 30 June 2021, the Group has included them in the scope of
consolidation.

The aforementioned joint ventures include joint ventures and their subsidiaries, and associates include associates

and their subsidiaries.

Other related parties

Beijing Zhongjian Qiming Enterprise Management Co., Ltd

Chengdu CSCEC Minjiang Construction Engineering Investment
Co., Ltd.

China Construction Eco-environmental Group Co., Ltd. (Formerly
known as “China Construction Water Affairs Environmental
Protection Co., Ltd.”)

Relationship with the group
Controlled by the same parent company




o4 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties

(1) Related party goods and services transactions

Furchase of goods and accepling services from relaled partiies

For the six-month For the six-month
Nature of the period ending period ending
transaction 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
CSCEC Electronic Commerce Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods 1,255,366 866,329
Zhengzhou Yirong Yijian Supply Chain Management Purchase of goods 141,013 899,102
Co., Ltd.
Macau Cement Works Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods - 40,453
Gangjiu Concrete Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods 130,888 24,342
Others Purchase of goods and 36,277 16,377
Accepting services
Total 1,564,444 1,846,603
2) Contract engineering and projects sub-contracted out
Contiract engineering
Nature of the For the six months For the six months
transaction ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020
Gu&z:ottlcjelrong Expressway Investment Management Contract engineering 2,206,682 475,127
CSCCOECLtX(; an Xingfu forest belt construction investment Contract engineering 2,067,133 985,431
i qlnnggh Speed . Rallway Co g —. englne erlng .......................... 1,88 ’ ,734 .......................... i o
CSCEC Wuhan Huangxiaohe airport river water
environment comprehensive treatment construction ~ Contract engineering 1,057,989 233,906
and Operation Co., Ltd.
Shantou CSCEC new urbanization Investment Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 925,886 -
CCI)_Ct:él Jijiao Expressway Investment Development Co., Contract engineering 909,756 554,061
Sammenia Nationai H|gh way 510 Soutars PrOJ e B
Construction Management Co., Ltd. Contract engineering i)
China Construction (Tianjin) Rail Transit Investment L
Development Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 779,704
Gug:otéhengm Expressway Investment Management Contract engineering 768,125 650,953
Yunnan Huali expressway investment and Development Contract engineering 735,890 _
Co., Ltd.
Xuzhou Rail Transit Investment Development Co., Ltd. ~ Contract engineering 592,924 717,555
Shandong Qilu ningliang Expressway Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 508,293 852,002
Mianyang Zhongjian Kefa Guanlang Road Investment . .
and Construction Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 451,594 23,384
Guangzhou Lihe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 436,847 134,807
Haggzhlf)tz Chengtou Wulin Investment Development Contract engineering 425,334 519,550
Gul:atr;gzhou fuchuang Real Estate Development Co., Contract engineering 403,450 -
 Ghina Siate Consiriction hanjlang R B
and Construction Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 394,410 106,070
Qingdao China Construction Eighth Bureau Education Contract engineering 385,195 _

Development Co., Ltd.
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

Contract engineering and Projects sub-contracted out (continued)

Coniract engineering (continuea)

Nature of the For the six months For the six months
transaction ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020
Sichuan Dehui Expressway Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 384,023 35,960
Chlir;gsha Yida Chuangzhi Property Development Co., Contract engineering 379,981 82,561
CSLCt)(;EC new urbanization (Xinjiang) Investment Co., Contract engineering 373,872 730,335
i e grou p Co .........................................................................................................................
Ltd. (Formerly known as “China Construction Water ~ Contract engineering 371,090 621,695
Affairs Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.”)
Wuhan Wuyang Expressway Investment Management Contract engineering 360,902 13,004
Co., Ltd.
Wuhan Zhongjian Wudi Development and Construction Contract engineering 354,803 _
Co., Ltd.

Unér::m I_Ztgongcheng Silk Road Sports Management Contract engineering 326,503 387,004
Zhar:jgjlagang Xinmao Investment and Construction Co., Contract engineering 320,123 59,702
Urumq|L|nkong o Co T —. englneenng ............................. 5 8,031 - R

CSCEC Chengdu rail transit investment and L
Construction Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 312,881 998,235

Anhui Bengwu Expressway Investment Management Contract engineering 306,785 57,741
Co., Ltd.

Shanggqiu Zhongjian Yuncheng Urban Construction Contract engineering 291,649 807,331
Development Co., Ltd.

Xinjiang China Construction Urban Construction Contract engineering 280,401 _
Investment Co., Ltd.

Ganzhou Hangyu Construction Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 274,189 231,185

Hebei Chenghong pipe gallery Engineering Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 270,320 -

China Construction Third Engineering Bureau
Xiangyang East West axis construction and Operation Contract engineering 265,660 225,197
Co., Ltd.

Nanjing China Construction Fifth Bureau Lishui
Development Zone Affordable Housing Investment Contract engineering 265,248 -
Co., Ltd.

Xiangyang Loop Line Speed-up Transformation . _
Construction and Operation Co., Ltd. Contract engineering Pl

Henan Xuxin Expressway Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 253,971 -

Shenzhen-Shantou Special Cooperation Zone Haigang . B
New City Investment and Construction Co., Ltd. Contract engineering R

Zhengzhou public Zhongcheng road and Bridge ) .

Construction Management Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 252,024 158,633
Chgwoa Cl)_c:(;wstrucnon Jingmen 207 Highway Construction Contract engineering 246,448 155,796
bel Trad mg “ ang yangNorlh & pressway o Lo Gt gmeenng ............................. 2i 0,487 ................................... o

Quanzhou Taiwan Business Investment Zone China
Construction Fifth Bureau Haiwan Avenue Investment Contract engineering 237,917 217,271
Co., Ltd.

China Construction International (Xiangyang) Contract engineering 232,231 123,168

Construction Co., Ltd.
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

(2) Contract engineering and Projects sub-contracted out (continued)

Coniract engineering (continuea)

Nature of the For the six months For the six months
transaction ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020
Chengdu Chuantou Airport Construction Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 224,295 266,314
Xi'an Chuxin investment and Construction Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 222,544 396,021
Guangzhou XingLv Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. ~ Contract engineering 220,843 -
Nanyang Zhongjian Jinrui Urban Construction Contract engineering 219,539 56,243
Development Co., Ltd.
Wqutlgn Hongtai Hongli Zhongjian Yipin Real Estate Co., Contract engineering 218,486 55,262
Luirdou Yangtze River Second Bridge Construction Co., Contract engineering 201,009 171,284
CSCEC Xi'an comprehensive pipe gallery Investment Contract engineering 166,254 323,576
Development Co., Ltd.
China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Jingzhou
Huanchang Lake construction and Operation Co., Contract engineering 159,509 456,362
Ltd.
Xuzhou Rail Transit Investment Development Co., Ltd. ~ Contract engineering 149,332 196,748
Jiaozuo Zhongjian south to North Water Diversion
ecological protection construction and Operation Co., Contract engineering 136,332 270,346
Ltd.
Zunyi South Ring Expressway Development Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 108,000 124,216
CSCEC Wuhan Qingling pipe gallery construction and Contract engineering 105,944 237,086
Operation Co., Ltd.
Zhlz_iﬂigzhou Zhanyuan Environmental Technology Co., Contract engineering 102,204 302,042
Jinjiang zhongyun Sports Construction Development Contract engineering 96,042 243,554
Co., Ltd.

Wllj_ttwgn Zhongxia Road Construction Engineering Co., Contract engineering 90,286 194,994
Xlnlﬁ Huancheng Road Construction Investment Co., Contract engineering 86,866 323,922
hi G gmeenn g B Shlyan ......................... R

aviation road construction and Operation Co., Ltd. Contract engineering M 302,975
Xianning Dazhou lake ecological construction and Contract engineering 64,274 413,424

Operation Co., Ltd.

Jining Yanzhou Zhongjian Transportation Construction
Development Co., Ltd.

Shijiazhuang Jiaojian Expressway Construction
Management Co., Ltd.

Huizhou Zhongjian Municipal Fifth Road Investment
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)
(2) Contract engineering and Projects sub-contracted out (continued)

Frojects sub-contracted out

Nature of the
transaction

projects sub-contracted

For the six-month
ending 30 June 2021

For the six-month
ending 30 June 2020

CSCEC-Dacheng Construction Ltd. out 377,739 49,313
CSCEC Road & Bridge Group Co., Lid. prolects sub-contracted 63,236 131,116
China Construction E-commerce Co., Ltd. EL?ECtS sub-contracted 46,373 32,266
e p Co ............. roects Su bcontracted .............................................................................
Ltd. (Formerly known as “China Construction Water Eutj 19,431 110,026
Affairs Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.")
Beulng_ Chm_a Construcno_n Runtong Electrical projects sub-contracted 5,988 16,384
Engineering Construction Co., Ltd. out
Others g[ﬁjects sub-contracted 10,075 89,170
B o 2,842 .......................... 428275
(3) Related party leasing
As lessor
Types of For the six months For the six months
leased assets ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020
China Construction Group Buildings 286 286
China Construction Aluminum New Materials Co., Ltd.  Office Building 187 -
China Construction Eco-environmental Group Co.,
Ltd. (Formerly known as “China Construction Water  Office Building 178 1,442
Affairs Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.”)
China Construction Environmental Energy Technology Office Building B 621
Co., Ltd.
China Construction E-commerce Co., Ltd. Office Building - 164
Total 651 2,513
As /essee
Types of For the six months For the six months
leased assets ended 30 June 2021 ended 30 June 2020
hi ion Alumi New Materials Ch
China Construction Aluminum New Materials Chengdu Materials 43,236 22,848
Co., Ltd.
Sichuan Xijianshantui Logistics Co., Ltd. Transport equipment 31,645 22,207
Sichuan Xijianzhong Machinery Co., Ltd. Transport equipment 20,153 26,260
Shandong Zhongcheng Machinery Leasing Co., Ltd. Machinery equipment 11,017 91,653
Others Office buildings, etc 25,622 14,968
Total 131,673 177,936
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

Related party guarantee

Orfering guaraniee lo related pariies

For the six-month period ending 30 June 2021

Whether the
Amount of  Starting date Maturity date guarantee has
guarantee  of guarantee of guarantee been fulfilled
Guangzhou Bison Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 172,530 11 December 2018 31 December 2021 No
 Guangzhou Bison Real Estate Development o, Ltd. 71,386 26 December2018  25December2021  No
GuangZhou |_|he R e a| Esta te D evelopmem CoLt d ................. 28 0’000 ..... 22 Apnl 2019 ............... 21Apr|| 2022 ............... No ..................
GuangZhou |_|he R e a| Esta te D evelopment COLt d ................. 18 0’000 ..... 29June 2020 ............... 28June2023 ............... No ..................
 Guangzhou Lvrong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 192090 13November2018 29 November202t  No
ChangshaX|rong Real E state Co i Lt d .................................. 12 5’070 ..... 1 J uIy 2020 ................. 31Dece mbe r2021 ........ No ..................
 Chongaing Jiayi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 131,300 20November2020  20November202s No
Chongq mg J|ay| Real EstateDeveIopmentCo Ltd25,500 ..... 9 F ebrua ry2021 ........... 15 Ma rCh 2 022 ............. No ..................

Chongq mg J|ay| Real EstateDeveIopmentCo Ltd32,5oo ..... 16 Ma rCh 2 017 ............. 15|V|a mh 2 022 ............. No ..................

Chongq mg J|ay| Rea | EstateDevelopmentCo Ltd .................. 13 5’1 50 ..... 14Apr“ 2017 ............... 15 Ma rCh 2 022 ............. No ..................

Chongq mg J|ay| Real EstateDeveIopmentCo Ltd22,350 ..... 21ma mh 2 017 ............. 15Ma rCh 2022 ............. NO ..................

Chongq mg J|ay| Rea |' EstateDevelopmemCO Ltd .................. 17 5’000 ..... 5 JUIy 2017 ................. 15 Ma rCh 2 022 ............. No ..................
Tota|1,542876 .............................................................................................
For the six-month period ending 30 June 2020
Whether the
Amount  Starting date Maturity date guarantee has
of guarantee  of guarantee of guarantee been fulfilled
Guangzhou Lihe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 511,520 13 July 2018 21 May 2021 No
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CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

Inter bank loan of related parties

Capital borrowings

For the six-month period ending 30 June 2021

Borrowing
amount  Starting date
Qingdao Tengmao Real Estate Co., Ltd. 170,842 12 April 2021

For the six-month period ending 30 June 2020

Borrowing
amount  Starting date

Luminous Dream Limited 1,044,780 20 January 2020

INTERIM REPORT 2021

Ending date
11 April 2022

Ending date
No fixed maturity date
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)
(5) Inter bank loan of related parties (continued)

Funas lent

For the six-month period ending 30 June 2021

Loan amount ~ Starting date Ending date
Haizhou Investment Co., Ltd. 3,183,040 7 January 2021 31 July 2021
B VIR Co [ A 2,307, w00 11duenos i
* Chongging Qingneng Yuehe Real Estate Co., Ltd. 204,779 20 April2021 21 August2022
' Baoding China Construction Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. 183,569 6 April2021 31 December 2021
' Baoding China Construction Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. 180,250 6 April2021 31 December 2021
 Jinjiang Zhongyun Sports Construction Development Co., Ltd. 31,500 18June2021 No fixed maturity date
'~ China Construction Aluminum New Materials Chengdu Co., Ltd. 30,000 29March2021 28 March2022
'~ China Construction Environmental Energy Technology Co., Ltd. 26,000 11May2021 10 May2022
buion Puyang o |versny ConstrucnonCo e 22, 500 7Ja nuary P Hi e e
e ngzhou bubic Zhongcheng Road ard Bndge o 21 ’ 635 ..... 10 M amh 2021 ............... 9 Mamh 20 22 ...............

Management Co., Ltd.

Putian Jiangkou Suanxi CSCEC Strait Infrastructure Investment

and Development Co., Lid. 12,580 22 January 2021 No fixed maturity date
* Wuhan Chenzhan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 10,800 28June2021 27June2022
 China Construction Aluminum New Materials Chengdu Co., Ltd. 10000 26May2021 25May2022
 China Construction Aluminum New Materials Chengdu Co., Ltd. 10,000 29June2021 28 June 2022
o ngzhou China Veratants Ecoroms and To chnolog e
Development Zone China State Construction Infrastructure 8,000 26 March 2021 No fixed maturity date
Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
 Jinyu Jiaxing Nanjing Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. | 6,000 28January2021 28 January 2024
* Cangzhou CSCEC Bohai investment Logistics Park Construction 4560 """ otyune202t 2 SEPtember on |
Development Co., Ltd.
 Nanjing Guancheng Hengrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. 3533 1January2021 31 December2021
* Wuhan Chenzhan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 2,400 30April2021 29 October2021
Wahan Chonia Roal E<tato Do elopment Co L R 2’ 000 28unesosi T
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)
Inter bank loan of related parties (continued)

Fund lent (continuea)

For the six-month period ending 30 June 2020

Loan amount ~ Starting date Ending date
Shanghai Fuhong Real Estate Co., Ltd. 1,132,856 1 January 2020 30 June 2020
Jinan Zhonghai Dongcheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd 22 January 2020 No fixed maturity date
Guiheng Investment Co., Ltd. 4 January 2020 31 May 2020
Chirt](? Construction Water Affairs Environmental Protection Co., 16 April 2020 15 April 2021

China Construction (Tangshan Caofeidian) Engineering

Construction Co., Ltd. 26,514 31 January 2020 No fixed maturity date
lahie dge L 18485 ..... e ry soss Ne g urltydate .
e ngb| Roal Estate Co g 20000 ..... P ry ooy sodmesoss
b Conctruction o Co Lo 20000 ..... oy ay oo o May o
- Dragon S HK Ivestmente Limitag 16223 ..... 0 January o N frod mat urltydate .
- Xlng gul e L 15000 ..... i ay oo N fad ot urltydate .
EDA Group Co L 12302 ..... e January sope N fed ot urltydate .
 China construction aluminum new materials Chengdu Co., Ltd. 10,000 22June2020 21June2021
- Nanjmg o eng von grw fonl Estate. Co T 8580 ..... a0 Fe bruary202 g 51 Decombor 500
lean g I 8 5 e ry w0 51 Decombor 5020
 Putian Puyang University Construction Co., Ltd. 3000 12March2020 No fixed maturity date
Uia Keon HoId|ngs L 2414 ..... s v ooze N fad oot urltydate
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)
(6) A takes deposits

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Increase Decrease
1 January in the current in the current 30 June
2021 period period 2021
China State Construction Group 234,683 5,289,342 (366,813) 5,157,212
CSCEC Electronic Commerce Co., Ltd 1,291,496 1,603,557 (1,282,843) 1,612,210
China Construction Eco-environmental Group Co., Ltd. (Formerly
known as “China Construction Water Affairs Environmental 674,551 28,834 - 703,385

Protection Co., Ltd.”)

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Increase Decrease

1 January in the current in the current 30 June

2020 period period 2020

China Construction Group 14,136 5,513,287 (1,545,246) 3,982,177
China Construction E-commerce Co., Ltd 315,902 834,140 (433,366) 716,676
China Construction Water Affairs Environmental Protection Co., Ltd 438,078 1,184,461 (997,221) 625,318
Beijing Zhongjian Qiming Enterprise Management Co., Ltd 34,489 60,772 (68,719) 26,542
Chengdu CSCEC Minjiang Construction Engineering Investment 2357 20033 (2.410) 19.980

Co., Ltd. '
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

Transfer of related parties assets

For the six-month For the six-month
Nature of the period ending period ending
transaction 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
China Oversea Grand Oceans Group LTD Trade mark use right 166,600 160,570
Other related parties transactions
For the six-month For the six-month
period ending period ending
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Key management’s remuneration 5,603 1,663
Amounts due from related parties
Notes receivable
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount allowance amount allowance
Qingdao Fanggian Real Estate Co., Ltd. 120,138 - 60,418 -
Qingdao tengmao Real Estate Co., Ltd. 31,000 - 1,327 -
China Construction Eco-environmental Group Co., Ltd.
(Formerly known as “China Construction Water Affairs 15,910 - 21,000 -
Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.”)
Qingdao Fanghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. 4,469 - 14,565 -
Qingdao Fangchen Real Estate Co., Ltd. 1,807 - 5,429 -
Changsha China Construction Future Technology City
- - 28,000 -
Investment Co., Ltd.
Others 18,952 - 7,345 -
Total 192,276 - 138,084 -
Accounts receivable
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount allowance amount allowance
Guizhou Leirong Expressway Investment Management Co., Ltd. 1,411,551 (63,520) 794,470 (85,751)
CSCEC New Urbanization (Xinjiang) Investment Co., Ltd. 778,272 (41,586) 661,443 (23,990)
Shangang Group Ruitai Development Co., Ltd. 426,440 (72,698) 227,629 (53,143)
China Construction International (Xiangyang) Construction 424,446 . 488,312 _
Co., Ltd.
Shg:zrtltjgng Jiaojian Expressway Construction Management 404,668 (126,907) 415,308 (125,448)
i Condiris 'G'rldhlb' o
(Formerly known as “China Construction Water Affairs 354,848 - 184,464 -
Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.”)
China Cons’Fructlon (Tangshan Caofeidian) Engineering 325,670 (16,284) 707,622 (15,846)
Construction Co., Ltd.
Chengdu Changtou Dongjin Construction Co., Ltd. 300,183 (6,004) 167,903 (3,358)
Xuzhou Line 1 Rail Transit Investment Development Co., Ltd. 279,306 (55,861) 508,188 (50,819)
Zhggto&gthongjlan Construction Investment Development 254,079 (62,546) 248,403 (37,467)
* Xuzhou Metro Line Three Investment Development Co., Ltd. 227,078 (22,708) 256,857 (24,812)
Liupanshui Urban Pipe Gallery Construction and Development 220,819 (11,041) 220,819 (11,041)

Investment Co., Ltd.

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
6. Amounts due from related parties (continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (continued)

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount allowance amount allowance
Cangzhou CSCEC Bohai Investment Logistics Park Construction 146,521 (14,652) 146,521 (14,652)

Development Co., Ltd.

Cangzhou Bohai New Area China Construction Port Construction

Management Co., Ltd. 134,455 (68,706)
Mianyang Zhongjian Kefa Guanlang Road Investment and
Construction Co., Ltd. 14,995 (675)
Suzhou Xinghui West Ring Road Construction Co., Ltd. 146,168 (6,578)
Qinghai Zhengping Jiaxi Highway Construction Co., Ltd. - -
* Ghina Gonsiiuction Gommunications Gonstiuction Group Linfen L o
Jinhe Road and Bridge Engineering Co., Ltd. 97,530 (15,603)
L|l|1_pt>:nshm Dongda Highway Investment and Development Co., 109,562 (10,956)
i qlng 'I'-ii'g‘H'ébé'édﬁéi'IWé y G R P ssgioe ('1'5','9 5.5.)4 .
China Construction Third Bureau Wuhan Jianghan Sixth Bridge _ _

Connection Engineering Construction and Operation Co., Ltd.

Development (4,915)

gP|p é'éél‘lé‘ry R ('i'ji'é)‘ .
XuchangChenhengRealEstateCoLtd (137)
. ')'(‘i'é‘ridt'éﬁll‘-iéi'j B e R g 2
. 'GLié'r'{g’ Shou Line Real Estato D 'é\)élébfhéﬁf T T O o 51 g (“2','5‘5'1'3')‘ .
Shan ééﬁé 'g‘r'd‘u' p 'Fiu'ii('i'é'rig' oal Estato Develo bhﬁé e i R i s (.4.&9.)4 .
G Gomatruction Third Bureat 'Xi'éﬁdyéﬁg' v 'ljii'é}iéihéiu ................................................................................ _ ....................... _ .

Ecological Construction and Operation Co., Ltd.

i Consitusiion Thid Bureau Shen .g.é.h i 'Jih'gih'bh B o R 67 335 ................ (3’ 044) ...................... _ ....................... _ .

Development Co., Ltd.

Haggh?jg Xinghan City Parking Lot Construction Management 54,143 (1,083) 118,907 (2,498)
i h'i‘h'g‘ Vamsion 7hs dei T éﬁéb N e
Development Co., Ltd. 47,507 (2,138) 23,744 (1,150)
Guizhou Zhengxi Expressway Investment Management Co., Ltd 44,000 (1,980) 60,552 (2,724)
Putian Zhongjian Mulan Construction Development Co., Ltd. 43,714 (1,967) 10,000 (450)
ionio 2H6h§ji'éﬁ South 1o North Water Diversion 'Eébiéé ey~~~
Protection Construction and Operation Co., Ltd. Sl (2,339) 4,532 (204)
Xuancheng Haijia Lancheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. 13,979 - 621,229 -
CCCC Jijiao Expressway Investment Development Co., Ltd. 9,023 (406) 7,635 (344)
China State Construction Xi'an Infrastructure Construction _ _ 579122 (72,606)

Investment Co., Ltd.

= 184,441 -
= 168,568 -
= 123,500 -

38 (710,403)
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
6. Amounts due from related parties (continued)

(3) Other receivables

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount allowance amount allowance
China Construction Third Bureau Ezhou Guang’an Real Estate 1,601,523 (64,061) 1,596,707 (63,867)

Development Co., Ltd.

China Construction Third Bureau Rongchang Chengdu Tianfu
New District Construction Investment Co., Ltd.

Dongguan Zhonghai Century City Education Technology

Development Co., Ltd. 95,986 (5,679) 145,986 (11,057)
Suzhou Junda National Road 206 Construction Co., Ltd 91,804 (13,566) 91,804 (7,824)
Sichuan Huayou Zhonglan Energy Co., Ltd. 85,116 (85,116) 100,000 (100,000)
Liupanshui Urban Pipe Gallery Construction and Development 81,286 (2,844) 42,165 (1,311)

Investment Co., Ltd.

.“Chlna Construction Third Engineering Bureau X|angyang East
West Axis Construction and Operation Co., Ltd.

Panzhihua China Construction Third Bureau Government

Service Center Project Construction Development Co., Ltd. g (Ehee) 528 ()
China Construction Third Bureau Shengshi Jingzhou Real

Estate Development Co., Ltd. S0 (E722i) 6,468 (6,449)
Foshan Jiantou Zhongjian Yipin Real Estate Co., Ltd 23,677 (416) 225,249 (16,875)
Suzhou Fu Real Estate Co., Ltd 1,798 (75) 645,036 (25,775)
Others 472,475 (29,571) 334,464 (21,690)
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
6. Amounts due from related parties (continued)

(4) Contract assets

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount allowance amount allowance
Sanmenxia National Highway 31-0 South Moving Project
Construction Management Co., Ltd. il () 446,269 (6,008)
Hebei xiong’an Citizen Service Center Co., Ltd. 475,144 (2,376) 514,776 (3,646)
Guizhou Zhengxi Expressway Investment Management Co., Ltd 454,718 (2,336) 848,360 (3,823)
CSCEC Wuhan Huangxiaohe Airport River Water Environment
Comprehensive Treatment Construction and Operation Co., 212,262 (5,761) 1,326 (1,326)
Ltd.
Hubei Trading Xiangyang North Expressway Co., Ltd 184,878 (1,399) 70,591 -
Mianyang Zhongjian Kefa Guanlang Road Investment and 160.073 (800) 83.421 (458)

Construction Co., Ltd.

Co., Ltd. 46,573 (233) 46,573 (233)
Shandong Ningliang Expressway Co., Ltd. 41,305 (207) 66,004 (330)
Suzhou Junda National Road 2006 Construction Co., Ltd 40,989 (269) 143,520 (823)
CSCEC Zhanjiang Dadao Investment and Construction Co., Ltd 40,343 (306) - -
CSCEC New Urbanization (Xinjiang) Investment Co., Ltd 39,080 (247) 294,093 (1,914)
China State Construction Development and Construction

(Foshan) Co., Ltd. gee i B N
Cangzhou CSCEC Bohai investment Logistics Park Construction 27,866 (139) 63.744 (247)

Development Co., Ltd.

Zhengzhou Public Zhongcheng Road and Bridge Construction 27,750 (269) 61,619 (261)

Management Co., Ltd.

Shenzhen Shenshan Special Cooperation Zone Zhongpu

Infrastructure Investment Co., Ltd. R L) 23,490 (153)
Jiging High Speed Railway Co., Ltd. 20,131 (101) 237,861 (1,431)
Tianjin Shuniji Real Estate Co., Ltd. 16,463 (82) 56,037 (280)
China Construction Eco-environmental Group Co., Ltd. (Formerly

known as “China Construction Water Affairs Environmental 15,801 - - -

Protection Co., Ltd.”)

Yinchuan Shenyang Road Underground Comprehensive Pipe 13,823 (69) 51.980 (176)

Gallery Construction Management Co., Ltd.
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
6. Amounts due from related parties (continued)

(4) Contract assets (continued)

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount allowance amount allowance
Shangang Group Ruitai Development Co., Ltd. 8,741 (53) 72,396 (298)
Panjin Xinjian Construction Co., Ltd. 7,716 (39) 62,345 (47,778)
Liupanshui Urban Pipe Gallery Construction and Development 5,794 (32) 155,511 (512)
Investment Co., Ltd.
X|r|1_];2ng Zhongjian Construction Investment Development Co., 5,070 (123) 89,110 (516)
Shijiazhuang Jiaojian Expressway Construction Management 4,026 (20) 3,057 (15)
Co., Ltd.
Haikou Qiyue Urban Construction Co., Ltd. 1,199 (6) 80,557 (376)
Luzhou Yangtze River Second Bridge Construction Co., Ltd. - - 125,191 (10,478)
ZhEtodtong Zhongjian Construction Investment Development Co., a a 85,006 (16,971)
G OGRS New U CoLtd ................................. R - 84678 (706) .
Wuhan Yangsigang Road and Bridge Construction and _ 3
Operation Co. Ltd. 82,194 (252)
China Construction Third Bureau Rongchang Chengdu Tianfu a a 62.005 62)
New District Construction Investment Co., Ltd. ’
Nanjing Kang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. - - 58,282 (264)
Others 696,172 (13,060) 1,237,831 (52,009)
Total 4,228,570 (45,642) 6,172,753 (162,919)
(5) Other current assets
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount allowance amount allowance

China State Construction Group 5,500,000 (161,700) 5,500,000 (161,700)
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
6. Amounts due from related parties (continued)

(5) Other current assets (continued)

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment

amount allowance amount allowance

Tianjin Chuangliang Investment Management Co., Ltd. 449,225 = 449,219 -

Chgzgcﬂz? Hairun Rongcheng Real Estate Development 382,829 3 _ _
o n]|angzho ngyun Sports . Development Co i 358, wo - 326 o o
meu Jlaxmg NanngReaIEstateDevelop mentCo [ 300’ wo (14’ 400) ............ 300 wo (14400) .
o n]lnShun J|Propert y CoLtd ....................................................... 278, s (74’ 184) ............ 302 we (49364) .
Tlan]mWan]langReaIEstateCoLtd189,084 ....................... —189084 ....................... o
GU|zhouZhengX| Expressway InvestmentManagement CoLtd188,393 ....................... = 188260 ....................... o
ShanghalJlashengReaIEstateDeveIopmentCoLtd180,758 ....................... - 235590 ....................... o
e b ngb| Foal Ectaie Co R W (29) .............. 35 i (2029) .
Chllrr]l\z;eittra:]t:n?gr;strtglon e o _ ...................... _ ............ 469 480 .............. (32864)
i e Group Co L (For merly .................................................................................................

known as “China Construction Water Affairs Environmental - - 450,000 (13,230)

Protection Co., Ltd.”)
s gq|u Vo eng Uban Consiraction Develop - Co o e -G 10 wr o
e 821,742 ....................... - 832823(130)
e 16,983, s (387, 324) ........ 14963 T ( 355371) .
(6) Long-term receivables
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment

amount allowance amount allowance

Hubei Trading Xiangyang North Expressway Co., Ltd. 20,000 (800) 20,000 (60)
e ng hway310 South Movmg . PrOJect .......................... 6, 000 .................. (600) ................ 6 000 ( 600) .

Construction Management Co., Ltd.

Cangzhou CSCEC Bohai Investment Logistics Park
Construction Development Co., Ltd. ’
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CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Amounts due from related parties (continued)

Debt Investments

Clear Elegant Limited

China State Construction Xi'an Infrastructure Construction
Investment Co., Ltd. (Note)

Note: As at 30 June 2021, the entrusted loan amounted RMB273,780 thousand lent to a joint venture of the Group, China
State Construction Xi’an Infrastructure Construction Investment Co., Ltd. (31 December 2020: RMB270,264 thousand)
and China State Construction Xi'an Urban Construction Investment Co., Ltd., an associate of the Group, amounted
RMB103,532 thousand (31 December 2020: RMB100,659 thousand), are presented in the entrusted loans of Note

V.12

30 June 2021
Carrying Impairment
amount allowance
2,538,434 -
1,651,593 -
1,622,899 =
1,351,096 -
1,254,054 =
1,135,984 -
828,493 -
729,714 -
683,750 -
623,530 -
611,261 -
588,186 -
510,565 =
370,275 -
331,645 -
315,600 -
300,650 -
290,106 -
285,838 -
274,602 =
273,780 (2,738)

INTERIM REPORT 2021

31 December 2020

Carrying
amount

2,545,359

Impairment
allowance
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
7. Payables to related parties

(1) Accounts payable
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

CSCEC Electronic Commerce Co., Ltd. 1,313,679 760,488
ZhengzhoquronngjlanSuppIyChalnManagementCoLtd253,598 ......................... 161059
CSCECRoad&BrldgeGroupCoLtd213,948 ......................... 193738
 GSCEC-Dach engConstructlon " 1o 7,924 ......................... o 73 .

China Construction Eco-environmental Group Co., Ltd. (Formerly known as

“China Construction Water Affairs Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.”) L 166,239
ShandongZhongpanZhongllEqmpmentLeasmgCoLtd ................................................ 118,042 ........................... 98509
ChlnaConstructlonAIumlnumNewMatenaIsChengduCoLtd70,986 ........................... 63682
Bel]lngChmaConstructlonZhongchaoConcreteCoLtd66,859 ........................... 61050
ChlnaConstructlonTechnologmegmenCoLtd47,3516515
ChlnaConstructlonEnwronmentalEnergyTechnoIogyCoLtd40,400 ........................... 32858
SlchuanXulanshantwLoglstlcsCoLtd38,037 ........................... h 4968
BeulngChma ConstructlonRuntongElectrlcalEnglneermgConstructlon34,839 ........................... 35031

Co., Ltd.
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CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED

Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Payables to related parties (continued)

Other Payables

CSCEC Chengdu Rail Transit Investment and Construction Co., Ltd.

Co., Ltd.

Co., Ltd.

CSCEC Wuhan Yangsigang Road and Bridge Construction and
Operation Co., Ltd.

30 June 2021
1,642,139

INTERIM REPORT 2021

31 December 2020
3,304,091




062 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED  INTERIM REPORT 2021

X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
7. Payables to related parties (continued)

(3) Contract Liabilities
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Guizhou Leirong Expressway Investment Management Co., Ltd. 1,319,836 1,331,887

CCCC Jijiao Expressway Investment & Development Co., Ltd. 1,030,504 1,075,022

Yunnan Huali Expressway Investment and Development Co., Ltd. 497,900 911,163

China Const.ructlon Third E.nglneenng Bureau Dazhou Lake Ecological 292,517 167,794
Construction and Operation Co., Ltd.

Liuzhou China Construction Steel Structure Dongcheng Exhibition 263,559 105,484

Construction Co., Ltd.

Wenzhou China Construction Steel Structure Olympic Sports Project
Management Co., Ltd.

China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Nanchong Environmental

Construction Investment Co., Ltd. LRES 256,086
~ Changsha CSCEC Chengtou Pipe Well Development Investment Co., Ltd. 175087 188,523
Lshon GSCE CDong chengCu ItureDeveIopment . CoLtd .............................................. 168 , e o 9 o
. Urumq i g Comtraction nfracircii Co g -0 158 , - o

Lllg:r?;r(ljztlir:)a:]%c;rlsﬂtiftlon Steel Structure Ecological Garden 147,227 81,382
e XlntongUrban R elopment . Co FEPRR -+ 130 , e R o5 2 5o
Cebe Chenghong Plpe Gallery EnglneerlngCo L R ; 39,728 ......................... % 200 .
. Zh&g%zgzumz:?"gozrﬁggc heng oA dge e R 1 3 7, 000 ........................... 86 5 23 .
G G g yang Yullang e Ecologlcal ................................ 1 3 6 , 632 ................................... _ .

Construction and Operation Co., Ltd.

Suining Donghu Green Water Ecological Environment Investment and
Construction Co., Ltd.

Jiaozuo Zhongjian South to North Water Diversion Ecological Protection

Construction and Operation Co., Ltd. poC il 202,679
- Xlangya . g o cheng ng Greenway B G e 106 , e o
qumg H|ghSpeedRa|IwayCo [ e ; 02,616 ......................... 626044 .
o engduChan gtouDo . ngConstructlonCo P 10 , e R i 4 i
HangzhouChengtouWuImInvestmentDeveIopmentCoLtd57,664 ......................... 122589
China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Jingzhou Huanchang Lake 48,708 207,539

Construction and Operation Co., Ltd.

Mianyang Zhongjian Kefa Guanlang Road Investment and Construction
Co., Ltd. )
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
7. Payables to related parties (continued)

(3) Contract Liabilities (continued)
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

SIPG Bayport Terminal Co., Ltd. 38,075 127,652
Y|changUrbanP|pe GaIIeryConstructlonandOperatlonCoLtd25,431 ........................... . 0403
HalkouTuoleeaIEstateCoLtd1,488 ........................... 5 3806
WuhanHuangxmoheAlrponR|verEnwronmentComprehenswe ................................................. _ ......................... 6 76033

Treatment Construction Operation Co., Ltd. ’
B Ltd ...................................... = . o
Chengdu Beichon Tiamar o e CoLtd ........................................................................ e ; 04390
e ; ’32 . , e RO ; 666 06
By . ’54 o ’ e S 10555 005

(4) lease liabilities

Shandong Zhongcheng Machinery Leasing Co., Ltd. 22,890
Shangha||nternat|onalPon(Group)CoLtd22,628
ShandongZhongjlanZhongllEqmpmentLeasmgCoLtd1,339
HebeleonganszenSerwceCenterCoLtd335
Total47,192

(5) Entrusted loans
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

China State Construction Group 3,524,910 3,502,322
Jinmao Investment (Changsha) Co., Ltd. 729,000 615,000
Total 4,253,910 4,117,322

(6) Long-term Payables

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Sunrise JV Limited 2,400,000 2,400,000
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Xl

1.

(@)

Share-based payment

Overview
For the six months
ended 30 June 2021 2020
Number of restricted shares unlocked - 303,016,000
B 16,90 3 , 667 .................... 10558 2 00
Theremalnmgtermofthe P, outstandmg stockoptlonsat ..................................... 3540

the end of the period/year

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021 2020

Total amount of employee services in exchange for share based payment 412,960 506,233

The equity-settled share-based payment is as follows:

For the six months

ended 30 June 2021 2020

Accumulated amount of equity-settled share-based payment in capital 2,003,410 1,680,450
surplus

Total expenses recognised in equity-settled share-based payment 412,960 506,233

Share-based payment plan

Share-based payment by the Company

(7)

In accordance with the authorisation of the first extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on 19
December 2016, the Company held the 104th meeting of the first session of the Board of Directors on 29
December 2016, and the Board of Directors approved the resolution of China State Construction Engineering
Corp., Ltd. Granted Second Batch Restricted Shares Incentive Plan (A share) (“the second batch Incentive Plan”),
in which the Company was approved to grant the restricted shares incentive to 1,575 targets (“the second batch
Incentive Targets”). From 23 December 2016 to 27 December 2016, the Company completed the repurchase
of 260,130,000 shares (“the second batch of Restricted Shares”) in total from secondary market and completed
the granting to the second batch Incentive Targets on 29 December 2016 (“the second batch grant day”). The
second batch Incentive Targets’ purchase price is RMB4.866 per share and the limited sales period is 2 years.
If the unlock condition of the restricted shares prescribed by the plan is met, the second batch Incentive Targets
can unlock the shares with the upper limit of 1/3, 1/3 and 1/3 of the granted shares on 29 December 2018 (the first
batch of Phase Il), 29 December 2019 (the second batch of Phase II) and 29 December 2020 (the third batch of
Phase Il) respectively.

In accordance with the authorisation of the third extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on 3
December 2018, the Company held the 15th meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors on 26
December 2018, and the Board of Directors approved the resolution of China State Construction Engineering
Corp., Ltd. Granted Third Batch Restricted Shares Incentive Plan (A share) (“the third batch Incentive Plan”),
in which the Company was approved to grant the restricted shares incentive to 2,081 targets (“the third batch
Incentive Targets”). From 4 December 2018 to 21 December 2018, the Company completed the repurchase of
599,910,000 shares (“the third batch of Restricted Shares”) in total from secondary market and completed the
granting to the second batch Incentive Targets on 26 December 2018 (“the third batch grant day”). The third batch
Incentive Targets’ purchase price is RMB3.468 per share and the limited sales period is 2 years. If the unlock
condition of the restricted shares prescribed by the plan is met, the third batch Incentive Targets can unlock
the shares with the upper limit of 1/3, 1/3 and 1/3 of the granted shares on 26 December 2020 (the first batch of
Phase Ill), 26 December 2021 (the second batch of Phase Ill) and 26 December 2022 (the third batch of Phase III)
respectively.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XI.

(a)
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Share-based payment (continued)

Share-based payment plan (continued)

Share-based payment by the Company (continued)

(7

&

)

4

(continuea)

In accordance with the authorisation of the third extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on 7
December 2020, the Company held the 50th meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors on 23
December 2020,and the Board of Directors approved the resolution of China State Construction Engineering Corp.,
Ltd. Granted Third Batch Restricted Shares Incentive Plan (A share) (“the fourth batch Incentive Plan”), in which
the Company was approved to grant the restricted shares incentive to 2,765 targets (“the fourth batch Incentive
Targets”). From 30 October 2020 to 14 December 2020, the Company completed the repurchase of 912,036,000
shares (“the fourth batch of Restricted Shares”) in total from secondary market and completed the granting to the
second batch Incentive Targets on 23 December 2020 (“the fourth batch grant day”).The fourth batch Incentive
Targets’ purchase price is RMB3.06 per share and the limited sales period is 2 years. If the unlock condition of
the restricted shares prescribed by the plan is met, the fourth batch Incentive Targets can unlock the shares with
the upper limit of 1/3, 1/3 and 1/3 of the granted shares on 23 December 2022 (the first batch of Phase IV), 23
December 2023 (the second batch of Phase IV) and 23 December 2024 (the third batch of Phase 1V) respectively.
If the business achievement or individual performance fail to meet the unlock condition, the unlocked restricted
shares will be repurchased by the Company at the grant price and with no interests.

The market price of the second batch of Restricted Shares was RMB9.16 per share at the second batch grant
date. The price paid by the second batch Incentive Targets was RMB4.866 per share, considering the influence
from gain restrictive, the fair value of the second batch of Restricted Shares granted this time was determined to
be RMB2.2118 per share at the second batch grant date. Due to converting reserves into shares approved by
the resolution of the general meeting of shareholders on 3 May 2018, the subscription price of the second batch
Incentive Targets was adjusted to RMB3.476 per share.

The market price of the third batch of Restricted Shares was RMB5.58 per share at the third batch grant date. The
price paid by the third batch Incentive Targets was RMB3.468 per share, based on which, the fair value of the third
batch of Restricted Shares granted this time was determined to be RMB2.2112 per share at the third batch grant
date.

The market price of the fourth batch of Restricted Shares was RMB5.00 per share at the fourth batch grant date.
The price paid by the fourth batch Incentive Targets was RMB3.06 per share, based on which, the fair value of the
fourth batch of Restricted Shares granted this time was determined to be RMB1.94 per share at the fourth batch
grant date.

In 2020, there are total 303,016,000 shares has been unlocked due to the third batch of Phase Il and the first batch
of Phase Il meet the unlock condition, and the treasury stock decreased by RMB1,051,692 thousand.

Increase/decrease of restricted shares in the reporting period

For the six months

ended 30 June 2021 2020

Number of restricted shares at the beginning of the period/year 1,308,330,603 709,868,803
Numbar of retricied <haree grant i enront peno d/year ............................................. - 912036 000
* Number of restricted shares unlocked in current period/year . (303,016,000)
* Number of restricted shares forfeited in current period/year ~ (16,903,667) | (10,558,200)
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Xl

(a)

(b)

Share-based payment (continued)
Share-based payment plan (continued)

Share-based payment by the Company (continued)

(%) The impact on the Company s financial position and operating resulis from restricted shares /s as /ollows.
For the six months
ended 30 June 2021 2020
Total expenses recognised in equity-settled share-based payment 412,960 506,233

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Accumulated amount of equity-settled share-based payment in
capital surplus 2,093,410 1,680,450

Share Option Schemes by China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd

On 29 June 2018, China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd offered to grant share options (the “Share Options”) to certain
eligible persons (collectively, the “Grantees”), to subscribe for a total of 107,320,000 shares, subject to acceptance of the
Grantees, under the share option scheme adopted by China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd on 11 June 2018. Out of the
107,320,000 Share Options granted, a total of 2,000,000 Share Options were granted to directors of China Overseas Land
& Investment Ltd. The exercise price is HK$25.85 per share. The Share Options granted will vest on 29 June 2020, 29 June
2021 and 29 June 2022 respectively.

On 29 June 2018, China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd offered to grant share options (the “Share Options”) to certain
eligible persons (collectively, the “Grantees”), to subscribe for a total of 285,840,000 shares, subject to acceptance of the
Grantees, under the share option scheme adopted by China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd on 11 June 2018. Out of the
285,840,000 Share Options granted, a total of 6,300,000 Share Options were granted to directors of China Overseas Land
& Investment Ltd. The exercise price is HK$18.724 per share.

As at 30 June 2021, 371,640,000 share options were granted for the plan (31 December 2020: 378,960,000).

The fair value of the Share Options was determined by the Binomial Options Pricing Model. For the six months ended 30
June 2021, the relevant cost was RMB129,100 thousand arising from staff services.(For the six months ended 30 June
2020: RMB73,058 thousand).
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Xll. Commitments and Contingencies

1. Commitments
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Contracted, but not provided for Capital commitments

2. Contingencies

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Contingent liabilities arising from pending litigations or arbitrations 6,526,835 7,482,255 Note 1

Note 1: As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, pending litigati
listed as follows:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Disputed value Disputed value

China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd. 1,823,313 1,901,742

Co., Ltd.

Co., Ltd. 23,012 23,012
 China Construction (Siping) Infrastructure Development Co., Ltd. 1080 -
. e
e 2t
s e oo

Note: The above pending litigations are mostly related with project quality, progress payment, etc. Please refer to
Note V. 41 for the progress of litigation matters at 30 June 2021 and the confirmed losses of judgment results,
and relevant liabilities are not recognized for the event that the potential obligations generated do not meet the
conditions for the recognition of provisions for other liabilities and charges.
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Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Contingencies (continued)

Note 2: As at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group’s external guarantees are listed as follows:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Guarantee amount Guarantee amount

Mortgage guarantee provided to property owners (Note) 87,361,639 88,071,537
. Gua rant e es forbank I oan .................................................................................. 5’04 ) , 876 ...................... 5462 3 9 o
. Total ................................................................................................................ 92’4 0 4, 515 .................... 93533 9 3 L

Note: The Group provides guarantees to property owners and property owners pledge the houses they have bought
when taking loans from banks. For the six months ended 30 June 2021 and for the year of 2020, there was no
significant breach of contract from commodity house buyers and the Group considers the risk associated with
the guarantee obligation is immaterial.

Events after the balance sheet date

1.

After the balance sheet date, the bonds issued by the subsidiaries of the Group are as follows:

Interest rate

Issuer Type of bond Value inissue  Issuance date (%)
Chg: SLT;pp'”g Enterprise Development Group ¢+ ot bonds 1,000,000 9 July 2021 310
Chg‘: SLT;pp'”g Enterprise Development Group 1 ate bonds 2,000,000 9 July 2021 3.25
Chg: SLT;ppmg Enterprise Development Group Corporate bonds 500,000 6 August 2021 2.75
Ch(';‘: SLT:jpp'”g Enterprise Development Group ot bonds 1,500,000 6 August 2021 3.25
China Construction First Group Co., Ltd. Ultra short-term 2,000,000 14 July 2021 217
financing bonds
China Construction Second Engineering Bureau UIt_ra sh_ort-term 3,000,000 8 July 2021 59
Co., Ltd. financing bonds
China Construction Fifth Engineering Bureau Co., UIt.ra shgr’(-term 2,000,000 14 July 2021 205
Ltd. financing bonds
China Construction Sixth Engineering Bureau Co., Ultlra shf)ﬁ-term 700,000 13 July 2021 275
Ltd. financing bonds
China Construction Sixth Engineering Bureau Co., UIt.ra shgrt—term 800,000 16 August 2021 263
Ltd. financing bonds
China Construction Seventh Engineering Bureau Ultlra shprt-term 1,000,000 30 July 2021 205
Co., Ltd. financing bonds
China Construction Eighth Engineering Bureau UItlra shf)rt-term 5,000,000 7 July 2021 205
Co., Ltd. financing bonds
China West Construction Group Co., Ltd. Medium-term notes 700,000 18 August 2021 3.35
China Construction Installation Engineering Co., Medium-term notes 300,000 20 August 2021 4.96

Ltd.

After the balance sheet date, the entrusted loans provided by China State Construction Group to the Group are as
follows:

On 23 July 2021, the second meeting of the third session of the board of directors of the group, and the second
meeting of the third session of the board of supervisors passed the proposal that “About China State Construction
Group to Provide China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited Entrusted Loans of RMB1.4 Billion”
and “About China State Construction Group To Provide China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
Entrusted Loans of RMBG0 million”.

On 26 July 2021, the Group signed the Entrusted Loan Contract with China Construction Group and China State
Construction Finance Co., Ltd., and China State Construction Group will provide the Group with an entrusted loan
of RMB1.4 billion through China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd.,. The term of loan is 1 year and can be repaid
in advance. The loan carries an annual interest rate of 2.99%; The Group signed the Entrusted Loan Contract with
China State Construction Group and China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd., China State Construction Group
provided the Group with an entrusted loan of RMB60 million through China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd.,.
The term of loan is 3 years and can be repaid in advance. The loan carries an annual interest rate of 3.8 %.
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XIV. Other important matters
1. Segment reporting
Operating segments

For management purpose, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and has five reportable
operating segments as follows:

(1) Building construction engineering;
(2) Infrastructure construction and investment;
(3) Real estate development and investment;

(4) Prospecting, design, etc.;
(5) Others.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource

allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on the profit or loss of reportable
segment.

The inter-segment transactions are transacted with reference to the prices used for transactions made to third parties at
then prevailing market prices.

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Building Infrastructure Real estate
construction construction development Prospecting
engineering  and investment  and investment and design Others Unallocated Elimination Total
Revenue from extemal 584,809,407 191,898,714 145,745,351 4,501,840 9,760,651 - - 936,715,963
Intersegmentrevenue11,258,418 .......... 1,693,606788,115430,057 .......... é,}iéé;éié ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, S (16,603,015)-
R - - 596,067,825 lllllll 193,592,320 lllllll 146,533,466 .......... 4,,9.:“ ,897 S 424,'1'93;447'0' ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, S (,1 6,603,015) ....... 936,715,963 .
ot goods PR ( 556,293,792) . ( 175,853,670) . ( .1 09,796,191 .) ......... (4’040’205) ......... (f,édé;:iih ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, S 5,636,767 e ( 838,152,505)
i fﬁbéifrﬁéhf o R (5,646;677') ........... (592,519) ........... (136,306) ............ (31 ;ié}i) ............ (66,078) ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ( ,5.) ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, S (3,466,779)
Asset impaiment osses)/ 46,161 (347,736) 95,397 2,042 (1,027) - - (204,265)
reversal
. Depreaatlon g (2,532,185) ........... (952,184) ......... (1,336,409) ............ (80,533) ........... (576,915) ............ (46,962) ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, S (5’525, 188)
P"t’:f(/é':ss) before ncorme 12598217 8906960 30787845 (6757 2553902 (2108,006) (966248) 51725913
e ‘e.)i[‘)'e‘ﬁsléé ................................................................................................................................................. ( . ,‘644',46'54)'
Totasegmentassets 58306200 AO07SE3 OGBSI 11940441 309863301 162765083  (145616620) 2350282414
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XIV. Other important matters (continued)
1. Segment reporting (continued)

Operating segments (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2020
For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Building Infrastructure Real estate
construction construction development Prospecting
engineering  and investment  and investment and design Others Unallocated Elimination Total
Revenue from external 464,365,337 144,408,601 108,624,505 3,935,982 6,853,342 - - 728,187,767

Asset impairment (losses)/
reversal

Other information

Information about proaucts and services

Revenue from external customers

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020
Building construction engineering 584,809,407 464,365,337
Infrast ructu re . constructl onandmv estment .................................................................. 191,89 8 ’ 714 .................. 144408 6 0 1 .
- Real estat e . d e velopme n t andlnve stment ................................................................... 145’7 4 5 ’ 351 .................. 108624 5 0 5 -
- Prospectm gand deS|gn .................................................................................................. 4 ’50 1 ’ 840 ...................... 3935 9 8 2 -
B " 0 ,7 0 , e R 6853 3 o
B 936,7 15 , e R 728187 7 o
Geographic information
Revenue from external customers
For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020
Mainland China 892,418,921 690,298,352
o other cou ntnes/geo g rap . caI reg|ons ........................................................................ 44,2 9 7, 042 .................... 37889 4 ; 5 -
Total ........................................................................................................................... 936,7 1 5 ’ 963 .................. 728187 7 6 o

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers.
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Other important matters (continued)
Segment information (continued)

Other information (continued)

Geographic information (contnued)

Non-current assets
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Mainland China 397,167,006 282,535,433
In other countries/geographical regions 30,385,255 30,542,196
Total 427,552,261 313,077,629

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of the assets and excludes financial assets, long-term
equity investments and deferred tax assets.

Information about a major custormer

The Group does not rely on one or several major customers.
Leases

As lessor

The Group has entered into operating leases on some of its houses and buildings, and the lease term is 1-10 years.
All leases include a clause to enable revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market
conditions. For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the rental income recognised by the Group on those houses and
buildings was RMB3,074,211. Details of the underlying houses and buildings are disclosed in Note V,16 Investment
properties.

The Group has also entered into operating leases on idle machinery and equipment, motor vehicles. And the lease term is
1-5 years. The rental income recognised by the Group was RMB50,324 during the period.

Operating leases

The profit or loss relating to operating leases is as follows:

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021

Lease income 3,124,535

The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021

Within 1 year, inclusive 3,989,520

For fixed assets leased out under operating leases, refer to Note V.17.
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XIV. Other important matters (continued)

2.
)

Leases (continued)

As lessee

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021
Interest expense on lease liabilities 105,240
Expenses relating to short-term leases accounting for applying practical expedients 1,033,180

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets accounted for applying practical expedients
1,906

(other than short-term leases)

Total cash outflow for leases 1,379,224

The Group has lease contracts for various items of houses and buildings, machinery, vehicles and other equipment used
in its operations. Leases of houses and buildings and machinery generally have lease terms of 3-10 years, while those of
vehicles and other equipment generally have lease terms of 1.5-3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the underlying assets and some contracts require the Group to maintain certain financial ratios. There are
several lease contracts that include extension and termination options and variable lease payments.

Fortential future cash outilows not imcluaed in the measurement of lease liabiiiies

The potential future cash outflows that the Group does not include in the measurement of lease liabilities mainly arise
from variable lease payments, extension and termination options in lease contracts, residual value guarantees, and risk
exposures such as leases that have been promised but not yet commenced.

Extension options and termination options

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the financial effect of revising lease terms to reflect the effect of exercising
extension and termination options was nil.

Finance /ease

At 31 December 2020, the balance of the unrecognised finance charge was RMB79,516 thousand, which was amortised
using the effective interest method over each period during the lease term. The Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable leases with its lessors falling due as follows:

31 December 2020

Within 1 year, inclusive 481,314
e y ears e 424 7 —
s y earsmc e oi7 8 o
Cover 3years ................................................................................................................................................................... =
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XIV. Other important matters (continued)
2. Leases (continued)
(2) As lessee (continued)

Significant operating /eases

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases with its lessors falling due as follows:
31 December 2020

Within 1 year, inclusive 3,030,470
1102yearsmclu5|ve ......................................................................................................................................... 1737994
2103yearsmclu5|ve ............................................................................................................................................ 8 46716
Overayears ...................................................................................................................................................... 1448515
T . 963695

Orher information relating o leases

For right-of-use assets, refer to Notes V, 19; for practical expedients of short-term leases and leases of low-value assets,
refer to Notes Ill, 30, and for lease liabilities, refer to Notes V, 38 and Notes VIII, 3.

XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements

1. Accounts receivable

The ageing of accounts receivable is analysed as follows:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Within 1 year 14,824,066 14,956,163
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
1. Accounts receivable (continued)

Accounts receivable and impairment allowance are disclosed by category:

30 June 2021
Carrying amount Impairment allowance
Amount Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%)
Impairment allowance individually accrued 12,342,424 45.53 1,338,863 10.85
Imﬁ:li(rgoe;fto ﬁll)owance accrued by credit 14,763,580 54.47 1,391,264 9.42
e 27,106,00 FRRREE oo 2,730,1 by e
31 December 2020
Carrying amount Impairment allowance
Amount Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%)
Impairment allowance individually accrued 11,928,970 44.01 952,099 7.98
Imr;iJ:'i(r?oe;ftoﬁ!owance accrued by credit 15,178,888 55.99 1,359,708 8.96
e 27107858 .................... oo 231180 S bes

As at 30 June 2021, impairment allowance of accounts receivable individually accrued is as follows:

Provision Provision ratio

Ending balance for bad debt (%) Reason of provision

Company 1 1,856,197 669,408 36.06 Recovery possibility
om pany2 .................................................... 463,47 s 65,19 e 1407 RecoverypOSSIbty ]
om pany e 377,1 o 124,1 e sos RecoverypOSSIb . ty ]
om pany e 367,22 S 49,67 Lo ass Recoveryposslb . ty ]
om pany g 359,85 o 73’34 S o8 Recoverypossmlllty ]
P 8,918,52 S 357’05 s aoo Recoverypos5|blllty ]
.................................................................... 12,342,4241,338,863

As at 31 December 2020, impairment allowance of accounts receivable individually accrued is as follows:

Provision Provision ratio

Ending balance for bad debt (%) Reason of provision

Company 1 1,874,817 412,460 22.00 Recovery possibility
om pany S 48957 g 611 o oo Cocon erypOSS| b|||ty .
om pany g 38715 L 1241 o wos cooon erypOSS| blllty .
om pany L 37065 g 5067 S aer cooon erypOSS| blllty .
om pany S 24840 S 3746 S sos cooon erypOSS| blllty .
Coter 855836 S 2661 D a1 oo erypOSS| blllty .
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

1. Accounts receivable (continued)
The accounts receivable with impairment allowance accrued by credit risk portfolio are as follows:

Portfolio 1:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Estimated Estimated
gross carrying Expected Lifetime  gross carrying Expected Lifetime
amount at credit loss expected amount at credit loss expected
default ratio (%) credit loss default ratio (%) credit loss

Within 1 year 3,018,207 2.00 60,364 2,633,444 2.00

1,022,530

372,463

1,633

41,868

10,382

082

Portfolio 2:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Estimated Estimated
gross carrying Expected Lifetime  gross carrying Expected Lifetime
amount at credit loss expected amount at credit loss expected
default ratio (%) credit loss default ratio (%) credit loss
Within 1 year 1,010,158 6.00 60,610 1,446,424 6.00 86,785

Portfolio 3:
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Estimated Estimated
gross carrying Expected Lifetime  gross carrying Expected Lifetime
amount at credit loss expected amount at credit loss expected
default ratio (%) credit loss default ratio (%) credit loss

Within 1 year 5,114,208

230,139

4,899,150

220,462
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
1. Accounts receivable (continued)
Impairment allowance of accounts receivable are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021:

Opening balance Provision Reversal Write-off Other movements Closing balance
2,311,807 705,921 (277,356) (3,126) (7,119) 2,730,127

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

Opening balance Provision Reversal Other movements Closing balance
1,829,600 1,122,770 (594,203) (46,360) 2,311,807

The important reversal amounts for the six months ended 30 June 2021 as follows:

Amount
Basis for the of reversal/
Reason for reversal/collection impairment allowance collection Way of collection

Company 1 Accounts receivable of project collected Collectively accrued Cash

Individually and

Others Accounts receivable of project collected . 162,938 Cash
Collectively accrued
Total 277,356
As at 30 June 2021, the five largest accounts receivable due to customers are as follows:

Amount of % of total
provision for account
Amount bad debts receivable
Total amount of the five largest accounts receivable 5,327,359 829,570 19.65

As at 31 December 2020, the five largest accounts receivable due to customers are as follows:

Amount of % of total

provision for account

Amount bad debts receivable

Total amount of the five largest accounts receivable 4,830,004 607,609 17.82

2. Other receivables

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Dividend receivables 1,128,744 1,190,122
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

2.

Other receivables (continued)

The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:
30 June 2021 31 December 2020

Within 1 years 13,592,596 15,056,515
12years ........................................................................................................................ A ,976,564 ...................... : 605813
23years ........................................................................................................................ ) ,806,524 ...................... 1573531
34years ........................................................................................................................... o 80,44126589
45year326,722 ......................... 5 57061
Over5year3386,954 ......................... 5 03889
T 22,669,801 .................... 22723398
Lesslmpa|rmenta||owance(701,263)(694491)
e 21,968,538 .................... 22028907

Nature of other receivables are as below:

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Receivables from related parties 19,754,359 19,777,018

Changes in impairment allowance recognised for the 12-month expected credit losses and lifetime expected credit losses
on other receivables are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Stage 3

Stage 1 Credit losses of credit-

12-month impaired financial assets

expected credit (Lifetime-expected
losses credit losses) Total

Opening balance 21,586 672,905 694,491
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
2. Other receivables (continued)

Changes in impairment allowance recognised for the 12-month expected credit losses and lifetime expected credit losses
on other receivables are as follows (continued):

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Stage 3

Stage 1 Credit losses of credit-

12-month impaired financial assets

expected credit (Lifetime-expected
losses credit losses) Total

Opening balance

* Changes due to the opening balance

The changes in the book value of other receivables that affect the changes in the provision are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Stage 3
Stage 1 Credit losses of credit-
12-month impaired financial assets
expected credit (Lifetime-expected
losses credit losses) Total
Opening balance 21,087,107 1,636,291 22,723,398

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Stage 3

Stage 1 Credit losses of credit-

12-month impaired financial assets

expected credit (Lifetime-expected
losses credit losses) Total
Opening balance 22,553,131 855,205 23,408,336

Changes due to the opening balance

— Transfer to Stage 3 (983,000) 983,000 -
— Transfer to Stage 1 18,972 (18,972) -
Addition 13,458,952 214,246 13,673,198
Derecognition (13,931,858) (375,817) (14,307,675)
Write-off - (4,203) (4,203)
Other movements (29,090) (17,168) (46,258)
Closing balance 21,087,107 1,636,291 22,723,398
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

2.

Other receivables (continued)

The important reversal amounts for the six months ended 30 June 2021 are listed as follows:

Reason for reversal/

collection

Company 1 Receivable collected
Company 2 Receivable collected
Company 3 Receivable collected
Company 4 Receivable collected
Company 5 Receivable collected
Others Receivable collected
Total

Basis and rationality for determining
the provision
for bad debts

Individually accrued

As at 30 June 2021, other receivables from the five largest customers are as follows:

Closing

Balance
Company 1 1,828,850
Company 2 1,631,494
Company 3 1,273,241
Company 4 1,000,956
Company 5 810,836
Total 6,545,377

As at 31 December 2020, other receivables from the five largest customers are as follows:

Closing

Balance
Company 1 1,833,215
Company 2 1,623,876
Company 3 1,083,020
Company 4 1,058,251
Company 5 772,226
Total 6,370,588

% of total

balance  Relation to the Company
8.07 Due from Related parties
7.20 Due from Related parties
5.62 Due from Related parties
4.42 Due from Related parties
3.58 Due from Related parties
28.89

% of total

balance  Relation to the Company
8.07  Due from Related parties
7.15  Due from Related parties
4.77  Due from Related parties
4.66 Due from Related parties
3.39  Due from Related parties
28.04

INTERIM REPORT 2021
Amount
of reversal/
collection Way of collection
2,384 Cash
1,932 Cash
1,625 Cash
1,000 Cash
520 Cash
7,272 Cash
14,733
Provision for
impairment
Ageing amount
Within 2 years -
Within 1 year -
Within 1 year -
1-3 years -
Within 1 year -

Ageing
Within 2 years

Provision for
impairment
amount
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

3. Long-term equity investments

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
Subsidiaries 188,893,555 174,729,180

(1) Subsidiaries under direct control

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Opening Current year Closing  Cash dividend
balance movements balance declared
China Overseas Holdings Limited 49,444 328 - 49,444,328 -

China Construction Fangcheng Investment & Development

Co., Ltd. 5,851,624 - 5,851,624 -
 Shonshon Ghims Gvercens Invesimart e nagement Co . 301’ e IR 301’ sy -
e R i ,1 94’ wo I i ’ ; 94’ wo =
 Ghina State Construction Finarce. Co T RE— 7,924’ a0 o 8 ’ 924’ ey 205,605 o
Ghina Gon tructlonAmenca i 3,976, s S 3, 976, s ]
 Ghina State Construction De velopment G T E— ; ,790’ e o ; ’ 790’ e 20,490 o

China Construction Liupanshui Infrastructure Investment and 800,000 a 800,000 _

Development Co., Ltd.
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
3. Long-term equity investments (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries under direct control (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Opening Current year Closing  Cash dividend
balance movements balance declared
China Overseas Holdings Limited 49,444,328 - 49,444,328 9,300,000

Co., Ltd.

China Construction Liupanshui Infrastructure Investment and 800,000 _ 800,000 _
Development Co., Ltd.
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
3. Long-term equity investments (continued)

(2) Subsidiaries under indirect control

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Opening Current year Closing ~ Cash dividend

balance movements balance declared

China Construction transportation construction Group Corp Ltd. 1,279,000 - 1,279,000 53,600
i e G up Co gt A 942’ ey —— 942, s 13,963 N
Ghie Comiuction Tetaliation Engmee rlng & T R— 837, ws e 837, ws 17,922 N
" GSCES Teshalo gy i gmeenn g Co et 739’ e e 739’ s 60,280 |
. Hagg zhﬁz Chma Comsiruction Gusho Pra perty s R 668, 432 ....................... _ ............ 668, 432 ....................... _ N

China State Construction Foshan Transportation Joint

Investment Co., Ltd. 4,800 - 4,800 -
G e OverseasDeveIopment (Shanghau)Co G 100,000 ....................... - 100’000 ....................... -
CSCECUndergroundSpaceCoLtd100,000 ....................... _100,000 ....................... -
O G Co T R 60, wo (60, 000) ...................... S -
. ChlnaConstrucnonBr|dgeCo L 300, wo e 300’ wo =
e 2,079, w 388, e , , 468, we =
B 7,940, o 328, o 8, 269, o 145,765 |
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Opening Current year Closing  Cash dividend

balance movements balance declared

China Construction transportation construction Group Corp Ltd. 1,279,000 - 1,279,000 49,270
ChlnaWestConstructlonGroupCoLtd942264 ....................... I 942264 ............... 13188
G e Engmee r|ng & L 837305 ....................... IR 837 ws 3370 .

e o o Lo ™™™ 7ansos - e

Haggihl?t: .Chlna Construction Guobo Property Investment 668,432 _ 668,432 _
" GSOEG St G Developm o Co Ly 300000 ....................... IR 300 wo 543504 .
i G Co L 300000 ....................... I 300 wo T o
O G tructlonCo TR 230000 ....................... I 230 wo -

Ch;:\?eittrz:een?gr:)sfrttcdn.on Foshan Transportation Joint 4,800 _ 4,800 _
G Conciicton OverseasDeveIopment (Shanghau)Co L 100000 ....................... - 100000 ....................... o
CSCECUndergroundSpaceCoLtd100000 ....................... _100000 ............... 30800
i Gomcto Waar G Co T 60000 ....................... R 60 wo T o
. ChmaConstructlonBndgeCo g 300000 ....................... I 300 wo -
e 250690 ........... 1 8 28767 ........... 5 079 o o
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Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
Long-term equity investments (continued)

Joint ventures

For the six months ended 30 June 2021
Movement during the period

Investment Other
Increase/ income/(losses)  comprehensive
Opening (Decrease) in under equity income
Balance investment method adjustment Others ~ Closing Balance
Zhactz)tor;.ngSCEC Construction Investment Development 511373 _ (3654) _ _ 507,719
Ch|(r:1§ RI:atLijay Construction Capital Construction Investment 425,007 (112500) _ _ _ 312,507
SRS Ao 'Bfidfjé s 6lib G g — R (2.31) .................. e T
Zhengzhou Zhongjian Shenzhen Rail Transit Co., Ltd. 1,029,089 244,606 (52,233) - - 1,221,462
"'C'Héhg's‘rié‘C‘S'CE'CChéﬁgfdﬂ‘Pib‘e'\'l\‘léil'b‘é\}éidbiﬁéh‘t'wwmmw'mwmwwmmw_mwwwww _ .................. _ ......................
Investment Co., Ltd. 323,461 129 323,590

Yinchuan Shenyang Road Underground Pipeline

Construction & Management Co., Ltd. R - - - - R

Chg:v(;%r;sr:gglgr; ,(,Tll_irj].]m) Rail Transit Investment 460,784 _ _ _ _ 460,784

"'G'ljli;zt'z‘éﬂ'ih'e‘hgkli‘Ekb'ré's‘s'v‘v'e{y'Ihi/‘és't‘rhérit‘Méh'eigé‘rh‘eh't‘(')‘d.', ............. 229,220___ .................. _ ............ 229’220

Dal[|)aer:l ezlt;(;?#g:p C(;;T\’\/Etrg'ous city construction and 231,613 _ 2,035 _ _ 234,548
"')‘(h'z‘ri()'u‘Méir‘d‘l.'ih‘e"T'er"e'I‘ri\}‘e's‘tfriéh‘t'[‘)'e'\ie'l‘dbr'ﬁéh‘t'Cbl.lt‘d. .............. S R ]
"'C'S'CEC-'Dé'c‘Héh'g66hé'tfﬂ‘cii6ri‘l_'td' ...................................... R 4(33.343). o R o
"'Q'ih‘g'riéi‘ihéhﬁbiﬁgJiéi(i‘HighWéy‘th‘sirﬁét‘ib‘riCé?{l‘_'td: ................. T e S
B e i — i Ra— i B e o
e i i (43;575) ............... (éél) ............. (6;605) .......... s

2020
Movement during the year
Investment Other
Increase/ income/  comprehensive

Opening ~ (Decrease)in (losses) under income  Distribution Closing

Balance investment  equity method adjustment  of dividends Others Balance

Zhaotong CSCEC Construction Investment Development Co., Ltd. 504,445 - 6,928 - - - 511,373
"'Ch'ihé'ﬁé'ili&éy"Céh‘sirﬁc'ﬁc‘)h'(‘)éb'ifél'Cbh‘s'tfdé{ibh'I'r{v'és‘t'rﬁ‘ehi‘(')é:,‘l'.t'd."""'“""Edd,béé‘m"'H"('75',[‘)0'0‘)”'""""""('1'6‘)' e e
"'C‘S'CECHREJ‘ad'&B'ri‘dgé'é‘réﬂbndi,'i.id:"H'H""""”W'H"""""'“""169,465”“””““““: ........... 30254(165)— ............... s
"'Z'h'eh‘gjz'riéu‘z‘hbhg'jiériéﬁéhihéﬁFiéiiTréh's‘it'éd.','l.‘td'.""'Hm““”“””“””3‘2‘5,'150 .......... T R g R s
"'Ché'rigs'hé'b‘s'C'E'C‘Ch‘eh'g‘téh‘P'ib‘e'We'Ill‘De'\‘/é\'ébr'ﬁe‘ht'iri\}éét'rh'e'rit‘(')é‘,,'ll_‘td."'“""‘3‘2‘0,'0'63‘”“””““““'—‘ ............ g g
"'C‘S'C'EC"Z'héhj'iéh'gi)'a'déé‘lh'\)e‘s'tlrh'eh‘térid'C‘bh‘s‘tr'dc‘t'iéh'é‘o'.,'Lid:‘”“”””“””‘3‘1‘6,45'8 44444444444 T e
R G e e (545)__ ......... (44,756““”“'2'4'3;,'7'7'7“"

Yln&:l;zr; eS:;zgagFﬁ;d Underground Pipeline Construction & 268484 _ _ _ _ _ 268 484
i o 's‘tfilét‘iéh‘('T'ié'riji‘ri)'Rla'ill A 'D‘ei/'e‘léb‘rriéhi N R T B R PP SeS R T
"'G‘u'iihb'u"Zhé‘rig')‘(i'Ekb'r‘e's's‘\ﬁéy‘lh'\/‘e's't‘rhéhiMéh‘a‘g'e'rh'e'rit”c‘d.;‘l.id:"""""'“""‘2‘2‘9;,;2'2'5‘”“””““““'—‘ ................ e U
"'I')é'li'a‘r{'Z‘Hdhgj'iéh'bé'v'érhﬂds'bifylébh‘s'tfdc't'iéh'éhd'DéVélbb}héhi‘Cé:,‘l'.t'd‘.""“""‘2‘2‘7','3'60”“””““““'—‘ ............ g S s
oo Lne T Iecinen bé\)éidbfdéhfﬁd.lfd. ....................... oo s TIPS g
eSCEC Da éﬁ{; ol s T e (5,060) ............... e
"'O‘ihghé'i‘zthéhgbihgﬁi'a}{i'I-‘Ii'g'HWé'y‘C'dris'fr'u'c‘tib'r{‘Cd.‘,'l.'td'."'Hm““”“””“””‘5‘8','8'()'0 .......... S e S i
"'Chb'rig'tii‘r{gjﬁéi'\fréﬁéii'L'ih'e'é‘Cbh's'tr‘ljc'fibh‘éhd‘(')bér'a‘ti'o'ri T s TIPS s =
i g R (‘1‘1',6'45‘) ............... R s
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
3. Long-term equity investments (continued)

(4) Associates

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Movement during the period

Investment
Increase/  income/(losses)
Opening (Decrease) in under equity Distribution

balance investment method of dividends Others  Closing balance
CCCC Jijiao Expressway Investment & Development Co., Ltd. 1,662,658 95,000 (48,410) - - 1,709,248
Yunnan Huali Expressway Investment & Development Co., Ltd. 1,185,000 376,094 - - - 1,561,094
Xuzhou Metro Line One Investment & Development Co., Ltd. 465,000 - - - - 465,000
Sanmenxia National Highway 310 Southward Project 664335 _ _ _ _ 664335

Construction Management Co., Ltd.

Shenshan Special Cooperation Zone Harbour City

Investment & Construction Co., Ltd. LAl LA B B - L
Liyang Znongjian Sander Environmental Management Co, Ltd. 146,140 - 149 - - 146,289
Cangzhou Development Zone Beigi Industrial Park 28,967 _ 165 (1.259) _ 28173

Investment Center (LP)

Xinyu Ring Road Construction Investment Co., Ltd. 60,000 - - - = 60,000
Taizhou Lugiao New Island Investment Development Co., Ltd. 19,595 - - - - 19,595
Shijiazhuang Transportation Investment Jinshi Expressway _ _ _ _

Construction Management Co., Ltd. EEL gL
Zhangzhou Zhan Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. 75,965 - - - - 75,965
Urumgi Linkong Construction Infrastructure Co., Lid. - 4,900 - - = 4,900
Others 48,035 518,290 (1,620) - (200) 564,505
Total 4,694,469 905,166 (49,416) (1,259) (200) 5,548,760

2020
Movement during the year
Investment
Increase/  incomey(losses)
Opening (Decrease) in under equity Distribution
balance investment method of dividends Others  Closing balance
CCCC Jijiao Expressway Investment & Development Co., Ltd. 1,302,988 441,915 (82,245) - - 1,662,658
Yurﬂ?;n Huali Expressway Investment & Development Co., 790,000 395,000 _ _ B 1185000
"')‘('u'z‘H(‘)'u‘Méir‘d‘l.'ih‘e'bh‘e"lr'ﬁ/'e's‘t'n‘l'e‘ritl&'bé\‘/'e‘léb'rﬁ‘érﬁ'bé.‘,ﬁd ............ won L R o
Sanmenxia National Highway 310 Southward Project 150,000 214,335 ~ ~ B 664,335

Construction Management Co., Ltd.

Shenshan Special Cooperation Zone Harbour City
Investment & Construction Co., Ltd.

Cangzhou Development Zone Beigi Industrial Park

Imestnent Cenet L) 75,301 (46,000) 2,029 (3.269) - 28,967
T o o o
e o w S s
S Tt e oy 19600 ................ e

Construction Management Co., Ltd.

144,278
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

4,

5.

Revenue and cost of sales

For the six months ended For the six months ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020

Revenue Cost Revenue Cost

Revenue from main operations 47,680,054 45,952,755 40,678,728 39,714,307
Revenue from 0 th er . operatlons ................................... 20,067 .................... 13,019 .................... 2750 9 ................... 17761
Total .................................................................... 47’700’12 1 ............. 45,965,774 ............. 4070623 7 ............. 39732068 .

Revenue is shown as follows:

For the six months For the six months

ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

Revenue from contracts with customers 47,681,481 40,687,338
Rentals ............................................................................................................................... 1 8,640 ........................... 18899
Total ............................................................................................................................. 47,700,121 .................... 4 0706237

As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, the transaction price allocated to the unfulfilled or partially unfulfilled performance
obligations is related to the progress of the corresponding contract, and will be recognised as revenue according to the
progress of performance in the future performance period.

The breakdown of revenue generated by the contract with customers is as follows:

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

Timing of revenue recognition

Investment income

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2021  ended 30 June 2020

Investment income from disposal of long-term equity investments under

. 23,388,328 23,422,476
equity method

Investment income from debt investments 206,646 240,910

Investment loss from disposal of long-term equity investments under (97,991) (71,348)

equity method

Inves ncome

Investment income obtained during the holding period of the held for
trading financial assets

The company has no major restrictions on the repatriation of investment income.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the six months ended 30 June 2021

1. Statement of non-recurring profit or loss

For the six months
ended 30 June 2021

Gains from disposal of non-current assets 137,876

In addition to the normal operation of the company’s effective hedging business, Income/losses
arising from changes in fair value and from disposal/redemption of the financial assets held
for trading, derivative financial assets, financial liabilities held for trading, derivative financial
liabilities and other debt investments

The group’s recognition of non-recurring profit or loss items shall be carried out in accordance with the provisions of
“Explanatory Notice of Corporate Information Disclosure of Public Securities Offering No. 1 — Non-recurring Profit or Loss”
(CSRC Announcement No. [2008]43).

2. Return on net assets and earnings per share
For the six months ended 30 June 2021

Weighted average Earnings per share
return on net
assets (%) Basic Diluted
Net profit attributable to the Company’s ordinary shareholders 8.13 0.62 0.61
Net profit .attnbutable to.the Corppany s ordinary shareholders after 777 0.58 0.57
deducting non-recurring profit or loss
For the six months ended 30 June 2020
Weighted average Earnings per share
return on net
assets (%) Basic Diluted
Net profit attributable to the Company’s ordinary shareholders 6.98 0.47 0.46
Net profit attributable to the Company’s ordinary shareholders after 6.53 0.43 043

deducting non-recurring profit or loss
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